

P.O. Box 600 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0600

PHILIP D. MURPHY
Governor

DIANE GUTIERREZ-SCACCETTI

Commissioner

SHEILA Y. OLIVER

Lt. Governor

June 23, 2023

Mr. Harry W. Coleman, Jr., Executive Vice President IEW Construction Group, Inc. 1 AAA Drive, Bldg. 1B Hamilton Township, NJ 08691

NOTICE TO PROCEED

Re: Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

Dear Mr. Coleman:

Attached is a conformed copy of the Contract and Bond on the above-indicated project. On <u>June 20, 2023</u>, the Commissioner of Transportation executed the contract.

This constitutes your Notice to Proceed with the work of this contract in accordance with the provisions of Subsection 108.02 of the Specifications. As per Section 109.05 of the Specifications, estimate certificates for this project shall be dated the <u>10th</u> of each month with first estimate date of <u>August 10th</u>, <u>2023</u>.

All further communications in reference to the performance of this project shall be directed to:

North Region Operations

Christian Espitia

200 Stierli Court

Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856-1322

Telephone: 973-601-6619

Sincerely,

for

Anthony Genovese, Director Division of Procurement

cc: V. Tilghman-Ansley, S. Tomlinson, E. Powers, A. Tunnard, C. Feinthel, J. Yiu, E. Yermack, P. Oza, A. Genovese, K. Abbott

CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT Made the day of Some in the year two thousand twenty-
three, between the Department of Transportation of the State of New Jersey, herein after referred to
as the Department and IEW Construction Group, Inc. with a principal office location 1 AAA
Drive, Bldg. 1B Hamilton Township, NJ 08691 herein after referred to as the Contractor

WITNESSETH, that the said Contractor, for and in consideration of the payments hereinafter specified and agreed to be made by the Department, hereby covenants and agrees to furnish and deliver all the materials, to do and perform all the work and labor required to be furnished and delivered, done and performed in and about the improvement of

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

in strict and entire conformity with the plans on file at the office of the Department in Trenton and with the specifications of the New Jersey Department of Transportation as amended by the Supplementary Specifications applying to this particular work, which were duly approved by the State Commissioner of Transportation under the power and authority vested in the Department under Chapter 301, Laws of 1966, approved December 12, 1966 (27:1A-1, et seq.), and which said plans and specifications are hereby made part of this agreement as fully and with the same effect as if the same had been set forth at length in the body of this agreement.

All payment obligations are subject to appropriations and the availability of funds.

In consideration of the covenants contained herein the Department hereby agrees to pay the Contractor for the said work, when completed in accordance with the said plans and specifications, the sum of <u>one million</u>, six hundred seven thousand, four hundred fourteen dollars and forty seventy cents (\$1,607,414.47).

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be signed, attested to and sealed.

Department of Transportation of the State of New Jersey Eric Yermack, P.E. State Transportation Engineer	By:	Witness, Attest, Affix Seal: Anika James, Secretary New Jersey Department of Transportation
6/20/2023 Date		6/20/2013 Date
		IEW Construction Group, Inc.
Witness or attest:		H. Car
witness of attest.		Authorized Officer
EHM		Executive Vice President
Secretary	•	Title of Officer
Sean Flynn	8.0	Harry W. Coleman, Jr
(Print or Type name)		(Print or Type name)

AFFIX SEAL IF A CORPORATION

New Jersey Department of Transportation

Letting ID: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

Contract ID: 23418 **Call:** 418

Company name: IEW Construction Group, Inc

Proposal Description: Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North - 2023; Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; DP No. 23418; CE No. 2207490; FPN: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633)

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418
Call: 418

Line Number	Item Number	Quantity Unit	Unit Price	Extension Price
Section 0001 ROADWAY				
0001	151006M PERFORMANCE	1.00 DOLL BOND AND PAYMENT BOND	\$9,769.54	\$9,769.54
0003	153009P BAR CHART PF	1.00 LS ROGRESS SCHEDULE AND UPDATES	\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00
0004	154003P MOBILIZATION	1.00 LS	\$160,000.00	\$160,000.00
0007	158030M INLET FILTER	20.00 U R TYPE 2, 2' X 4'	\$44.73	\$894.60
0008	158033M INLET FILTER	10.00 U R TYPE 2, 4' X 4'	\$89.45	\$894.50
0009	158072M OIL ONLY EME	1.00 U ERGENCY SPILL KIT, TYPE 1	\$1,177.00	\$1,177.00
0010	159003M BREAKAWAY BA	10.00 U ARRICADE	\$0.01	\$0.10
0011	159006M DRUM	100.00 U	\$0.01	\$1.00
0012	159009M TRAFFIC CONE	100.00 U	\$0.01	\$1.00
0013	159012M CONSTRUCTION	250.00 SF N SIGNS	\$0.01	\$2.50
0014	159027M FLASHING ARF	2.00 U ROW BOARD, 4' X 8'	\$0.01	\$0.02
0015	159030M PORTABLE VAR	2.00 U RIABLE MESSAGE SIGN	\$2,500.00	\$5,000.00
0016	MMG099M TRAFFIC CONT	1.00 LS		\$64,264.20
0017	159138M HMA PATCH	200.00 T	\$80.85	\$16,170.00
0018	159141M TRAFFIC DIRE	100.00 HOUR CCTOR, FLAGGER	\$100.00	\$10,000.00
0019	MMB163M MPT FOR SHOU	8.00 DAY JLDER OR LANE CLOSURE ON INTER		\$56,499.44
0020	MMB164M MPT FOR SHOU	28.00 DAY JLDER OR LANE CLOSURE NOT ON I	\$7,062.43 NTERSTATE HIGHWAY	\$197,748.04
0021	160004M FUEL PRICE A	10000.00 DOLL	\$1.00	\$10,000.00
0022	161003P FINAL CLEANU	1.00 LS	\$0.01	\$0.01
0023	201003P CLEARING SIT	1.00 LS	\$0.01	\$0.01
0024	202021P REMOVAL OF F	1143.00 SY PAVEMENT	\$50.93	\$58,212.99
0025	401021M HOT MIX ASPE	200.00 SY HALT PAVEMENT REPAIR	\$40.43	\$8,086.00
0026	405003P UNDERLAYER I	143.00 SY	\$0.01	\$1.43

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No

Letting: 23051801 Contract ID: 23418 New Jersey Department of Transportation 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM Call: 418 606024P \$60.28 0027 583.00 SY \$35,143.24 CONCRETE SIDEWALK, REINFORCED, 6" THICK \$30,204.00 0028 607018P 1800.00 LF \$16.78 9" X 16" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB 0029 607034P 318.00 LF \$16.57 \$5,269.26 9" X 14" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB 0030 608003P 371.00 SY \$19.88 \$7,375.48 NONVEGETATIVE SURFACE, HOT MIX ASPHALT 609003M \$35,887.32 0031 404.00 LF \$88.83 BEAM GUIDE RAIL 0032 609006M 40.00 LF \$99.00 \$3,960.00 BEAM GUIDE RAIL, DUAL-FACED 0033 609039M \$2,750.00 \$11,000.00 BEAM GUIDE RAIL ANCHORAGE 0034 609042M 10.00 U \$165.00 \$1,650.00 BEAM GUIDE RAIL POST 0035 609075M 175.00 LF \$0.01 REMOVAL OF BEAM GUIDE RAIL 611303M \$36,000.00 0036 2.00 U \$72,000.00 CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 2, WIDTH MEDIUM 0037 611312M 4.00 U \$41,000.00 \$164,000.00 CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH NARROW 0038 611315M 3.00 U \$49,000.00 \$147,000.00 CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH MEDIUM 0039 611318M 4.00 U \$57,000.00 \$228,000.00 CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH WIDE 0040 804000P 425.00 SY \$0.01 " THICK , 4" TOPSOIL SPREADING 804015P 100.00 CY 0041 \$82.50 \$8,250.00 BORROW TOPSOIL 0042 805003M 1000.00 LF \$3.24 \$3,240.00 TURF REPAIR STRIP

Section 0001 Total \$1,473,642.68

425.00 SY

425.00 SY

500.00 CY

FERTILIZING AND SEEDING, TYPE A

STRAW MULCHING

MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE

Section 0002 CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING

gen_Federal_njdot

806003P

809003M

903006M

0043

0044

0045

	TION ENGINEERING			
0005	155006M	1.00 U	\$39,268.11	\$39,268.11
	FIELD OFFICE	TYPE B SET UP		
0006	155024M	18.00 MO	\$4,684.46	\$84,320.28
	FIELD OFFICE	TYPE B MAINTENANCE		

\$123,588.39 Section 0002 Total

Errors: No

Page 3 Amendment Count: 1

\$1.10

\$1.10

\$240.00

\$1.75

\$4.25

\$467.50

\$467.50

\$120,000.00

Check: 6F0CDAB7E3

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

NON-PART	ricipating 152015p	1.00 DOLL	\$10,183.40	\$10,183.40
	POLLUTION LIA	ABILITY INSURANCE		
Section 000	03 Total			\$10,183.40
				\$1,607,414.47

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

EXTENSIONS AND ADDITIONS OF ITEMS IN THIS PROPOSAL HAVE BEEN VERIFIED. ERRORS, IF ANY, HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED AND CORRECTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH DEPARTMENT SPECIFICATIONS.

EXAMINER

BUREAU OF CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, NJDOT

Amendment Count: 1

Letting: 23051801 New Jersey Department of Transportation Contract ID: 23418 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM Call: 418 CLIDELLA CRECKEU DA

SURETY CHECKED BY:	
TREASURY CIRCULAR 570:	
LICENSED IN NEW JERSEY:	

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Page 6

Amendment Count: 1

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PROPOSAL FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

TO THE COMMISSIONER OF TRANSPORTATION OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY:

STATE OF New Jersey

COUNTY OF Mercer

I Harry W. Coleman, Jr

(NAME)

I AM Executive Vice President OF THE

(TITLE)

FIRM OF IEW Construction Group, Inc,

THE BIDDER SUBMITTING THIS PROPOSAL.

THE BIDDER HEREBY AGREES TO CONSTRUCT AND COMPLETE THIS PROJECT IN EVERY DETAIL AND AT THE PRICES PER UNIT OF MEASURE DELINEATED IN THE ATTACHED EBSX FILE IN THE FOLDER DESIGNATED "SCHEDULE OF ITEMS":

THE BIDDER HEREBY CERTIFIES TO THE BEST OF HIS KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF AND UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES AND THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY,

I. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

THAT AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM OF EQUAL OPPORTUNITY, IN SUPPORT OF PL 1945, C 169, THE NEW JERSEY "LAW AGAINST DISCRIMINATION" AS SUPPLEMENTED AND AMENDED, AS WELL AS IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 11246 PROMULGATED BY THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES, SEPTEMBER 24, 1965 AND EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 11625, PROMULGATED BY THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES, OCTOBER 13, 1971, HAS BEEN ADOPTED BY THIS ORGANIZATION TO ENSURE THAT APPLICANTS ARE

EMPLOYED, EMPLOYEES ARE TREATED WITHOUT REGARD TO THEIR RACE, CREED, COLOR, NATIONAL ORIGIN, SEX OR AGE, AND THAT THE SELECTION AND UTILIZATION OF CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, CONSULTANTS, MATERIALS SUPPLIERS AND EQUIPMENT LESSORS SHALL BE DONE WITHOUT REGARD TO THEIR RACE, CREED, COLOR, NATIONAL ORIGIN, SEX OR AGE. SAID AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM ADDRESSES BOTH THE INTERNAL RECRUITMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND UTILIZATION OF MINORITIES AND THE EXTERNAL RECRUITMENT POLICY REGARDING MINORITY CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, CONSULTANTS, MATERIALS SUPPLIERS AND EQUIPMENT LESSORS.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE AND THE FILING OF REQUIRED REPORTS	

THAT IF THE BIDDER HAS PARTICIPATED IN A PREVIOUS CONTRACT OR SUBCONTRACT SUBJECT TO THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE, AS REQUIRED BY EXECUTIVE ORDERS 10925, 11114, OR 11246, ALL REPORTS DUE UNDER THE APPLICABLE FILING REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN FILED WITH THE JOINT REPORTING COMMITTEE, THE DIRECTOR OF THE OFFICE OF FEDERAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE, A FEDERAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTING OR ADMINISTERING AGENCY, OR THE FORMER PRESIDENT'S COMMITTEE ON EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.

NOTE: THIS SECTION (II) IS REQUIRED BY THE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY -----REGULATIONS OF THE SECRETARY OF LABOR (41 CFR 60-1.7(B) (1)) FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS, AND MUST BE CERTIFIED TO BY BIDDERS ONLY IN CONNECTION WITH CONTRACTS AND SUBCONTRACTS WHICH ARE SUBJECT TO THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE. CONTRACTS AND SUBCONTRACTS WHICH ARE EXEMPT FROM THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE ARE SET FORTH IN 41 CFR 60-1.5. (GENERALLY ONLY CONTRACTS OR SUBCONTRACTS OF \$10,000 OR UNDER ARE EXEMPT). CURRENTLY, STANDARD FORM 100 (EEO-1) IS FOR FHWA AND FRA FUNDED PROJECTS AND STANDARD FORMS 100 (EEO-1) AND 257 ARE FOR UMTA

III.	NON-COLLUSION	AND	WARRANTY	CONCERNING	SOLICITATION	OF	THE	CONTRACT
BY 0'	THERS							

THAT THIS PROPOSAL HAS BEEN EXECUTED WITH FULL AUTHORITY TO DO SO; THAT SAID BIDDER HAS NOT, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ENTERED INTO ANY AGREEMENT,

PARTICIPATED IN ANY COLLUSION, OR OTHERWISE TAKEN ANY ACTION IN RESTRAINT OF FREE, COMPETITIVE BIDDING IN CONNECTION WITH THE ABOVE NAMED PROJECT; AND THAT ALL STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN SAID PROPOSAL AND IN THIS AFFIDAVIT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, AND MADE WITH FULL KNOWLEDGE THAT THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY RELIES UPON THE TRUTH OF THE STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN SAID PROPOSAL AND IN THE STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN THIS AFFIDAVIT IN AWARDING THE CONTRACT FOR THE SAID PROJECT.

THE BIDDER WARRANTS THAT NO PERSON OR SELLING AGENCY HAS BEEN EMPLOYED OR RETAINED TO SOLICIT OR SECURE SUCH CONTRACT UPON AN AGREEMENT OR UNDERSTANDING FOR A COMMISSION, PERCENTAGE, BROKERAGE OR CONTINGENT FEE, EXCEPT BONA FIDE EMPLOYEES OR BONA FIDE ESTABLISHED COMMERCIAL OR SELLING AGENCIES MAINTAINED BY THE BIDDER. (N.J.S.A.52:34-15) FUNDED PROJECTS AS REQUIRED BY EXECUTIVE ORDERS OR THEIR IMPLEMENTING REGULATIONS.

CONTRACTORS WHO HAVE PARTICIPATED IN A PREVIOUS CONTRACT OR SUBCONTRACT SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTIVE ORDERS AND HAVE NOT FILED THE REQUIRED REPORTS SHOULD NOTE THAT 41 CFR 60-1.7(B) (1) PREVENTS THE AWARD OF CONTRACTS UNLESS SUCH CONTRACTOR SUBMITS A REPORT COVERING THE DELINQUENT PERIOD OR SUCH OTHER PERIOD SPECIFIED BY THE PARTICIPATING FEDERAL AGENCY OR BY THE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF FEDERAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR.

IV. CERTIFICATION FOR FEDERAL AID CONTRACTS

THAT NO FEDERAL APPROPRIATED FUNDS HAVE BEEN PAID OR WILL BE PAID, BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE UNDERSIGNED, TO ANY PERSON FOR INFLUENCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INFLUENCE AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF ANY FEDERAL AGENCY, A MEMBER OF CONGRESS, AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF CONGRESS, OR AN EMPLOYEE OF A MEMBER OF CONGRESS IN CONNECTION WITH THE AWARDING OF ANY FEDERAL CONTRACT, THE MAKING OF ANY FEDERAL GRANT, THE MAKING OF ANY FEDERAL LOAN, THE ENTERING INTO OF ANY COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT, AND THE EXTENSION, CONTINUATION, RENEWAL, AMENDMENT, OR MODIFICATION OF ANY FEDERAL CONTRACT, GRANT, LOAN, OR COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT.

THAT IF ANY FUNDS OTHER THAN FEDERAL APPROPRIATED FUNDS HAVE BEEN PAID OR WILL BE PAID TO ANY PERSON FOR INFLUENCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INFLUENCE AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF ANY FEDERAL AGENCY, A MEMBER OF CONGRESS, AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF CONGRESS, OR AN EMPLOYEE OF A MEMBER OF CONGRESS IN CONNECTION WITH THIS FEDERAL CONTRACT, GRANT, LOAN, OR COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT, THE UNDERSIGNED SHALL COMPLETE AND SUBMIT STANDARD FORM-LLL, "DISCLOSURE FORM TO REPORT LOBBYING," IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS INSTRUCTIONS.

THIS CERTIFICATION IS A MATERIAL REPRESENTATION OF FACT UPON WHICH RELIANCE WAS PLACED WHEN THIS TRANSACTION WAS MADE OR ENTERED INTO. SUBMISSION OF THIS CERTIFICATION IS A PREREQUISITE FOR MAKING OR ENTERING INTO THIS TRANSACTION IMPOSED BY SECTION 1352, TITLE 31, U.S. CODE. ANY PERSON WHO FAILS TO FILE THE REQUIRED CERTIFICATION SHALL BE SUBJECT TO A CIVIL PENALTY OF NOT LESS THAN

\$10,000 AND NOT MORE THAN \$100,000 FOR EACH SUCH FAILURE.

THE PROSPECTIVE PARTICIPANT ALSO AGREES BY SUBMITTING HIS OR HER BID OR PROPOSAL THAT HE OR SHE SHALL REQUIRE THAT THE LANGUAGE OF THIS CERTIFICATION BE INCLUDED IN ALL LOWER TIER SUBCONTRACTS, WHICH EXCEED \$100,000 AND THAT ALL SUCH SUBRECIPIENTS SHALL CERTIFY AND DISCLOSE ACCORDINGLY.

V. THIS SECTION IS RESERVED.

VI. SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE REGISTRATION

THAT HE SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION ATTACHMENT IN ORDER TO ENSURE THAT SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, AS DEFINED IN THAT ATTACHMENT, HAVE THE MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY TO COMPETE FOR AND PERFORM SUBCONTRACTS.

VII. DEBARMENT

THAT BIDDER AND ITS PRINCIPALS OR AFFILIATES (AFFILIATES DEFINED IN N.J.S.A. 52:32-44.1(e)).

ARE NOT PRESENTLY DEBARRED, SUSPENDED, PROPOSED FOR DEBARMENT, DECLARED INELIGIBLE, OR VOLUNTARILY EXCLUDED FROM COVERED TRANSACTIONS BY ANY FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY.

HAVE NOT WITHIN A THREE-YEAR PERIOD PRECEDING THIS PROPOSAL BEEN CONVICTED OF OR HAD A CIVIL JUDGEMENT RENDERED AGAINST THEM FOR COMMISSION OF FRAUD OR A CRIMINAL OFFENSE IN CONNECTION WITH OBTAINING, ATTEMPTING TO OBTAIN, OR PERFORMING A PUBLIC (FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL) TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT UNDER A PUBLIC TRANSACTION; VIOLATION OF FEDERAL OR STATE ANTITRUST STATUTES OR COMMISSION OF EMBEZZLEMENT, THEFT, FORGERY, BRIBERY, FALSIFICATION OR DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS, MAKING FALSE STATEMENTS, OF RECEIVING STOLEN PROPERTY;

ARE NOT PRESENTLY INDICTED FOR OR OTHERWISE CRIMINALLY OR CIVILLY CHARGED BY A GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY (FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL) WITH COMMISSION OF ANY OF THE OFFENSES ENUMERATED IN THE ABOVE PARAGRAPH OF THIS CERTIFICATION; AND

HAVE NOT WITHIN A THREE-YEAR PERIOD PRECEDING THIS PROPOSAL HAD ONE OR MORE PUBLIC TRANSACTIONS (FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL) TERMINATED FOR CAUSE OR DEFAULT.

SHALL INSERT THIS CERTIFICATION IN EACH SUBCONTRACT AND SHALL REQUIRE ITS

New Jersey Department of Transportation Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

INCLUSION IN ANY LOWER TIER SUBCONTRACT, PURCHASE ORDER, OR TRANSACTION THAT MAY IN TURN BE MADE.

WHERE THE BIDDER IS UNABLE TO CERTIFY TO ANY OF THE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATION, THE BIDDER SHALL EXPLAIN BELOW.

BIDDER'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE FULL AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS PROPOSAL ON BEHALF OF THE BIDDER NAMED ON PAGE ONE OF THIS PROPOSAL. IN EXECUTING THIS PROPOSAL I HEREBY DECLARE THAT THE BIDDER HAS CAREFULLY EXAMINED THE ADVERTISEMENT, SPECIFICATIONS, PLANS, PROPOSAL AND ALL OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT NAMED ABOVE

BY SUBMITTING THIS BID, THE BIDDER CERTIFIES AND REPRESENTS THAT ITS BID, UPDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT(S), CERTIFICATIONS AS TO BUSINESS REGISTRATION/ PWCR, AND PROPOSAL BOND HAVE BEEN DIGITALLY SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE BIDDER.

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Page 11

DC-16 (1/2013)

State of New Jersey

Department of Transportation

DISCLOSURE OF INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES IN IRAN

Bidx Proposal Number: 23418

Bidder/Vendor:

PART 1: CERTIFICATION

BIDDERS MUST COMPLETE PART 1 BY CHECKING EITHER BOX

FAILURE TO CHECK ONE OF THE BOXES WILL RENDER THE PROPOSAL NON-RESPONSIVE

Pursuant to Public Law 2012, c. 25 any person or entity that submits a bid or proposal or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract must complete the certification below to attest, under penalty of perjury, that neither the person or entity, nor any of its parents, subsidiaries, or affiliates (any parent, successor, subunit, direct or indirect subsidiary, or any entity under common ownership or control with, any entity), is identified on the Department of Treasury's Chapter 25 list as a person or entity engaging in investment activities in Iran. The Chapter 25 list is found on the Division's website at http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/purchase/pdf/Chapter25List.pdf Bidders must review this list prior to completing the below certification. Failure to complete the certification will render a bidder's proposal non-responsive. If the Director finds a person or entity to be in violation of law, s/he shall take action as may be appropriate and provided by law, rule or contract, including but not limited to, imposing sanctions, seeking compliance, recovering damages, declaring the party in default and seeking debarment or suspension of the party.

PLEASE SELECT THE APPROPRIATE BOX: A

A. I certify, pursuant to Public Law 2012 c. 25, that neither the bidder listed above nor any of the bidder's parents, subsidiaries, or affiliates is listed on the N.J. Department of the Treasury's list of entities determined to be engaged in prohibited activities in Iran pursuant to P.L. 2012 c. 25 (AChapter 25 List@). I further certify that I am the person listed above, or I am an officer or representative of the entity listed above and am authorized to make this certification on its behalf. I will skip Part 2 and sign and complete the Certification below.

Amendment Count: 1

OR

B. I am unable to certify as above because the bidder and/or one or more of its parents, subsidiaries, or affiliates is listed on the Department's Chapter 25 list. I will provide a detailed, accurate and precise description of the activities in Part 2 below and sign and complete the Certification below. Failure to provide such will result in the proposal being rendered as non-responsive and appropriate penalties, fines and/or sanctions will be assessed as provided by law.

YES \bigcirc NO \bigcirc I will provide further information related to investment activities in Iran.

PART 2

PLEASE PROVIDE FURTHER INFORMATION RELATED TO INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES IN IRAN

You must provide a detailed, accurate and precise description of the activities of the bidding person/entity, or one of its parents, subsidiaries or affiliates, engaging in the investment activities in Iran outlined above by completing boxes below.

EACH BOX WILL PROMPT YOU TO PROVIDE INFORMATION RELATIVE TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS. PLEASE PROVIDE THOROUGH ANSWERS TO EACH QUESTION.

Name:

Relationship to Bidder/Offeror:

Description of Activities:

Duration of Engagement:

Anticipated Cessation Date:

Bidder/Vendor Contact Name:

Contact Phone Number:

Name:

Relationship to Bidder/Offeror:

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6FOCDAB7E3
Page 13 Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418
Call: 418

Description of Activities:

Duration of Engagement:

Anticipated Cessation Date:

Bidder/Vendor Contact Name:

Contact Phone Number:

Name:

Relationship to Bidder/Offeror:

Description of Activities:

Duration of Engagement:

Anticipated Cessation Date:

Bidder/Vendor Contact Name:

Contact Phone Number:

Certification: I, being duly sworn upon my oath, hereby represent and state that the foregoing information and any attachments thereto to the best of my knowledge are true and complete. I attest that I am authorized to execute this certification on behalf of the above-referenced person or entity. I acknowledge that the State of New Jersey is relying on the information contained herein and thereby acknowledge that I am under a continuing obligation from the date of this certification through the completion of any contracts with the State to notify the State in writing of any changes to the answers or information contained herein. I acknowledge that I am aware that is a criminal offense to make a false statement or misrepresentation in the this certification, and if I do so, I recognize that I am subject to criminal prosecution under the law and that if will also constitute a material breach of my agreement(s) with the State of New Jersey and the State at its option my declare any contract(s) resulting from this certification void and unenforceable.

Full Name (Print): Harry W. Coleman, Jr

Title: Executive Vice Pesident Date (MM-DD-YYYY): 05-18-2023

Bidder Name: IEW Construction Group, Inc

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6FOCDAB7E3
Page 14 Amendment Count: 1

State of New Jersey

Department of Transportation

CERTIFICATION OF NON-INVOLVEMENT IN PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES IN RUSSIA OR BELARUS

CONTRACT/ BID SOLICITATION TITLE Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator

Project, North - 2023; Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; DP No. 23418; CE No. 2207490; FPN: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633)

CONTRACT/BID SOLICITATION No. 23418

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-60.1, et seq. (P.L. 2022, c.3) any person or entity (hereinafter "Vendor^1") that seeks to enter into or renew a contract with a State agency for the provision of goods or services, or the purchase of bonds or other obligations, must complete the certification below indicating whether or not the Vendor is engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus^2. If the Department of the Treasury finds that a Vendor has made a certification in violation of the law, it shall take any action as may be appropriate and provided by law, rule or contract, including but not limited to, imposing sanctions, seeking compliance, recovering damages, declaring the party in default and seeking debarment or suspension of the party.

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, certify that I have read the definition of "Vendor" below, and have reviewed the Department of the Treasury's list of Vendors engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus, and having done so certify:

(Check the Appropriate Box)

- That the Vendor is not identified on the Department of the Treasury's list of Vendors engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus and is not engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus.
- That I am unable to certify as to "A" above, because the Vendor is identified on the Department of the Treasury's list of Vendors engaged in prohibited activities in Russia and/or Belarus.
- That I am unable to certify as to "A" above, because the Vendor, though not identified on the Department of the Treasury's list of Vendors engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus, is engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus. A detailed, accurate and precise

description of the Vendor's activity in Russia and/or Belarus is set forth below.

Additional Certification of Federal Exemption and/or License

(Complete only if appropriate)

I, the undersigned, certify that Vendor is currently engaged in activity in Russia and/or Belarus, but is doing so consistentwith federal law and/or regulation and/or license. A detailed description of how the Vendor's activity in Russia and/orBelarus is consistent with federal law, or is within the requirements of the federal exemption and/or license is set forth below.

Harry W. Coleman, Jr

Print Name:

Title of Vendor's Authorized Representative: Executive Vice Pesident

Date (MM-DD-YYYY): 05-18-2023

Vendor's Name: IEW Construction Group, Inc

Vendor's Address (Street Address): 1 AAA Drive, Bldg 1B

Vendor's Address (City/State/Zip Code): Hamilton, NJ 08691

Vendor's FEIN: 210-529-345

Vendor's Phone Number: 609-586-5005

Vendor's Email Address: h.coleman@iewconstruction.com

Definitions

^1Vendor means: (1) A natural person, corporation, company, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, limited liability company, business association, sole proprietorship, joint venture, partnership, society, trust, or any other nongovernmental entity, organization, or group; (2) Any governmental entity or instrumentality of a government, including a multilateral development institution, as defined in Section 1701(c)(3) of the International Financial Institutions Act, 22 U.S.C. 262r(c)(3); or (3) Any parent, successor, subunit, direct or indirect subsidiary, or any entity under

common ownership or control with, any entity described in paragraph (1) or (2). ^2Engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus means: (1) companies in which the Government of Russia or Belarus has any direct equity share; (2) having any business operations commencing after the effective date of this act that involve contracts with or the provision of goods or services to the Government of Russia or Belarus; (3) being headquartered in Russia or having its principal place of business in Russia or Belarus, or (4) supporting, assisting or facilitating the Government of Russia or Belarus in their campaigns to invade the sovereign country of Ukraine, either through in-kind support or for profit.

NJ Rev. 11.28.2022

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Amendment Count: 1

Page 17

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 and 49 CFR part 21

✓ I acknowledge the information.

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief,

- (1) No federal appropriate funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, or any employee of a Member of Congress in with this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL (Federal Aid Attachment Form 11) "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not that \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-44, Valid Business Registration is REQUIRED prior to contract award. Please visit http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/revenue/ busregcert.shtml , if you do not have business registration or visit https:// www1.state.nj.us/TYTR BRC/jsp/BRCLoginJsp.jsp to verify the validity of your existing business registration.

The bidder, including all joint venture contractors if applicable, have obtained Valid Business Registration.

** - Please select "Yes" or "No".

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Page 19 Amendment Count: 1

Pursuant to the "Public Works Contractor Registration Act", N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48 et seq. (P.L. 2003, c. 91), bidders must be registered with the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Wage and Hour Compliance, at the time of bid. Please visit http://lwd.state.nj.us/labor/wagehour/regperm/pw_cont_reg.html,if you do not have "Public Works Contractor Registration" or visit http://lwd.state.nj.us/lsseapp/LSSERedirect.html?newPage=forms/RegisteredContractors to verify the validity of your existing "Public Works Contractor Registration".

THE BID PROPOSAL OF A FIRM THAT IS NOT REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE PUBLIC WORKS REGISTRATION ACT, N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48 ET SEQ., SHALL BE REJECTED. I have obtained a "Public Works Contractor Registration". Yes

** - Please select "Yes" or "No".

Page 20 Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

Letting: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Acknowledgement is hereby made of the receipt of ADDENDA Nos. 1 through 1 inclusive, containing information for the above referenced Project. This acknowledgement is made by the Bidder, if an individual; by a partner, if a partnership; or by an officer of the corporation, if a corporation.

Further, I understand that by selecting yes, that I have applied all amendments, if any, for the above referenced project. Yes

FAILURE TO APPLY THE AMENDEMENTS OR ACKNOWLEDGE THE ADDENDA WILL RESULT IN A MATERIAL DEFECT IN THE BID AND THE BID WILL BE REJECTED.

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Page 21

Amendment Count: 1

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

***ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID. ***

Form CR-266 - Schedule of DBE/ESBE/SBE Participation

CR-266 can be submitted now (with the bid) or within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov.

CR-266 is submitted once and no revisions will be accepted prior to contract awared. Check "No" if you are not submitting CR-266 now.

Have you uploaded this form? Yes O No .

Does your DBE/ESBE/SBE commitment meet or exceed the contract DBE/ESBE/SBE goal? Yes

If a bidder submits CR-266 now, but fails to meet the contract DBE/ESBE/SBE goal, good faith effort documentation must be included with the bid, or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Page 22

Amendment Count: 1

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

Good Faith Effort

***ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID. ***

If your DBE/ESBE/SBE commitment is less than the contract goal, good faith effort documentation must be included with the bid, or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov

Have you uploaded good Faith Effort documentation? Yes C No .

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID.

A CR-273 must be submitted for each firm listed on the CR-266, and be included with the bid, or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov

Have you uploaded the form(s)? Yes ○ No ⑥

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Amendment Count: 1

Page 24

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID.

When DBE/ESBE Regular Dealer/Suppliers are used in the DBE/ESBE goal commitment, the Form CR-272 for each DBE/ESBE Regular Dealer/Supplier must be included with the bid or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov

Have you uploaded the form(s)? Yes ○ No ⑥

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Page 25 Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID.

When DBE/ESBE/SBE truckers/trucking firms are used in the DBE/ESBE/SBE goal commitment, the Form CR-274 must be included with the bid or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov

Have you uploaded the form? Yes (No 6)

Letting: 23051801

05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Amendment Count: 1

Page 26

FORM DC-7A - Rev. 11/06

PROPOSAL BOND

Bond ID: 3189-243C-46F2-0339 Verify Clear

Surety Registry Agency: Tinubu Surety

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT WE AS PRINCIPAL, AND Liberty Mutual Insurance Company WITH UNDERWRITING OFFICE AT 175 Berkeley Street

TO WHICH ALL COMMUNICATION IN REGARD TO THIS BOND SHOULD BE ADDRESSED, A CORPORATION ORGANIZED AND EXISTING UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MA AND DULY AUTHORIZED TO DO

BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AS SURETY, ARE HELD AND FIRMLY BOUND UNTO THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY IN THE PENAL SUM OF FIFTY PERCENT (50%) OF THE AMOUNT BID FOR THE PROJECT LISTED BELOW, FOR THE PAYMENT OF WHICH WELL AND TRULY TO BE MADE, WE HEREBY JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY BIND OURSELVES, OUR HEIRS, EXECUTORS, ADMINISTRATORS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

** CERTIFIED AND DATED THIS 18th DAY OF May TWO THOUSAND AND Twenty Three

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, IF THE SAID PRINCIPAL SHALL PROPERLY EXECUTE A CONTRACT SECURED BY SATISFACTORY BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF NJSA 2A:44-143 TO NJSA 2A:44-147 AND THE SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE PROJECT FOR THE FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE THEREOF WITHIN TEN (10) STATE BUSINESS DAYS AFTER BEING NOTIFIED IN WRITING OF THE AWARD OF SUCH CONTRACT TO THE PRINCIPAL, OR IF THE PRINCIPAL OR SURETY SHALL PAY THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY THE SUM, NOT EXCEEDING THE PENALTY HEREOF, BY

THE AMOUNT OF THE CONTRACT, COVERING THE SAID PROPOSAL, PROPERLY AND LAWFULLY EXECUTED BY AND BETWEEN THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY AND SOME THIRD PARTY, MAY EXCEED THE AMOUNT BID BY THE PRINCIPAL; THEN THIS OBLIGATION SHALL BE VOID; OTHERWISE IT SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.

gen_Federal_njdot Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Page 27

PUBLIC NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that bid proposals will be received from Bidders classified under N.J.S.A. 27:7-35.2 via the Internet until 10:00:59 A.M. on 5/18/23 downloaded, and publicly opened and read, in the CONFERENCE ROOM-A, 1st Floor F & A Building, New Jersey Department of Transportation, 1035 Parkway Avenue, Trenton, NJ 08625; for:

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633)

DP No: 23418

Bidders are required to comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Specifically, the contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-44, contractor must submit the Department of Treasury, Division of Revenue Business Registration of the contractor and any named subcontractors prior to contract award or authorization.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.51, contractors must be registered with the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Wage and hour Compliance at the time of bid.

The Department, in accordance with Title VI Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252 U.S.C., 49 C.F.R., Parts 21 and 23 issued pursuant to such Act, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 will afford minority business enterprises full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not discriminate against any bidder on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, or handicap in the project award.

Plans, specifications, any addenda to the specifications, and bidding information for the proposed work are available at Bid Express website www.bidx.com. You must subscribe to use this service. To subscribe, follow the instructions on the web site. Fees apply to downloading documents and plans and bidding access. The fee schedule is available on the web site. All fees are directly payable to Bid Express.

Plans, specifications, any addenda to the specifications, and bidding information may be inspected (<u>BUT NOT OBTAINED</u>) by contracting organizations at our various Design Field Offices at the following locations:

200 Stierli Court One Executive Campus Rt. 70 West

Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856 Cherry Hill, NJ 08002

Phone: 973-601-6690 Phone: 856-486-6623

New Jersey Department of Transportation
Division of Procurement
Bureau of Construction Services
1035 Parkway Avenue
PO Box 600
Trenton, NJ 08625

CONTRACT AND BOND

CONTRACTOR: IEW Construction Group, Inc

PROJECT: Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633),

PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No:

23418.

CONTRACT NUMBER: North-2023

FEDERAL PROJECT NUMBER: CRRSAA-FLEX-00S(633)

DP NUMBER: 23418



NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Mailing PO Box 600 Trenton, NJ 08625-0600

UPS / FedEx / Courier 1035 Parkway Ave Trenton, NJ 08618

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

Certificate of Award

Pages 1 to 43 inclusive for General, Road, and Bridge Provisions.

The following information is located at the end of these Special Provisions:

- 1. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Utilization. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 1)
- 2. Specific Equal Employment Opportunity Responsibilities on NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 2)
- 3. Requirements for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity on NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 3)
- 4. Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Contract Specifications for NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 4)
- 5. State of New Jersey Mandatory Equal Employment Opportunity Language on NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 5)
- 6. Investigating, Reporting, and Resolving Employment Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Complaints on NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 6).
- 7. Payroll Requirements for NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 7)
- 8. FHWA-1273 Required Contract Provisions Federal Aid Construction Contracts. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 8)
- 9. State Mandatory Addendum to FHWA 1273 Required Contract Provision, Federal Aid Construction Contracts as Amended or Supplemented. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 9)
- 10. Federal Mandatory Equal Opportunity Language on Federal Aid Projects (Federal Aid Project Attachment 10)
- 11. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification (Federal Aid Project Attachment 11)

The additional project specific Attachment is located at the end of these Special Provisions:

- 1. Conservation Measures
- 2. Notice of Executive Order 166 Requirement for Posting of Winning Proposal and Contract Documents The final contract will be posted on the covid transparency website [https://gdro.nJ.gov/tp/en]

General wage determinations issued under Davis-Bacon and related acts, published by US Department of Labor, may be obtained from the Davis-Bacon web site at http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/nj.html under the appropriate county, select the construction type heading: HIGHWAY.

Contractors are responsible to pay the prevailing wage rates determined by the United States Secretary of Labor and the New Jersey Department of Labor. If the prevailing wage rate prescribed for any contract service by the United States Secretary of Labor is not identical to the prevailing wage rate prescribed for that contract service by the New Jersey Department of Labor, the Contractor is required to pay the higher rate.

If an employee of the Contractor or subcontractor has been paid a rate of wages less than the higher prevailing wage, the Department may suspend the Work, and declare the Contractor in default.

Prevailing Wage Rates for Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset, Union Counties and Statewide

All additional State wage rates may be obtained from the New Jersey Department of Labor (Telephone: 609-292-2259) or by accessing the Department of Labor's web site at http://lwd.dol.state.nj.us/labor/wagehour/wagehour_index.html

The State wage rates in effect at the time of award will be made a part of this Contract, pursuant to Chapter 150, Laws of 1963 (NJSA 34:11-56.25, et seq.).

New Jersey Department of Transportation Code of Ethics for Vendors

Proposal Pages 1 to 11

Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran

Certification of Non-Involvement in Prohibited Activities in Russia

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification

Addenda Nos. 1 through 1 Acknowledgement

DBE Goals and Civil Rights Requirements

Award Letter with Acknowledgement

Contract DC-81

Payment Bond

Performance Bond

Corporate Resolution

Proof of Valid Business Registration with the Division of Revenue

Certificate of Public Works Contractor Registration

Approval as to Form

Form DC-86F (10/2018) CERTIFICATE OF AWARD-"FEDERALLY" FUNDED CONTRACT

PROJECT: Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-DOOS(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418.

(A) DESIGNATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418.

(B) CERTIFICATION AS TO PUBLICATION AND NOTICE

In accordance with action taken on March 03, 2023 by the Commissioner of Transportation in approving plans and specifications for the project described herein, advertisements were placed in compliance with R.S. 27:7-29 for bids to be received on May 18, 2023.

The Trentonian	on	4/27/2023, 5/04/2023 & 5/11/2023
The Record (Bergen)	on	4/27/2023, 5/04/2023 & 5/11/2023
The Montclair Times	on	4/27/2023, 5/04/2023 & 5/11/2023
Herald News	on	4/27/2023, 5/04/2023 & 5/11/2023
Jersey Journal	on	4/27/2023, 5/04/2023 & 5/11/2023

(C) SUMMARY OF BIDS RECEIVED

In compliance with R.S. 27:7-29-30-31 and R.S. 27:7-35.1 et seq., bids were received on **May 18, 2023**.

After receipt, all bids were examined for acceptability and accuracy. All bids were corrected when required an

After receipt, all bids were examined for acceptability and accuracy. All bids were corrected when required and ranked as follows:

CONTRACTOR	***************************************	BID AMOUNT
IEW CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.	(1)	\$1,607,414.47
M.L. RUBERTON CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.	(2)	\$2,066,706.74
GREEN CONSTRUCTION, INC.		\$3,949,000.00

Examiner, Bureau of Construction Services:

Quintin Viernes, Jr.	Project Engineer	Quintin Viernes, 1r.
Name	Title	Signature

Form DC-86F (10/2018)

CERTIFICATE OF AWARD-"FEDERALLY" FUNDED CONTRACT

PROJECT: Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418.

(D) I have examined the bids received for the named project. There has been compliance with N.J.S.A. 27:7-29 through 33 and N.J.S.A. 27:7-35.1 et seq. and the Standard Specifications of the Highway Department, as amended and supplemented which were vested in the New Jersey Department of Transportation pursuant to Chapter 301 Laws of 1966 (27:1A-1 et. seq.). It is recommended to the Assistant Commissioner, Transportation Operations Systems & Support, that the Contract for the Project described herein be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder at his price bid. Eric Yermack, P.E., State Transportation Engineer (E) <u>CERTIFICATION OF CONCURRENCE BY FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION</u> Notice of concurrence in recommendation to "Award" this Federal Project to the lowest responsible bidder at his price bid was received from the Federal Highway Administration on Suzanns Tomlinson
Suzanne Tomlinson, Deputy Director, Capital Program Coordination Date (F) STATUS OF FUNDS Approved as to funds. Katelyan Barnett (Acting) 6/2/2023

Barbara DeLucia – Director of Accounting & External Auditing (G) CERTIFICATE OF AWARD Based on the above recommendation and the powers vested in the Commissioner of New Jersey Department of Transportation pursuant to Chapter 301 Laws of 1966 (27:1A-1 et. seq.) as amended, this contract is awarded to: **IEW CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.**, the lowest responsible bidder. Andrew J. Tunnard, Assistant Commissioner, Transportation Operations Systems & Date Support (H) CERTIFICATION OF AWARD The Contract was awarded to the lowest responsible bidder by the authorized representative of the Commissioner of New Jersey Department of Transportation on

> Anika James, Department Secretary, New Jersey Department of Transportation

> > AFFIX SEAL

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023 Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties DP No. 23418 CE No. 2207490

Federal Project Number: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633)

AUTHORIZATION OF CONTRACT

The Contract is authorized by the provisions of Title 27 of the Revised Statutes of New Jersey and supplements thereto, and Title 23 of the United States Code - Highways.

SPECIFICATIONS TO BE USED

The 2019 Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, of the New Jersey Department of Transportation (Department) as amended herein will govern the construction of this Project and the execution of the Contract.

These Special Provisions consist of the following:

Pages 1 to 43 inclusive.

General wage determinations issued under Davis-Bacon and related acts, published by US Department of Labor, may be obtained from the Wage Determinations online website at sam.gov. Select state, county and construction type heading: HIGHWAY where the Project is to be performed then click Search.

Pay the prevailing wage rates determined by the United States Secretary of Labor and the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development. If the prevailing wage rate prescribed for any craft by the United States Secretary of Labor is not the same as the prevailing wage rate prescribed for that craft by the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development, pay the higher rate.

State wage rates may be obtained from the New Jersey Department of Labor & Workforce Development (Telephone: 609-292-2259) or by accessing the Department of Labor & Workforce Development's website at https://www.nj.gov/labor/wagehour/wagerate/prevailing wage determinations.html. The State wage rates in effect at the time of award are part of this Contract, pursuant to Chapter 150, Laws of 1963 (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq.)

If an employee of the Contractor or subcontractor has been paid a rate of wages less than the prevailing wage, the Department may suspend the Work, and declare the Contractor in default.

The NJDOT must report all suspected or reported violations to the federal agency providing the funding for the project.

Contractor's compliance is required with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act, (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by the Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or In Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). Each contractor or subcontractor is prohibited from inducing by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The NJDOT must report all suspected or reported violations to the federal agency providing the funding for the project.

The following information is located at the end of these Special Provisions:

- 1. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Utilization. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 1)
- 2. Specific Equal Employment Opportunity Responsibilities on NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 2)
- 3. Requirements for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity on NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 3)

- 4. Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Contract Specifications for NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 4)
- 5. State of New Jersey Mandatory Equal Employment Opportunity Language on NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 5)
- 6. Investigating, Reporting and Resolving Employment Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Complaints on NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 6)
- 7. Payroll Requirements for NJDOT Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 7)
- 8. FHWA-1273 Required Contract Provisions, Federal Aid Construction Contracts. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 8)
- 9. State Mandatory Addendum to FHWA 1273 Required Contract Provision, Federal Aid Construction Contracts as Amended or Supplemented. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 9)
- 10. Federal Mandatory Equal Opportunity Language on Federal Aid Projects. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 10)
- 11. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification. (Federal Aid Project Attachment 11)

The additional project specific Attachment is located at the end of these Special Provisions:

- 1. Conservation Measures
- 2. Notice of Executive Order 166 Requirement for Posting of Winning Proposal and Contract Documents The final contract will be posted on the covid transparency website [https://gdro.nJ.gov/tp/en].

The following additional project specific documents are to be referenced in conjunction with these Special Provisions:

MAINTENANCE GUIDE RAIL END TREATMENT AND ATTENUATOR PROJECT, NORTH - 2023, DP No: 23418, CE No: 2207490, FEBRUARY 2023

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023 DP No. 23418

DIVISION 100 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 101 – GENERAL INFORMATION

101.01 INTRODUCTION

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 27:1B-21.6 and USC (United States Code) Title 23 Section 115, the Department intends to enter into a contract for the advancement of the Project. However, sufficient funds for the Project may not have been appropriated, and only amounts appropriated by law may be expended. Payment under the Contract is restricted to the amounts appropriated for a fiscal year (FY).

Governing bodies have no legal obligation to make such an appropriation. There is no guarantee that additional funds will be appropriated. Failure by governing bodies to appropriate additional funds will not constitute a default under, or a breach of, the Contract. However, if the Department terminates the Contract or suspends work because funds have not been appropriated, the parties to the Contract will retain their rights for suspension and termination as provided in 108.13, 108.14, and 108.15; except as indicated below.

The Federal FY begins October 1 of the previous calendar year and the State FY begins July 1 of the previous calendar each year.

101.03 TERMS

THE FOLLOWING TERM IS ADDED:

Full Traffic Access. All work is complete to allow safe unencumbered use of the final paved portion of roadway throughout the project including but not limited to striping, RPMs, rumble strips, highway lighting, and traffic signals as determined by the RE.

101.04 INQUIRIES REGARDING THE PROJECT

2. After Award of Contract.

North Region Operations Christian Espitia 200 Stierli Court Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856-1322 Telephone: 973-601-6619

SECTION 102 – BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

102.01 OUALIFICATION TO BID

THE FIRST PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

The Bidder is an individual, firm, or corporation submitting a bid for the advertised Work. The Department will not accept bids from Bidders who fail to meet all of the following criteria:

- 1. The Bidder has been prequalified according to regulations covering the Classification of Prospective Bidders as required by N.J.S.A. 27:7-35.1, *et seq*.
- 2. Before the receipt of the bid or accompanying the bid, the Bidder has disclosed ownership as required by N.J.S.A. 52:25-24.2.
- 3. At the time the bid is delivered, the Bidder has an effective maximum and project ratings of not less than the amount of its bid.
- 4. If the Bidder is a corporation not incorporated in the State, the Bidder has been authorized to do business in the State as required by N.J.S.A. 14A:15-2, *et seq*.
- 5. For wholly State Funded Projects, the Bidder has a valid, current registration with the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Wage and Hour Compliance as required by "Public Works Contractor Registration Act," N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48, et seq.

102.04 EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT AND PROJECT LIMITS

Project Manager: Kenrick Layne

Email Address: kenrick.layne@dot.nj.gov Mailing Address: 1035 Parkway Ave

PO 600

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-600

102.10 SUBMISSION OF BIDS

THE SECOND PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

The Bidder shall ensure delivery of its bid with all required components and attachments, including, but not limited to the following:

- 1. Schedule of Items.
- 2. Proposal Electronic Bidding File with Bidder's Certification.
- 3. For wholly State Funded contracts, acknowledgement of compliance with the registrations specified in 102.01.
- 4. Proposal Bond form.
- 5. Other related documents as specified in the Contract.
- 6. For Federal Aid Projects exceeding a bid amount of \$100,000 or more, Bidder shall certify to the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Act requirements under 31 USC 1352.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED AT THE END OF THE SUBSECTION:

By submitting its bid to the Department, the Bidder warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained by the Bidder to solicit or secure such Contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, except bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Bidder for the purpose of securing business, for the breach or violation of which warranty the Department shall have the right to annul such Contract without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price or consideration the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee as required by N.J.S.A. 52:34-15.

102.13.01 Bidder Pre-Award Requirements

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED IN PART B:

B. State Funded Projects

2. Compliance with N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.13, *et seq*. The Department will verify the certification status of the bidder with the State Chapter 51 Review Unit. If the bidder is NOT within an approved 2 year period, then a completed and signed Two-Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure forms must be submitted to the Department.

PART C IS CHANGED TO:

C. All Projects. Prior to the time of contract award:

- 1. Submit proof of business registration with the Division of Revenue and Enterprise Services in the New Jersey Department of Treasury as required by N.J.S.A. 52:32-44. Information on how a business can register and obtain proof of business registration can be accessed on the internet at www.nj.gov/njbgs.
- 2. On the Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran (Form DC-16) provided by the Department, certify pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-58, that neither the Bidder, nor one of its parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates (as defined in N.J.S.A. 52:32-56(e)(3)), is listed on the Department of the Treasury's List of Persons or Entities Engaging in Prohibited Investment Activities in Iran and that neither is involved in any of the investment activities set forth in N.J.S.A. 52:32-56(f). If the Bidder is unable to certify, the Bidder shall provide a detailed and precise description of such activities to the Department.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED IN PART C:

- 3. On the "Certification of Non-Debarment Form" provided by the Department, certify pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-44.1, that neither the Bidder, nor its affiliates are debarred at the federal level from contracting with a federal government agency. The Department shall not make, negotiate, or award a contract to any bidder that does not provide the above certification. Instructions on submitting the form may be found on the Department's Electronic Bidding website and the Department's website. In addition, all Bidders must register with the federal System for Award Management (SAM) prior to contract award. In order to comply with this requirement, Bidders must register in SAM at https://www.sam.gov and the Department will verify the successful Bidder's registration in SAM prior to contract award.
- 4. On the "Certification of Non-Involvement in Prohibitive Activities in Russia or Belarus Form" provided by the Department, certify pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-60.1, that neither the Bidder nor its affiliates are engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus as defined therein.

102.15 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED TO THE SECOND PARAGRAPH:

16. If the bidder is Federally debarred pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-44.1.

SECTION 103 – AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT

103.04 EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACT

THE FIRST PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

Within 14 days of the date of Award or Conditional Award, the Bidder shall properly and duly execute the Contract and deliver to the Department the following:

- 1. If escrowing bid documents, the custody agreement as specified in 103.05.
- 2. Performance bond and payment bond as specified in 151.03.01.
- 3. Request for Authorization Form for the New Jersey Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 5G3 Construction Activity Stormwater General Permit (NJG0088323) when required as shown on the Plans.
- 4. Proof of the registrations specified in 102.01 for the Department of Treasury and the Department of Labor.
- 5. If the case of non-resident Bidders, the completed form regarding "Appointment of Agent" for compliance with N.J.S.A. 14A:15-2, et seq.

SECTION 104 – SCOPE OF WORK

104.01 INTENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The intent of this Maintenance Contract is to replace (by an approved system) damaged, deteriorated or vandalized crash cushion units; upgrade existing crash cushion units; or construct crash cushion units at locations which warrant placement, in accordance with NJDOT specifications and NJDOT Standard Construction Details-2016, and as directed by the Resident Engineer.

The Department reserves the right to perform any guide rail and/or crash cushion work within the limits of this contract whenever the Department determines that such work is in the public's interest and safety.

Due to the nature of this contract, it may be necessary to perform construction operations at any location listed in the tables 104.01a and b at night and/or on weekends (Saturday and Sunday). Allowable working hours will be designated by the Resident Engineer or applicable designated representative, as determined by Traffic Operations and the existing and anticipated Weather Conditions; however, all repair work for each site must be completed within 15 days. MOBILIZATION is a bid item and will be applied as specified in Section 154 of these Special Provisions. The Department may assess Liquidated Damages as per Section 108.20 B for failure to begin and complete repairs within the abovementioned conditions.

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023 DP No. 23418 Costs incurred for work on weekends, nights, holidays, work shifts and work shift that are greater than eight (8) hours shall be paid for in conformance with applicable Department of Labor Overtime Rules. All work schedules must be submitted to the RE in writing prior to commencement.

The Work may be located at but not limited to the following locations within the contract limits for this Contract in the North Region:

Table 104.01a - North Region

Route	M.P.	County
17S	22.70	Bergen
1-9N	64.80	Bergen
22E	59.30	Essex
124E	9.00	Essex
3W	9.50	Hudson
3E	9.70	Hudson
3W	10.30	Hudson
46W	42.40	Morris
46E	42.30	Morris
80E	40.50	Morris
46W	50.00	Morris
202N	24.00	Somerset
124E	8.60	Union

Table 104.01b

LOC#	CRASH CUSHION DESCRIPTION
1	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH MEDIUM
2	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH WIDE
3	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH NARROW
4	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH MEDIUM
5	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH NARROW
6	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH WIDE
7	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH WIDE
8	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 2, WIDTH MEDIUM
9	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 2, WIDTH MEDIUM
10	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH NARROW
11	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH WIDE
12	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH NARROW
13	CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH MEDIUM

All the cost associated with the Construction Layout will be included in the bid price of various items of the Proposal.

Removal of the existing / damaged end treatments including anchorages will be included in the bid price of each end treatments.

The Department will pay for the installation/repair of all work related to Crash Cushion under the bid price of the various items of the proposal. Material costs for the installation and repair of concrete pads will be paid under MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE. The cost of labor and equipment required to install/repair Crash Cushion will be paid under CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE ___, WIDTH ___ and as directed by RE.

The Department will pay for installation/repair of concrete for work not related to crash cushions or curb under the item MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE when callouts are for less than 1 cubic yards of concrete. Callouts for non-curb related work requiring more than 1 cubic yards of concrete will be paid under the bid price of the various items of the proposal.

For any work within this contract, refer to NJDOT Standard Construction Details 2016 and relevant BDC changes.

All Work to be performed will be authorized by and as per the direction of the RE or applicable designated representative.

The Department may direct the Contractor to perform any Work within the limits of this Contract whenever the Department determines that doing so is in the public interest or is appropriate for safety reasons, as well as to perform repair Work in conjunction with Department Forces or another Contractor.

Department reserves the right to cancel the contractor's work if no inspectors are available at the RE's discretion.

THE FOLLOWING SUBSECTION IS ADDED:

104.03.03 Types of Changes

1. Quantity Increases and Decreases.

THE ENTIRE TEXT IS CHANGED TO:

The estimated quantities set out in the Proposal form are presented solely for the purpose of obtaining a representative bid price, and are not intended to indicate the Department's anticipation as to the actual quantities. The Department may increase or decrease the total quantities and quantities used on a daily basis as needed during the period of this Contract. Contract Items are not eligible for any adjustment in contract bid unit prices regardless of how much the total as-built quantities varies from the quantity contained in the Proposal.

2. New Work.

THE ENTIRE TEXT IS CHANGED TO:

The Department may require new Work as needed for the satisfactory completion of a Project. Contract Items are not eligible for any adjustment in contract bid unit prices. When requested by the RE, submit detailed cost proposal for performance of New Work. The Department will make payment by Force Account as specified in 104.03.08 for that Work not covered under Contract Items as approved by the RE.

3. Changes in the Character of Work.

THE ENTIRE TEXT IS CHANGED TO:

The Department may change the character of Work as needed for the satisfactory completion of a Project. Contract Items are not eligible for any adjustment in contract bid unit prices.

104.03.08 Force Account

5. Materials.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED TO THE END OF SUBPART (1):

Provide written documentation of all discounts. Written documentation must be provided with the respective invoice.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

If the materials are obtained from a supply or source owned wholly or in part by the purchaser, the cost of such materials shall not exceed the price paid by the purchaser for similar materials furnished from said source on Items or the current wholesale price for such materials delivered to the job site, whichever price is lower.

The cost of transportation, handling and delivery of materials that have been delivered directly from a supplier, manufacturer or distributor will be paid for under this Item. Payment will be based on the actual cost as

evidenced by paid receipts. No profit will be paid on the cost of transportation, handling and delivery of materials, as described above.

No Separate payment will be made for the cost of transportation, handling and delivery of materials from the Contractor's or Departments storage area.

Material and methods of construction not specifically covered in the specifications shall conform to the AASHTO Roadside Design Guide and Manufacturer's recommendation. The RE must approve procurement of materials prior to purchase.

The Department may supply materials purchased through State Vendors or other State materials for use on this Contract. No claims for payment of any additional compensation for materials, which have been supplied by the State, shall be made.

Any additional materials that are purchased for use will be delivered to the sites or to such other locations as directed by the RE. Any excess material shall become the property of the Department. Direct shipment from the supplier or distributor to the job site, shall only be performed with prior approval from the RE.

At the option of the RE, materials or remainders of materials may be abandoned for removal and disposal. Payment for disposal of materials will be paid under the bid price of the various items of the proposal.

7. Equipment.

b. Rented Equipment.

THE FOLLOWING IS CHANGED TO:

No rental charges will be paid by the Department for equipment. All charges for equipment used must be included in the bid price in the proposal.

SECTION 105 – CONTROL OF WORK

105.05 WORKING DRAWINGS

TABLE 105.05-1 IS CHANGED TO:

Table 105.05-1 – Working Drawing Submission Category		
Certified	Approved	
Breakaway I-Beam GA Sign Support Posts	Catalog Cuts (related to landscape Items)	
Bridge Drainage	Change in Structural Steel Details	
Bridge Railing and Fencing Anchorage System	Change of Prestressed Concrete Strand Patterns	
Catalog Cuts	Demolition Plans	
Composite Piles	Erection Plans	
DMS Sign Support Structure	High Load Multi-Rotational (HLMR) Bearings	
DMS Standard Ground Mounted	Isolation Bearings	
Elastomeric Bearings Pads	ITS System Drawings, including Block Diagrams	
Electrical Items Not Pre-Qualified	Machinery and Electrical Items for Movable Bridges	
Expansion Joint Assemblies (except Modular Expansion Joint Assemblies)	Mechanically Stabilized Earth (MSE) Walls	
Precast Prestressed Concrete Beams and Piles Fabrication	Modular Expansion Joint Assemblies	
Reinforced Elastomeric Bearings	Other work shown on the Plans as conceptual	
Sign Legends	Precast Concrete Arch Structures	
Sign Support Structures	Precast Concrete Box Culverts	
Structural Steel Fabrication	Prefabricated Modular Walls	
	Stay-In-Place Forms	
	Temporary Sheeting and Cofferdams	
	Temporary Shielding	
	Temporary Structures	

2. Approved Working Drawings.

THE LAST SENTENCE OF THE FIRST PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

The Department will require 15 days for review and approval or rejection and return of working drawings.

B. Locating Existing Facilities.

2.

Fiber Optic Markout Form is available at:

http://www.state.nj.us/transportation/eng/elec/ITS/requests.shtm.

Bureau of Traffic Operations, North Region (TOCN)

670 River Drive

Elmwood Park, NJ 07407-1347

Telephone: 732-697-7360

For Weigh-in-Motion and Traffic Volume systems contact:

Transportation Data and Safety Unit

PO Box 600

Trenton, NJ 08625

609-963-1891

For Roadway Weather Information Systems contact:

Permits, Electrical Maintenance & Claims Unit

PO Box 600

Trenton, NJ 08625

609-963-1829

3.

Bureau of Electrical Maintenance, North Region

200 Stierli Court

Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856-1322

Telephone: 973-601-6650

NJDOT

Central Region Electrical

1035 Parkway Avenue

4th Floor E&O Bldg.

CN 600

Trenton, NJ 08625

Telephone: 609-963-1491

C. Protection of Utilities.

Facility Daily Access Request Form is available at: http://www.state.nj.us/transportation/eng/elec/ITS/access.shtm.

SECTION 106 – CONTROL OF MATERIAL

THE SECTION HEADING IS CHANGED TO:

SECTION 106 – CONTROL OF MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

106.01 SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS

THE FIRST PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

Ensure that materials furnished for the Project are new, unless otherwise specified in the Contract. Comply with 2 CFR 200.323 – Procurement of recovered materials, ensuring that materials furnished for the Project contain, "the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable," where the purchase price of the covered item listed exceeds \$10,000. Use materials that conform to the requirements of the Contract. When required by the Contract, use only products and suppliers listed on the QPL. Use sources of materials that have been approved by the Department on a Materials Questionnaire as specified in 106.04.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED TO THE END OF THE SUBSECTION:

For telecommunication and video surveillance services or equipment a certification is required to confirm that the telecommunication and video surveillance services or equipment are not from companies as listed in 2 CFR 200.216. Ensure that the certification includes the statement that all telecommunication and video surveillance services or equipment proposed in this project are not produced by companies as listed in 2 CFR 200.216.

106.03 FOREIGN MATERIALS

THE SUBSECTION HEADING IS CHANGED TO:

106.03 FOREIGN MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

2. Federal Aid Projects.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

Comply with the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act ("IIJA"), Pub. L. No. 117-58, which includes the Build America, Buy America Act ("the Act"). Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52. Comply with IIJA's three categories: iron and steel, manufactured products, and construction materials:

- a. Ensure all iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States. Ensure all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.
- b. Ensure all manufactured products as defined by IIJA are exempted from the Buy America requirements pursuant to 48 FR 50399 (1983) which excludes manufactured products from 23 CFR 635.410.
- c. Ensure all construction materials are manufactured in and manufacturing processes occurred in the United States. Construction materials includes an article, material, or supply other than an item of primarily iron or steel; a manufactured product; cement and cementitious materials; aggregates such as stone, sand, or gravel; or aggregate binding agents or additives that is or consists primarily of non-ferrous metals, plastic and polymer-based products (including PVC, composite building materials, and polymers used in fiber optic cables), glass (including optic glass), lumber or drywall. Items that consist of two or more of the listed materials that have been combined through a manufacturing process, and items that include at least one of the listed materials combined with a material that is not listed through a manufacturing process, should be treated as manufactured products, rather than as construction materials.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED TO THE END OF THE SUBSECTION:

Comply with 2 CFR 200.216 Prohibition on Certain Telecommunication and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment.

Do not provide Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). Do not provide video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hanghzou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). Do not provide Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.

Do not provide Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.

Do not provide any equipment assembled by others that has an integral component that was manufactured and supplied by the aforementioned companies.

106.07.02 Certification for Iron and Steel

THE HEADING AND THE ENTIRE SUBPART IS CHANGED TO:

106.07.02 Certification for Iron and Steel, and Construction Materials

- A. Precast Concrete Steel and Concrete Pipe Certification of Compliance. For precast concrete and concrete pipe items, a Buy America Compliance Plan is required to confirm that the material meets the Buy America requirements and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act ("IIJA"), Pub. L. No. 117-58, which includes the Build America, Buy America Act ("the Act"). Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52 as specified in 106.03. The ME will periodically audit compliance with the program at the precast plant. If the precast concrete item is not inspected by ME, submit a Certification of Compliance for the precast concrete item as required in 106.07.01. When a Certification of Compliance is submitted, ensure that the Certification of Compliance contains a statement that the reinforcing steel used in the precast concrete item complies with the Buy America requirements and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act ("IIJA"), Pub. L. No. 117-58, which includes the Build America, Buy America Act ("the Act"). Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52 as specified in 106.03.
- B. Certification for Construction Materials. For construction materials, a Buy America Compliance Plan is required to confirm that the material meets the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act ("IIJA"), Pub. L. No. 117-58, which includes the Build America, Buy America Act ("the Act"). Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52 as specified in 106.03. When a Certification of Compliance is submitted, ensure that the Certification of Compliance contains a statement that the construction materials used complies with the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act ("IIJA"), Pub. L. No. 117-58, which includes the Build America, Buy America Act ("the Act"). Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52 as specified in 106.03.
- C. Step Certification of Compliance. For products that contain steel or iron components and are not covered in 106.07.02.A, step Certification of Compliance is required to confirm that the item meets the Buy America requirements and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act ("IIJA"), Pub. L. No. 117-58, which includes the Build America, Buy America Act ("the Act"). Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52 as specified in 106.03. A step certification is a process under which each handler (e.g., supplier, fabricator, manufacturer, processor, coating facility) of the iron and steel components certifies that the steel and iron components were of domestic origin, and that their step in the process was domestically performed.

Every step in the process from melting to coating must be performed in the United States in order for the steel or iron component to be considered domestic and must be documented by step certification. If a domestic source for a steel or iron component cannot be found, submit a request for waiver to the Department. Do not purchase non-domestic steel or iron components without the express written consent of the Department.

Ensure that 3 copies of the Contractor's Certification of Compliance (Form DC-17) and the step Certifications of Compliance are provided for items containing steel or iron. Retain 1 copy and submit 2 copies to the RE. The Contractor may submit the DC-17 and the step certifications electronically in a scanned document.

Ensure that step Certifications of Compliance contain the following information:

- 1. Name of the Company supplying the material.
- 2. Name and location of the Company the material was shipped to.
- 3. Material description.
- 4. Quantity of material represented by the Certification.
- 5. Means of identifying the consignment, such as label marking or seal number.
- 6. Date and method of shipment.
- 7. A statement that the material conforms to the Contract material requirements and to the Buy America requirements in 106.03 and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act ("IIJA"), Pub. L. No. 117-58, which includes the Build America, Buy America Act ("the Act"). Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52.
- 8. A statement that all steel or iron components in the material or assembly were "melted and manufactured in the US", unless there is non-domestic steel or iron in the material or assembly.
- 9. If there is non-domestic steel or iron in the assembly, describe in detail the non-domestic steel or iron material and the quantity. Attach a copy of the Department's approval for the use of non-domestic steel or iron components.
- 10. Signature of a person having legal authority to bind the supplier.

11. Typed or printed name of the person who signed the certification.

The Department will not make payment for work containing steel or iron materials until the RE has received the required DC-17 and step Certifications of Compliance, has inspected and accepted the material or assembly.

SECTION 107 – LEGAL RELATIONS

107.11 RISKS ASSUMED BY THE CONTRACTOR

107.11.01 Risks

1. Damage Caused by the Contractor.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

When working within the vicinity of the Turnpike, Garden State Parkway, Atlantic City Expressway or the following routes:

Rt. 38, MP 0.5 to 9.5 Rt. 42 MP 6.3 to 13.3 Rt. 70, MP 0.0 to 5.4 I-80, MP 57.5 to 68.3 I-295, MP 40.6 to 67.79 I-95, MP 0.58 to 8.77 I-195 MP 0.00 to 6.25

For any damages by the Contractor to the fiber optic network along the routes listed above, also notify the G4S Technology LLC at 877-637-2344 within two hours. Only G4S Technology LLC will be allowed to complete repairs on that respective section of the fiber optic network. Directly pay G4S Technology LLC within 30 days from the receipt of G4S Technology LLC's invoice for such repairs, and provide the RE with a copy of the transmittal letter. If the Contractor does not make payment within 30 days, the Department may recover the costs incurred for repairs from the Contract.

107.12.01 Satisfying the Notice Requirements

THE SECOND SENTENCE OF THE SECOND PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

Upon request, provide the RE with 5 copies of all documentation submitted in support of the claim.

SECTION 108 – PROSECUTION AND COMPLETION

108.01 SUBCONTRACTING

1. Values and Quantities.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED TO THE FIRST PARAGRAPH:

a.

There are no Specialty Items in this Project.

2. Limits and Restrictions.

PART C IS CHANGED TO:

c. The Contractor is barred from subcontracting to firms and individuals suspended or debarred by the Department or included in the State of New Jersey Consolidated Debarment Report maintained by the Department of the Treasury, Division of Building and Construction, Bureau of Contractor Prequalification. The Contractor must certify that neither the individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, or limited liability corporation applying to do subcontract work nor any of its corporate officers, stockholders, partners, or members are collectively or individually suspended, debarred, proposed for debarment, disqualified, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from doing business by this or any other State or

sub-division thereof or listed in the Federal Government's System for Award Management (SAM), located at: https://sam.gov/content/exclusions.

108.07.01 Interference

THE SECOND PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

Schedule and perform the Work so that successive construction operations and lane or roadway openings follow preceding operations as closely as possible. Limit work zones according to the Special Provisions. Confine construction operations adjacent to traffic to one side of the roadway at a time unless otherwise specified by the Contract. Where the Work is performed in stages adjacent to traffic, ensure that the road opened to traffic adequately accommodates traffic. Do not interfere with existing traffic access, except when required to perform the Work or as approved by the RE.

108.08 LANE OCCUPANCY CHARGES

SUBSECTION IS RENAMED AND CHANGED TO:

108.08 OCCUPANCY CHARGES

The closure schedule shown in the plans indicates the time periods for allowable closures as specified in the Contract. Allowable closures are permitted for, but not limited to; roadways, lanes, shoulders and ramps. If the Contractor's closures exceed these time periods, the Department will deduct from the monthly estimate an occupancy charge for the use and occupancy beyond the time periods shown in the closure schedule until such time that the closure is reopened to traffic or until such time that the closure is allowed to take place again under the closure schedule. The Department will recover the cost of occupancy charges as specified in 107.16.

The RE will keep record of each occurrence as well as the cumulative amount of time that a closure exceeds the time periods shown in the closure schedule and provide the record to the Contractor. The Department will calculate an occupancy charge by multiplying the length of time of each delayed opening, in minutes, by the rate of \$10 per minute, unless otherwise specified in the Special Provisions. The total amount per day for occupancy charges that the Department will collect will not exceed \$10,000.00.

The Department will waive an occupancy charge where a closure is not reopened to traffic as specified in the closure schedule directly and solely by reason of extraordinary, exigent circumstances not under the control of or reasonably foreseeable by the Contractor. Equipment breakdowns, supplier deliveries, and weather related hindrances are not extraordinary, exigent circumstances. However, the Department has the right to assess an occupancy charge for any period of time that a closure remains closed beyond the reasonable period of time needed by the Contractor to reopen a closure due to an extraordinary, exigent circumstance.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The rate to calculate the Occupancy Charge is as follows:

Statewide Lane Occupancy Charges - Arterial/Land Service Facilities

1 lane per direction, Single Lane Closure/Alternating Traffic, AM Time Limit

Two Way AADT 1-20,000 - \$10/minute

Two Way AADT 20,001-25,000 - \$20/minute

Two Way AADT 25,001 or more - \$30/minute

1 lane per direction, Single Lane Closure/Alternating Traffic, PM Time Limit

Two Way AADT 1-12,000 - \$10/minute

Two Way AADT 12,001-14,000 - **\$80/minute**

Two Way AADT 14,001 or more - \$150/minute

2 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain One Lane, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-30,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 30,001-35,000 - \$20/minute

One Direction AADT 35,001 or more - \$30/minute

2 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain One Lane, PM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-18.000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 18,001-20,000 - \$40/minute

One Direction AADT 20,001 or more - \$100/minute

3 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain Two Lanes, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-55,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 55.001-60.000 - \$20/minute

One Direction AADT 60,001 or more - \$30/minute

3 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain Two Lanes, PM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-36,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 36,001-38,000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 38.001 or more - \$90/minute

3 lanes per direction, Double Lane Closure/Maintain One Lane, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-25.000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 25,001-35,000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 35,001 or more - \$50/minute

4 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain Three Lanes, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-90,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 90,001 or more - \$20/minute

4 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain Three Lanes, PM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-58,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 58.001-60.000 - \$20/minute

One Direction AADT 60,001 or more - \$50/minute

4 lanes per direction, Double Lane Closure/Maintain Two Lanes, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-55,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 55,001-65,000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 65,001 or more - \$50/minute

4 lanes per direction, Triple Lane Closure/Maintain One Lane, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-55.000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 55,001-65,000 - \$20/minute

One Direction AADT 65,001 or more - \$30/minute

Statewide Lane Occupancy Charges - Interstate/Freeway Facilities

2 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain One Lane, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-35,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 35,001-40,000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 40,001 or more - \$50/minute

2 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain One Lane, PM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-22,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 22,001-24,000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 24.001 or more - \$100/minute

3 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain Two Lanes, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-65,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 65,001-70,000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 70,001 or more - \$50/minute

3 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain Two Lanes, PM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-45.000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 45,001-50,000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 50,001 or more - \$70/minute

3 lanes per direction, Double Lane Closure/Maintain One Lane, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-25,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 25.001-30.000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 30,001 or more - \$50/minute

4 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain Three Lanes, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-90,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 90,001 or more - \$20/minute

4 lanes per direction, Single Lane Closure/Maintain Three Lanes, PM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-75,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 75.001-80.000 - \$40/minute

One Direction AADT 80,001 or more - \$90/minute

4 lanes per direction, Double Lane Closure/Maintain Two Lanes, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-60,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 60,001-70,000 - \$30/minute

One Direction AADT 70,001 or more - \$60/minute

4 lanes per direction, Triple Lane Closure/Maintain One Lane, AM Time Limit

One Direction AADT 1-65,000 - \$10/minute

One Direction AADT 65,001-70,000 - \$20/minute

One Direction AADT 70,001 or more - \$30/minute

108.10 CONTRACT TIME

- A. Complete all work required for Substantial Completion on or before March 31, 2024.
- B. Achieve Completion on or before May 31, 2024.

108.19 COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

No Incentive Payment for Early Completion is specified for this project.

108.20 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Liquidated damages are as follows:

- A. For each day that the Contractor fails to complete the work as specified in Subsection 108.10 of these Special Provisions, for Substantial Completion, the Department will assess liquidated damages in the amount of \$800.00/day.
- B. For each day that the Contractor fails to achieve Completion as specified in Subsection 108.10 of these Special Provisions, the Department will assess liquidated damages in the amount of \$800.00/day.

SECTION 109 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

109.01 MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES

THE LAST PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

The Department does not typically measure quantities for Proposal Items, except quantities designated on the Plans as "if and where directed," for payment. The Contractor or the RE can measure Proposal Items for payment. If making a measurement for a change in payment, submit drawings, calculations, and other information demonstrating the as-built quantity to the party not initiating measurement. If the difference between the measured quantity and the Contract quantity is less than or equal to 10 percent of the Proposal quantity, the Department will make payment based on the Contract quantity. If the difference is more than 10 percent of the Contract quantity, the Department will make payment based on the measured quantity. For each Item that the Contractor requests a Proposal Item be measured, and it is determined that the difference between the quantity measured and the Contract quantity is less than or equal to 10 percent of the Proposal quantity, the Department will deduct \$500.00. The Department will measure quantities for Proposal Items that are designated on the Plans as "if and where directed" for payment when the RE directs work using the "if and where directed" quantity.

109.05 ESTIMATES

THE FOURTH PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

The RE will provide a summary of the Estimate to the Contractor. Before the issuance of each payment, certify, on forms provided by the Department, whether:

On Federally Funded Projects

- No subcontractor or supplier was used on the project; or
- Each subcontractor and supplier used on the project has been paid the amount due, from the previous progress payment and will be paid the amount due from the current progress payment, for the subcontractor or supplier's work that was paid by the Department.

В. **On State Funded Projects**

- No subcontractor or supplier was used on the project; or
- Each subcontractor and supplier used on the project has been paid the amount due, excluding retainage, from the previous progress payment and will be paid the amount due from the current progress payment, excluding retainage, for the subcontractor or supplier's work that was paid by the Department; or
- There exists a valid basis under the terms of the subcontractor's or supplier's contract to withhold payments from the subcontractor or supplier. Therefore, the following subcontractors and suppliers have not been paid for work performed or materials supplied to the project from the proceeds of the previous progress payment or will not be paid for work performed or materials supplied to this project from the proceeds of the current progress payment, or both.

THE TWELFTH PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

The Department will deduct and withhold 2 percent in retainage from the total Estimate amount for State Funded Projects. On State Funded Projects, the Contractor may not withhold subcontractor retainage that exceeds the amount of retainage that the Department withholds from the Contractor.

Regarding Federally Funded Projects, the Department will deduct and withhold 2 percent in retainage from the total Estimate amount, excluding amounts for subcontracted work, until Substantial Completion. Pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 26.29(b)(1), the Contractor may not withhold retainage from a subcontractor on Federally Funded Projects.

109.06 MATERIALS PAYMENTS AND STORAGE

THE SUBSECTION IS CHANGED TO:

The Contractor may request payment for the cost of materials, including the storage cost, not incorporated into the Work. If approved by the RE, the Department will make payment for the cost of materials, including storage costs if such payment exceeds \$25,000.00; however, the amount of payment may not exceed 85 percent of the bid price for the associated Item. The Department may also direct the Contractor to purchase materials ahead of schedule for this purpose. The Department will not make payment for such materials until the RE is satisfied that:

The Contractor has properly stored and protected materials within the Project Limits or at locations owned or leased by the Contractor or the Department within the State, except that the Contractor may store structural steel

- outside the State with the prior approval of the Department. Provide and comply with manufacturers', suppliers', and fabricators' storing and handling recommendations for each material, as specified in 108.04.
- 2. The ME has inspected the materials and they appear to be acceptable based upon available supplier's certification and materials test reports.
- 3. The Contractor has provided the RE with the paid invoice or paid bill of sale for the materials and a fully executed Release of Liens for Materials Stored for Incorporation in Department of Transportation Project Form, including the transfer of ownership to the Department.
- 4. For material stored on property not belonging to the Department, the material is stored in a fenced area with access limited to the Department and the Contractor. Additionally, the Contractor has posted a sign at the location clearly identifying, and printed in large letters, that the materials are without encumbrances and are to be solely used for the Project.
- 5. When materials are stored in a leased area, the lease is made out to the Contractor and provides that it shall be canceled only with the written permission of the Department. Submit a copy of the lease to the RE.

Payment for materials does not constitute Department approval or Acceptance of the materials or work. If materials paid for are damaged, stolen, or prove to be unacceptable, the Department has the right to recover the costs from the Contractor. Stored materials are not to be removed from storage except for incorporation into the project. The Department will not make payment for plant materials until they are planted or installed.

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023 DP No. 23418

DIVISION 150 – CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 151 – PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND

151.03.01 Performance Bond and Payment Bond

THE FIRST SENTENCE IS CHANGED TO:

Using bond forms issued by the Department, provide a performance bond and a payment bond to the Department within 14 days of the date of Award or Conditional Award.

151.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND

Pay Unit

DOLLAR

The Department will make payment for PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND as follows:

 $B_{IP} = \text{the lesser of } B_B \text{ and } \\ B_I$

DI

 B_{FP} = the lesser of $[B_{IP}$ +R(C_F - C_O)] and B_F

Where:

 B_{IP} = Initial payment for the PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND made by the Department at the start of Work, B_B = Bid price of the PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND.

B_I = Actual price of the PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND at the start of Work.

 B_F = Actual price of the PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND at Completion of Work.

B_{FP} = Final payment for the PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND made by the Department at the Completion of Work.

R = (for Final Contract Price greater than the Original Contract Price) = Rate or rates from the certified schedule corresponding to the portion of the Contract Price greater than the Original Contract Price.

R = (for Final Contract Price less than the Original Contract Price) = Rate from the certified schedule corresponding to the Final Contract Price.

 C_F = Final Contract Price excluding adjustments for LAYOUT and PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND C_O = Original Contract Price

The Department will not make payment for PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND until after receipt of the certified rate schedule. The Department will make adjustments to PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND in the final monthly Estimate. The Department will not make adjustments of less than \$100.00.

SECTION 152 – INSURANCE

152.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pay Unit DOLLAR

The Contractor shall provide all other insurance costs at the Contractor's expense.

The Department will make initial payment for POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE at the lesser of the bid amount, or actual costs as documented from paid invoices. If the Bid amount is greater than the amount indicated on the documented paid invoices, the Department will make payment for any remainder, up to the Bid amount, with the final monthly Estimate.

SECTION 153 – PROGRESS SCHEDULE

153.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

BAR CHART PROGRESS SCHEDULE AND UPDATES

Pay Unit LUMP SUM

The Department will make payment FOR BAR CHART PROGRESS SCHEDULE AND UPDATES as follows:

Schedule Submission	Payment
Approval of baseline schedule	50% of the lump sum
Approval of each update	50% prorated over the duration of the Contract

SECTION 154 – CONSTRUCTION FIELD OFFICE

154.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

Pay Unit **MOBILIZATION** LUMP SUM

The Department will make payment for MOBILIZATION on a lump sum basis, regardless of the number of times the Contractor shuts down and returns to the Project. The Department will make payment as follows:

Work Completed	Payment
5% of the Work ¹	Lesser of 25% of bid price or 2.5% of Total Contract Price
10% of the Work ¹	Lesser of 50% of bid price or 5% of Total Contract Price
15% of the Work ¹	Lesser of 75% of bid price or 7.5% of Total Contract Price
20% of the Work ¹	Lesser of 100% of bid price or 10% of Total Contract Price
100% of the Work	Amount of bid price not previously paid

The Department will calculate the percentage of Work completed from the total of payments compared to the Total Contract Price. The total of payments excludes the amount paid for MOBILIZATION and the amount paid for materials furnished but not incorporated into the Work as specified in 109.06.

If MOBILIZATION is not included in the Proposal, include the costs in the various Items scheduled in the Proposal.

SECTION 155 – CONSTRUCTION FIELD OFFICE

155.03.01 Field Office

4. **Communication Equipment.**

Cell Phones. b.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

Provide _ (6) cellular phones. Ensure the cellular phone plan provides for unlimited mobile to mobile in-network usage and an anticipated monthly usage of 900 anytime minutes for each phone. Ensure the phones are on the same plan. Ensure the cellular phone plan has a home rate with no roaming charges within the state. Ensure each cellular phone has the following features:

- Camera with 12-megapixel picture capability.
- Battery size of at least 4000mAh. Battery life capable of 180 minutes of continuous use and 72 hours of standby use.
- 3. Equipped with a hands-free headset.
- Base charger and car charger.

The Department will maintain possession of the cell phones and all data and storage materials and equipment at the end of the Project.

Computer System.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

Provide a computer system meeting the following requirements:

- Two (2) Desktop computer configurations each meeting the following:
 - Processor -IntelTM i9 9th Generation or higher
 - Router-Wired Router or Hub with appropriate number of ports and cables and a print server. ii. Ensure there is at least 1 wired Ethernet switch
 - iii. Operating System – Windows 10 Professional or higher
 - iv. Broad Band-High-speed broad band connection and service with a minimum speed of 900_ Megabits per second (mbps) with dynamic IP address for the duration of the project.
 - Monitor- Two 23 inch or larger Flat Screen LCD monitor with tilt/swivel capabilities. v.
 - Memory-_1 Terabyte or larger external drive with backup software for MS-Windows, vi. and 15 corresponding formatted data cartridges corresponding to the tape drive size. 64GB, 2990MHz, DDR2 SDRAM Memory
 - Primary Hard Drive -5 TB Serial ATA Hard Drive vii.
 - _5__Flatbed USB version 2.0 or greater Color Scanner with automatic document feed. viii.
 - Uninterruptible power supply (UPS). ix.
 - Surge protector for the entire computer configuration to be used in conjunction with the UPS х.
 - Computer workstation, chair, printer stand, and/or table having both appropriate xi. surface and chair height.
 - Optical Driver, Single Drive 32X DVD+/- RW Drive xii.
 - Video Card Nvidia GeForce GTX 1050 (or similar), 4GB xiii.
 - PCIe x16 Ports 6 USB (3.1), Serial port, Mic in and headphones with Speaker Keyboard xiv.

Wireless USB Keyboard

- Mouse Wireless USB Mouse or Built-in Bluetooth Technology Mouse XV.
- One can of compressed air and screen cleaning solution every other month of the xvi. duration of the contract.
- Four (4) laptop computers such as the 8th Generation Lenovo ThinkPad E580 system or approved equal having at the minimum:
 - Processor IntelTM i9 9th Generation or higher Operating System i.
 - Genuine Windows 10 Professional or higher ii.
 - iii. LCD Display – Touchscreen and up to 15.6 inch wide Anti-Glare

DP No. 23418 Page 20 of 43

- iv. <u>Graphics</u> nVIDIA Quadro FX 2700M, 6GB Discrete or higher
- v. Sound Built-in Speakers and webcam.
- vi. Memory 16GB, DDR3-1066MHz SDRAM, Minimum 2 DIMMS
- vii. <u>Primary Hard Drive</u> 1 TB SSD Hard Drive or equivalent hybrid
- viii. Ports (minimum) 4 USB 3.1 or higher, Serial, HDMI monitor, SD Card Reader AC power, Bluetooth radio
- ix. Mouse Wireless Bluetooth Mouse or Built-in Bluetooth Technology Mouse
- x. <u>Keyboard</u> Must have wireless Numerical Keypad
- xi. <u>Power</u> AC power Charger, Additional Back-up or extra capacity Battery (Compatible with Laptop) and AC power converter (including Universal Car Adapter for vehicle usage)
- xii. The desktop computer and all laptop computers shall be Bluetooth (or equivalent) equipped and must be capable of wireless connection to the printer system supplied in this contract.

3. Also provide:

- i. Two (2) USB version 3.1 or greater Color Scanner with automatic multi document feed.
- ii. Three (3) 23-inch Widescreen, 60hz, Flat Panel Screens
- iii. Three (3) uninterruptible power supply units (UPS), one for each PC/laptop. Three (3) surge protector for the use in conjunction with the UPS.
- iv. Three (3) computer workstations, chairs, printer stand, and/or table having both appropriate surface and chair height.
- v. Bi-monthly supply of compressed air and screen cleaning solution for the duration of the contract.
- vi. Fifteen (15) 256GB USB Flash/Jump memory drives
- vii. Five (5) 128GB Dual USB (USB-A 3.0/USB-C 3.0) Flash/Jump memory drives
- viii. Four (4) Portable hard drives with 3TB capacity
- ix. One (1) Color Laser Printer/Copier/Scanners and supplies as follows:
 - a. HP PCL 6 emulation, with a minimum of 192 Megabytes of expanded memory, printer cable, and legal-size paper tray.
 - b. One set of printer ink cartridges every other month for the duration of the contract for each printer.
 - c. Ensure the printer is Bluetooth (or equivalent) equipped and has the ability to be accessed wirelessly from the base computer and each laptop computer.
 - d. Printer hard drive must be erased before removal from field office and provide RE with certification stating that the copier hard drive has been erased.
 - e. If more than one computer configuration is specified, provide one network interface card for the base computer configuration and hardwire connections between computer configurations as directed by the RE.

4. Software as follows:

- i. Microsoft Windows, latest version with future upgrades for the duration of the entire project.
- ii. Microsoft Office Professional 2021, latest version.
- iii. Norton's System Works for Windows, latest version, or compatible software package with future AUTOMATIC upgrades and latest virus patches.
- iv. Anti-Virus software, latest version with monthly updates for the duration of the contract.
- v. Adobe Acrobat Professional 2020, latest version, and compatible software for Scanner.

Software packages for the computers including the following at a minimum:

Microsoft Windows 10 Professional and the latest version of the following with up to date for the duration of the contract; Anti-virus software (e.g., Norton's Anti-virus, etc.), Adobe Acrobat Professional 2020, Adobe Photoshop CC 2023and Microsoft Office Professional Plus 2021. Ensure all software has a PERMANENT LICENSE.

Note: Software shall be approved by the Resident Engineer before purchase/replacement.

Office Equipment. 6.

THE ENTIRE SUBPART IS CHANGED TO:

Provide the following:

- Two (2) digital camera(s), such as type Canon SX420IS or approved equal. Ensure each digital camera has auto-focus and 24X optical Zoom, with rechargeable batteries and charger, 64 GB memory card, USB Memory Card Reader compatible with camera and field office computer, 3-inch LCD monitor, 20 mega pixel resolution, 40 X optical zoom lens, built in flash, image stabilization, computer connections, and a carrying case.
- One (1) document shredder, with cross-shredding capability and thirty sheet capacity. b.
- c. Two (2) First-Aid kits
- d. One (1) water cooler
- One (1) Projector with a minimum resolution of 1920x1080 with HDMI port and cable e.
- Monthly Bottled Water Supply Delivery f.
- Recordable CD's compatible with the CD drive and recordable DVD's. As per RE's need.
- CD/DVD Holder (each holds 50) As per RE's need.

7. **Inspection Equipment**

- 2 Scientific Calculators, such as Texas Instruments TI-36
- 2 Date/Received stamp and ink pad b.
- 2 2020/2023 "RECIVED BY NJDOT OPERATIONS" stamp c.
- 2 Carpenter rulers d.
- 2 Cloth tape, 100 feet e.
- 2 Illuminated measuring wheel f.
- 2 Hammers, 1 lb.
- 3 Hard hats orange, reflectorized hard hats according to ANSI Z89.1. h.
- i. 6 Safety garments – orange, reflectorized, 360° high visibility safety garments according to ANSI/ISEA Class 3, Level 2 standards. To be replaced for the duration of the Contract.
- 4 Sets of rain gear with reflective sheeting į.
- 4 Sets of hearing protection with a Noise Reduction Rating of 22 dB
- 6 Sets of eye protection according to ANSI Z87.1 1.
- 3 Light meter capable of measuring the level of luminance in foot-candles m.
- 4 LED Flashlight, 6V with monthly battery replacements n.
- 1 Head mounted flashlights with monthly battery replacements o.
- 1 Box of disposable hearing protection earbuds p.
- 3 Power inverters for vehicle 12V q.
- <u>3</u> Respirators/Dust Filters with Replaceable Filters r.
- 1 Impact Hammers for compressions strength assurance, NDT James Instruments W-M-250 Concrete Test Hammers or Equivalent
- 3 Cans Insect Repellent per month, with monthly supply replenishment t.
- 3 Cans of Sunscreen, SPF 50 or higher, with monthly supply replenishment u.
- First Aid Kit with monthly supply replenishment v.
- 6 Waterproof Field Notebooks w.
- 6 2023/24 Standard Diaries, style 389 х.
- 6 Pairs of Winter Rated Work Gloves у.
- 4 Winter Jackets orange, reflectorized, 360° high visibility according to ANSI/ISEA Class 3,

DP No. 23418 Page 22 of 43 Level 2 standards

aa. 24 Legal size hanging folders.

bb. 24 Legal size manila file folders – three tab.

Note: Provide all the office and site related equipment/ accessories as per the requirement of the RE.

155.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitFIELD OFFICE TYPE B SET UPUNITFIELD OFFICE TYPE B MAINTENANCEMONTH

The Department will make payment for FIELD OFFICE TYPE B MAINTENANCE for each month or portion of a month that the field office is required, except that the Department will not make payment for any month or fraction of assed liquidated damages as specified in 108.20.

SECTION 157 – CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND MONUMENTS

157.03.02 Monument

THE SUBPART IS CHANGED TO:

Comply with the Map Filing Law N.J.S.A. 46:26B-1 through 8 and N.J.A.C. 13:40-5.1 through 2. Set non-Department monuments according to the requirements of the agency. Set Department monuments at the specified location and elevation, and ensure that the monuments are held firmly in place. Excavate so that concrete for the monument base and sides can be placed against undisturbed in-situ material, ensuring that the base is wider than the shaft. If rock is encountered, drill into the rock to provide a rock socket to the satisfaction of the RE. Reuse excess excavated material as specified in 202.03.03.C.1. Place concrete, as specified in 504.03.02.D, and set the reinforcement steel and the monument marker at the time of the concrete pour. Ensure that the top surface of the monument is level, and the disk is in the true position. After the concrete has attained strength, punch the disk.

After the monuments have been set, obtain the current horizontal and vertical control datum values on the monument and submit these values, signed and sealed by the land surveyor, to the RE.

SECTION 158 – SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL AND WATER QUALITY CONTROL

158.03.02 SESC Measures

19. Oil-Only Emergency Spill Kit.

158.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitINLET FILTER, TYPE 2, 2 ' X 4 'UNITINLET FILTER, TYPE 2, 4 ' X 4 'UNITOIL-ONLY EMERGENCY SPILL KIT, TYPE 1UNIT

SECTION 159 – TRAFFIC CONTROL

159.01 DESCRIPTION

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

Site specific Maintenance and Protection of Traffic plans are provided in the Contract Plans.

159.03.01 Traffic Control Coordinator

THE FIRST PARAGRAPH BEFORE THE LIST IS CHANGED TO:

Before starting Work, submit to the RE the name, training, work experience, and contact information of an employee assigned as the on-site Traffic Control Coordinator (TCC). The TCC must be certified as having successfully completed the Rutgers CAIT Traffic Control Coordinator Program, or an equivalent course as approved by the NJDOT Office of Capital Project Safety. The TCC must also successfully complete an approved Traffic Coordinator refresher course every 2 years. The TCC is a full-time position and the employee designated as TCC must be available on a 24 hour a day, 7 days a week basis. The TCC shall have the responsibility for and authority to implement and maintain all traffic operations for the Project on behalf of the Contractor. Ensure that the TCC is present at the work site at all times while the Work is in progress. The TCC's responsibilities and duties shall include the following:

159.03.02 Traffic Control Devices

THE FIRST PARAGRAPGH IS CHANGED TO:

Ensure that FHWA category 1, 2, 3, and 4 traffic control devices (TCDs) conform to the requirements of the 2016 Edition of the Manual for Assessing Safety Hardware (MASH), except that TCDs manufactured on or before December 31, 2019 must have been purchased by the Contractor on or before December 31, 2019, and conform to the requirements of NCHRP 350, MASH 2009, or MASH 2016. Provide each device's applicable MASH 2016, MASH 2009, or NCHRP 350 test results and FHWA Eligibility letter, if issued by the FHWA, to the RE. Provide the RE with the purchase date certification for devices not meeting the MASH 2016 requirements upon delivery to the site. Ensure that traffic control devices meet or exceed an acceptable condition as described in the ATSSA guide Quality Standards for Work Zone Traffic Control Devices. Traffic control devices need not be new but must be in good condition. Provide traffic control devices according to MUTCD.

PART 5 IS CHANGED TO:

5. Temporary Crash Cushion. Install inertial barrier systems as specified in 611.03.01. Install temporary compressive crash cushions as specified in 611.03.02. Immediately repair or replace crash cushions that become damaged or become inoperable. Begin repair or replacement of the temporary crash cushion within 1 hour of receiving notice of damage from the Department. Ensure that workers assigned to such repair or replacement work continuously until the temporary crash cushion is repaired or replaced. If the Contractor fails to respond to a damage notification and begin work within 1 hour of notification, or does not continue to work until the temporary crash cushion is repaired or replaced, the Department, will require closure of the adjacent live lane. Lane occupancy charges will be imposed as specified in 108.08 for the period of time the adjacent lane is closed. Should the Department have to respond to a repair with its own forces because of a Contractor's lack of response to a damage notification, the Contractor agrees to pay the Department a sum of \$3,000 for costs of mobilizing its forces and equipment. In addition, the Contractor must pay the Department the actual cost of material used for the repair and pay the actual costs of police traffic protection. Maintain an adequate number of replacement parts to repair damaged units at all times. Keep the areas in front, atop, and around the crash cushions clear of snow accumulation of more than 4 inches in depth.

Upon removal of the crash cushion, cut anchor bolts at least 3 inches below the surface of the surrounding roadway. Repair HMA pavement as specified in 401.03.03. Repair concrete pavement as specified in Section 452.

PART 6 IS CHANGED TO:

6. Traffic Control Truck with Mounted Crash Cushions. Provide the RE with a copy of the crash cushion manufacturer's recommendations. Provide the RE a certified weigh ticket of the Traffic Control Truck with arrow board and mounted Crash Cushion. Position the traffic control truck to ensure that there is adequate stopping distance after impact and to prevent errant vehicles from traveling around the truck and endangering workers. When used in a fixed position, place manual transmission vehicles in second gear and place automatic transmission vehicles in park. Ensure that the parking brake is set and the wheels are set straight. Do not use traffic control trucks in place of other temporary impact attenuators for more than 24 hours. Relocate the traffic control truck as specified by the TCP, or as directed by the RE. Do not use the truck to carry additional equipment, materials, or debris. When using ballast, ensure that it is secured to the truck. Submit drawings to the RE detailing the manner of securing the ballast, signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer, certifying that it is capable of withstanding the impact forces for which the impact attenuator is rated.

159.03.08 Traffic Direction

B. Police.

PART B IS CHANGED TO:

B. Police. Unless designated as local police at the preconstruction conference, police will be on-duty New Jersey State Police. Police are either provided by the RE as employees of the State, or by the local government as a vendor to the State. The use of police services by the RE does not relinquish or diminish the Contractor's responsibilities for work zone safety.

Submit a request for police services to the RE 72 hours before beginning construction operations.

Activities requiring police services include:

- 1. Traffic direction through signalized intersections, where the integrity of the existing traffic signal system is impacted or where an override of the signal is required.
- 2. Temporary closure of all lanes on state highways and interstates.

Police services may be requested as an enhancement to the TCP.

This enhancement includes:

- 1. Temporary closure of one or more lanes on interstates.
- 2. Temporary closure of one or more lanes on state highways with a posted speed of 50 miles per hour or higher.

Emergency situations may prevent police from arriving at the scheduled date or time. The RE will not permit construction operations that, by law, require police services if police are unavailable. The Department will not accept claims for interruptions or delays resulting from any failure of police to arrive as requested.

The RE must notify State and local police of cancellations 24 hours in advance. At least 24 hours before the scheduled start of work, notify the RE of any work cancellation for which police services were requested.

159.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

Item Pay Unit BREAKAWAY BARRICADE UNIT DRUM UNIT TRAFFIC CONE UNIT CONSTRUCTION SIGNS SOUARE FOOT FLASHING ARROW BOARD, 4' X 8' UNIT PORTABLE VARIABLE MESSAGE SIGN UNIT HMA PATCH TON TRAFFIC DIRECTOR, FLAGGER **HOUR** MPT FOR SHOULDER OR LANE CLOSURE ON INTERSTATE HIGHWAY DAY MPT FOR SHOULDER OR LANE CLOSURE NOT ON INTERSTATE HIGHWAY DAY TRAFFIC CONTROL TRUCK WITH MOUNTED CRASH CUSHION **LUMP SUM**

For traffic control devices measured by the linear foot or unit basis that are specified in 159.03.02, the Department will make payment for the maximum quantity in service at one time as required by the Contract. For CONSTRUCTION SIGNS, the Department will make payment for the maximum quantity of specific sign types in service at one time as required by the Contract. If a particular sign type has more than one unique text, each sign with a unique text will be considered to be a specific sign type. The Department will make payment for 50 percent of the Contract bid price for traffic control devices specified in 159.03.02 that are measured on a linear foot, square foot or unit basis upon approved placement. The Department will prorate the balance of payment over the duration of the Contract.

Except for unforeseen weather conditions, if the Contractor cancels work without providing at least 24 hour notice, the Department will deduct the cost of police services (4 hours for each police officer scheduled) from the Contract.

Payment for all shoulder/lane closures on interstate highways, or ramps leading to or from interstate highways, shall be paid as MPT FOR SHOULDER OR LANE CLOSURES ON INTERSTATE HIGHWAY. All other shoulder/lane closures shall be paid as MPT FOR SHOULDER OR LANE CLOSURES NOT ON INTERSTATE HIGHWAY.

Payment for MPT FOR SHOULDER OR LANE CLOSURES ON INTERSTATE HIGHWAY and MPT FOR SHOULDER OR LANE CLOSURES NOT ON INTERSTATE HIGHWAY shall include mobilization costs.

SECTION 160 – PRICE ADJUSTMENTS

THE ENTIRE SECTION 160 IS CHANGED TO:

160.01 DESCRIPTION

This Section describes the requirements for price adjustments for fuel and asphalt usage.

160.02 MATERIALS

(Intentionally Blank)

160.03 PROCEDURE

160.03.01 Fuel Price Adjustment

The Department will make price adjustments for fuel usage for Items listed in Table 160.03.01-1. Each month may be divided into two periods. Period one includes the first day of the month through the fourteenth day of the month. Period two includes the fifteenth day of the month through the last day of the month. Work starting within period one and continuing past midnight of the fourteenth day into the fifteenth day of the month will be included in period one for any price adjustments. Work continuing past midnight of the last day of the month into the first day of the next month will be included in period two.

The Department will calculate fuel price adjustments based on the pay quantities of listed Items using the fuel usage factors listed in Table 160.03.01-1.

Price adjustments may result in an increased payment to the Contractor for increases in the price index and may result in a reduction in payment for decreases in the price index.

If the as-built quantity of an Item listed in Table 160.03.01-1 differs from the sum of the quantities in the Estimates and the as-built quantity cannot be readily distributed among the time periods that the Item listed in Table 160.03.01-1 was constructed, then the Department will determine fuel price adjustment by distributing the difference in the same proportion as the Item's Estimate quantity is to the total of the Item's time period estimates.

Table 160.03.01-1 Fuel Price Adjustments	
Items	Fuel Usage Factor
EXCAVATION, UNCLASSIFIED	0.50 Gallons per Cubic Yard

Items	Fuel Usage Factor
EXCAVATION, REGULATED MATERIAL	0.50 Gallons per Cubic Yard
EXCAVATION, ACID PRODUCING SOIL	0.50 Gallons per Cubic Yard
REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
MICRO-MILLING	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
HMA MILLING, 3" OR LESS	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
HMA MILLING, MORE THAN 3" TO 6"	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
CONCRETE MILLING	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
HMA PROFILE MILLING	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
BREAKING PAVEMENT	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
RUBBLIZATION	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
SUBBASE	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard
SOIL AGGREGATE	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard
SOIL AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, " THICK	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard
SOIL AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, VARIABLE THICKNESS	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard
DENSE-GRADED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, " THICK	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard
DENSE-GRADED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, VARIABLE THICKNESS	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard
CONCRETE BASE COURSE, " THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
CONCRETE BASE COURSE, REINFORCED " THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
ASPHALT-STABILIZED DRAINAGE COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
OPEN-GRADED FRICTION COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
HOT MIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
HOT MIX ASPHALT INTERMEDIATE COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
HOT MIX ASPHALT BASE COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
MODIFIED OPEN-GRADED FRICTION COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
JLTRA-THIN FRICTION COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
STONE MATRIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
HIGH PERFORMANCE THIN OVERLAY	2.50 Gallons per Ton
BINDER RICH INTERMEDIATE COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
BRIDGE DECK WATERPROOFING SURFACE COURSE	2.50 Gallons per Ton
NON-VEGETATIVE SURFACE, HOT MIX ASPHALT	2.50 Gallons per Ton
COLOR-COATED NON-VEGETATIVE SURFACE, HOT MIX ASPHALT	2.50 Gallons per Ton
CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE, " THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
CONCRETE SIDEWALK, 4" THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
CONCRETE SIDEWALK, 5" THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
CONCRETE SIDEWALK, 6" THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
CONCRETE SIDEWALK, 8" THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
CONCRETE SIDEWALK, REINFORCED, 6" THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
CONCRETE SIDEWALK, REINFORCED, 8" THICK	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
DIAMOND GRINDING OF CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
DIAMOND GRINDING EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT	0.25 Gallons per Square Yard
SLURRY SEAL AGGREGATE, TYPE II	2.5 Gallons per Ton
SLURRY SEAL EMULSION	0.10 Gallons per Gallon
CONCRETE BRIDGE APPROACH	0.50 Gallons per Cubic Yard
CONCRETE CULVERT	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard
CONCRETE FOOTING	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard

Table 160.03.01-1 Fuel Price Adjustments		
Items	Fuel Usage Factor	
CONCRETE WING WALL	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE PIER COLUMN PROTECTION, HPC	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE PIER COLUMNS AND CAP	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE ABUTMENT WALL	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE PIER SHAFT	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE BRIDGE DECK	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE BRIDGE DECK, HPC	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE BRIDGE SIDEWALK	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE BRIDGE SIDEWALK HPC	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE BRIDGE PARAPET	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
CONCRETE BRIDGE PARAPET HPC	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
15" BY 32" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, BRIDGE	0.12 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY 32" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, BRIDGE	0.17 Gallon per Linear Foot	
21" BY 34" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, BRIDGE	0.15 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY 42" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, BRIDGE	0.21 Gallon per Linear Foo	
CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE PILES, DRIVEN " DIAMETER	1.00 Gallon per Cubic Yard	
RETAINING WALL, LOCATION NO	0.10 Gallon per Square Foot	
CONCRETE MEDIAN BARRIER, HPC	0.16 Gallon per Linear Foot	
15" BY 41" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.28 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY 32" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.17 Gallon per Linear Foot	
15" BY 54" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.15 Gallon per Linear Foot	
38" BY 79" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.40 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY 39" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.18 Gallon per Linear Foot	
18 5/8" BY 65" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.20 Gallon per Linear Foot	
32" BY 41" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.24 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY 41" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.19 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY 45" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.19 Gallon per Linear Foot	
15" BY 35" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.09 Gallon per Linear Foot	
15" BY VARIABLE HEIGHT CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.28 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY VARIABLE HEIGHT CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.15 Gallon per Linear Foot	
15" BY VARIABLE HEIGHT CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.24 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY VARIABLE HEIGHT CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.15 Gallon per Linear Foot	
19" BY 32" CONCRET BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.10 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY 32" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.13 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24 1/2" BY 53" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.18 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24 1/2" BY VARIABLE HEIGHT CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.15 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24" BY 35" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.13 Gallon per Linear Foot	
GROUND MOUNTED BARRIER CURB	0.15 Gallon per Linear Foot	
15" BY 51" F SHAPE CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.34 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24 1/2" BY 51" F SHAPE CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.23 Gallon per Linear Foot	
24 1/2" BY" F SHAPE CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.23 Gallon per Linear Foot	
15" BY VARIABLE HEIGHT F SHAPE CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.34 Gallon per Linear Foot	
15" BY" F SHAPE CONCRETE BARRIER CURB, DOWELLED	0.34 Gallon per Linear Foot	
VARIABLE WIDTH BY VARIABLE HEIGHT F SHAPE CONCRETE BARRIER CURB	0.34 Gallon per Linear Foot	
9" BY 16" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB	0.04 Gallon per Linear Foot	

Table 160.03.01-1 Fuel Price Adjustmen	nts
Items	Fuel Usage Factor
9" BY 18" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB	0.04 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY 20" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB	0.04 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY 22" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB	0.05 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY 14" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB	0.03 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY 4" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB, DOWELLED	0.01 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY 6" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB, DOWELLED	0.01 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY 8" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB, DOWELLED	0.02 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY 10" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB, DOWELLED	0.02 Gallon per Linear Foot
12" BY 13" CONCRETE SLOPING CURB	0.04 Gallon per Linear Foot
12" BY 3" CONCRETE SLOPING CURB, DOWELLED	0.01 Gallon per Linear Foot
" BY" CONCRETE SLOPING CURB, DOWELLED	0.01 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY VARIABLE HEIGHT CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB	0.04 Gallon per Linear Foot
9" BY VARIABLE HEIGHT CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB, DOWELLED	0.02 Gallon per Linear Foot

If an item listed in Table 160.03.01-1 has a payment unit which differs from that listed in Table 160.03.01-1, the Department will apply an appropriate conversion factor to determine the number of gallons of fuel used.

The Department will calculate fuel price adjustment using the following formula:

$$F = (MF - BF) \times G$$

Where:

F = Fuel Price Adjustment

MF = Fuel Price Index for work performed in the time period immediately before the estimate cutoff date.

BF = Basic Fuel Price Index

G = Gallons of Fuel for Price Adjustment

The Department will post the Fuel Price Index every month on the Department's website: https://www.state.nj.us/transportation/business/aashtoware/PriceIndex.shtm.

The Basic Fuel Price Index is the Index which is listed for the month prior to the receipt of bids. If the month prior to the receipt of bids has two Indexes, the Index in effect for the first day of that month will govern for the Basic Fuel Price Index. If the Fuel Price Index increases by 50 percent or more over the Basic Fuel Price Index, do not perform any work involving Items listed in Table 160.03.01-1 without written approval from the RE.

160.03.02 Asphalt Price Adjustment

The Department will make price adjustments for asphalt binder usage. The Department will calculate asphalt price adjustments based on the quantities of Items containing asphalt binder constructed.

Each month may be divided into two periods. Period one includes the first day of the month through the fourteenth day of the month. Period two includes the fifteenth day of the month through the last day of the month. Work starting on the fourteenth day of the month and continuing past midnight into the fifteenth day of the month will be included in period one for any price adjustments. Work continuing through midnight of the last day of the month into the first day of the next month will be included in period two.

The Asphalt Price Adjustment will be separated between asphalt binder grades PG 64S-22 and PG 64E-22. The price used for both the Basic and Monthly Price Indexes will be determined based on the performance grade of asphalt binder in the approved mix design for the asphalt mixture.

Price adjustments may result in an increased payment to the Contractor for increases in the price index and may result in a reduction in payment for decreases in the price index.

The Department will calculate the asphalt price adjustment by the following formula:

$$A = (MA - BA) \times T$$

Where:

A = Asphalt Price Adjustment

MA = Asphalt Price Index for work performed in the time period immediately before the estimate cutoff date.

BA = Basic Asphalt Price Index

T = Tons of New Asphalt Binder¹

1. The Department will determine the weight of asphalt binder for price adjustment by multiplying the percentage of new asphalt binder in the approved job mix formula by the weight of the item containing asphalt binder. If a Hot Mix Asphalt Item has a payment unit other than ton, the Department will apply an appropriate conversion factor to determine the number of tons of asphalt binder used.

For Tack Coat, Prime Coat, MICRO SURFACING EMULSION, SLURRY SEAL EMULSION, and FOG SEAL SURFACE TREATMENT, the Department will calculate the weight of asphalt as follows:

 $T = G \times C \times 0.00428$

C = Petroleum content of the product

Use 100% for Tack Coat 64-22 and Tack Coat 64E-22

Use 60% for Polymer Modified Tack Coat, and all other emulsified asphalts

G = Gallons furnished

The constant 0.00428 is derived from the conversion factor of tons per gallon using 8.345 lbs/gallon for water and a factor of 1.025 for the specific gravity of asphalt binder.

The Department will not calculate an asphalt price adjustment for FOG SEAL STRIP.

The monthly asphalt price index, as determined by the Department, will be the average of quotations from suppliers serving the area in which the Project is located, and will be determined by the Department. The Department will post the asphalt price index every month on the Department's website: https://www.state.nj.us/transportation/business/aashtoware/PriceIndex.shtm.

The Basic Asphalt Price Index will be the Index which is listed for the month prior to the receipt of bids. If the month prior to the receipt of bids has two Indexes, the Index in effect for the first day of the month will govern for the Basic Asphalt Price Index.

The Monthly Asphalt Price Index will be that for the month that the work is constructed in. If work is constructed over the course of two or more months for a particular pay estimate, then multiple Monthly Indexes will be used corresponding to the date that the work was performed.

If the Asphalt Price Index increases 50 percent or more over the basic asphalt price index, do not perform work on Items containing asphalt binder without written approval from the RE.

160.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

ItemPay UnitFUEL PRICE ADJUSTMENTDOLLAR

SECTION 161 – FINAL CLEANUP

161.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitFINAL CLEANUPLUMP SUM

DIVISION 200 – EARTHWORK

SECTION 201 – CLEARING SITE

201.03.01 Clearing Site

PART A IS CHANGED TO:

A. Preparation. Construct SESC measures, as specified in 158.03.02, before clearing site.

THE FIRST PARAGRAPH IN PART B IS CHANGED TO:

B. Clearing and Grubbing. Before beginning excavation or embankment construction, clear the site within the limits of construction. Clear the ground surface of vegetation (trees of various caliper, brush, weeds, roots, matted leaves), small structures not shown on the Plans for demolition, debris, and other objectionable material where its existing position conflicts with the limits of construction. In cut sections, grub out tree stumps within the limits of the total cut area. In fill sections, the Contractor may leave tree stumps extending less than 1 foot above the original ground surface in those areas where the proposed subgrade, or proposed finished grade in non-pavement sections, is greater than 3 1/2 feet above the original ground surface. Grub out tree stumps that lie within 5 feet horizontally or vertically from any proposed structure, pipe, or duct.

201.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

ItemPay UnitCLEARING SITELUMP SUM

The Department will not make payment for the Item CLEARING SITE in excess of \$ 1,000.00 until Completion.

202.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitREMOVAL OF PAVEMENTSQUARE YARD

DIVISION 400 – PAVEMENTS

SECTION 401 – HOT MIX ASPHALT (HMA) COURSES

401.02.01 Materials

THE FIRST ITEM IS CHANGED TO:

401.03.03 HMA Pavement Repair

THE TITLE AND ENTIRE SUBSECTION IS CHANGED TO:

401.03.03 HMA Repair

A. HMA Pavement Repair. Arrange a project site meeting with the RE to establish the limits of HMA pavement repair. Additional repairs, not delineated on the Plans or by the RE during the project site meeting, may be required if the need is established by the RE.

If potholes are discovered, notify the RE immediately. The RE may immediately direct repairs of small areas. The RE may require further evaluation of a large area to determine the need for additional milling and paving.

Perform HMA repairs as a separate operation before milling, paving, and other surface treatments. The Contractor may request approval of the RE to perform the repair work as one operation with the paving or surface treatment.

HMA repairs may be performed on full depth HMA pavement or on composite pavement (HMA over concrete pavement). For full depth HMA pavement, sawcut existing HMA pavement to a depth of 8 inches. For composite pavement, sawcut existing HMA to a depth of 8 inches or up to the top of concrete, whichever is less. Sawcut lines parallel and perpendicular to the roadway baseline and 3 inches away, at the closest point, from the damaged area to be repaired.

Remove damaged and loose material within the boundary of the sawcuts to form rectangular openings with vertical sides to a depth of 8 inches for HMA pavement, or to the top of concrete for composite pavement. A milling machine may be used to remove damaged pavement to form the repair areas if approved by the RE.

After the existing damaged HMA and loose material has been removed, the RE will examine underlying material to determine its condition.

If the base of the repair area is unbound material, then shape and compact the unbound material to produce a firm and level base.

If water exists in the area, remove the underlying material to the depth as directed by the RE. Place geotextile, then place and compact coarse aggregate to required grade to provide for a minimum 8 inch thick HMA pavement repair. Compact coarse aggregate as specified in 203.03.02.B.3.

If the base of the repair is HMA or concrete pavement, then ensure that the remaining pavement is cleaned and dry prior to applying tack coat.

Apply tack coat at an application rate of 0.15 gallons per square yard to the vertical surfaces and base of the opening. Spread and grade HMA surface course mix in the opening as specified for the roadway surface or a HMA surface course mix approved by the RE. Ensure that the temperature of the HMA when placed is at least 250 °F, and compact as specified in 401.03.07.F. Compact areas not accessible to rollers with a flat face compactor. Compact until the top of the patch is flush with, or 1/8 inch higher than, the adjacent pavement surface.

Reuse removed material as specified in 202.03.03.C.1.

401.03.07 HMA Courses

A. Paving Plan.

PART (4) IS CHANGED TO:

4. Lighting plan for night operations as specified in 108.06.

D. Transportation and Delivery of HMA.

THE SECOND SENTENCE OF THE FIRST PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

Do not allow trucks to leave the plant within 1 hour of sunset unless lighting for night operations is provided as specified in 108.06.

E. Spreading and Grading.

G. Opening to Traffic.

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED AFTER THE LAST PARAGRAPH:

Ensure that RPMs are installed and rumble strips are constructed within 14 days of opening each day's surface paving to traffic.

401.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

*Item*HOT MIX ASPHALT PAVEMENT REPAIR

Pay Unit SQUARE YARD

SECTION 405 – CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE

405.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

Item
UNDERLAYER PREPARATION

Pay Unit SQUARE YARD

DIVISION 600 – MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION

SECTION 606 – SIDEWALKS, DRIVEWAYS, AND ISLANDS

606.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

Item
CONCRETE SIDEWALK, REINFORCED, 6" THICK

Pay Unit SQUARE YARD

When the RE directs undercutting of unstable material in the excavation area, the Department will make payment, as specified in 104.03.03, for the additional excavation. The Department will also make payment, as specified in 104.03.03, ere is not an excess of excavation available.

SECTION 607 – CURB

607.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

Item
9" X 16" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB
9" X 14" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB

Pay Unit LINEAR FOOT LINEAR FOOT

The Department will measure curb along the face at the gutter line.

SECTION 608 – NON-VEGETATIVE SURFACES

608.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

Item
NON-VEGETATIVE SURFACE, HOT MIX ASPHALT

Pay Unit SQUARE YARD

When the RE directs undercutting of unstable material in the excavation area, the Department will make payment, as specified in 104.03.03, for the additional excavation. The Department will also make payment, as specified in 104.03.03, an excess of excavated material available for use as bedding.

SECTION 609 – BEAM GUIDE RAIL

609.03.01 Beam Guide Rail

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED AT THE END OF THE SUBSECTION:

Remove trees and shrubs as specified in 801.03 and 802.03 from the entire guide rail element extending 4 feet behind the guide rail post.

609.03.05 Reset Beam Guide Rail

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED AT THE END OF THE SUBSECTION:

Remove trees and shrubs as specified in 801.03 and 802.03 from the entire guide rail element extending 4 feet behind the guide rail post.

609.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitBEAM GUIDE RAILLINEAR FOOTBEAM GUIDE RAIL, DUAL FACEDLINEAR FOOTBEAM GUIDE RAIL ANCHORAGEUNITREMOVAL OF BEAM GUIDE RAILLINEAR FOOTBEAM GUIDE RAIL POSTUNIT

The Department will measure the various guide rail Items by the linear foot along the face of the rail, excluding anchorages and end terminals.

SECTION 611 – CRASH CUSHIONS

611.03.02 Crash Cushion, Compressive Barrier

THE SUBPART IS CHANGED TO:

At least 10 days before beginning the work, submit the manufacturer's installation guide to the RE. The most current product information from each manufacturer qualified by the Department is available by selecting CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER from the product list through the Qualified Materials Database portal on the Department's website: https://www.state.nj.us/transportation/eng/materials/qualified/QPLDB.shtm.

Submit working drawings for the concrete pad foundation and crash cushion for each location in accordance with Sec. 105.05.

Install permanent compressive crash cushions on a concrete pad foundation according to the manufacturer's recommendation. Install compressive crash cushions including transitions according to the manufacturer's recommendations and as shown on the Plans.

611.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

Item	Pay Unit
CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 2 , WIDTH MEDIUM	UNIT
CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3 , WIDTH NARROW	UNIT
CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3 , WIDTH MEDIUM	UNIT
CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3 , WIDTH WIDE	UNIT

The Department will not make payment until the installation is certified as complete by the RE.

DIVISION 800 – LANDSCAPING

SECTION 804 - TOPSOIL SPREADING

804.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitTOPSOIL SPREADING, 4" THICKSQUARE YARDBORROW TOPSOILCUBIC YARD

The Department will include areas designated for planting pits in the measured area for TOPSOIL SPREADING, 4 "THICK.

The Department will determine the quantity of BORROW TOPSOIL by the average end area method as specified in 109.01.

SECTION 805 – TURF REPAIR STRIP

805.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitTURF REPAIR STRIPLINEAR FOOT

SECTION 806 - FERTILIZING AND SEEDING

806.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitFERTILIZING AND SEEDING, TYPE ASQUARE YARD

The Department will not make payment for fertilizing and seeding areas disturbed by construction operations, beyond the medians, and between specified grading limits and the ROW.

SECTION 809 - MULCHING

809.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS ADDED:

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

ItemPay UnitSTRAW MULCHINGSQUARE YARD

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North -2023 DP No. 23418

DIVISION 900 – MATERIALS

SECTION 902 – ASPHALT

902.01.01 Asphalt Binder

THE FIRST TWO PARAGRAPHS ARE CHANGED TO:

Use an asphalt binder that is storage-stable and conforms to AASHTO M 332. Include compliance with the elastic response requirement in Figure 1 of AASHTO R 92, if applicable.

902.02.01 Mix Designations

PART (4) IS CHANGED TO:

4. "E" The fourth field in the Item description designates the high temperature designation of the performance-graded binder. Options are "64" for PG 64S-22 and "E" for PG 64E-22.

902.02.04 Sampling and Testing

A General Acceptance Requirements.

THE SECOND PARAGRAPH OF SECTION (A) IS CHANGED TO:

For PG 64S-22, ensure that the temperature of the mixture at discharge from the plant or surge and storage bins is at least 290 °F when the ambient temperature is less than 50 °F or is at least 275 °F when the ambient temperature is greater than or equal to 50 °F. For PG 64E-22, ensure that the temperature of the mixture at discharge from the plant or surge and storage bins is at least 10 °F above the manufacturer's recommended laydown temperature. For mixes produced using a WMA additive or process, ensure that the temperature of the mixture at discharge from the plant or surge and storage bins is at least 10 °F above the WMA manufacturer's recommended laydown temperature.

902.05 STONE MATRIX ASPHALT (SMA)

902.05.01 Composition of Mixture

THE FIFTH PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

For fine aggregate, use 100 percent manufactured stone sand conforming to 901.05.02. Ensure that the combined fine aggregate of 100 percent manufactured stone sand in the mixture conforms to the requirements in Table 902.02.02-2.

902.05.02 Mix Design

TABLE 902.05.02-1 AND TABLE 902.05.02-2 ARE CHANGED TO:

Table 902.05.02-1 SMA Specification Band (% Passing) Nominal-Maximum Aggregate Size

	-	` 8	88 8	•
Production Control Tolerances from JMF1	Sieve Size	19 mm % Passing	12.5 mm % Passing	9.5 mm % Passing
0%	1"	100	100	100
±3%	3/4"	90 – 100	100	100
±5%	1/2"	50 - 88	90 - 100	100
±5%	3/8"	25 - 60	50 - 80	70 - 95
±6%	No. 4	20 - 28	20 - 35	30 - 50
±3%	No. 8	16 - 24	16 - 24	20 - 30
±4%	No. 16	-	-	0 - 21
±3%	No. 30	-	-	0 - 18
±3%	No. 50	-	-	0 - 15
±2%	No. 200	7.0 - 11.0	7.0 - 11.0	7.0 - 12.0
_	Coarse Aggregate Fraction	Portion Retained on No. 4 Sieve	Portion retained on No. 4 Sieve	Portion retained on No. 8 Sieve

^{1.} Production tolerances are for the approved JMF and may not fall outside of the wide band gradation limits.

Table 902.05.02-2 SMA Mixtures Volumetrics for Design and Plant Production			
Property	Production Control Tolerances	Requirement	
Air Voids	±1%	3.5%	
Voids in Mineral Aggregate (VMA)	_	17.0% minimum	
VCAmix	_	Less than VCA _{DRC}	
Draindown @ production temperature ¹	_	0.30% maximum	
Asphalt Binder Content (AASHTO T 308) ²	±0.40%	6% minimum ³	
Tensile Strength Ratio (AASHTO T 283)	_	80% minimum	

^{1.} For design, conduct draindown test at anticipated mixing temperature and 15°F higher. Ensure draindown test meets requirement at both temperatures. For production, conduct draindown test at 15°F higher than anticipated mixing temperature.

902.05.03 Sampling and Testing

THE ENTIRE SUBSECTION IS CHANGED TO:

- **A.** General Acceptance Requirements. Ensure that the mix meets the requirements as specified in 902.02.04.A.
- **B.** Sampling. The ME will take a random sample from each 700 tons of production for volumetric acceptance testing and to verify composition. The ME will perform sampling according to AASHTO T 168, NJDOT B-2, or ASTM D 3665. During production at the plant, a sample of asphalt binder will be taken once every 3,500 tons or as directed by the ME.
- C. Quality Control Testing. Perform quality control testing as specified in 902.02.04.C.

For each acceptance test, perform testing for draindown according to AASHTO T 305 at 15°F above the mixing temperature.

Perform bulk specific gravity of coarse aggregates (G_{CA}) and dry-rodded voids in coarse aggregate VCA_{DRC} testing according to AASHTO R 46 by sampling and drying aggregates according to AASHTO R 90 and AASHTO T 255,

^{2.} Asphalt binder content may not be lower than the minimum after the production tolerance is applied.

^{3.} Aggregate blends with a Gsb value of 2.90 and higher may produce the mix with a minimum asphalt content of 5.8% with ME approval.

respectively. The ME shall ensure that the G_{CA} and VCA_{DRC} of the aggregate blend has been determined within 7 days of the start of production. Stop production and conduct VCA_{DRC} test immediately when there are major changes to aggregate blend percentages. When performing the VCA_{DRC} test during production, use the G_{CA} value that was determined prior to production. The ME may request additional VCA_{DRC} tests to be conducted with or without requiring a new G_{CA} test to be performed at any time.

D. Acceptance Testing and Requirements. The ME will determine volumetric properties at 75 gyrations for acceptance from samples taken, compacted, and tested at the HMA plant according to AASHTO T 312. The ME will determine bulk specific gravity of the compacted sample according to AASHTO T 166. The ME will use the QC maximum specific gravity test result in calculating the volumetric properties of the SMA. The ME will determine VCA_{mix} according to AASHTO R 46.

If the acceptance sample is outside of the control tolerances for the No. 4 sieve in Table 902.05.02-1 or VCA_{mix} is greater than VCA_{DRC} , immediately take a quality control sample for testing. If the quality control sample is outside of the control tolerances for the No. 4 sieve in Table 902.05.02-1 or VCA_{mix} is greater than VCA_{DRC} , immediately stop production and shipping.

If the test results other than the No. 4 sieve or VCA_{DRC} are outside of the production control tolerances specified in Table 902.05.02-1 or Table 902.05.02-2 for an acceptance sample, immediately run a quality control sample. If the quality control sample is also outside of the control tolerances in Table 902.05.02-1 or Table 902.05.02-2, determine if a plant adjustment is needed and take corrective action to bring the mix into compliance. Take an additional quality control sample immediately after completing the corrective action to ensure that the mix is within tolerances. If the mix is within tolerance based on the quality control sample results, then the ME will immediately take an acceptance sample to test and verify that the composition, air voids, draindown, VCA_{mix}, and VMA meet the production control tolerances specified in Table 902.05.02-1 and Table 902.05.02-2. If 2 consecutive acceptance or quality control samples are outside the tolerances specified in Table 902.05.02-1 or Table 902.05.02-2, immediately stop production and shipping.

After a production stop, obtain ME approval of a plant correction plan before resuming production. Upon restarting production, do not transport mixture to the Project Limits before the results of a quality control sample from the mixture indicate that the mixture meets JMF tolerances and ME approval.

902.06.01 Composition

THE SECOND PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

The mixture shall consist of asphalt binder and aggregate and may contain a WMA additive. Use asphalt binder that is PG 64S-22 as specified in 902.01.01. Use aggregate that conforms to 901.05.01 or 901.05.02 and the gradation requirements specified in Table 902.06.01-1.

902.07.02 Asphalt-Rubber Binder

PART (2) SUBSECTION (A) IS CHANGED TO:

2. Asphalt Binder.

a. Use asphalt binder that conforms to AASHTO M 332, Table 1; PG 64S-22, PG 58-28 or an approved blend of both grades. The asphalt binder producer is required to provide the asphalt binder quality control plan annually to the ME for approval. Ensure that the quality control plan conforms to AASHTO R 26. Submit to the ME a certification of compliance, as specified in 106.07, for the asphalt binder. The ME will perform quality assurance sampling and testing of each asphalt binder lot as defined in the approved quality control plan.

902.13.01 Mix Designations

PART (4) IS CHANGED TO:

4. "E" The fourth field in the Item description designates the high temperature designation of the performance-graded binder. Options are "64" for PG 64S-22 and "E" for PG 64E-22.

902.13.03 Mix Design

TABLE 902.13.03-2 CHANGED TO:

Table 902	13.03-2 Performance To	esting Requirements for	r HMA HIGH RAP De	esign
	Requirement			
Test	Surface Course		Intermediate and Base Course	
	PG 64S-22	PG 64E-22	PG 64S-22	PG 64E-22
APA @ 8,000 loading cycles (AASHTO T 340)	≤ 7 mm	≤ 4 mm	≤ 7 mm	≤ 4 mm
Overlay Tester (NJDOT B-10)	≥ 200 cycles	≥ 275 cycles	≥ 100 cycles	≥ 150 cycles

902.13.04 Sampling and Testing

TABLE 902.13.04-2 CHANGED TO:

	04-2 Surface Course Performance Testing Pay Adjust Surface Course		PPA
	PG 64S-22	PG 64E-22	7
	t ≥ 7	t ≤ 4	0
APA @ 8,000 loading cycles, mm (AASHTO T 340)	7 < t ≤ 10	4 < t ≤ 7	PG 64S-22: -50(t-7)/3 PG 64E-22: -50(t-4)/3
(AASHIO 1 340)	t > 10	t > 7	-100 or Remove & Replace
	t ≥ 200	t ≥ 275	0
Overlay Tester, cycles (NJDOT B-10)	$200 > t \ge 150$	$275 > t \ge 200$	Surface PG 64S-22: -(200-t) Surface PG 64E-22: -(275-t)/1.5
	t < 150	t < 200	-100 or Remove & Replace

TABLE 902.13.04-3 CHANGED TO:

Table 902.13.04-3 Inter	mediate and Base Cours	se Performance Testing P	ay Adjustments for HMA HIGH RAP
	Intermediate and Base Course		DDA
	PG 64S-22	PG 64E-22	PPA
ADA © 0.0001 1:	t ≤ 7	t ≤ 4	0
APA @ 8,000 loading cycles, mm (AASHTO T 340)	$7 < t \le 10$	4 < t ≤ 7	PG 64S-22: -50(t-7)/3 PG 64E-22: -50(t-4)/3
(AASH1O 1 340)	t > 10	t > 7	-100 or Remove & Replace
	t ≥ 100	t ≥ 150	0
Overlay Tester, cycles (NJDOT B-10)	$100 > t \ge 75$	$150 > t \ge 110$	Intermediate PG 64S-22: -(2t-200) Intermediate PG 64E-22: -1.25(150-t)
	t < 75	t < 110	-100 or Remove & Replace

SECTION 903 – CONCRETE

903.01 CEMENT

THE ENTIRE SUBSECTION TEXT IS CHANGED TO:

Use cement, listed on the QPL, that is either portland cement or blended hydraulic cement and conforms to the following:

Only use Type III portland cement for Class V concrete, prestressed Items, and precast Items.

Use portland cement pre-blended with a maximum of 25 percent fly ash, by weight, or a maximum of 5 percent silica fume by weight, or with a maximum of 50 percent slag by weight for blended hydraulic cement Type IS or IP. Use portland

cement pre-blended with a minimum of 5 percent limestone content and a maximum of 15 percent limestone content by weight for blended hydraulic cement Type IL. Ensure that a scaling test according to ASTM C 672 is completed on the mix design if more than 30 percent slag is used and that the concrete has a visual rating less than 3 after 50 cycles.

Do not add additional mineral admixtures to blended hydraulic cements Type IS or IP at the concrete plant unless approved by the ME. The use of additional mineral admixtures in blended hydraulic cement Type IL at the concrete plant is permitted if the mineral admixture is listed on the QPL

Do not mix different brands of cement, the same brand of cement from different mills, or different types of cement.

Provide suitable means for storing and protecting the cement against dampness. The ME will reject cement that has become partially set or that contains lumps of caked cement. Ensure that the temperature of the cement at the time of delivery to the mixer does not exceed 160 °F.

903.03.05 Control and Acceptance Testing Requirements

E. Acceptance Testing for Strength for Pay-Adjustment Items.

Concrete Items which are subject to pay adjustment and the base prices are as follows:

ITEMS	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	BASE PRICE
507021P	CONCRETE BRIDGE DECK	CY	\$500.00
507036P	CONCRETE BRIDGE PARAPET	LF	\$305.00
505039P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE SLAB BEAM, (TYPE SII-36), 36" X 15"	LF	\$125.00
505042P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE SLAB BEAM, (TYPE SIII-36), 36" X 18"	LF	\$130.00
505015P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BOX BEAM, (TYPE BI-36), 36" X 27"	LF	\$170.00
505045P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE SLAB BEAM, (TYPE SIV-36), 36" X 21"	LF	\$160.00
505018P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BOX BEAM, (TYPE BII-36), 36" X 33"	LF	\$170.00
505021P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BOX BEAM, (TYPE BIII-36), 36" X 39"	LF	\$175.00
505024P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BOX BEAM, (TYPE BIV-36), 36" X 42"	LF	\$185.00
505003P	PRETENSIONED PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BEAM, 45"	LF	\$155.00
505006P	PRETENSIONED PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BEAM, 54"	LF	\$155.00
505048P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE SLAB BEAM, (TYPE SII-48), 48" X 15"	LF	\$160.00
505051P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE SLAB BEAM, (TYPE SIII-48), 48" X 18"	LF	\$135.00
505009P	PRETENSIONED PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BEAM, 63"	LF	\$185.00
505027P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BOX BEAM, (TYPE BI-48), 48" X 27"	LF	\$215.00
505054P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE SLAB BEAM, (TYPE SIV-48), 48" X 21"	LF	\$215.00
505030P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BOX BEAM, (TYPE BII-48), 48" X 33"	LF	\$185.00
505033P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BOX BEAM, (TYPE BIII-48), 48" X 39"	LF	\$220.00
505036P	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BOX BEAM, (TYPE BIV-48), 48" X 42"	LF	\$230.00
505012P	PRETENSIONED PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BEAM, 72"	LF	\$200.00
502045M	CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 12" DIAMETER	LF	\$50.00
502090M	PRECAST CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 12" X 12"	LF	\$90.00
502132M	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 12" X 12"	LF	\$50.00
502135M	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 14" X 14"	LF	\$50.00
502138M	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 16" X 16"	LF	\$50.00
502141M	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 18" X 18"	LF	\$50.00
502144M	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 20" X 20"	LF	\$75.00
502147M	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 22" X 22"	LF	\$75.00
502150M	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 24" X 24"	LF	\$75.00
502151M	PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILE, DRIVEN, 30" X 30"	LF	\$75.00

THE FOLLOWING SUBSECTION IS ADDED:

903.11 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

The Department will measure and make payment for Items as follows:

*Item*MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE

Pay Unit CUBIC YARD

LF

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North -2023 DP No. 23418

DIVISION 1000 – EQUIPMENT

SECTION 1001 – TRAFFIC CONTROL EQUIPMENT

1001.03 TRAFFIC CONTROL TRUCK WITH MOUNTED CRASH CUSHIONS

THE FIRST PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

Provide a truck affixed with a bed-mounted type C flashing arrow board, as specified in 1001.01, and a rear mounted crash cushion. Ensure the weight of the truck with the type C flashing arrow board and the rear mounted crash cushion is minimum total weight of 10 tons. The Contractor may use ballast to meet the weight requirement. When using ballast, ensure that it is securely fastened to the truck. Provide crash cushions that conforms to the following requirements:

- 1. Meets crash-worthiness requirements as specified in 159.03.02.
- 2. Designed to be attached to the rear of a truck.
- 3. Equipped with a 90 degree hydraulic tilt system to raise and lower the crash cushion. The tilt system shall have a locking mechanism to secure the crash cushion when in the raised position.
- 4. If equipped with energy absorbing modules, ensure that they are painted yellow.
- 5. Displays alternating 6 inch wide black and yellow bands, composed of Type III-retroreflective sheeting, as specified in ASTM D 4956, in an inverted "V" chevron pattern on the surface of the rear module that faces traffic. When in the raised position, ensure that the surface of the rear facing module also displays the chevron pattern.
- 6. Equipped with standard trailer lighting systems, including brake lights, taillights, and turn signals that are visible in the raised and lowered positions.

SECTION 1009 – HMA PLANT EQUIPMENT

1009.01 HMA PLANT

A. Requirements for HMA Mixing Plants.

Safety.

THE THIRD PARAGRAPH IS CHANGED TO:

When plant production occurs during night operations, provide permanently fixed lighting throughout the plant operations, plant laboratory, and truck scale areas to ensure a clear view of the operations. Also provide permanently mounted lighting at the sampling platforms to sufficiently illuminate the bed of the truck for inspection and sampling operations.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION

- A. Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises as Subcontractors, Transaction Expeditors, Regular Dealers, Manufacturers and Truckers. The Department advises the Contractor and subcontractors that failure to carry out the requirements in this attachment constitutes a material breach of Contract and, after the notification of the applicable Federal agency, may result in termination of the agreement or Contract by the Department or such remedy as the Department deems appropriate. Requirements set forth in this section shall also be physically included in all subcontracts in accordance with USDOT requirements.
- B. Policy. It is the policy of the Department that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, as defined in 49 CFR, Part 26; Titles I & V of the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA); MAP-21, Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (P.L. 112-141); FAST-ACT, Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (P.L. 114-94, December 4, 2015); and Section III below, shall have an equal opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds under this agreement. The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements of 49 CFR, Part 26 et seq. apply to this agreement.

C. Definitions

- 1. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE). A for-profit small business concern:
 - That is at least 51 percent owned by one or more individuals who are both socially and economically disadvantaged or, in the case of a corporation, in which 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more such individuals; and
 - b. Whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more of the socially and economically disadvantaged individuals who own it, and who do not exceed the personal net worth criteria established in 49 CFR Part 26.
- 2. Socially and economically disadvantaged individual. Any individual who is a citizen (or lawfully admitted permanent resident) of the United States and who has been subjected to racial or ethnic prejudice or cultural bias within American society because of his or her identity as a member of groups and without regard to his or her individual qualities. The social disadvantage must stem from circumstances beyond the individual's control.
 - Any individual who a recipient finds to be a socially and economically disadvantaged individual on a case-by-case basis. An individual must demonstrate that he or she has held himself or herself out, as a member of a designated group;
 - b. Any individual in the following groups, members of which are rebuttably presumed to be socially and economically disadvantaged:
 - (1) Black Americans," which includes persons having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa
 - (2) Hispanic Americans," which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Dominican, Central or South American, or other Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin, regardless of race
 - (3) Native Americans," which includes persons who are enrolled members of a Federally or State recognized Indian tribe, Alaska Natives, or Native Hawaiians
 - (4) Asian-Pacific Americans," which includes persons whose origins are from Japan, China, Taiwan, Korea, Burma (Myanmar), Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia (Kampuchea), Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, the Philippines, Brunei, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific Islands (Republic of Palau), Republic of the Northern Marianas Islands, Samoa, Macao, Fiji, Tonga, Kirbati, Tuvalu, Nauru, Federated States of Micronesia, or Hong Kong
 - (5) Subcontinent Asian Americans," which includes persons whose origins are from India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Bhutan, the Maldives Islands, Nepal or Sri Lanka

- (6) Women
- (7) Any additional groups whose members are designated as socially and economically disadvantaged by the SBA, at such time as the SBA designation becomes effective.
- (8) Being born in a particular country does not, standing alone, mean that a person is necessarily a member of one of the groups listed in this definition.
- 3. Commercially Useful Function (CUF). A DBE performs a commercially useful function when it is responsible for execution of a distinct element of the work of a contract and carrying out its responsibility by actually performing, managing and supervising the work involved. To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect to materials and supplies used on the contract, for preparing the estimate, negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material, arranging delivery, installing (where applicable), and paying for the material and supplies itself for the project.
- **4. Transaction expeditor (broker).** A DBE who arranges or expedites transactions and who arranges for material drop shipments.
- 5. DBE regular dealers. A firm that must be an established, regular business that engages, as its principal business and under its own name, in the purchase and sale or lease of the products in question. In addition, a regular dealer must own, operate or maintain a store, warehouse, or other establishment in which the materials, supplies, articles or equipment required under this Contract are bought, kept in stock, and regularly sold or leased to the public in the usual course of business.
- **6. DBE manufacturer.** A firm that operates or maintains a factory or establishment that produces on the premises, the materials, supplies, articles, or equipment required for the Contract.
- 7. Good faith effort (GFE). Efforts to achieve a DBE goal or other requirement of 49 CFR Part 26, which by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, can reasonably be expected to fulfill the program requirement. Efforts to include firms not certified as DBEs in the state where the contract is being let are consequently not good faith efforts to meet a DBE contract goal.
- **8. Affirmative Action Plan.** An outline of the steps a contractor or subcontractor will implement to achieve equal employment opportunity and affirmative action and/or to correct its equal employment and affirmative action program deficiencies.
- D. Compliance. The Contractor is responsible for compliance as specified in Section 105.
- **E.** Contractor's DBE Obligations. Ensure that DBEs have an equal opportunity to receive and participate in contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds in performing work with the Department. Take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 26 and the Contract to ensure that DBEs are given equal opportunity to compete for and to perform on the Department's Federal Aid Projects. Do not discriminate in the award and performance of any Contract obligation including, but not limited to, performance of obligations on USDOT assisted contracts, as specified in Section 107.
 - 1. Post Award Obligations
 - Give DBEs equal consideration with non-minority firms in negotiation for any subcontracts, purchase orders or leases.
 - b. Attempt to obtain qualified DBEs to perform the work. A directory of certified Disadvantaged Small Businesses Enterprise firms can be found in the New Jersey Unified Certification Program Vendor Certification database, online at: https://njucp.dbesystem.com/.
 - 2. Affirmative Action After Award of the Contract
 - **a. Subletting**. If at any time following the award of the Contract, the Contractor intends to sublet any portion(s) of the work under said Contract, or intends to purchase material or lease equipment not contemplated during preparation of bids, take affirmative action:
 - (1) Notify the RE, in writing, of the type and approximate value of the work which the Contractor intends to accomplish by such subcontract, purchase order or lease.

- (2) Submit the Post-Award Minority Certification (Part IV of the DC-18A Request for Approval to Sublet on Projects Utilizing the 2007 Specifications Form) to the Regional Supervising Engineer with the application to sublet, or prior to purchasing material or leasing equipment. Obtain Post Award Minority Certifications from the RE.
- (3) Efforts made to identify and retain a DBE as a replacement subcontractor, lower tier subcontractor, transaction expeditor, regular dealer, supplier, manufacturer or trucker when the arrangements with the original DBE prove unsuccessful, shall be as specified in Section 108. Work in the category concerned shall not begin until such approval is granted in writing by the Department.
- (4) Notification of a DBE firm's termination will be as specified in Section 108. Send notice in writing to the Department through the RE, with a copy to DCR/AA. Said termination notice will include the firm's ethnic classification, whether the firm is a DBE and the detailed reason(s) for termination.
- b. Selection and Retention of Subcontractors. Do not discriminate in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment as specified in 108.01. Provide the RE with a listing of firms, organizations or enterprises solicited and those utilized as subcontractors on the proposed project. Such listing shall clearly delineate which firms are classified as DBEs. Provide the RE with subcontract agreements for all subcontractors performing work on the Contract as specified in Section 108.
 - (1) Efforts made to identify and retain a DBE as a replacement subcontractor, lower tier subcontractor, transaction expeditor, regular dealer, supplier, manufacturer or trucker when the arrangements with the original DBE prove unsuccessful, shall be submitted as specified in Section 108. Work in the category concerned shall not begin until such approval is granted in writing by the Department.
 - (2) Notification of a DBE firm's termination will be as specified in Subsection 108.01. Send notice in writing to the Department through the RE. Said termination notice will include the firm's ethnic classification, whether the subcontractor is a DBE and the detailed reason(s) for termination.
- c. Meeting Contract DBE Goal. Report attainment toward meeting the Contract DBE goal by submitting monthly, all DBE participation, to the Department's RE and DCR/AA Contract Compliance Unit using the CR-267 Monthly Report of Utilization of DBE/ESBE or SBE form. The form is due by the 5th of the month, and must list all DBEs used on the Contract to meet the Contract goal, the specific Contract work items each DBE is performing, whether the DBE is performing full or partial work on the items, and the amount paid to each DBE each month. Failure to report the information, and accurately report it may result in payment being delayed or withheld as specified in Section 105, assessing sanctions, or termination of the Contract as specified in Section 108.
- Termination, Substitution or Replacement of DBEs. Make good faith efforts to replace a DBE that is terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its work on the Contract with another certified DBE, to the extent needed to meet the Contract DBE goal. Notify the DCR/AA immediately of the DBE's inability or unwillingness to perform and provide reasonable documented evidence. Prior to termination, substitution or replacement of a DBE subcontractor, lower tier subcontractor, transaction expeditor, regular dealer, supplier, manufacturer or trucker, submit a Revised CR-266 - Schedule of DBE.ESBE/SBE Participation form to the Department naming the replacement DBE firm(s), type of work performed, specific Contract work items, whether the DBE is performing full or partial work on the items, dollar value and percent of total Contract for each DBE firm. Submit detailed written explanation of why each change is being made, including documented evidence of good faith effort(s) with the submission of the revised Form CR-266. Submit along with the revised CR-266: 1) a completed Confirmation of DBE Firm (Form CR-273) to demonstrate direct written confirmation from each DBE firm participating on the Contract, confirming the kind and amount of work that was provided on the Contractor's CR-266, and if applicable; 2) a completed DBE Regular Dealer/Supplier Verification (Form CR-272) for all DBE Regular Dealers/Suppliers listed on the revised CR-266; and if applicable, 3) a completed DBE Trucking Verification (Form CR-274) for all DBE truckers listed on the revised

CR-266 form. The Contractor is not permitted to complete any portion of the CR-273, CR-272 or CR-274 forms. Termination, substitution or replacement of DBEs shall be made as specified in Section 108. Termination or replacement of DBEs cannot be made without prior written approval of the Department as per 108.01.

- e. Submission of Good Faith Effort Documentation. If the Contractor is unable to meet the Contract goal for DBE participation, submit to the DCR/AA for review and approval, documented evidence of good faith efforts along with the monthly CR-267 form. This submission must include written details addressing each of the good faith efforts outlined in the Contract. Submittal of such information does not imply DCR/AA approval. The Department's DCR/AA has sole authority to determine whether the Contractor is meeting the Contract DBE goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do so.
- **F. DBE Goals for the Contract.** This Contract includes a goal of awarding <u>6%</u> percentage of the Total Contract Price to subcontractors, transaction expeditors, regular dealers, manufacturers and truckers qualifying as DBEs.

The Department's DCR/AA has sole authority to determine whether the Contractor met the goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do so. If the DCR/AA determines that the Contractor has failed to meet the Contract DBE goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do so, the Department will follow Section 105.

G. Counting DBE Participation.

- 1. Each DBE is subject to a certification procedure to ensure its DBE eligibility status prior to the award of the Contract. All DBEs working on the Contract must be certified DBEs. To receive DBE credit toward meeting a contract goal in the context of the contract award process, a DBE firm must be certified before the due date for bids or offers on the Contract, as stated in 49 CFR Part 26.81(c). There may be situations after the award of the Contract, however, in which it is appropriate to count DBE credit for the use of a DBE subcontractor certified after the contract is executed. To be eligible to obtain DBE credit, a DBE subcontractor must be certified before the subcontract on which it is working is executed.
- 2. The Department determines the percentage of DBE participation that will be counted toward the Contract DBE goal in accordance with 49 C.F.R. Part 26.55 et seq.
- 3. The Contractor will count DBE participation toward the Contract DBE goal only the value of the work actually performed by a certified DBE and only if the DBE performs a commercially useful function in the work of a contract as per 49 CFR, Subpart C, Part 26.55(c) and the Contract.
- 4. The Department will count DBE participation for DBE trucking firms in accordance with 49 C.F.R. Part 26.55 et seq. The DBE can count the entire value of services performed by DBE trucks. The DBE can count the value of non-DBE trucking services up to the value of services performed by DBE trucks used on the Contract. DBE participation can be counted for the value of services of non-DBE trucks that exceed the value of the services performed by DBE trucks only in the amount of the fee or commission a DBE receives as a result of the lease arrangement.
- 5. The Department will count DBE participation for DBE regular dealers, manufacturers and transaction expeditors in accordance with 49 C.F.R Part 26.55 et seq. Transaction expeditors/brokers will not receive DBE credit for any portion of the cost of the materials and supplies themselves toward the Contract DBE goal. For brokers, only the DBE's fee or commission, and no part of the cost of the goods, count towards DBE goals. The Department will determine if the fees are reasonable and not excessive as compared with fees customarily allowed for similar services. If a certified firm acts as a "regular dealer" in a given transaction, it is awarded DBE credit equivalent to 60 percent of the value of the items it supplies on that contract. This credit is awarded in recognition of the value the DBE adds to transaction and the risks that it takes.
- If the Contractor is a certified DBE, payments made to the Contractor for work that the Contractor is certified to perform, and performed by the Contractor will be applied toward the Contract DBE goal. Payments made to the Contractor for work performed by non-DBEs will not be applied toward the Contract DBE goal.
- 7. When a DBE subcontractor sublets part of the work of its contract to another firm, the value of the subcontract work may be counted towards the Contract DBE goal only if the subcontractor itself is a

certified DBE. Work that a DBE subcontractor subcontracts to a non-DBE firm, cannot be counted towards the Contract DBE goal.

H. Commercially Useful Function

- 1. Performance of Work. The DBE must perform the work with their own permanent employees, or employees recruited through traditional recruitment and/or employment centers. DBEs must employ and control their own workforce, and cannot share employees with the Contractor, other subcontractors on the present project, or the renter-lessor of equipment being used on the present project. The DBE firm must be responsible for all payroll and labor compliance requirements for all of their employees performing work on the Contract. Direct or indirect payments by any other contractor are not allowed.
- 2. Managing Work. The DBE must manage the work themselves including the scheduling of work operations, ordering of equipment and materials, hiring/firing of employees, including supervisory employees, and preparing and submitting certified payrolls. The DBE must supervise their portion of daily work operations of the project. With respect to materials and supplies used on the Contract, the DBE must be responsible for preparing the estimate, negotiating price, determining quantity and quality, ordering the material, arranging delivery; installing, (where applicable), and paying for the material and supplies itself, for the project.
- Responsibility of Work. A DBE must perform or exercise responsibility for at least 30 percent of the
 total cost of its contract with its own workforce. The DBE must not subcontract a greater portion of
 the work of a contract than would be expected on the basis of normal industry practice for the type of
 work involved.
- 4. Equipment of DBE. The DBE must perform the work stated in the subcontract with their own equipment, whether owned or leased and operated on a long term agreement, not an ad hoc or contract by contract agreement. The equipment must be owned by the DBE firm, or leased/rented from traditional equipment lease/rental sources. The equipment will not belong to the Contractor, any other subcontractor or lower tier subcontractors on the current project, or supplier of materials being installed by the DBE firm.
- 5. Lease of Equipment. A DBE firm may lease specialized equipment from a contractor, but not from the Contractor, if it is consistent with normal industry practices and at rates competitive for the area. Rental agreements must be for short periods of time, specify the terms of the agreement and involve specialty equipment to be used at the job site. The lease may allow the operator to remain on the lessor's payroll, if it is the generally accepted industry practice but the operation of the equipment must be subject to full control by the DBE. The DBE is expected to provide the operator for non-specialized equipment, and is responsible for all payroll and labor compliance requirements. A separate lease agreement is required.
- 6. DBE Trucking. DBE trucking companies must perform a commercially useful function in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26.55 et seq. Contrived arrangements for the purpose of meeting DBE goals will not be allowed. The DBE must be responsible for the management and supervision of the entire trucking operation on a contract-by-contract basis, and must own and operate at least one fully, licensed, insured and operational truck used on the Contract.

The DBE trucking firm is not permitted to obtain trucks from the Contractor to perform work on the project. The DBE may lease trucks from a subcontractor working on the project, provided the trucks are obtained from the subcontractor prior to the project letting. The DBE may lease trucks from another DBE, including an owner-operator that is certified as a DBE. The DBE may also lease trucks from non-DBEs and owner-operators. Bona fide lease agreements must be for the length of time needed by the DBE on the Contract and signed by both the DBE and the firm(s), either certified DBE or non-DBE, from which the trucks will be leased. Leases must indicate that the DBE has exclusive use and control over the truck. As per 49 CFR Part 26.55(d)(7), all leased trucks, including non-DBE trucks, must display the name and USDOT identification number issued for interstate commerce, of the DBE firm on the outside of the truck. DBE firms are expected to use the same trucks for DBE credit on all projects so use of leased vehicles on a project-by-project basis is not permitted.

The Contractor shall have signed Hiring Agreements. Submit copies of these signed Hiring Agreements, and copies of all signed lease agreements to the RE prior to the trucking firm's commencing work on the project. Prior to the DBE trucking firm beginning work on the Contract, DBE Trucking firms will be required to complete the DBE Trucking Verification (Form CR-274). The DBE and Contractor must sign the form and the Contractor submit the original CR-274 form directly to the Department's RE, with a copy submitted to the DCR/AA. The Contractor is not permitted to complete any portion of the CR-274 form. The Contractor must prepare, sign and submit with the CR-267 – Monthly Report of Utilization of DBE/ESBE or SBE form, a Monthly Trucking Verification form (CR-271), identifying each truck owner, DBE Certification number, company name and address, truck number, and commission or amount paid for all DBE and non-DBE truckers performing work on the project. Also, submit the form to the Department as per Section E of this Special Provision for DCR/AA review, approval and determination of credit toward the Contract goal. Failure to submit the forms may result in denial or limit of credit toward the Contract DBE goal, payment being delayed or withheld as specified in Section 105, assessing sanctions or termination of the Contract as specified in Section 108.

- 7. DBE Regular Dealers. DBE regular dealers must be an established, regular business that engages, as its principal business and under its own name, in the purchase and sale or lease of the products in question. In addition, a regular dealer must own, operate or maintain a store, warehouse, or other establishment in which the materials, supplies, articles or equipment of the general character described by the specifications and required under this Contract are bought, kept in stock, and regularly sold or leased to the public in the usual course of business.
 - When the Contractor seeks credit toward the Contract DBE goal using DBE regular dealers, the DBE Regular Dealer/Supplier Verification (Form CR-272) must be completed and signed by the DBE regular dealer and then signed by the Contractor. Submit the form to the Department as per Section E of this Special Provision for the DCR/AA's review, approval and determination of credit toward the Contract DBE goal.
- **8. DBE Manufacturers.** DBE manufacturers must be a firm that operates or maintains a factory or establishment that produces, on the premises, the materials, supplies, articles, or equipment required for this Contract.
- 9. The Contractor shall not use a DBE solely for the purpose of acting as an extra participant in a transaction, a contract or the Contract through which funds are passed in order to obtain the appearance of DBE participation.
- I. Good Faith Effort. To demonstrate good faith efforts to meet the Contract DBE goal, a Contractor shall, on an ongoing basis, document the steps it takes to obtain DBE participation in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26.53 and Appendix A, including but not limited to the following:
 - 1. Conducing market research to identify small business contractors and suppliers and soliciting through all reasonable and available means the interest of all certified DBEs that have the capability to perform the work of the Contract. This may include attendance at pre-bid and business matchmaking meetings and events, advertising and/or written notices, posting of Notices of Sources Sought and/or Requests for Proposals, written notices or emails to all DBEs listed in the State's directory of transportation firms that specialize in the areas of work desired (as noted in the DBE directory) and which are located in the area or surrounding areas of the project.
 - Should solicit this interest as early in the acquisition process as practicable to allow the DBEs to respond to the solicitation and submit a timely offer for the subcontract. Determine with certainty if the DBEs are interested by taking appropriate steps to follow up initial solicitations.
 - 2. Selecting portions of the work to be performed by DBEs in order to increase the likelihood that the DBE goals will be achieved. This includes, where appropriate, breaking out Contract work items into economically feasible units (for example, smaller tasks or quantities) to facilitate DBE participation, even when the Contractor might otherwise prefer to perform these work items with its own forces. This may include, where possible, establishing flexible timeframes for performance and delivery schedules in a manner that encourages and facilitates DBE participation.

- Providing interested DBEs with detailed information about the plans, specifications, and requirements
 of the Contract in a timely manner to assist them in responding to a solicitation with their offer for the
 subcontract. Attempt to contact all potential subcontractors on the same day and use similar methods
 to contact them;
- 4. Negotiating in good faith with interested DBEs. Make a portion of the work available to DBE subcontractors and suppliers and select those portions of the work or material needs consistent with the available DBE subcontractors and suppliers, so as to facilitate DBE participation. Evidence of such negotiation includes the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of DBEs that were considered; a description of the information provided regarding the plans and specifications for the work selected for subcontracting; and evidence as to why additional Agreements could not be reached for DBEs to perform the work.
 - Consider a number of factors in negotiating with subcontractors, including DBE subcontractors. Take a firm's price and capabilities as well as Contract goals into consideration. The fact that there may be some additional costs involved in finding and using DBEs is not in itself sufficient reason for failure to meet the contract DBE goal, as long as such costs are reasonable. The ability or desire of a Contractor to perform the work of a Contract with its own organization does not relieve the responsibility to make good faith efforts. Contractors are not, however, required to accept higher quotes from DBEs if the price difference is excessive or unreasonable.
- 5. Not rejecting DBEs as being unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation of their capabilities. The contractor's standing within its industry, membership in specific groups, organizations, or associations and political or social affiliations (for example union vs. non-union status) are not legitimate causes for the rejection or non-solicitation of bids in the Contractor's efforts to meet the Contract DBE goal. Another practice considered an insufficient good faith effort is the rejection of the DBE because its quotation for the work was not the lowest received. However, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to require the Contractor to accept unreasonable quotes in order to satisfy the Contract DBE goal.

Inability to find a replacement DBE at the original price is not alone sufficient to support a finding that good faith efforts have been made to replace the original DBE. The fact that the Contractor has the ability and/or desire to perform the contract work with its own forces does not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to make good faith efforts to find a replacement DBE, and it is not a sound basis for rejecting a prospective replacement DBE's reasonable quote.

Attempt, wherever possible, to negotiate prices with potential subcontractors which submitted higher than acceptable price quotes.

Keep a record of efforts, including the names of businesses contacted and the means and results of such contacts.

- 6. Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, or insurance as required by the recipient or Contractor.
- Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, materials, or related assistance or services.
- 8. Effectively using the services of available minority/women community organizations; minority/women contractors' groups; local, State, and Federal minority/women business assistance offices; and other organizations as allowed on a case-by-case basis to provide assistance in the recruitment and placement of DBEs.

If the Contractor fails to meet the Contract DBE goal, they must submit documented evidence of good faith effort(s) with the CR-268 final DBE Report to the DCR/AA for review and approval. Submittal of such information does not imply DCR/AA approval. The Department's DCR/AA has sole authority to determine whether the Contractor met the Contract DBE goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do so. If the DCR/AA determines that the Contractor has failed to meet the Contract DBE goal or made adequate good faith effort to do so, the Department will follow Section 105.

J. Submission of Affirmative Action Program

Contractors, subcontractors and professional service firms performing work for the Department are required to submit their company's Affirmative Action Program annually to the DCR/AA. Contractors must have an **approved** Affirmative Action Program on file in the DCR/AA no later than seven (7) State business days after the date of bid opening. No recommendations to award will be made without an approved Affirmative Action Program on file in the DCR/AA. Ensure subcontractors and professional service firms have an approved Affirmative Action Plan on file in the DCR/AA prior to their beginning work on a particular project.

The Annual Affirmative Action Program will include, but is not limited to the following:

- 1. Copy of company's comprehensive EEO/Affirmative Action Plan, with a cover page that includes the company name and address, and signature of the Chief Executive or EEO Officer.
- 2. Copy of document designating the company's corporate EEO Officer, including the name, address and contact telephone number for the officer, and signature of the Chief Executive or President, on company letterhead.
- Copy of the company's EEO Policy Statement on company letterhead, dated and signed by the Chief Executive and the EEO Officer.
- 4. Copy of the company's Sexual Harassment Policy on company letterhead.
- 5. EEO Legend such as letterhead, envelope, or published advertisement showing the company is an equal opportunity employer.
- 6. Copy of document designating the company's DBE Liaison Officer to administer the firm's Disadvantaged Business Program.
- 7. DBE Affirmative Action Plan which is an explanation of affirmative action methods intended to be used to seek out and consider DBEs as subcontractors, material suppliers or equipment lessors. This refers to the Contractor's ongoing responsibility, i.e., Disadvantaged Business Enterprise/Affirmative Action activities after the award of the Contract and for the duration of the Contract.
- K. DBE Liaison Officer. Designate a DBE Liaison Officer who shall be responsible for the administration of your DBE program in accordance with the Contract, and ensuring that the Contractor complies with all provisions of 49 CFR Part 26.
- L. Consent by Department to Subletting. The Department will not approve any subcontract proposed by the Contractor unless and until said Contractor has complied with the terms of the Contract.
- **M. Conciliation.** Allegations of breach of any obligation contained in these DBE provisions and guidelines, will be investigated by the DCR/AA, the Federal Highway Administration and/or the USDOT.

N. Documentation

- Requiring of Information. The Department or the Federal funding agencies may at any time require
 information as specified in Section 107 and deemed necessary in the judgment of the Department to
 ascertain the compliance of any Bidder, Contractor or subcontractor with the terms of the Contract.
- 2. Records and Reports. The Contractor, subcontractors and other sub-recipients will keep such records as are necessary to determine compliance with its Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Utilization obligations. These records kept will be designed to indicate:
 - a. The names of DBE contractors, subcontractors, transaction expeditors and material suppliers contacted for work on the Contract, including when and how contacted, and the specific Contract work items and other information provided to each.
 - b. Work, services and materials which are not performed or supplied by the Contractor.
 - The actual dollar value of work subcontracted and awarded to DBEs, including specific Contract work items and cost of each work item.
 - d. The progress being made and efforts taken in seeking out and utilizing DBEs to include: solicitations, specific Contract work items and the quotes and bids regarding those specific Contract work items, supplies, leases, or other contract items, etc.
 - e. Detailed written documentation of all correspondence, contacts, telephone calls, etc., including names and dates/times, to obtain the services of DBEs on the Contract.
 - f. Records of all DBEs and non-DBEs who have submitted quotes/bids to the Contractor on the Contract.

- g. Monthly CR-267 Monthly Report, Utilization of DBE/ESBE or SBE, and other reports required for submission to the Department, hiring agreements, subcontracts, lease agreements, equipment rental agreements, supply tickets, delivery slips, payment information, and other records documenting DBE utilization on the Contract.
- h. Documentation outlining EEO workforce information for the Contract.
- i. Documentation outlining EEO and Affirmative Action efforts made in the administration and performance of the Contract.
- 3. Submission of Reports, Forms and Documentation. Submit reports, forms and documentation, as required by the Department, on those contracts and other business transactions executed with DBEs in such form and manner as may be prescribed by the Department. Failure to submit the required forms, reports or other documentation as required may result in payment being delayed or withheld as specified in Section 105, assessing sanctions, or termination of the contract as specified in Section 108. Submission of falsified forms, reports or other required documentation may result in termination of the Contract as specified in Section 108, investigation by the Department's Inspector General or U.S. DOT, or both, and prosecution by the State Attorney General's Office or U.S. Department of Justice, or both.
- **4. Maintaining Records.** All records must be maintained for a period of three (3) years following acceptance of final payment and will be available for inspection by the Department, or the Federal funding agencies.
- **O. Prompt Payment to Subcontractors.** On Federal Aid Projects, payment to subcontractors, equipment lessors, suppliers and manufacturers is made in accordance with Section 109.
- P. Non-Compliance. Failure by the Contractor to comply with the DBE program, rules and regulations of 49 CFR Part 26 in the administration of the Contract may result in denial or limit of credit toward the Contract DBE goal, payment being delayed or withheld as specified in Section 105, assessing sanctions, liquidated damages as specified in Section 108, default as specified in Section 108, debarment, or termination of the Contract as specified in Section 108. The Contractor may further be declared ineligible for future Department contracts.

SPECIFIC EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY RESPONSIBILITIES ON NJDOT FEDERAL AID PROJECTS

(23 CFR, PART 230, SUBPART A, APPENDIX A TO SUBPART A - SPECIAL PROVISIONS)

The Contractor is obligated to comply with the policies, procedures and guidelines relative to the implementation of an Equal Employment Opportunity Program on Federal and Federal Aid Highway construction contracts, except for those contracts awarded under 23 U.S.C. 117, and to the preparation and submission of reports pursuant thereto as per 23 CFR, Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A to Subpart A - Special Provisions.

A. General

- 1. Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements. Equal employment opportunity requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure equal employment opportunity as required by Executive Order 11246 and Executive Order 11375 are set forth in Required Contract, Provisions (Form FHWA-1273 or 1316, as appropriate) and these Special Provisions which are imposed pursuant to 23 USC 140, as established by Section 22 of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1968. The requirements set forth in the Contract constitute the specific affirmative action requirements for project activities under this Contract and supplement the equal employment opportunity requirements set forth in the Required Contract Provisions.
- 2. The Contractor will work with the State agencies and the Federal Government in carrying out Equal Employment Opportunity obligations and in their review of activities under the contract.
- 3. The Contractor, and all subcontractors holding subcontracts, not including material suppliers, of \$10,000 or more, will comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of Equal Employment Opportunity: (The equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as set forth in Volume 6, Chapter 4, Section 1, Subsection 1 of the Federal-Aid Highway Program Manual, are applicable to material suppliers, as well as contractors and subcontractors.) The Contractor will include these requirements in every subcontract of \$10,000 or more with such modification of language as is necessary to make them binding on the subcontractor.
- **B.** Equal Employment Opportunity Policy. The Contractor will accept as its operating policy the following statement which is designed to further the provisions of equal employment opportunity to all persons without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, and to promote the full realization of equal employment opportunity through a positive continuing program:
 - "It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, color, national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-job training."
- C. Equal Employment Opportunity Officer. The Contractor will designate and make known to the Department contracting officers an Equal Employment Opportunity Officer (hereinafter referred to as the EEO Officer) who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active EEO contractor program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.

D. Dissemination of Policy

1. Implementation. All members of the Contractor's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommended such action, or who are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and will implement, the Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy and contractual responsibilities to provide equal employment opportunity in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure compliance with the above agreement, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:

- a. Initial Project Site Meeting. Conduct an initial project site meeting with key supervisory and office personnel before or at the start of work, and then not less than once every 6 months, at which time the Contractor's Equal Employment Opportunity policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer.
- **b. EEO Obligations.** All new supervisory and office personnel will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer or other knowledgeable company official covering all major aspects of the Contractor's equal employment opportunity obligations within 30 days following their reporting for duty with the Contractor.
- c. All personnel engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer or appropriate company official in the Contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minority and female employees.
- 2. Take the following actions to make the Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy known to all employees, prospective employees and potential sources of employees, i.e., schools, employment agencies, labor unions (where appropriate), college placement officers, etc.:
 - a. Place notices and posters setting forth the Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees.
 - b. Bring the Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy and the procedures to implement such policy to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, and/or other appropriate means.

E. Recruitment

- When advertising for employees, include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal
 Opportunity Employer". Publish all such advertisements in newspapers or other publications having
 a large circulation among minorities and women in the area from which the project work force would
 normally be derived.
- 2. Unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minority and female applicants, including, but not limited to, State employment agencies, schools, colleges and minority-group organizations. To meet this requirement, the Contractor will, through their EEO Officer, identify sources of potential minority and female group employees, and establish procedures with such identified sources whereby minority and female group applicants may be referred to the Contractor for employment consideration.
- 3. In the event the Contractor has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, he/she is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system permits the Contractor's compliance with the equal employment opportunity contract provisions. (The US Department of Labor has held that where implementation of such agreements have the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the Contractor to do the same, such implementation violates Executive Order 11246, as amended).
- 4. Encourage present employees to refer minority and female applicants for employment by posting appropriate notices or bulletins in areas accessible to all such employees. In addition, information and procedures pertaining to the referral of applicants will be discussed with employees.
- **F. Personnel Actions.** Wages, working conditions and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be followed:
 - 1. Conduct a project site inspection at the start of work, and periodically thereafter, to ensure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.
 - Periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
 - 3. Periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the Contractor will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.

4. Promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the Contractor in connection with its obligations under this Contract, and will resolve or attempt to resolve such complaints, within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon completion of each investigation, inform complainants of all their avenues of appeal.

G. Training and Promotion

- 1. Assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minority and women who are applicants for employment or current employees.
- Advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and entrance requirements for each.
- 3. Periodically review the training and promotion potential of minority and female employees and encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion.
- **H.** On-the-Job Training. The Contractor, as part of their equal employment opportunity affirmative action program, shall provide on-the-job training aimed at developing full journey people in the type of craft or job classification involved on the project.
 - 1. Apprenticeship and Training Programs

The minimum length and type of training for each position will be established in the training program selected by the Contractor and approved by the Department and the Federal Highway Administration. The Department will approve a program if it is reasonably calculated to meet the equal employment opportunity obligations of the Contractor and to qualify the average apprentice or trainee for journeyperson status in the craft concerned by the end of the training period.

Apprenticeship programs registered with the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, (BAT) or with a State apprenticeship agency recognized by USDOL BAT and training programs approved but not necessarily sponsored by the US Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training shall also be considered acceptable provided such programs are being administered in a manner consistent with the equal employment obligations of Federal-aid highway contracts. Approval or acceptance of a training program shall be obtained from the DCR/AA prior to commencing work in the classifications covered by the Contractor's training program. The Division will review guidelines developed by the Contractor for approval or disapproval in accordance with the Training Guideline Approval Process described in the "Revised Standard Training Guidelines". The Division will also review existing guidelines for revision based on the same process.

It is the intention of these provisions that training be provided in construction crafts rather than clerk-typist or secretarial-type positions. Training is permitted in lower level management positions (e.g., timekeepers), where the training is oriented toward project site applications. Training in semi-skilled laborer positions is permitted provided that significant and meaningful training is available on the project site and approved by DCR/AA. Some offsite, classroom training (e.g., safety, first aid instruction) may be permitted as long as such training is an integral part of an approved training program and does not comprise a significant part of the overall training.

2. Contractor Submission and Department Approval of the Initial Training Program

At or after the preconstruction conference, and prior to the start of Work, submit a Training Program to the RE for review and comments prior to DCR/AA review and approval. The Contractor's training program shall include:

- a. Number of trainees or apprentices to be trained in all selected Training Positions,
- b. Standard Program Hours for all positions,
- c. Estimate of the Minimum Available Hours actually feasible on the project toward completion of the Standard Program Hours per position,
- d. Training schedule of Estimated Start Dates for the apprentices or trainees, developed and coordinated with the project's work progress schedule,
- e. Training Guidelines for all positions, and
- f. Training that will be provided by the Contractor and provided by Subcontractors.

The number of apprentices and trainees shall be distributed among the work classifications on the basis of the Contractor's needs and the availability of journey people in the various crafts within a reasonable area of recruitment. Submit timely, revised Training Programs, as required throughout the project to ensure that feasible and Maximum Available Training is provided. Maximum Available Training is defined as bringing each apprentice or trainee onto the project when work first becomes available in his/her craft and providing all available training until hours are no longer available.

3. Assignment of Training to Subcontractors

In the event that portions of the Contract work are subcontracted, determine how many, if any, of the apprentices or trainees are to be trained by subcontractors, provided, however, that the Contractor shall retain the primary responsibility for meeting the training requirements imposed by these Training Special Provisions. Ensure that these Training Special Provisions are made applicable to such subcontracts.

4. Reimbursement of the Contractor for Providing Training

The Contractor will be credited for each apprentice or trainee employed on the construction site who is currently enrolled or becomes enrolled in an approved program and will be reimbursed for such apprentices or trainees as provided hereinafter. Payment will be made under the pay item Trainees at the bid price in the Proposal per person-hour of training given an employee on this contract in accordance with an approved training program. If approved, payment will be made for training persons in excess of the number specified herein. This reimbursement will be made even though the Contractor receives additional training program funds from other sources, provided such other sources do not specifically prohibit the Contractor from receiving other reimbursement. Offsite, classroom training reimbursement may only be made to the Contractor when the company does one or more of the following and the apprentices or trainees are concurrently employed on a Federal-aid project: contributes to the cost of the training and/or provides instruction to apprentices or trainees or pays their wages during the offsite, classroom training (e.g., safety, first aid instruction) period.

Pay apprentices and trainees according to the project-specific New Jersey Department of Labor Prevailing Wage Rate Determination for the project. Trainees will be paid at least 60 percent of the appropriate minimum journeyman's rate specified in the Contract for the first half of the training period, 75 percent for the third quarter of the training period, and 90 percent for the last quarter of the training period, unless apprentices or trainees in an approved existing program are enrolled as trainees on this project. In that case, the appropriate rates approved by the Departments of Labor or Transportation in connection with the existing program shall apply to all trainees being trained for the same classification who are covered by this Training Special Provision.

I. Apprentice/Trainee Requirements of the Contract

The number of training positions will be $\underline{0}$, where feasible, consisting of at least $\underline{0}$ APPRENTICES and $\underline{0}$ TRAINEES. TRAINEE HOURS= $\underline{0}$.

Apprentices are defined as registered members of an approved apprenticeship program recognized by the United States Department of Labor (USDOL) Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training (BAT) or a New Jersey State apprenticeship agency recognized by USDOL BAT (e.g., New Jersey Department of Education). Graduates of the Pre-Apprenticeship Training Cooperative Program shall be classified as apprentices. Trainees are defined as skilled, semi-skilled or lower level management individuals receiving training per one of the approved NJDOT "Revised Standard Training Guidelines" (available from the DCR/AA).

Where feasible, assign at least 50% of the training positions to Skilled Crafts which include but are not limited to Carpenters, Dockbuilders, Electricians, Ironworkers and Operating Engineers.

1. Requirements for Recruitment, Selection and Approval of Apprentices and Trainees

Apprentices or trainees should be in their first year of apprenticeship or training. Interview and screen trainee candidates to determine if their actual work experience is equivalent to or exceeds that offered by the training program prior to submitting candidates on the Apprentice/Trainee Approval Memorandum (Form CR-1), via the RE, to the Division for review and approval or disapproval.

Training and upgrading of minorities (e.g., Blacks, Asians or Pacific Islanders, Native Americans or Alaskan Natives, Hispanics) and women toward journeyperson status is a primary objective of these Training Special Provisions. Accordingly, the Contractor shall make every effort to enroll minorities and women, by conducting systematic and direct recruitment through public and private sources likely to yield minority and female apprentices or trainees, to the extent that such persons are available within a reasonable area of recruitment. This training commitment is not intended, and shall not be used, to discriminate against any applicant for training, whether a member of a minority group or not.

No employee shall be employed as an apprentice or trainee in any position in which he or she has successfully completed a training course leading to journeyperson status or in which he or she has been employed as a journeyperson. The Contractor shall satisfy this requirement by including appropriate questions in the employment application or by other suitable means and by submitting an accurate and complete "Apprentice/Trainee Approval Memorandum" (Form CR-1) prior to the apprentice or trainee starting work on the project. Regardless of the methods used, the Contractor's records should document the findings in each case.

Skilled craft trainees may complete up to 3,000 total training hours on Department projects, with an extension of an additional 1,000 hours permitted on a case-by-case basis. Semi-skilled and lower-level management trainees attain journeyperson status upon completion of a training guideline and may complete up to three (3) different positions.

2. Documentation Required to be Signed by Apprentices or Trainees, and provided to the Department

Prior to the apprentice/trainee starting work on the project, submit an accurate, complete and signed Apprentice/Trainee Approval Memorandum for each apprentice/trainee to the RE for review, and final approval by DCR/AA. Once the notice that said apprentice/trainee has been approved to work on the Contract, said apprentice/trainee may start work on the Contract. No credit will be given for apprentices/trainees prior to said apprentice/trainee being approved by DCR/AA.

At the start of training, provide the RE and each apprentice or trainee with an applicable "Training Guideline" and, at the conclusion of training, an accurate and complete "Training Certificate for Reporting Hours to NJDOT" (Form CR-3), showing hours of training satisfactorily completed.

Maintain and submit an accurate and complete "NJDOT Contractor's 1409 Quarterly Training Report" (Form-CR-1409) to the RE within ten (10) days of the end of each training quarter (e.g., January 10, April 10, July 10, October 10); also provide a copy to each apprentice or trainee.

Maintain and submit accurate and complete "Biweekly Training Reports" (Form CR-2) to the RE, and each apprentice or trainee, as periodic reports documenting their performance under the Contract.

3. Determining Good Faith Compliance of Contract Apprentice/Trainee Program

Per the approved program or guideline, provide Maximum Available Training to apprentices and trainees by beginning their training as soon as feasible with the start of craft work utilizing the skill involved on the project construction site and by retaining them as long as training opportunities exist in their crafts or until their training program positions are completed.

Recall apprentices or trainees released due to reductions in force when the work scope permits and they are available to return. When they are unavailable to resume training on the project site, submit written proof of recall efforts and replacement candidates and/or positions in a timely manner. Do not terminate apprentices or trainees prior to completion of their training program positions without Department consultation and authorization. Apprentices or trainees are not required to be on board for the entire length of the Contract.

The Contractor shall have fulfilled the contractual responsibilities under these Training Special Provisions as specified in 23 CFR 230, Appendix B to Subpart A of Part 230 if the company has provided Acceptable Training to the number of apprentices or trainees specified in this contract and/or by providing the remaining hours required to complete training positions begun by apprentices or trainees on other projects. The number trained shall be determined on the basis of the total number enrolled on the Contract for a significant period.

Demonstrate all steps that have been taken in pursuance of enrolling minorities and women in the training program positions, prior to a determination as to whether the Contractor is in compliance with the Training Special Provisions of the Contract.

Submit to the RE written training program summaries at the 50% time and/or cost stage of the contract and also prior to project completion, describing all good faith efforts and particularly addressing Maximum Available Training for incomplete training positions, per the procedure found in the revised "Instructions for Implementing the Training Special Provisions".

4. Enforcement Measures and Contractor's Rating

Payment will not be made if either the failure to provide the required training or the failure to hire the apprentice or trainee as a journeyperson is caused by the Contractor and evidences a lack of good faith on the part of the Contractor in meeting the requirements of the Contract.

Per established procedures and scheduled Contract Compliance Reviews, the Contractor's performance will be rated and reviewed periodically by the Department.

Failure of a Contractor to comply with the Training Special Provisions of the Contract, and as specified in 23 CFR Part 230, Appendix B to Subpart A of Part 230, may result in the actions as set forth as specified in Section 105.

- J. Unions. If the Contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, use good faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minorities and women within the unions, and to effect such union referrals to the construction project. Actions by the Contractor, either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the procedures set forth below:
 - 1. Use maximum effort to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed at qualifying more minorities and women for union membership and increasing their skills in order for them to qualify for higher paying employment.
 - 2. Use maximum effort to incorporate an equal employment opportunity clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability.
 - 3. Obtain information concerning the referral practices and policies of the labor unions except that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor unions and such labor unions refuse to furnish this information to the Contractor, certify to the Department and set forth what efforts have been made to obtain this information.
 - 4. In the event the unions are unable to provide the Contractor with a reasonable flow of minority and female referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age or disability, making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minorities and women. (The US Department of Labor has held that it shall be no excuse that the union with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement providing for exclusive referral failed to refer minority employees). In the event the union referral practice prevents the Contractor from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these special provisions, such Contractor shall immediately notify the Department.

K. Subcontracting

- 1. Use maximum effort to solicit bids from and to utilize minority subcontractors or subcontractors with meaningful minority and female representation among their employees. The Contractor may use lists of minority-owned construction firms as issued by the Department.
- 2. Ensure subcontractor compliance with the Contract Equal Employment Opportunity obligations.

L. Records and Reports

- 1. Maintain records necessary to determine compliance with the Contractor's equal employment opportunity requirements. Documents will include the following:
 - Number of minorities, non-minorities, and women employed in each work classification on the Contract.

- b. Progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women (applicable only to Contractors who rely in whole or in part on unions as a source of their work force).
- c. Progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minority and female employees, and
- d. Progress and efforts being made in securing the services of minority and female subcontractors or subcontractors with meaningful minority and female representation among their employees.
- All such documents must be retained for a period of 3 years following completion of the Contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the Department and the Federal funding agencies.

REQUIREMENTS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ON NJDOT FEDERAL AID PROJECTS

(MINORITY AND WOMEN WORK EMPLOYMENT GOAL OBLIGATIONS)

A. Employment Goals.

The goals for minority and female participation, in the covered area, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate work force in each trade, on all construction work are:

Minority And Women Employment Goal Obligations For Construction Contractors and Subcontractors on Federal Aid Projects			
County	Minority Participation	Women Participation	
	Percent	Percent	
Atlantic	18.2	6.9	
Bergen	22.6	6.9	
Burlington	17.3	6.9	
Camden	17.3	6.9	
Cape May	14.5	6.9	
Cumberland	16.0	6.9	
Essex	17.3	6.9	
Gloucester	17.3	6.9	
Hudson	12.8	6.9	
Hunterdon	17	6.9	
Mercer	16.4	6.9	
Middlesex	5.8	6.9	
Monmouth	9.5	6.9	
Morris	17.3	6.9	
Ocean	17	6.9	
Passaic	12.9	6.9	
Salem	12.3	6.9	
Somerset	17.3	6.9	
Sussex	17	6.9	
Union	17.3	6.9	
Warren	1.6	6.9	

These goals are applicable to all the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is Federal or Federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the Contractor performs construction work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the goals for both its Federally involved and non-Federally involved construction.

The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order 11246 and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations

required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4(3)a, and its efforts to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the Contract, and in each trade. Make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each project. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's goals is a violation of the Contract, the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

If a project is located in more than one county, the minority work hour goal, only, will be determined by the county which serves as the primary source of hiring or, if workers are obtained almost equally from one or more counties, the single minority goal will be the average of the affected county goals.

B. Reporting Requirements.

- 1. Provide the Department with written notification in triplicate within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification will list the name, address and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the contract is to be performed.
- 2. Directly provide the Department with employment workforce data of the number and work hours of minority and non-minority group members and women employed in each work classification for the Contract. The Contractor, subcontractors, professional service firms and others working on the project must submit this information via a web-based application through the New Jersey portal, Vendor Workforce Reporting Manager. Instructions on how to complete Form CC-257R are provided within the web application. Instructions for registering and receiving the authentication code to access the web based application can be found at the Contractor Manpower Project Reporting CC-257R website at: http://www.state.nj.us/transportation/business/civilrights/pdf/cc257.pdf.
 - a. On a monthly basis, submit Form CC-257R through the web based application within 10 days following the end of each reporting month.
 - b. In addition to the above, submit a hard copy of the electronic Form CC-257R to the RE within 10 days following the end of each reporting month
 - c. Submit a copy of the confirmation e-mail of the successful submission of Monthly Employment Utilization Report to the RE within 10 days following the end of each reporting month.
- 3. All employment data must be accurate and consistent with the certified payroll records. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring compliance with these reporting requirements. Failure of the Contractor, subcontractors, professional service firms and others working on the Contract, to report monthly employment data may result in payments being delayed or withheld as per 105.01, or impact the Contractor's prequalification rating with the Department.

FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS FOR NJDOT FEDERAL AID PROJECTS

(AS REQUIRED PER EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246 AS AMENDED BY EXECUTIVE ORDER 11375 AND IMPLEMENTING REGULATIONS AT 41 C.F.R. PART 60)

- A. As used in these Specifications:
 - 1. Covered area means the County or Counties in which the Project is located.
 - 2. Director means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United States Department of Labor or any person to whom the Director delegates authority.
 - 3. Employer identification number means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, US Treasury Department Form 941.
 - 4. Minority includes:
 - Black (a person having origins in any of the black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
 - b. Hispanic (a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race);
 - c. Asian and Pacific Islander (a person having originals in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and
 - d. American Indian or Alaskan Native (a person having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participating or community identification).
- B. Whenever the Contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
- C. Implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs F1 through 16 of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered Construction Contractors performing construction work in geographical areas where they do not have a Federal or Federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being performed. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.
- D. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement nor the failure by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement to refer either minorities or women excuses the Contractor's obligations under these Specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.
- E. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the US Department of Labor.
- F. Take specific affirmative action to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. Document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
 - Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. Where possible, assign

two or more women to each construction project. Specifically ensure that all foreman, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.

- Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written
 notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the
 Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the
 organizations' responses.
- 3. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred back to the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
- 4. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
- 5. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the source compiled under F2 above.
- 6. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc. by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.
- 7. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with on-site supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.
- 8. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- 9. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- 10. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force.
- Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.

- 12. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- 13. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- 14. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are provided in a manner such that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin cannot result. Do not require such segregated use by written or oral policies, nor tolerate such use by employee custom. Provide separate or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.
- 15. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction Contraction and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- 16. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- G. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (F1 through 16). The efforts of a Contractor association, joint contractor union, Contractor-Community, or other similar group of which the Contractor is a member and participant may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under F1 through 16 of these Specifications provided that the Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female work force participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's noncompliance.
- H. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women both minority and nonminority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized).
- I. Do not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, creed, color, national origin, age, ancestry, nationality, gender, disability, sex, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, religion, and liability for military service.
- J. Do not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.
- K. Carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspensions, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246 as amended.
- L. Implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph F of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.

- M. Designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone number, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (such as mechanic, apprentice, trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.
- N. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (such as those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).
- O. Failure of the Contractor or subcontractors to comply with the nondiscrimination provisions of the Contract may result in payment being delayed or withheld as specified in 105.01; default as specified in 108.14, liquidated damages as specified in 108.20, or termination of the Contract as specified in 108.15.02 pending corrective and appropriate measures taken by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Department.

STATE OF NEW JERSEY MANDATORY EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY LANGUAGE ON NJDOT FEDERAL AID PROJECTS

(N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 ET SEQ. (P.L.1975, C.127) N.J.A.C. 17:27-1.1 ET SEQ.)

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

The Contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex. Except with respect to affectional or sexual orientation and gender identity or expression, the Contractor will ensure that equal employment opportunity is afforded to such applicants in recruitment and employment, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex. Such equal employment opportunity shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Department setting forth provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

The Contractor or subcontractor, where applicable will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex.

The Contractor or subcontractor will send to each labor union, with which it has a collective bargaining agreement, a notice, to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this act and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

The Contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, agrees to comply with any regulations promulgated by the Treasurer, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 et seq., as amended and supplemented from time to time and the Americans with Disabilities Act.

When hiring or scheduling workers in each construction trade, the Contractor or subcontractor agrees to make good faith efforts to employ minority and women workers in each construction trade consistent with the targeted employment goal prescribed by N.J.A.C. I7:27-7.2; provided, however, that the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program, may, in its discretion, exempt a contractor or subcontractor from compliance with the good faith procedures prescribed by the following provisions, A, B, and C, as long as the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program is satisfied that the Contractor or subcontractor is employing workers provided by a union which provides evidence, in accordance with standards prescribed by the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program, that its percentage of active "card carrying" members who are minority and women workers is equal to or greater than the targeted employment goal established in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-7.2. The Contractor or subcontractor agrees that a good faith effort shall include compliance with the following procedures:

A. If the Contractor or subcontractor has a referral agreement or arrangement with a union for a construction trade, the Contractor or subcontractor shall, within three business days of the contract award, seek assurances from the union that it will cooperate with the Contractor or sub-contractor as it fulfills its affirmative action obligations under this contract and in accordance with the rules promulgated by the Treasurer pursuant to N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 et. seq., as supplemented and amended from time to time and the Americans with Disabilities Act. If the Contractor or subcontractor is unable to obtain said assurances from the construction trade union at least five business days prior to the commencement of construction work, the Contractor or sub-contractor agrees to afford equal employment opportunities minority and women workers directly, consistent with this chapter. If the Contractor's or subcontractor's prior experience

with a construction trade union, regardless of whether the union has provided said assurances, indicates a significant possibility that the trade union will not refer sufficient minority and women workers consistent with affording equal employment opportunities as specified in this chapter, the Contractor or subcontractor agrees to be prepared to provide such opportunities to minority and women workers directly, consistent with this chapter, by complying with the hiring or scheduling procedures prescribed under "B" below; and the Contractor or subcontractor further agrees to take said action immediately if it determines that the union is not referring minority and women workers consistent with the equal employment opportunity goals set forth in this chapter.

- B. If good faith efforts to meet targeted employment goals have not or cannot be met for each construction trade by adhering to the procedures of "A" above, or if the contractor does not have a referral agreement or arrangement with a union for a construction trade, the Contractor or subcontractor agrees to take the following actions:
 - 1. To notify the public agency compliance officer, the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program, and minority and women referral organizations listed by the Division pursuant to N.J.A.C. 17:27-5.3, of its workforce needs, and request referral of minority and women workers;
 - To notify any minority and women workers who have been listed with it as awaiting available vacancies:
 - Prior to commencement of work, to request that the local construction trade union refer minority and women workers to fill job openings, provided the Contractor or subcontractor has a referral agreement or arrangement with a union for the construction trade;
 - 4. To leave standing requests for additional referral to minority and women workers with the local construction trade union, provided the Contractor or subcontractor has a referral agreement or arrangement with a union for the construction trade, the State Training and Employment Service and other approved referral sources in the area;
 - 5. If it is necessary to lay off some of the workers in a given trade on the construction site, layoffs shall be conducted in compliance with the equal employment opportunity and non-discrimination standards set forth in this regulation, as well as with applicable Federal and State court decisions;
 - To adhere to the following procedure when minority and women workers apply or are referred to the contractor or subcontractor:
 - a. The Contactor or subcontractor shall interview the referred minority or women worker.
 - b. If said individuals have never previously received any document or certification signifying a level of qualification lower than that required in order to perform the work of the construction trade, the contractor or subcontractor shall in good faith determine the qualifications of such individuals. The Contractor or subcontractor shall hire or schedule those individuals who satisfy appropriate qualification standards in conformity with the equal employment opportunity and non-discrimination principles set forth in this chapter. However, a Contractor or subcontractor shall determine that the individual at least possesses the requisite skills, and experience recognized by a union, apprentice program or a referral agency, provided the referral agency is acceptable to the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program. If necessary, the Contractor or subcontractor shall hire or schedule minority and women workers who qualify as trainees pursuant to these rules. All of the requirements, however, are limited by the provisions of "C" below.
 - c. The name of any interested women or minority individual shall be maintained on a waiting list, and shall be considered for employment as described in (i) above, whenever vacancies occur. At the request of the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide evidence of its good faith efforts to employ women and minorities from the list to fill vacancies.
 - d. If, for any reason, said Contractor or subcontractor determines that a minority individual or a woman is not qualified or if the individual qualifies as an advanced trainee or apprentice, the Contractor or subcontractor shall inform the individual in writing of the reasons for the determination, maintain a copy of the determination in its files, and send a copy to the public agency compliance officer and to the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program.
 - To keep a complete and accurate record of all requests made for the referral of workers in any trade covered by the contract, on forms made available by the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring

Program and submitted promptly to the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program upon request.

C. The Contractor or subcontractor agrees that nothing contained in "B" above shall preclude the Contractor or subcontractor from complying with the union hiring hall or apprentice-ship policies in any applicable collective bargaining agreement or union hiring hall arrangement, and, where required by custom or agreement, it shall send journeymen and trainees to the union for referral, or to the apprenticeship program for admission, pursuant to such agreement or arrangement. However, where the practices of a union or apprenticeship program will result in the exclusion of minorities and women or the failure to refer minorities and women consistent with the targeted county employment goal, the Contractor or subcontractor shall consider for employment persons referred pursuant to "B" above without regard to such agreement or arrangement; provided further, however, that the Contractor or subcontractor shall not be required to employ women and minority advanced trainees and trainees in numbers which result in the employment of advanced trainees and trainees as a percentage of the total workforce for the construction trade, which percentage significantly exceeds the apprentice to journey worker ratio specified in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, or in the absence of a collective bargaining agreement, exceeds the ratio established by practice in the area for said construction trade. Also, the Contractor or subcontractor agrees that, in implementing the procedures of "B" above, it shall, where applicable, employ minority and women workers residing within the geographical jurisdiction of the union.

After notification of award, but prior to signing a construction contract, the Contractor shall submit to the Department and the Department of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program an initial project workforce report (Form AA-201) electronically provided to the Department by the Department of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program, through its web-site, for distribution to and completion by the Contractor, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-7. The Contractor also agrees to submit a copy of the Monthly Project Workforce Report once a month thereafter for the duration of this contract to the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program, and to the Department.

The Contractor agrees to cooperate with the public agency in the payment of budgeted funds, as is necessary, for on-the-job and/or off-the-job programs for outreach and training of minorities and women.

D. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall furnish such reports or other documents to the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program as may be requested by the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program from time to time in order to carry out the purposes of these regulations, and public agencies shall furnish such information as may be re-quested by the Dept. of LWD, Construction EEO Monitoring Program for conducting a compliance investigation pursuant to N.J.A.C. 17:27-1.1 et seq.

It is the policy of the NJDOT that its contracts should create a work-force that reflects the diversity of the State of New Jersey. Therefore, contractors engaged by the NJDOT to perform under a construction contract shall put forth a good faith effort to engage in recruitment and employment practices that further the goal of fostering equal opportunities to minorities and women.

The Contractor must demonstrate to the NJDOT satisfaction that a good faith effort was made to ensure that minorities and women have been afforded equal opportunity to gain employment under the NJDOT contract with the Contractor. Payment may be withheld from a Contractor's contract for failure to comply with these provisions.

Evidence of a "good faith effort" includes, but is not limited to:

- The Contractor shall recruit prospective employees through the New Jersey Career Connections website, managed by the Department of Labor and Workforce Development, available online at:
 Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.
 http://careerconnections.nj.gov/careerconnections/for_businesses.shtml
- The Contractor shall keep specific records of its efforts, including records of all individuals interviewed and hired, including the specific numbers of minorities and women;
- The Contractor shall actively solicit and shall provide the NJDOT with proof of solicitations for employment, including but not limited to advertisements in general circulation media, professional service publications and electronic media; and
- The Contractor shall provide evidence of efforts described at 2 above to the NJDOT no less frequently than once every 12 months.

5.	The Contractor shall comply with the requirements set forth at N.J.A.C. 17:27-1.1 et seq.

INVESTIGATING, REPORTING AND RESOLVING EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINTS ON NJDOT FEDERAL AID PROJECTS

The Contractor and subcontractors agrees to the following requirements in order to implement fully the nondiscrimination provisions of the Contract.

The Contractor agrees that in instances when it receives from any person working on the project site a verbal or written complaint of employment discrimination, prohibited under N.J.S.A. 10:5-1 et seq., 10:2-1 et seq., 42 U.S.C. 2000(d) et seq., 42 U.S.C. 2000 (e) et seq. and Executive Order 11246, it shall take the following actions:

- A. Within one (1) working day commence an investigation of the complaint which shall include but not be limited to interviewing the complainant, the respondent, and all possible witnesses to the alleged act or acts of discrimination or sexual harassment.
- B. Prepare and keep for its use and file a detailed written investigative report which includes the following information:
 - Investigatory activities and findings.
 - 2. Dates and parties involved and activities involved in resolving the complaint.
 - 3. Resolution and corrective action taken if discrimination or sexual harassment is found to have taken place.
 - 4. A signed copy of resolution of complaint by complainant and Contractor.

In addition to keeping in its files the above-noted detailed written investigative report, the Contractor shall keep for possible future review by the Department all other records, including but not limited to, interview memos and statements.

- C. Upon the request of the Department, provides to the Department within ten (10) calendar days a copy of its detailed written investigative report and all other records on the complaint investigation and resolution.
- D. Take appropriate disciplinary action against any Contractor employee, official or agent who has committed acts of discrimination or sexual harassment against any contractor employee or person working on the project. If the person committing the discrimination is a subcontractor employee, then the Contractor is required to attempt to effectuate corrective and/or disciplinary action by the subcontractor in order to establish compliance with the Contract.
- E. Take appropriate disciplinary action against any Contractor employee, official or agent who retaliates, coerces or intimidates any complaint and/or person who provides information or assistance to any investigation of complaints of discrimination or sexual harassment. If the person retaliating, coercing or intimidating a complainant or other person assisting an investigation is a subcontractor's employee, then the Contractor is required to attempt to effectuate corrective and/or disciplinary action by the subcontractor in order to establish compliance with the Contract.
- F. Ensure to the maximum extent possible that the privacy interests of all persons who give confidential information in aid of the Contractor's employment discrimination investigation are protected.

In conjunction with the above requirements, the Contractor shall develop and post a written sexual harassment policy for its work force.

Failure by the Contractor and subcontractors to comply with the above requirements may be cause for the Department to institute against the Contractor any and all enforcement proceedings and/or sanctions authorized by the Contract or by State and/or Federal law.

PAYROLL REQUIREMENTS FOR NJDOT FEDERAL AID PROJECTS

- **A.** Payroll Reports. Each Contractor and subcontractor shall furnish the RE with payroll reports for each week of contract work. Such reports shall be submitted within 10 days of the date of payment covered thereby and shall contain the following information:
 - 1. Each employee's full name and an individually identifying number, (e.g. the last four digits of the employee's social security number) of each such employee.
 - 2. The ethnicity and gender of each employee.
 - 3. Each employee's specific work classification (s).
 - 4. Entries indicating each employee's basis hourly wage rate(s) and, where applicable, the overtime hourly wage rate(s). Any fringe benefits paid to approved plans, funds or programs on behalf of the employee must be indicated. Any fringe benefits paid to the employee in cash must be indicated.
 - 5. Each employee's daily and weekly hours worked in each classification, including actual overtime hours worked (not adjusted).
 - 6. Each employee's gross wage.
 - 7. The itemized deductions made.
 - 8. The net wages paid.
- B. Statement of Wages. Each Contractor or subcontractor shall furnish a statement each week to the RE with respect to the wages paid each of its employees engaged in contract work covered by the Copeland Act, as amended during the preceding weekly payroll period. The statement shall be executed by the Contractor or subcontractor or by an authorized officer or employee of the Contractor or subcontractors who supervises the payment of wages. Contractors and subcontractors must use the certification set forth on the Department's CR-347, or any form with identical wording. Each payroll submitted must be accompanied by a signed "Statement of Compliance".
- C. Maintaining Records. Contractor and subcontractor shall maintain complete social security numbers and home address for employees. Government agencies are entitled to request or review all relevant payroll information, including social security numbers and addresses of employees. Contractors and subcontractors are required to provide such information upon request.
- **D.** Lack of Compliance. Failure of the Contractor or subcontractor to comply with the payroll requirements may result in payment being delayed or withheld as specified in Section 105, default as specified in Section 108 or termination of the Contract as specified in Section 108.
- E. Diane B. Allen Equal Pay Act, N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.14b. Pursuant to the DIANE B. ALLEN EQUAL PAY ACT, N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.14.b., the Contractor shall provide to the Commissioner of the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development, through certified payroll records required pursuant to P.L.1963, c.150 (C.34:11-56.25 et seq.), information regarding the gender, race, job title, occupational category, and rate of total compensation of every employee of the employer employed in the State in connection with the Contract. The Contractor shall provide the Commissioner, throughout the duration of the Contract, with an update to the information whenever payroll records are required to be submitted pursuant to P.L.1963, c.150 (C.34:11-56.25 et seq.). Completed forms should be emailed to: equalpayact@dol.nj.gov. If online submission is not possible, the form should be mailed to: Equal Pay Act, New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development, P.O. Box 110, Trenton, NJ 08625-110.

Information regarding the Diane B. Allen Equal Pay Act and its requirements may be obtained from the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development (LWD) website at: https://nj.gov/labor/equalpay/equalpay.html

LWD forms may be obtained from the online web site at: https://nj.gov/labor/forms_pdfs/equalpayact/MW-562withoutfein.pdf

FEDERAL AID PROJECT ATTACHMENT 8 FHWA-1273

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

- I. General
- Nondiscrimination
- Non-segregated Facilities Ш
- IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions
- Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Provisions V.
- VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract
- VII
- Safety: Accident Prevention
 False Statements Concerning Highway Projects
- Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act
- X. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
- XI. Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying
- XII. Use of United States-Flag Vessels:

ATTACHMENTS

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only)

I. GENERAL

1. Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each construction contract funded under title 23, United States Code, as required in 23 CFR 633.102(b) (excluding emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal). The contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services). 23 CFR 633.102(e).

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase order, rental agreement or agreement for other services. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider. 23 CFR 633.102(e).

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid designbuild contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services) in accordance with 23 CFR 633.102. The designbuilder shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in solicitation-for-bids or request-for-proposals documents, however, the Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services related to a construction contract). 23 CFR 633.102(b).

2. Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work

performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract. 23 CFR 633.102(d).

- 3. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for withholding of progress payments, withholding of final payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment or any other action determined to be appropriate by the contracting agency and FHWA.
- 4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on parole, supervised release, or probation. 23 U.S.C. 114(b). The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors. 23 U.S.C. 101(a).

II. NONDISCRIMINATION (23 CFR 230.107(a); 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A; EO 11246)

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A are applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more. The provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR Part 60, 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627, 23 U.S.C. 140, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26, and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with: the requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding \$10.000, the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3.

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR Part 60, and 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627. The contracting agency and the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with 23 U.S.C. 140, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26, and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.

- 1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (see 28 CFR Part 35, 29 CFR Part 1630, 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627, 41 CFR Part 60 and 49 CFR Part 27) and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140, shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the contractor's project activities under this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR Part 35 and 29 CFR Part 1630 are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of EEO:
- a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review of activities under the contract. 23 CFR 230.409 (g)(4) & (5).
- b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the following statement:
- "It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, color, national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, preapprenticeship, and/or on-the-job training."
- 2. EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active EEO program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.
- 3. Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action or are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of and will implement the contractor's EEO policy and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:
- a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often than once every six months, at which time the contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer or other knowledgeable company official.
- b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor.
- c. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and women.

- d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees.
- e. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.
- 4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer." All such advertisements will be placed in publications having a large circulation among minorities and women in the area from which the project work force would normally be derived.
- a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women. To meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of potential minority group employees and establish with such identified sources procedures whereby minority and women applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment consideration.
- b. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's compliance with EEO contract provisions. Where implementation of such an agreement has the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the contractor to do the same, such implementation violates Federal nondiscrimination provisions.
- c. The contractor will encourage its present employees to refer minorities and women as applicants for employment. Information and procedures with regard to referring such applicants will be discussed with employees.
- 5. Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be followed:
- a. The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to ensure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.
- b. The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
- c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the contractor will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.
- d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action

FHWA – 1273 Page 2 of 13

within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal.

6. Training and Promotion:

- a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minorities and women who are applicants for employment or current employees. Such efforts should be aimed at developing full journey level status employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.
- b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor shall make full use of training programs (i.e., apprenticeship and on-the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract performance). In the event a special provision for training is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the special provision. The contracting agency may reserve training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a).
- c. The contractor will advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and entrance requirements for each.
- d. The contractor will periodically review the training and promotion potential of employees who are minorities and women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion.
- 7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minorities and women. 23 CFR 230.409. Actions by the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the procedures set forth below:
- a. The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability.
- c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral practices and policies of the labor union except that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.
- D. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minorities and women. The failure of a union to provide

sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the requirements of this paragraph. In the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the contracting agency.

- 8. Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / Employees with Disabilities: The contractor must be familiar with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established thereunder. Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in all employment activities unless to do so would cause an undue hardship.
- 9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the administration of this contract.
- a. The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors, suppliers, and lessors of their EEO obligations under this contract.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations.

10. Assurances Required:

- a. The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State DOT's FHWA-approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program are incorporated by reference.
- b. The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:
 - (1) Withholding monthly progress payments;
 - (2) Assessing sanctions;
 - (3) Liquidated damages; and/or
 - (4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as nonresponsible.
- c. The Title VI and nondiscrimination provisions of U.S. DOT Order 1050.2A at Appendixes A and E are incorporated by reference. 49 CFR Part 21.
- 11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO requirements. Such records shall be retained for a period of three years following the date of the final payment to the contractor for all contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA.
- a. The records kept by the contractor shall document the following:

FHWA – 1273 Page 3 of 13

- The number and work hours of minority and non- minority group members and women employed in each work classification on the project;
- (2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions, when applicable, to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women; and
- (3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women.
- b. The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of the project indicating the number of minority, women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work classification required by the contract work. This information is to be reported on Form FHWA-1391. The staffing data should represent the project work force on board in all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July. If on-the-job training is being required by special provision, the contractor will be required to collect and report training data. The employment data should reflect the work force on board during all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July.

III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of more than \$10,000. 41 CFR 60-1.5.

As prescribed by 41 CFR 60-1.8, the contractor must ensure that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin cannot result. The contractor may neither require such segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by employee custom. The contractor's obligation extends further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their services at any location under the contractor's control where the facilities are segregated. The term "facilities" includes waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing provided for employees. The contractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.

IV. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction projects exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size), in accordance with 29 CFR 5.5. The requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of-way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid highway. 23 U.S.C. 113. This excludes roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt. 23 U.S.C. 101.

Where applicable law requires that projects be treated as a project on a Federal-aid highway, the provisions of this subpart will apply regardless of the location of the project. Examples include: Surface Transportation Block Grant Program projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 133 [excluding recreational trails projects], the Nationally Significant Freight and Highway

Projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 117, and National Highway Freight Program projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 167.

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "Contract provisions and related matters" with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA- 1273 format and FHWA program requirements.

1. Minimum wages (29 CFR 5.5)

a. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.

Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH–1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- b. (1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
 - (i) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
 - (ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

FHWA – 1273 Page 4 of 13

- (iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

2. Withholding (29 CFR 5.5)

The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally- assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics,

including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and basic records (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis- Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- b. (1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the contracting agency. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.

Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency.

(2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or

FHWA – 1273 Page 5 of 13

subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

- (i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is correct and complete;
- (ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR part 3;
- (iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (3)The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH–347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of this section.
- (4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 31 U.S.C. 231.
- c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, after written notice to the contractor, the contracting agency or the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and trainees (29 CFR 5.5)

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL).

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State

Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.

The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed.

Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination.

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL).

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration.

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the

FHWA – 1273 Page 6 of 13

corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.

In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.
- d. Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT).

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill training programs which have been certified by the Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. 23 CFR 230.111(e)(2). The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and trainees under such programs will be established by the particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of the particular program.

- **5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.** The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract as provided in 29 CFR 5.5.
- **6. Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- 7. Contract termination: debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- 8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract as provided in 29 CFR 5.5.
- **9. Disputes concerning labor standards.** As provided in 29 CFR 5.5, disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor

set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of eligibility (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, $18\,U.S.C.\,1001.$

V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

Pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5(b), the following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and quards.

- 1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 29 CFR 5.5.
- 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 1 of this section, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 1 of this section, in the sum currently provided in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(2)* for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph 1 of this section, 29 CFR 5.5.
- * \$27 as of January 23, 2019 (See 84 FR 213-01, 218) as may be adjusted annually by the Department of Labor; pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990).

FHWA – 1273 Page 7 of 13

The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages.

- or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federallyassisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph 2 of this section. 29 CFR 5.5.
- 4. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1 through 4 of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1 through 4 of this section. 29 CFR 5.5.

VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts on the National Highway System pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116.

- 1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items designated by the contracting agency. Specialty items may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such specialty items performed may be deducted from the total original contract price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the contractor's own organization (23 CFR 635.116).
- a. The term "perform work with its own organization" in paragraph 1 of Section VI refers to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators. Such term does not include employees or equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees. The term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant Federal and State regulatory requirements. Leased employees may only be included in this term if the prime contractor meets all of the following conditions: (based on longstanding interpretation)
 - (1) the prime contractor maintains control over the supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased employees;
 - (2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of the work of the leased employees;
 - (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or exclude individual employees from work on the project;
 - (4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all other Federal regulatory requirements.
- b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or

- equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract. 23 CFR 635.102.
- 2. Pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116(a), the contract amount upon which the requirements set forth in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of material and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract provisions.
- 3333. Pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116(c), the contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations (regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its own organizational resources (supervision, management, and engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is necessary to assure the performance of the contract.
- 4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the contract. Written consent will be given only after the contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions and requirements of the prime contract. (based on long- standing interpretation of 23 CFR
- 5. The 30-percent self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting agencies may establish their own self-performance requirements. 23 CFR 635.116(d).

VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

- 1. In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR Part 635). The contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract. 23 CFR 635.108.
- 2. It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her health or safety, as determined under construction safety and health standards (29 CFR Part 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704). 29 CFR 1926.10.
- 3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance

FHWA - 1273 Page 8 of 13 with the construction safety and health standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704).

VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY PROJECTS

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high degree of reliability on statements and representations made by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal- aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, and honestly as possible. Willful falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR Part 635) in one or more places where it is readily available to all persons concerned with the project:

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows:

"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, or false report as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs of construction on any highway or related project submitted for approval to the Secretary of Transportation: or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, false report or false claim with respect to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in connection with the construction of any highway or related project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid Roads Act approved July 11, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended and supplemented;

Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years or both."

IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (42 U.S.C. 7606; 2 CFR 200.88; EO 11738)

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts in excess of \$150,000 and to all related subcontracts. 48 CFR 2.101; 2 CFR 200.326.

By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this contract or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, Federal-aid construction contractor, subcontractor, supplier, or vendor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders

or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal Highway Administration and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency. 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II

The contractor agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements of this Section in every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such requirements. 2 CFR 200.326.

X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA approval or that is estimated to cost \$25,000 or more – as defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.

1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective first tier participant is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction. 2 CFR 180.320.
- c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default. 2 CFR 180.325.
- d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 2 CFR 180.345 and 180.350.
- e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180, Subpart I, 180.900-180.1020, and 1200. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant

FHWA – 1273 Page 9 of 13

who has entered into a covered transaction with a recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).

- f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction. 2 CFR 180.330.
- g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the department or contracting agency, entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold. 2 CFR 180.220 and 180.300.
- h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. 2 CFR 180.300; 180.320, and 180.325. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. 2 CFR 180.335. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/). 2 CFR 180.300, 180.320, and 180.325.
- i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 2 CFR 180.325.

2. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier Participants:

- - (1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency, 2 CFR 180.335;.

- (2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property, 2 CFR 180.800;
- (3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) of this certification, 2 CFR 180.700 and 180.800; and
- (4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 2 CFR 180.335(d).
- (5) Are not a corporation that has been convicted of a felony violation under any Federal law within the two-year period preceding this proposal (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements); and
- (6) Are not a corporation with any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements).
- b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant should attach an explanation to this proposal. 2 CFR 180.335 and 180.340.

3. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants:

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders, and other lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or estimated to cost \$25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200). 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 2 CFR 180.365.
- d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180, Subpart I, 180.900 180.1020, and 1200. You may contact the person to which this proposal is

FHWA – 1273 Page 10 of 13

submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).

- e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated. 2 CFR 1200.220 and 1200.332.
- f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold. 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.
- g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services Administration. 2 CFR 180.300, 180.320, 180.330, and 180.335.
- h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 2 CFR 180.325.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Participants:

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals:

- (a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency, 2 CFR 180.355;
- (b) is a corporation that has been convicted of a felony violation under any Federal law within the two-year period preceding this proposal (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements); and
- (c) is a corporation with any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements)
- 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant should attach an explanation to this proposal.

* * * * *

XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS FOR LOBBYING

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed \$100,000. 49 CFR Part 20, App. A.

- 1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
- a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.
- 3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier

FHWA – 1273 Page 11 of 13

subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

XII. USE OF UNITED STATES-FLAG VESSELS:

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, or any other covered transaction. 46 CFR Part 381.

This requirement applies to material or equipment that is acquired for a specific Federal-aid highway project. 46 CFR 381.7. It is not applicable to goods or materials that come into inventories independent of an FHWA funded-contract.

When oceanic shipments (or shipments across the Great Lakes) are necessary for materials or equipment acquired for a specific Federal-aid construction project, the bidder, proposer, contractor, subcontractor, or vendor agrees:

- 1. To utilize privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to this contract, to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-flag commercial vessels. 46 CFR 381.7.
- 2. To furnish within 20 days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, 'on-board' commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in paragraph (b)(1) of this section to both the Contracting Officer (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading) and to the Office of Cargo and Commercial Sealift (MAR-620), Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590. (MARAD requires copies of the ocean carrier's (master) bills of lading, certified onboard, dated, with rates and charges. These bills of lading may contain business sensitive information and therefore may be submitted directly to MARAD by the Ocean Transportation Intermediary on behalf of the contractor). 46 CFR 381.7.

FHWA – 1273 Page 12 of 13

ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS ROAD CONTRACTS (23 CFR 633, Subpart B, Appendix B) This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid projects funded under the Appalachian Regional Development Act of 1965.

- 1. During the performance of this contract, the contractor undertaking to do work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work, shall give preference to qualified persons who regularly reside in the labor area as designated by the DOL wherein the contract work is situated, or the subregion, or the Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract work is situated, except:
- a. To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in the area are not available.
- b. For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ supervisory or specially experienced personnel necessary to assure an efficient execution of the contract work.
- c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to present or former employees as the result of a lawful collective bargaining contract, provided that the number of nonresident persons employed under this subparagraph (1c) shall not exceed 20 percent of the total number of employees employed by the contractor on the contract work, except as provided in subparagraph (4) below.
- 2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State Employment Service indicating (a) the classifications of the laborers, mechanics and other employees required to perform the contract work, (b) the number of employees required in each classification, (c) the date on which the participant estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other pertinent information required by the State Employment Service to complete the job order form. The job order may be placed with the State Employment Service in writing or by telephone. If during the course of the contract work, the information submitted by the contractor in the original job order is substantially modified, the participant shall promptly notify the State Employment Service.
- 3. The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified job applicants referred to him by the State Employment Service. The contractor is not required to grant employment to any job applicants who, in his opinion, are not qualified to perform the classification of work required.
- 4. If, within one week following the placing of a job order by the contractor with the State Employment Service, the State Employment Service is unable to refer any qualified job applicants to the contractor, or less than the number requested, the State Employment Service will forward a certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of applicants. Such certificate shall be made a part of the contractor's permanent project records. Upon receipt of this certificate, the contractor may employ persons who do not normally reside in the labor area to fill positions covered by the certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (1c) above.
- 5. The provisions of 23 CFR 633.207(e) allow the contracting agency to provide a contractual preference for the use of mineral resource materials native to the Appalachian region.
- 6. The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 through 4 of this Attachment A in every subcontract for work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work.

FHWA – 1273 Page 13 of 13

FEDERAL AID ATTACHMENT 9

STATE MANDATORY ADDENDUM TO FHWA-1273 REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS, FEDERAL AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS AS AMENDED OR SUPPLEMENTED

ALL CONTRACTORS MUST PROVIDE THIS LANGUAGE IN ANY CONTRACT WITH THEIR SUBCONTRACTORS AS REQUIRED BY 2 CFR PART 200 AND 2 CFR PART 200 APPENDIX II AND IS CURRENTLY NOT INCLUDED IN FHWA-1273, BUT IS REFLECTED IN PROPOSED AMENDMENTS NOT YET FINALIZED.

FHWA-1273 shall be read to include:

- 1. All references to "race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age or disability" shall be read to include "sexual orientation and gender identity".
- 2. SECTION IV. DAVIS-BACON ACT AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS shall apply if the project is defined to be on a Federal Aid highway, regardless of the location of the project in compliance with 23 USC 133(i).
- 3. SECTION IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT shall require in conformance with 2 CFR Part 200 and 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II that contractors on all Federal Aid construction contracts in excess of \$150,000 and all related subcontracts, supply contracts and vendor contracts "comply with all related standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 USC 1251-1387) as required by 2 CFR 200.326.
- 4. SECTION X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION shall be read to comply with 2 CFR Part 200 and 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II to replace the Excluded Parties List System with the System For Award Management (SAM) as required by 2 CFR Part 180.
- 5. If the work requires that cargo be shipped by oceanic transport or across the Great Lakes, in compliance with Section 3511 of the Duncan Hunter National Defense Authorization Act of 2009 amending the Cargo Preference Act, each contract shall require that cargoes financed "in any way with Federal funds for the account of any persons unless otherwise exempted" requires the use of US-flag vessels to transport the materials or equipment acquired for a specific Federal Aid construction project.

FEDERAL AID ATTACHMENT 10

FEDERAL MANDATORY EQUAL OPPORTUNITY LANGUAGE ON FEDERAL AID PROJECTS

(AUTHORITY SUBJECT TO 41 CFR 60-1.4 IN COMPLIANCE WITH 2 CFR PART 200 AND 2 CFR PART 200 APPENDIX II)

All Contractors regardless of the value of the contract shall have this mandatory clause with their subcontractors:

The Contractor/Subcontractor hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the Secretary of Labor at 41 CFR Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the following equal opportunity clause:

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

- (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:
 - Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- (2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
- (3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.
- (4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

- (7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: *Provided,* That if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.

The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

FEDERAL AID ATTACHMENT 11

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 31 USC 1352 and 49 CFR part 21, Contractor and all subcontractors are required to comply with this Attachment. Contractor and all subcontractors shall be responsible to fill out Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Standard Form – LLL (as contained in this Attachment) and report it to the NJDOT Contract Compliance Unit for appropriate disclosure to the Federal Government.

All Contracts and subcontracts over \$100,000 shall require the following mandatory language in every contract:

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- 1. No federal appropriate funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, or any employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Standard Form LLL (Federal Aid Attachment Form 11) in accordance with its instructions.
- The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not that \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Pt. 21, App. B

31 CFR Subtitle A (7-1-10 Edition)

APPENDIX B TO PART 21—DISCLOSURE FORM TO REPORT LOBBYING DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES Approved by OMB 0349-0046

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 (See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

1. Type of Federal Action: a. contract b. grant c. cooperative agreement d. loan e. loan guarantee f. loan insurance	2. Status of Federa a. bid/offer b. initial aw c. post-awa	application ard	3. Report Type: a. initial filing b. material change For Material Change Only: year quarter date of last report
4. Name and Address of Reporting Enti Prime Subawar Tier	•	5. If Reporting Ent and Address of	ity in No. 4 is Subawardee, Enter Name Prime:
Congressional District, if known: 6. Federal Department/Agency:		7. Federal Program	District, if known: n Name/Description: if applicable:
8. Federal Action Number, if known:		9. Award Amount, \$	if known:
10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Er (if individual, last name, first name	, Mi):	b. Individuals Perfordifferent from No (last name, first name, first name, first name)	ame, MI):
11. Amount of Payment (check all that a			it (check all that apply):
\$ actu 12. Form of Payment (check all that appl a. cash b. in-kind; specify: nature value	y):	a. retainer b. one-time c. commissi d. continger e. deferred f. other; spr	ion
14. Brief Description of Services Perform or Member(s) contacted, for Paymen	t Indicated in Item 1	1:	
15. Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLL-A attacl		et(s) SF-LLL-A, if necessary) No	
16. Information requested through this form is author section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a of fact upon which reliance was placed by the transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported annually and will be available for public inspection. If the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil g \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such fail	zed by title 31 U.S.C. material representation tier above when this is required pursuant to to the Congress semi- luty person who fails to benalty of not less than	Signature: Print Name: Title: Telephone No.:	Date:
Federal Use Only:			Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard Form - LLL

Pt. 21, App. B

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Use the SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet for additional information if the space on the form is inadequate. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.
- 2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.
- 3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.
- 5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee", then enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- 6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.
- 8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001."
- For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.
- (a) Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.
 - (b)Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI).
- 11. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (item 4) to the lobbying entity (item 10). Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made.
- 12. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the nature and value of the in-kind payment.
- 13. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If other, specify nature.
- 14. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed, or will be expected to perform, and the date(s) of any services rendered. Include all preparatory and related activity, not just time spent in actual contact with Federal officials. Identify the Federal official(s) or employee(s) contacted or the officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.
- 15. Check whether or not a SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet(s) is attached.
- 16. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 mintues per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, D.C. 20503.

31 CFR Subtitle A (7-1-10 Edition)

Approved by OMB 0348-0046

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES CONTINUATION SHEET

Reporting Entity:	Page	_ of

Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard Form - LLL-A

Conservation Measures

<u>Please note</u>, the CMs only apply to locations #11-15 as they fall within the bog turtle programmatic action area (within 300 feet).

Other locations: [1-10,16-18] are No Effect as they are outside of the programmatic action area.

Conservation Measures: 12a,16,21,22

Bog Turtle reached a Not Likely to Adversely Affect(NLAA) determination but requires adherence to the following conservation measures. (Reptile species)

Conservation Measure #12a: No intrusion of project activities into habitat. No entry of personnel on foot. No vehicle entry. No intrusion via hand tools or motorized equipment. No intrusion into habitat from equipment positioned outside of habitat (e.g., crane, backhoe). No staging or storage of vehicles, materials or equipment. No temporary work areas or access routes.

Conservation Measure #16: No vehicle use, including motorized construction equipment, other than within existing: areas of pavement (including work conducted from a bridge deck or roadway); railbeds; maintained unpaved roadways or trails; median strips; maintained, vegetated rights-of-way, berms, or slopes; or stormwater management facilities that normally contain standing water or in which vegetation is regularly mowed or removed. No intrusion into habitat from equipment positioned outside of habitat. This CM does not apply to the use of remote control vehicles in culverts.

Conservation Measure #21: Do not dispose of or stockpile any excavated man-made materials (e.g., pavement), construction materials (including riprap and gravel), or other man-made items or substances in habitat. Do not locate stockpiles within 150 feet of the wetland portion of habitat. Follow proper off-site disposal specifications /protocols for all material and debris, as well as for potentially contaminated materials. Ensure that trash and recycling receptacles at NJDOT owned or operated facilities (e.g., maintenance yards) and construction sites within 300 feet of wetland habitat are regularly emptied and remain in good condition.

Conservation Measure #22: Procedures for encountering bog turtles or other wildlife. All the following CMs apply to all projects and activities.

- a. If an apparently healthy, uninjured bog turtle is found in a construction zone (e.g., within the work area) upon initial inspection of the construction zone or during construction: (i) alert the on-site turtle construction monitor, if present, to relocate the turtle OR document the occurrence (observer, location, date, and time) and photograph the animal (both top and bottom) and relocate it a safe distance away from the work space to an area of suitable habitat; AND (ii) contact the Service and ENSP immediately; AND (iii) stop work within 300 feet of wetland habitat until further consultation is completed pursuant to the ESA. Do not relocate a turtle to the opposite side of a road from where it was found.
- b. If an apparently healthy, uninjured bog turtle is found near a construction zone (e.g., outside of the work area), and not within suitable habitat, alert the on-site turtle construction monitor, if present, OR document the occurrence (observer, location, date, and time) and photograph the turtle (both top and bottom) and relocate it a safe distance away from the work space to an area of suitable habitat. Do not relocate a turtle to the opposite side of a road from where it was found. Notify the Service and ENSP within 24 hours.
- c. If an apparently healthy, uninjured bog turtle is found near a construction zone (e.g., outside of work area) within an area of suitable habitat, alert the on-site turtle construction monitor, if present, OR document the occurrence (observer, location, date, and time) and photograph the turtle if possible (without handling it), and notify the Service and ENSP within 24 hours. Do not relocate the turtle.
- d. If an apparently injured, sick, or dead bog turtle is found anywhere, alert the on-site turtle construction monitor, if present, OR immediately notify the Service and ENSP. Stop work within 300 feet of wetland habitat if the animal was found in a construction zone.
- e. If apparently injured or sick wildlife (other than bog turtles; see 22d above) are found, contact a State-licensed wildlife

Conservation Measures Page 1 of 2

rehabilitator. Minimize handling or moving the animal except as instructed by a licensed rehabilitator, or unless the animal or any human is in imminent danger. If no rehabilitator can be reached, contact the local animal control authority.

- f. To the extent practicable, report rare wildlife sightings using ENSP's standard form.
- g. Personnel are advised to wash their hands thoroughly with soap and water after handling wildlife and, ideally, before, as well.

Conservation Measures Page 2 of 2

Notice of Executive Order 166 Requirement for Posting of Winning Proposal and Contract Documents

Principal State departments, agencies and independent State authorities must include the following notice in any solicitation:

Pursuant to Executive Order No. 166, signed by Governor Murphy on July 17, 2020, the Office of the State Comptroller ("OSC") is required to make all approved State contracts for the allocation and expenditure of COVID-19 Recovery Funds available to the public by posting such contracts on an appropriate State website. Such contracts will be posted on the New Jersey transparency website developed by the Governor's Disaster Recovery Office (GDRO Transparency Website).

The contract resulting from this [RFP/RFQ] is subject to the requirements of Executive Order No. 166. Accordingly, the OSC will post a copy of the contract, including the [RFP/RFQ], the winning bidder's proposal and other related contract documents for the above contract on the GDRO Transparency website.

In submitting its proposal, a bidder/proposer may designate specific information as not subject to disclosure. However, such bidder must have a good faith legal or factual basis to assert that such designated portions of its proposal: (i) are proprietary and confidential financial or commercial information or trade secrets; or (ii) must not be disclosed to protect the personal privacy of an identified individual. The location in the proposal of any such designation should be clearly stated in a cover letter, and a redacted copy of the proposal should be provided. A Bidder's/Proposer's failure to designate such information as confidential in submitting a bid/proposal shall result in waiver of such claim.

The State reserves the right to make the determination regarding what is proprietary or confidential and will advise the winning bidder/proposer accordingly. The State will not honor any attempt by a winning bidder/proposer to designate its entire proposal as proprietary or confidential and will not honor a claim of copyright protection for an entire proposal. In the event of any challenge to the winning bidder's/proposer's assertion of confidentiality with which the State does not concur, the bidder /proposer shall be solely responsible for defending its designation.

Confirmation Page

You have successfully completed your request for an Official Prevailing Wage Rate Determination. The wage rate determination details are displayed below. These details will also be emailed to the email address you provided.

Save the Confirmation No. for your records. Save and print all documents listed below. Please do not forget to complete the PWConfirmation.pdf and send it to the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development, Public Contracts Section.

If any of the links/attachments are not working, please email PWRIssues@dol.nj.gov. Explain which of the links/attachments are not working and provide the Confirmation No. Please note that this email address is for online technical issues only; any law or wage rate questions sent to this email address cannot be answered and will be deleted.

Confirmation No.: 79327

Date of Determination: 06/15/2023 10:19:10

NAME AND ADDRESS OF PUBLIC BODY AWARDING THE CONTRACT

Name NJ DOT FEIN XXXXX0001

Street 1035 Parkway Ave. City Ewing State NJ Zip 08625

Project No. 23418

NAME AND ADDRESS OF REQUESTING OFFICER

First Name Construction Last Name Services MI

Title Phone No. -- Ext.

Company Name NJ DOT Email cspd@dot.nj.gov

Street1035 Parkway Ave.CityEwingStateNJZip08625

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR WHO IS BEING AWARDED THE CONTRACT

Company Name IEW Construction Group, Inc. FEIN

Contact First Contact Last MI

Name Name Street City State NJ Zip

Contract Amount

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

LOCATION WHERE WORK WILL BE PERFORMED

Street City County Rate(s)

Various Locations

 BERGEN
 164101210-bergen-6-13-23.pdf

 ESSEX
 164101210-essex-6-13-23.pdf

 HUDSON
 164101210-hudson-6-13-23.pdf

 MORRIS
 164101210-morris-6-13-23.pdf

 SOMERSET
 164101210-somerset-6-13-23.pdf

 UNION
 164101210-union-6-13-23.pdf

 STATE WIDE RATES
 061112137-statewide-3-2-23.pdf

 PWConfirmation.PDF
 PWConfirmation.pdf

Print This Page

New Official Wage Rate Request



State of New Jersey

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
PO BOX 389
TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 08625-0389

List of Debarred Owners/Officers 6/1/23

LISTED CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS

PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A 34:11-56.37 AND 34:11-56.38 OF THE PREVAILING WAGE ACT

NO PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT MAY BE AWARDED TO ANY OF THE FOLLOWING CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS OR TO ANY FIRM, CORPORATION OR PARTNERSHIP IN WHICH THEY HAVE AN INTEREST UNTIL THE EXPIRATION DATE GIVEN.

Contractor	Certificate #	Expiration Date	Address	Address 2	County	City	State Zip Code		Debar Type
5 Star Reinforcement GA, LLC	733435	5/24/2025	320 Bledsoe Street			Carrollton	GA	30117 Debarred	red
A Z Construction of NJ Inc./ Alex DrywallA Z Construction of NJ Inc.	724615	9/28/2023	1038 Park Ave	Apt 11	Union	Plainfield	Z	7060 Debarred	red
AAJ Construction, Inc	729009	11/14/2025	84 Walters Mill Rd			Providence	NC	27315 Debarred	red
Abraham General Construction, LLC	706177	6/5/2026	39 Condit Terrace		Essex	West Orange	Z	7052 Debarred	red
All Installers Inc	730832	9/14/2024	2068 27th Street			Astoria	¥	11105 Debarred	red
All Set Construction Corp	735039	1/30/2026	49 Bisset Drive		Passaic	West Milford	Z	7480 Debarred	red
Almiron Construction, LLC	725614	11/3/2023	706 Sheridan Ave		Union	Roselle	Z	7203 Debarred	red
American Asphalt & Milling Services LLC	704558	6/4/2026	24 Murray Street		Essex	West Orange	Z	7052 Debarred	red
Applied Construction Services, Inc.	721039	10/12/2023	947 Market Street			Marcus Hook	PA	19061 Debarred	red
Arc Construction Management, Corp.Lance Dedeic	726877	6/13/2024	82 Midland Avenue			Montclair	Z	7042 Debarred	red
Barrett Roofs, Inc	600035	12/6/2023	21 ISE Street		Bergen	South Hackensack	2	7606 Debarred	red
Amazing Milwork LLCAmazing Milwork LLC	733705	5/23/2026	109 Meeker Ave			Newark	Z	7114 Debarred	red
BDK Contracting LLCBDK Contracting LLC	726214	7/25/2025	1 Fountain View Ave.		Middlesex	Jackson	Z	8527 Debarred	red
Bud Concrete Inc	611154	5/31/2025	200 South Black Horse Pik		Camden	Runnemede	Z	8078 Debarred	red
Building Construction Management LLC	660954	10/18/2023	110 E 20th Ave			North Wildwood	N	8260 Debarred	red
BWK Construction, LLC.	733010	7/27/2025	3150 Roberts Ave.	3C		Bronx	Μ	10461 Debarred	red
C. Restoration, Inc.	713970	1/24/2026	790 Bloomfield Avenue	D-1	Passaic	Clifton	Z	7012 Debarred	red
Caio Roca LLC	729757	11/23/2024	25 Fairmount Terrace			West Orange	Z	7052 Debarred	red
Campbell's Welding & Machinery Inc	98689	5/18/2024	194 Kings Hwy	Suite 3	Morris	Landing	Z	7850 Debarred	red
CCC20, LLC	729756	12/6/2025	208 N 9th			Newark	N 0	07107-3720 Debarred	red
CH Services Christophersen Holdings LLC	713269	4/4/2026	PO Box 564		Bergen	Saddle Brook	Z	7663 Debarred	red
Charsa Contractors, Inc.	727062	5/16/2026	457 Riverside Ave		Bergen	Lyndhurst	Z	7071 Debarred	red
Coastal Caulking & Restoration I, LLC	678384	10/19/2024	309 Bay Avenue		Cape May	Ocean City	Z	8226 Debarred	red
Code Green Solar, LLC.Code Green Solar, L.L.C.	694399	10/12/2023	204 Chelsea Ave.		Orange	Davenport	교	33837 Debarred	red
Conrow Construction Co. Inc. Conrow Construction Co. Inc.	606364	11/22/2024	1164 Pompton Avenue		Essex	Cedar Grove	Z	7009 Debarred	red
Coronel Construction	727755	6/14/2024	414 North 6 Street			Newark	Z	7107 Debarred	red
Custok General Construction LLC	730105	12/19/2024	126 Rivserside Ave #2			North Arlington	Z	7031 Debarred	red
D&K Construction Company	607381	10/17/2025	155 Union Ave		Middlesex	Middlesex	O N	08846-0884 Debarred	red

D. S. Rodrigues Construction LLC	723314	6/23/2025	729 W Shore Trail		Sussex	Sparta	2	7871 Debarred
DAA HVAC LLC	733931	11/22/2025	151 West 4th St.		Monmouth	Howell	2 :	7731 Debarred
Damar Construction CoDamar Construction Co	726876	11/16/2024	125 Brighton Ave.		Essex	East Orange	2 :	7017 Debarred
Daniel Rivera	688296	10/24/2025	827 West 6th Street		Union	Plaintield	2	7063 Debarred
DCLARKE RESOURCES INC	736158	5/17/2026	1 MAIDEN LANE	5TH FLOOR		New York	ž	10038 Debarred
DH Flooring, LLCDH Flooring LLC	732563	8/2/2025	50 Sternberger Ave	Apartment 11	Monmouth	Long Branch	2	7740 Debarred
DJ Moving and Installation, LLC	704340	3/8/2026	10 Gravatt Cir		Monmouth	Clarksburg	Z	8510 Debarred
Don Brennan, Jr. Mason Contractor	651924	11/1/2025	444 Cable Avenue		Ocean	Beachwood	2	8722 Debarred
Donald Drywall, LLC	695334	3/14/2026	646 Cross Street	Bldg. B Unit 26	Ocean	Lakewood	2	8701 Debarred
Drywall Builders Corp. Drywall Builders Corp.	/33068	3/13/2025	23 Emma Street		L	Plaintield	2 :	7063 Debarred
EL Abatement, Inc. EL Abatement, Inc.	/34924	4/4/2026	23 North 6th Street		ESSEX	Newark	2 2	/10/ Debarred
Electrical inecnanical Services incaka EMISEIEctrical Mechanical Services incaka EMIS	5151/3	3/15/2025	12 Crosswood way		Somerset	warren	2 3	7060 Deparred
Fortis ContractorsPortis Contractors	/31023	4/10/2026	3805 10th Ave			New York	À å	10034 Debarred
Fourth Dimension Door Co-fourth Dimension Door Co	602131	5/8/2026	2290 Finley Ave		Bucks	Bensalem	¥ :	19020 Deparred
Galo Contractors Group, LLC	/31000	5/10/2025	124 Whitehead Avenue		Middlesex	South River	2 :	8882 Deparred
General Construction Pro1, LLC	733001	9/6/2025	108 Stevens Place	Apt. 2		North Arlington	2 :	7031 Debarred
Hernandez Electric Inc. Hernandez Electric Inc.	725434	9/29/2023	21 Warren Street		Bergen	Bergentield	2 :	7621 Debarred
Hernandez Woodwork, LLC	/33181	4/4/2026	201 Joyce Kilmer Ave	, 100 mg		New Brunswick	2 2	8901 Deparred
Intercounty Paving Associates, LLC	56671	10/25/2024	484 Schooleys Mountain Rd	Suite 21	Warren	Hackettstown	2 :	7840 Debarred
J.W. Custom Homes, L.L.C.	/14160	11/3/2023	50 Oxbow Lane		Passaic	Newfoundland		
Jacobo Masonity Construction LLC	6/3335	3/28/2024	222 W Hazelwood Ave		Union	Kanway		U/U65-U/U6 Debarred
Jallsco Concrete Corp.	733486	2/13/2026	442 Westfield Ave		Onion	Elizabeth	2 2	7224 Pepared
James Dean Custom Carpentry, LLC	723186	1/28/2023	25 Age Ct			Howell	2 2	710F Debarred
JC Wiecnanical Contractors LLC	735299	8/15/2025	35 Ann St.			Newark	2 3	/105 Departed
JSV Construction	733464	8/5/2023	Po Box 9010		Hudson	North Bergen	2 2	7047 Debarred
Juarez ConstructionJuan Juarez	122161	1/19/2023	20 20 William Ave			Paterson	2 2	7110 Debarred
N HAINKAHAIN EN IERPRISES INC	704355	4/20/2024	20-21 Wagaraw Ru, Bing 35		Bergen	rair Lawn	2 2	7410 Departed
N&U Landscaping	730683	5/7/2026	335 Somerset St.		Middlesex	New Brunswick	2 1	8901 Departed
NGO CONSTRUCTION LLC	733691	5/24/2025	1841 Catawba Circle	Арактмент н	GOSSO	Tonofly	고 =	34/41 Debarred
Latz IIIC	0259370	5/4/2023	24 Well Chart		Dei gen	Flaming	2 2	7970 Deballed
Louisell Williams, LECCOINEII Williams, LEC	734063	8/13/2023	24 WIIIOW Street		Deligeil	A+60	2 2	9004 Debarred
Longwood Constituction III dustries, LLC	723030	10/3/2024	710 Bridgehore C+		Purlington	Pivoreido	2 2	8075 Dobarrod
Luis NC Collistinction Inc	735929	10/24/2023	020 Courall Avenue		Monmouth	Achini Bark	2 2	2712 Debarrod
Manager Construction Inc.	72555	10/24/2023	447 N 134h Chanat		INDOMINIONI INDOMI	Asbuily rain	2 2	7172 Departed
May Constant IIC	73230	2/11/2023	15001 Bodlar Mills Boad			Charlotto		/10/ Debailed
Mantu Mana Contraction 110	733777	3/23/2020	DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY OF		ojecaco	Hauthorns) <u>-</u>	Zez/8 Deballed
MDK Externition Inc	723195	4/23/2023	174 Burns Ave		Passail	nawulolile	2 2	7644 Debarred
MRE Global Corp	729763	12/20/24	1194 Belmont Ave		Paccair	North Haledon	2 2	7508 Deharred
North Jarsey Pro Builders 110	725625	9/28/2023	333 Godwin Ave		Rergen	Midland Park	2 2	7432 Debarred
Northstone Construction, LLC	729213	5/17/2026	1033 Route 46 East	Suite A-204	Passaic	Clifton	2 2	7013 Debarred
NY NJ Corporation and Excavating IncFrank Gilette. Owner	96069	3/7/2024	176 Oakland Mills Rd		Ocean	Manalapan	Z	7726 Debarred
Ochoa Frias ConstructionOchoa Frias Construction LLC	701690	7/7/2024	314 Ashton Ave	Apt 1R	Union	Linden	2	7036 Debarred
Paramount Builders Inc.	708488	8/2/2024	296 Oakwood Ave.		Passaic	North Haledon	2	7508 Debarred
Patrick General Construction LLC	726753	3/8/2024	5 Avon Rd			Springfield	N	7081 Debarred
Peralta's ConstructionPeralta's Construction LLC	731027	7/28/2024	365 14th Ave		Mercer	Newark	2	7103 Debarred
Premier Fence & Iron Works, Inc	722301	12/28/2024	5856 Penn Street		Philadelphia	Philadelphia	PA	19154 Debarred
Premier Security & Electronics, Inc.	631417	9/27/2023	253 Main St	Suite 213	Monmouth	Matawan	⊋ i	7747 Debarred
Premier Steel, Inc	729008	6/4/2026	1010 Abada Ct, NE	Apt 109	Brevard	Palm Bay	로 2	32905 Debarred
Quartz Solutions inc. Quartz Solutions inc.	1/777/	11/29/2023	10 Batch Blass			Fair Lawn		7410 Debarred
R C S Home Immovement II CR C S Home Immovement II C	726700	7/20/2023	41 Verson Terr			Edisoli Fast Oranga	2 2	7017 Debarred
Raw Construction II	725414	3/1/2025	7718 Pipers Swan St.			San Antonio	2 4	78251 Debarred
Rider Contractor LLC	734560	10/30/2025	951 Rodman Way			Baltimore	M Q M	21205 Debarred
RIS Construction CorpRIS Construction Corp	998669	7/17/2025	143 N Fullerton Ave	1st Floor	Essex	Montclair	2	7042 Debarred
Russo's Home Improvement LLC	703399	1/20/2024	419 46th Street	Apartment 4	Hudson	Union City	2	7087 Debarred
Scott Horner Construction	718000	11/17/2023	10402 Eastwood Dr		Florida	Bradenton	권	34211 Debarred
Service Painting, Inc.	698323	12/15/2024	200 Price Street		Delaware	Trainer	PA	19061 Debarred
Sharp General Contractors LLC	728713	7/19/2025	100 A Grove Street			Elmwood Park	2	7407 Debarred
Silva Brothers Construction Carpentry Inc. Silva Brothers Construction Carpentry Inc.	727341	6/14/2025	239 Progress Street			Riverside	2	8075 Debarred
Smith Glass & Metal Company, LLC	603958	10/5/2023	766 Ramsey Avenue		Union	Hillside		7205 Debarred
Super JJ Fire Sprinkler Subcontractor LP	725413	10/25/2025	16 Turnburry Road		Gloucester	Washington Township	_	7882 Debarred
Syllelgy systems - ugili, sound & video, ille. The Kaday Calling Team Inc	732997	3/13/2020	23 Vall Blackle Noad 248 Inclae Dlace		Inion	Flizabath	2 2	7206 Debarred
Three Sons Restoration LLC	677471	12/8/2023	1235 Morris Avenue		Union	Union	2 2	7083 Debarred
Tink Construction Services LLC	732414	5/16/2026	P.O. Box 10367		Mercer	Trenton	2 2	8650 Debarred

Triad Inc America	725233	9/13/2024	185 Caprice Court #7			Castlerock	8	80109	80109 Debarred
Tri-Tech Construction Corp II.Tri-Tech Construction Corp II.	731176	9/29/2024	262 Hudson Ave		Bergen	Hackensack	Z	7601	7601 Debarred
True Steel ConstructionTrue Steel Construction LLC	709526	5/7/2026	248 Thomas Street		Essex	Newark	Z	7114	7114 Debarred
UniMak LLC	647383	6/6/2024	82 Midland Ave		Bergen	Saddle Brook	Z	07663-0766	Debarred
V & P Altitude Corp.V & P Altitude Corp.	725412	9/28/2024	3709 Fort Hamilton Parkwa			Brooklyn	λ	11218	11218 Debarred
Valle Hermoso Construction Corporation	698919	12/12/2025	2222 Bosworth Ave.		Camden	Lindenwold	2	8021	8021 Debarred
Wallace General Contracting LLC	726851	12/18/2025	3525 Quakerbridge Rd.	Suite 903-V	Mercer	Hamilton	2	8619	8619 Debarred
Walls Systems Corp.	735685	2/13/2026	18 Sumo Village		Essex	Newark	Z	7114	7114 Debarred
Waterford Materials, LLC	654015	10/7/2024	PO Box 128		Camden	Atco	N	8004	8004 Debarred
WB Contracting Corp	720458	12/6/2023	19 Ise Street		Bergen	South Hackensack	2	2007	7606 Debarred
Wisetech Inc.	729507	10/20/2025	361 West Dewey Ave	Unit 9	Morris	Wharton	Z	7806	7806 Debarred
Zafir Construction Corp.	734088	7/25/2025	30 Austin Street Apt. 206		Essex	Newark	2	7114	Debarred



STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Department of Labor and Workforce Development
Division of Wage and Hour Compliance - Public Contracts Section
PO Box 389
Trenton, NJ 08625-0389

PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

The New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq.) requires that the Department of Labor and Workforce Development establish and enforce a prevailing wage level for workers engaged in public works in order to safeguard their efficiency and general well being and to protect them as well as their employers from the effects of serious and unfair competition.

Prevailing wage rates are wage and fringe benefit rates based on the collective bargaining agreements established for a particular craft or trade in the locality in which the public work is performed. In New Jersey, these rates vary by county and by the type of work performed.

Applicable prevailing wage rates are those wages and fringe benefits in effect on the date the contract is awarded. All pre-determined rate increases listed at the time the contract is awarded must also be paid, beginning on the dates specified. Rates that have expired will remain in effect until new rates are posted.

Prevailing Wage Rate

The prevailing wage rate for each craft will list the effective date of the rate and the following information:

W =Wage Rate per Hour

B = Fringe Benefit Rate per Hour*

T = Total Rate per Hour

* Fringe benefits are an integral part of the prevailing wage rate. Employers not providing such benefits must pay the fringe benefit amount directly to the employee each payday. Employers providing benefits worth less than the fringe benefit amount must pay the balance directly to the employee each payday.

Unless otherwise stated in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination, the fringe benefit rate for overtime hours remains at the straight time rate.

When the Overtime Notes in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination state that the overtime rates are "inclusive of benefits," the benefit rate is increased by the same factor as the wage rate (i.e. multiplied by 1.5 for time and one-half, multiplied by 2 for double time, etc.).

Apprentice Rate Schedule

An "apprentice" is an individual who is registered with the United States Department of Labor - Office of Apprenticeship and enrolled in a certified apprenticeship program during the period in which they are working on the public works project.

The apprentice <u>wage</u> rate is a percentage of the journeyman wage rate, unless otherwise indicated. The apprentice <u>benefit</u> rate is the full journeyman benefit rate, unless otherwise indicated.

If there is no apprentice rate schedule listed, the individual must be paid at least the journeyman rate even if that individual is in a certified apprentice program for that trade.

If there is no ratio of apprentices to journeymen listed for a particular craft, then the ratio shall be one (1) apprentice to every four (4) journeymen.

6/1/2023 Page 1 of 74

Comments/Notes

For each craft listed there will be comments/notes that cover the definition of the regular workday, shift differentials, overtime, recognized holidays, and any other relevant information.

Public Works Contractor Registration

The Public Works Contractor Registration Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48, et seq.) requires that **all** contractors, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors who are working on or who bid on public works projects register with the Department of Labor and Workforce Development. Applications are available at www.nj.gov/labor (click on Wage & Hour and then go to Registration & Permits).

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.51:

No contractor shall bid on any contract for public work as defined in section 2 of P.L.1963, c. 150 (C.34:11-56.26) unless the contractor is registered pursuant to this act. No contractor shall list a subcontractor in a bid proposal for the contract unless the subcontractor is registered pursuant to P.L.1999, c.238 (C.34:11-56.48 et seq.) at the time the bid is made. No contractor or subcontractor, including a subcontractor not listed in the bid proposal, shall engage in the performance of any public work subject to the contract, unless the contractor or subcontractor is registered pursuant to that act.

Snow Plowing

Snow plowing contracts are <u>not</u> subject to the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act or the Public Works Contractor Registration Act.

6/1/2023 Page 2 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/01/23
Journeyman (Mechanic)	W44.23 B28.63 T72.86
	172.00

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES					
As Shown	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year	Wage = %	of Jnymn	Wage	
Wage and Bene	40%	50%	60%	70%	80%	Bene = %	of Jnymn	Bene	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

COMMENTS/NOTES

THESE RATES MAY BE USED FOR THE FOLLOWING:

- Service/Repair/Maintenance Work to EXISTING facilities.
- Replacement or Installation of air conditioning and refrigeration equipment when the combined tonnage does not exceed 15 tons for refrigeration, or 25 tons for air conditioning.
- Replacement or Installation of "packaged" or "unitary" rooftop-type units when the combined tonnage of the units does not exceed 75 tons.

NOTE: These rates may NOT be used for any work in new construction (including work on new additions).

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 10:00 AM, Monday through Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second and third shifts shall be paid an additional 15% of the hourly rate.
- All shifts must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive days.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 3 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Boilermaker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

01/01/23
W53.50
B46.66
T100.16
W55.50
B47.71
T103.21
W48.50
B44.92
T93.42

Craft: Boilermaker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES					
1000 Hours	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%	95%		
Benefit =	38.07	39.03	40.03	41.00	41.99	42.97	43.93		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* 1 apprentice will be allowed for the first 5 journeyman, 1 apprentice for the next 10 journeymen and 1 apprentice for each succeeding 20 journeymen up to a maximum of 5 apprentices per contractor on any one job.

Craft: Boilermaker COMMENTS/NOTES

HIGH WORK: All apprentices working on the erection, repair, or dismantling of smoke stacks, standpipes, or water towers shall be paid the Journeyman rate.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall work 7½ hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 10%.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 20%.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Two, four day, 10 hour shifts may be worked at straight time Monday through Thursday. The day shift shall work four days, at 10 hours, for 10 hours pay. The second shift shall work four days, at nine and a half hours, for 10 hours pay, plus 10% the hourly rate for new work and .25 cents on repair work. Friday may be used as a make-up day at straight time, due to weather conditions, hoilday or any other circumstances beyond the employer's control.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.
- If any other craft employed by the same contractor, or a subcontractor thereof, receives double time in lieu of time and one-half, then the Boilermaker shall receive double time in lieu of time and one-half.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Four 10 hour days may be worked Monday through Thursday at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, holiday or other conditions beyond the control of the employer. Overtime shall be paid for any hours that exceed 10 hours per day or 40 hours per week.

6/1/2023 Page 4 of 74

County - BERGEN

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 5 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W35.45 B17.78 T53.23
General Foreman	W35.95 B17.78 T53.73
Mechanic	W33.95 B17.78 T51.73

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to MINOR REPAIR WORK ONLY (repair work in the field for which the contract amount does not exceed \$125,000.00), for boilers that do not produce electric or are not used in the heating of petroleum products.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 6 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Deputy Foreman	W51.00
	B36.28
	T87.28
Foreman	W55.75
	B36.28
	T92.03
Journeyman	W48.00
	B36.28
	T84.28

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES					
6 Months	40%	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	
Benefits	4.00	5.00	5.50	6.00	24.29	26.00	27.73	29.43	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. The first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to inclement weather.
- When Bricklayers/Stone Masons work on Saturday with Laborers, and no other crafts are working on the project for the day, benefits may be paid at straight time. If other crafts are present, the applicable overtime rate for benefits shall be paid.

6/1/2023 Page 7 of 74

County - BERGEN

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 8 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Carpenter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.56 T100.28
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.73 T87.27

Craft: Carpenter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%					
Benefit	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.56			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

For Solar installation- all work on solar projects that fall under the jurisdiction of the carpenters, and does not require an electrician, the ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen shall be 1:1.

Craft: Carpenter COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.56

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

6/1/2023 Page 9 of 74

County - BERGEN

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 10 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.47 T100.19
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.64 T87.18

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%							
Benefit	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.47					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.47

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there are 4 or more Carpenters of Resilient Flooring, 1 must be designated a Foreman.

FOR SYNTHETIC TURF INSTALLATION ONLY:

- The rate shall be 90% of the wage and benefit rate.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular wage rate plus 10%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular wage rate, the second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day or 40 per week, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day, at straight time, up to 8 hours, for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer, up to a total of 40 hours per week; hours in excess of 8 on Saturday shall

6/1/2023 Page 11 of 74

^{* 1} apprentice shall be allowed to every 2 journeymen or major fraction thereof. No more than 3 apprentices on any one job or project.

County - BERGEN

then be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the wage rate.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 12 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	10/20/22
Foreman	W50.97 B11.58 T62.55
Journeyman	W44.32 B10.78 T55.10

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%								
Benefit	12% of	Appren	tice	wage rate	for all	intervals	+ \$5.46					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION:

All residential construction (excluding commercial buildings and institutional housing), no more than four (4) floors in height above grade consisting of those projects involving the construction, alteration, or repair of town houses or row houses, single family homes, mobile homes, multi-family homes, mixed-use buildings that include commercial space on the first floor or below grade, and apartment buildings.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of banefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a

6/1/2023 Page 13 of 74

County - BERGEN

day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 14 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft:	Cement Mason	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Bricklayer, Stone Masor	n" Rates
Craft:	Cement Mason	COMMENTS/NOTES
***See	"Bricklayer, Stone Mason" Rates	***

6/1/2023 Page 15 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Commercial Painter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W48.02
	B29.51
	T77.53
General Foreman	W52.38
	B29.51
	T81.89
Journeyman	W43.65
	B29.51
	T73.16

Craft: Commercial Painter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
6 Months	40%	45%	55%	65%	70%	75%	80%	80%				
Benefits	8.85	8.85	11.25	11.25	12.30	13.30	15.10	15.10				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Commercial Painter COMMENTS/NOTES

* Commercial Painters perform work on all commercial structures such as offices, schools, hotels, shopping malls, restaurants, condominiums, etc.

Spraying, sandblasting, lead abatement work on commercial buildings, work performed above 3 stories or 30 feet in height, or using swing scaffolds requires an additional 10% of the wage rate.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day,

6/1/2023 Page 16 of 74

County - BERGEN

Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 17 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Diver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Diver	W63.24 B51.72 T114.96
Tender	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22

Craft: Diver COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: All dive crews must consist of a Tender, a Diver, and a standby Diver (standby Diver is the same rate as a Diver).

DEPTH & PENETRATION RATES: Divers shall be paid the following depth and penetration rates, in addition to the regular hourly rate, when applicable:

AIR DIVES: MIXED GAS DIVES:

0-59 feet: No additional wage 60-74 feet: + \$0.25 per foot 75-125 feet: + \$1.00 per foot 75-125 feet: + \$2.00 per foot

PENETRATION DIVES:

126-200 feet: + \$1.50 per foot 201-275 feet: + \$1.75 per foot 276-350 feet: + \$2.00 per foot 351-425 feet: + \$2.50 per foot

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 18 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Foreman	W59.23 B51.72 T110.95
Foreman (Concrete Form Work)	W58.13 B38.36 T96.49
Journeyman	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22
Journeyman (Concrete Form Work)	W50.55 B38.36 T88.91

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	20.60	25.75	33.48	41.20								
Benefits	33.96	for all	intervals									

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* When there are 4 or fewer Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers on a job, no more than 1 may be an apprentice. When there are 5 or more Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers, there may be 1 apprentice for every 5 Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers.

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONCRETE FORM WORK ONLY:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
Yearly 20.22 25.28 32.86 40.44

Benefits 26.14 for all intervals

CREOSOTE HANDLING:

When handling creosote products on land piledriving, floating marine construction, and construction of wharves, the worker shall receive an additional \$0.25 per hour.

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK:

- Hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where Level A, B, or C personal protection is required: an additional 20% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- Hazardous waste removal work in Level D, or where personal protection is not required: an additional \$1.00 per hour.

CERTIFIED WELDER: When required on the job by the project owner, a Certified Welder shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

The first Dockbuilder/Pile Driver on the job shall be designated a Foreman.

6/1/2023 Page 19 of 74

County - BERGEN

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 20 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Drywall Finisher PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W47.17
	B29.54
	T76.71
General Foreman	W49.31
	B29.54
	T78.85
Journeyman	W42.88
	B29.54
	T72.42

Craft: Drywall Finisher APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	50%		60%	70%		80%	90%			
Benefits	Intervals	1 to 2 =	11.45	Intervals	3 to 4 =	14.33	Intervals	5 to 6 =	18.04		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Drywall Finisher COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 21 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Electrician PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23	06/01/24
Assistant General	W74.93	W76.74
Foreman	B46.83	B47.96
	T121.76	T124.70
Foreman	W71.86	W73.59
	B44.91	B45.99
	T116.77	T119.58
General Foreman (150 +	W82.92	W84.92
Journeyman workers on	B51.83	B53.08
site)	T134.75	T138.00
General Foreman (23-149	W77.39	W79.25
Journeyman workers on	B48.37	B49.53
site)	T125.76	T128.78
Journeyman as a Crane	W71.86	W73.59
Operator, as a Welder, as	B44.91	B45.99
a Cable Splicer	T116.77	T119.58
Journeyman on Radio	W74.93	W76.74
Tower Work	B46.83	B47.96
	T121.76	T124.70
Journeyman Wireman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.39	B39.31
	T99.81	T102.21
Layout Man	W66.95	W68.56
	B41.84	B42.85
	T108.79	T111.41

Craft: Electrician APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	17.95	23.39	29.91	35.89	41.87							
Benefit =	11.22	14.62	18.69	22.43	26.17							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-1-23:

Interval Period and Rates

Yearly 18.43 24.57 30.71 36.85 42.99 Benefits 11.52 15.36 19.19 23.03 26.87

6/1/2023 Page 22 of 74

County - BERGEN

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-1-24:

Interval Period and Rates

Yearly 18.87 25.16 31.45 37.74 44.03 Benefits 11.79 15.73 19.66 23.59 27.52

THESE RATES ALSO APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING TYPES OF WORK:

- All fire and burglar alarm work.
- All fiber optic work.
- Teledata work in new construction or involving 16 instruments or more.
- All residential construction (single family homes and apartments) of 5 units or more. Note: fire walls alone are not a determining criteria.

HIGH WORK:

- 40 feet above ground/floor: +22% of the Total Rate
- Transmission towers, and Smokestacks: +22% of the Total Rate

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there is only 1 Journeyman electrician, who lays out his or her own job from plans, that electrician shall receive the Foreman rate.
- On any job where there are 2 or more electricians, 1 shall be a Foreman.
- On all jobs, every 10 electricians shall have 1 designated a Foreman.
- On any job where there are 23 or more electricians, 1 shall be a General Foreman.
- On any job where there are 50 or more electricians, 1 shall be an Assistant General Foreman, and 1 shall be a General Foreman.

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 1st Shift (between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM)
- 2nd Shift (between 4:30 PM and 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, plus an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift: (between 12:30 AM and 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work, plus an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, between 7:00 AM and 6:30 PM, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 23 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/06/22	12/04/23	12/02/24
Journeyman Technician	W46.29	W0.00	W0.00
(1-2 workers on job)	B26.62	B0.00	B0.00
	T72.91	T74.86	T76.66
Master Tech./Gen.	W60.18	W0.00	W0.00
Foreman	B34.60	B0.00	B0.00
(over 25 workers on job)	T94.78	T96.09	T97.89
Senior Tech./Asst. Gen.	W55.09	W0.00	W0.00
Foreman	B31.67	B0.00	B0.00
(16-25 workers on job)	T86.76	T88.30	T90.10
Technician A/Foreman	W52.77	W0.00	W0.00
(9-15 workers on job)	B30.35	B0.00	B0.00
	T83.12	T84.77	T86.57
Technician B/Foreman	W50.46	W0.00	W0.00
(4-8 workers on job)	B29.01	B0.00	B0.00
	T79.47	T81.23	T83.03
Technician C/Foreman	W48.15	W0.00	W0.00
(2-3 workers on job)	B27.68	B0.00	B0.00
	T75.83	T77.69	T79.49

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES											
6 Months	35%	35%	40%	43%	48%	54%	61%	67%	74%	81%			
Benefits			57.5% of	Journeym an	Tech.	wage	rate						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTES:

- 1) These rates are for service, maintenance, moves and/or changes affecting 15 instruments or less. These rates may NOT be used for any new construction or any fiber optic work.
- 2) The number of workers on the jobsite is the determining factor for which Foreman category applies.

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 1st Shift (between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM)
- 2nd Shift (between 4:30 PM and 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, plus an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift: (between12:30 AM and 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work, plus an additional 15% of the

6/1/2023 Page 24 of 74

County - BERGEN

regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours before outside the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 on Saturday and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked between Monday and Friday, between the hours of 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM. A make-up day may be used for the day not being worked during the four 10-hour day schedule if a holiday occurs during the week or for any other conditions that prevent an employee from working during the four 10-hour day schedule.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Saturday holidays will be observed the preceding Friday.

6/1/2023 Page 25 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Electrician" Rates	
Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	COMMENTS/NOTES
See	ELECTRICIAN Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 26 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
	00/20/20	00/00/21
Assistant General	W74.93	W76.74
Foreman	B47.39	B48.54
	T122.32	T125.28
Equipment Repairman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Equipment Serviceman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Foreman	W71.86	W73.59
	B45.45	B46.55
	T117.31	T120.14
General Foreman (150 +	W82.92	W84.92
Journeyman workers on	B52.45	B53.71
job site)	T135.37	T138.63
General Foreman (23-149	W77.39	W79.25
Journeyman workers on	B48.95	B50.13
job site)	T126.34	T129.38
Groundsman (performs	W41.15	W42.14
empty conduit installations	B26.03	B26.65
on roadways)	T67.18	T68.79
Journeyman as a Crane	W71.86	W73.59
Operator, as a Welder, as	B45.45	B46.55
a Cable Splicer	T117.31	T120.14
Journeyman as a	W61.42	W62.90
Lineman, as a Wireman	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Journeyman- Layout Man	W66.95	W68.56
	B42.35	B43.36
	T109.30	T111.92
X-Ray Journeyman	W61.42	W62.90
Technician	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68

6/1/2023 Page 27 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	34.88	37.78	40.69	43.60	46.50	49.41	52.32					
Benefits	63.25%	of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate						

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-30-22:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 35.89 38.88 41.87 44.87 47.86 50.85 53.84

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-29-23:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 36.85 39.92 42.99 46.07 49.14 52.21 55.28

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-3-24:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 37.74 40.89 44.03 47.18 50.32 53.47 56.61

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

* FOR UTILITY WORK PLEASE SEE STATEWIDE RATES

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

HIGH WORK:

40 FEET ABOVE GROUND/FLOOR: +21% OF THE Total Rate.

Radio towers, Transmission towers and Smokestacks: +21% of the Total Rate.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

On any job where there is only 1 Journeyman electrician, who lays out his or her own job from plans, that electrician shall receive the Foreman rate.

On any job where there are 2 or more electricians, 1 shall be a Foreman.

On all jobs, every 11 electricians shall have 1 designated a Foreman.

On any job where there are 23 or more electricians, 1 shall be a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7.5 hrs. work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits

3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7 hrs. work + an additional 15% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and Holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

6/1/2023 Page 28 of 74

County - BERGEN

New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 29 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft:	Electrician-Utility Work (North)	PREVAILING WAGE RATE

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES											
* 6 Months	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%						
Benefits	69% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals						

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (North) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 30 of 74

^{*} The apprentice wage rate is paid at the percentage of the Journeyman Lineman wage rate located in the "Statewide" rate package.

County - BERGEN

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South) PREVAILING WAGE RATE

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
6 Months	31.65	34.29	36.93	39.56	42.20	44.84	47.78					
Benefits	28.02	29.62	31.20	32.80	34.40	36.00	37.58					

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (South) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 31 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Elevator Constructor PREVAILING WAGE RATE

		03/29/23
_		00/20/20
	Journeyman	W77.49
		B45.23
		T122.72

Craft: Elevator Constructor APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	34.60	42.62	50.37	58.12								
Benefits	35.56	36.49	38.02	39.55								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Constructor COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of either 7 or 8 hours to be established at the beginning of the project, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

For all hours worked before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday, shall be paid at double the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus double the hourly rate for all hours worked.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 32 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W60.89
	B44.07
	T104.96

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	34.60	33.49	39.58	45.67						
Benefits	35.50	36.07	37.52	38.97						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

COMMENTS/NOTES

MODERNIZATION (addition, replacement, refurbishing, relocation, or changes in design or appearance, of elevator equipment in existing buildings):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus time and one-half the hourly rate for all hours worked.

SERVICE (repair or replacement of parts for the purpose of maintaining elevator equipment in good operating condition):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS (Modernization and Service): New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 33 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Glazier PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/18/22
* Leadman	W51.48
	B29.13 T80.61
	160.01
Foreman	W53.48
	B29.37
	T82.85
General Foreman	W55.48
	B29.61
	T85.09
Journeyman	W49.48
	B28.89
	T78.37

Craft: Glazier APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	90%		
Benefits	9.75	9.75	12.36	12.36	15.60	15.60	17.02	17.02		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Glazier COMMENTS/NOTES

Hazard/Height Pay: +\$1.00 per hour

* When there are three (3) men working on a jobsite for three (3) days or longer, 1 Journeyman may be designated as a Leadman for the duration of the job, provided he has his OSHA certification.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM, Monday to Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular

6/1/2023 Page 34 of 74

County - BERGEN

rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 35 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Foreman	W60.72
	B36.22
	T96.94
General Foreman	W63.06
	B37.33
	T100.39
Journeyman	W58.44
	B35.66
	T94.10
Journeyman	T100.39 W58.44 B35.66

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	27.38	32.49	39.13	45.71						
Benefits	20.86	24.73	27.41	30.01						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to the installing of insulation on hot and cold mechanical systems.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- Second Shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- Third Shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 36 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Asbestos Helper	W36.89
Abatement	B24.92
	T61.81

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
	SEE	НЕАТ &	FROST	INSULAT						
				OK .						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply only to the removal of insulation materials/asbestos from mechanical systems, including containment erection and demolition, and placing material in appropriate containers.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- The second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME: The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 37 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
Foreman	W63.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T98.20	T100.20	T102.20	T104.20
General Foreman	W65.78	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T100.70	T102.70	T104.70	T106.70
Journeyman	W58.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T93.20	T95.20	T97.20	T99.20

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges

COMMENTS/NOTES

These rates apply to: All bridges that span waterways, roadways, railways and canyons. All tunnels, overpasses, viaducts and all appurtenances.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 38 of 74

^{*} Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as bridges.

County - BERGEN

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 39 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
Foreman	W52.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T84.59	T86.59	T88.59	T90.59
General Foreman	W54.52	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T87.09	T89.09	T91.09	T93.09
Journeyman	W47.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T79.59	T81.59	T83.59	T85.59

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
	SEE	INDUST	RIAL	PAINTER	BRIDGES					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All work in power plants (any aspect). On steeples, on dams, on hangers, transformers, substations, on all open steel, in refineries, tank farms, water/sewerage treatment facilities and on pipelines.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except for Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During the regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 40 of 74

County - BERGEN

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 41 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
Foreman	W53.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T85.29	T87.29	T89.29	T91.29
General Foreman	W55.57	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T87.79	T89.79	T91.79	T93.79
Journeyman	W48.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T80.29	T82.29	T84.29	T86.29

Craft: Industrial Painter-Water Tanks APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All new and repaint water tanks (interior and exterior).

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 42 of 74

County - BERGEN

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 43 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Ironworker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	07/01/22
Rod/Fence Journeyman	W45.39
	B48.92
	T94.31
Rod/Fence Foreman	W48.39
	B48.92
	T97.31
Structural Foreman	W50.69
	B48.92
	T99.61
Structural Journeyman	W47.69
	B48.92
	T96.61

Craft: Ironworker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	60% Yearly 70% 80% 90%								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Ironworker COMMENTS/NOTES

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK: On hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where the Ironworker is required to wear Level A,B, or C personal protection: +\$3.00 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

When there are 2 or more Ironworkers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis.
- When an irregular shift is established for the Ironworker (Structural) classification, the rate shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. When an irregular shift is established for the Rod/Fence classification, the shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive the regular rate, plus 20%.

OVERTIME:

6/1/2023 Page 44 of 74

County - BERGEN

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. Saturday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 45 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	08/09/22
Foreman	W41.38 B24.21 T65.59
Journeyman (Handler)	W36.78 B24.21 T60.99

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	22.07	25.75	29.42	33.10						
Benefit	22.06	for	all	intervals						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to work in connection with Asbestos, Radiation, Hazardous Waste, Lead, Chemical, Biological, Mold Remediation and Abatement.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. (Holidays start at 12:00 am).

6/1/2023 Page 46 of 74

^{*} Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

County - BERGEN

Craft: Laborer - Building PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Class A Journeyman	W38.00
	B32.17
	T70.17
Class B Journeyman	W37.00
	B32.17
	T69.17
Class C Journeyman	W31.45
	B32.17
	T63.62
Foreman	W42.75
	B32.17
	T74.92
General Foreman	W47.50
	B32.17
	T79.67

Craft: Laborer - Building APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	60%	70%	80%	90%	of Class B	wage rate				
Benefit	28.92	28.92	28.92	28.92						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

Craft: Laborer - Building

COMMENTS/NOTES

CLASS A: Specialist laborer including mason tender or concrete pour crew; scaffold builder (scaffolds up to 14 feet in height); operator of forklifts, Bobcats (or equivalent machinery), jack hammers, tampers, motorized tampers and compactors, vibrators, street cleaning machines, hydro demolition equipment, riding motor buggies, conveyors, burners; and nozzlemen on gunite work.

CLASS B: Basic laborer - includes all laborer work not listed in Class A or Class C.

CLASS C: Janitorial-type light clean-up work associated with the TURNOVER of a project, or part of a project, to the owner. All other clean-up work is Class B.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When a 2-shift schedule is worked, including a day shift, both shifts shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.
- When a 3-shift schedule is worked, the day shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked, the second shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours worked, and the third shift shall be established

Page 47 of 74

County - BERGEN

on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7 hours worked. The day shift shall receive the regular rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.

- When a second or third shift is worked with no day shift, the second or third shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established this shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day (paid at straight time) for a day lost to inclement weather, or for a holiday that is observed during the work week, Monday through Friday. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday to Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at time and one-half.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 48 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
----------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
1000 Hours	60%	70%	80%	90%						
Benefit	23.98	for	all	intervals						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

COMMENTS/NOTES

Heavy & General Laborer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 49 of 74

^{*} No more than 1 apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than 1 apprentice for each additional 3 journeymen.

County - BERGEN

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/23
* Skilled Tradesman (only applies to Modular Construction)	W27.90 B5.45 T33.35
Foreman (person directing crew, regardless of his skill classification)	W31.90 B5.45 T37.35
Laborer (for single family and stand-alone duplex owned by single owner)	W17.85 B2.95 T20.80
Residential and Modular Construction Laborer	W23.90 B5.45 T29.35

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
As shown	800 hours	00 hours 600 hours 600 hours								
wage & benefits	70%	80%	90%							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen-

One (1) apprentice shall be allowed for the first journeyman on site and no more than one (1) additional apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen on site.

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

* SKILLED TRADESMAN-

any worker doing work not typically done by a Building Laborer. Some examples are installing interior doors, sheet rock, hooking up appliances, installing light fixtures, installing railing systems, etc. Please note where local building codes require that certain work be performed under the supervision of a licensed tradesman (i.e. Plumber, Electrician, etc.) Laborers shall work under such supervision.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- All residential construction (not commercial), single-family, stand-alone duplex houses, townhouses and multi-family buildings of not more than four (4) floors. Each housing unit must be fully and independently functional; each housing unit must have its own kitchen and bathroom. The definition includes all incidental items such as site work, parking areas, utilities, streets and sidewalks. Please note the construction must be Residential in nature. A First Floor at or below grade may contain commercial space not to exceed 50% square footage of the floor; at least 50% of the First Floor must contain living accommodations or related nonresidential uses (e.g. laundry space, recreation/hobby rooms, and/or corridor space). Basement stories below grade used for storage, parking, mechanical systems/equipment, etc., are considered basement stories which are not used in determining the building's height even if used for storage purposes. In addition, barracks and dormitories are not considered residential projects.

MODULAR RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- all aspects of modular residential construction (not commercial) at the site of installation of structures of no more than four (4) stories, including all excavation and site preparation, footings and

6/1/2023 Page 50 of 74

County - BERGEN

foundation systems whether poured on-site or prefabricated, all underground waterproofing, underground utilities, concrete slabs, sidewalks, driveways, paving, hardscape and landscaping. Please note the construction must be Residential as defined above. All work performed by the Set Crew (the crew of workers who set the modular boxes on the foundation), including the rigging, setting, attaching and assembly of all modules and structural members, preparation of the foundation to accept modules, such as sill plates, connection of all in-module and under-module connections including, but not limited to, plumbing, electrical, HVAC, fire suppression, CATS, telephone, television/internet, and fiber optic, the building or installation of any porches or decks regardless of material or method of construction, the on-site installation of, or completion of any roof system, doors, windows and fenestrations, including flashing, gutter and soffit systems, waterproofing, insulation and interior and exterior trim work, and painting. Please note that modular construction does not include on-site stick built construction, tip up construction or panel built construction.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day/40 per week, Monday through Saturday, and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOILDAYS:

New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 51 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Millwright PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W64.35 B38.57 T102.92
Journeyman	W55.96 B33.62 T89.58

Craft: Millwright APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	0% 55% 65% 80% 90%								
Benefits	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.61		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Millwright COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Millwrights on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 52 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Operating Engineer I	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
-----------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	60%	70% 80% 90%								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 53 of 74

^{* 1} apprentice for each piece of heavy equipment. At least 10 pieces of heavy equipment or a minimum of 5 Operating Engineers must be on site.

County - BERGEN

Craft:	Operating Engineer - Field Engineer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--------	-------------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	70%	0% 75% of Rod/ Chainman Wage								
Yearly			80%	90%	Transit/	Instrument	man	Wage		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer - Field Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 54 of 74

^{*} No more than 1 Field Engineer Apprentice per Survey Crew.

County - BERGEN

Craft: Painter - Line Striping PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/07/22
Apprentice (1st year)	W29.15
	B14.75
	T43.90
Apprentice (2nd year)	W33.25
	B25.70
	T58.95
Foreman (Charge Person)	W42.05
	B26.48
	T68.53
Journeyman 1 (at least 1	W37.28
year of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T63.76
Journeyman 2 (at least 2	W41.05
years of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T67.53

Craft: Painter - Line Striping COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 55 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Paperhanger PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W52.82 B29.51 T82.33
Journeyman	W48.02 B29.51 T77.53

Craft: Paperhanger APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES											
	SEE	COMME	CIAL	PAINTER									
		K											

Craft: Paperhanger COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Paperhangers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day

6/1/2023 Page 56 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Pipefitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/03/23
Foreman	W63.60 B41.54 T105.14
Journeymen	W59.57 B41.54 T101.11

Craft: Pipefitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	20.85	26.81	32.76	38.72	44.68							
Benefit	27.74	29.86	31.99	34.11	36.23							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Pipefitter COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Pipefitter on a job must be a Foreman.
- There must be a Foreman for every 6 Pipefitters on a job, not counting apprentices.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (between 4:00PM and 12:00AM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 25% per hour.
- 3rd Shift (between 12:00AM and 8:00AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked at straight time, Monday through Thursday, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, the first 10 hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All remaining overtime shall be paid as stated above.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS - SERVICE & MAINTENANCE WORK:

- The 2nd shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 10% per hour.
- The 3rd shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 15% per hour.

OVERTIME - SERVICE & MAINTENANCE WORK:

- All hours outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of

6/1/2023 Page 57 of 74

County - BERGEN

benefits.

NOTE: Service and Maintenance work is work to repair, restore, or improve the efficiency of existing facilities. This does NOT apply to ANY new construction.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 58 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft:	Plasterer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE	

See Bricklayer, Stone Mason Rates

Craft: Plasterer COMMENTS/NOTES

See BRICKLAYER, STONE MASON Rates

6/1/2023 Page 59 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Plumber PREVAILING WAGE RATE

05/02/23
W64.25
B41.62
T105.87
W68.41
B41.62
T110.03
W59.49
B41.62
T101.11

Craft: Plumber APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	30%	45%	55%	65%	75%							
Benefit	17.09	23.48	25.72	27.96	30.19							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Plumber COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job having 2 or more Plumbers, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 9 or more Plumbers, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must continue for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When two shifts are worked, the second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the hourly rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a third shift is worked, the third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the hourly rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before of after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 60 of 74

^{*} Employers may employ 1 apprentice on any job where 1 or 2 journeymen are employed. Thereafter, 1 apprentice may be employed for every 4 journeymen.

County - BERGEN

Craft: Roofer PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/22
Foreman	W46.00
	B27.01
	T73.01
Journeyman	W44.00
	B27.01
	T71.01
Mop Man	W44.75
	B27.01
	T71.76
Sub-Foreman	W44.50
	B27.01
	T71.51

Craft: Roofer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES											
6 months	17.63	22.00	25.08	28.16	31.24	34.32	37.40	40.48					
Benefit	8.91	for all	intervals										

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* Re-roofing work: 1:1 New roofing work: 2:3

Craft: Roofer COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTES:

- Working with pitch (including on tear-offs): + \$1.00 per hour
- Working with asbestos: + \$1.00 per hour
- On Solar projects (with no roofing work included): \$1.00 less per hour.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there is only 1 roofer on the project, he shall be designated a "Sub-Foreman".
- When 2 or more roofers are on the project, 1 shall be designated a "Foreman".
- When 6 or more roofers are on the project, 1 shall be designated a "Foreman", and there shall be 1 "Sub-Foreman" for every 6 roofers (or fraction thereof).

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

1st Shift (7:00 am to 3:30 pm)

2nd Shift (3:30 pm to 12:00 am) shall be paid an additional 10% per hour.

3rd Shift (12:00 am to 7:00 am) shall be paid an additional 20% per hour.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

6/1/2023 Page 61 of 74

County - BERGEN

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 62 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/22
Foreman	W41.29 B38.97 T80.26
Journeyman	W39.29 B38.97 T78.26

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES											
1000 hours	35%	40%	45%	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%			
Benefits	13.19	15.02	16.88	18.74	21.06	22.94	24.83	26.73	28.62	30.50			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENT:

When there are 6 or more Sheet Metal Sign Installers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday though Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Four (4) 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, for projects lasting at least one week in duration. The fifth day may be used as a make-up day at straight time for a day lost due to inclement weather. However, if the fifth day is not a make-up day, all hours worked will be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the preceding Friday, Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 63 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/06/22
Foreman	W56.98
	B48.69
	T105.67
General Foreman	W57.98
	B48.69
	T106.67
Journeyman	W53.48
	B48.69
	T102.17

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	35%	% 45% 55% 65% of Journey man Wage Rate										
Benefit	35%	45%	55%	65%	of	Journey	man	Benefit	Rate			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 17 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.
- When there is only 1 Sheet Metal Worker (1 Journeyman) on a project, he/she shall receive \$1.00 more than the regular Journeyman's rate.

The regular workday is 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM 12:00 AM): +17% of regular hourly rate
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 per day on Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, with hours in excess of 10 per day, and hours in excess of 40 per week paid at the overtime rates listed above.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 64 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W69.82
	B35.80
	T105.62
General Foreman	W73.15
	B35.80
	T108.95
Journeyman	W65.32
	B35.80
	T101.12
	1

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES										
1000 hours	80% 85%								85%		
Benefits						Intervals	9 to 10	Jourymn	Ben.		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter COMMENTS/NOTES

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-13:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 25% 30% 40% 45% 55% 60% 70% 75% 85% 90% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 1ntervals 7-10 Journy. Ben.

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-22:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 70% 85% 95% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 Intervals 7-10 Journy. Ben

The regular workday consists of 8 consecutive hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Sprinkler Fitter on the job must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 12 or more Sprinkler Fitters, one must be designated a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 2 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd and 3rd shift shall receive an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour.
- Any "off hours" shift starting at 8:00 PM or later shall receive an additional 25% of the regular rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be

6/1/2023 Page 65 of 74

County - BERGEN

paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Hours worked in excess of 10 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, Sunday and holidays, shall be paid double the regular rate.

Four 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight-time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 66 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
	01/02/23
Finisher	W49.32
	B36.62
	T85.94

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
750 Hours	40%	0% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%										
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 67 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/05/22
Finisher	W48.04 B32.26 T80.30
Setter	W62.62 B35.39 T98.01

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
750 Hours	35%	5% 40% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 90%								90%		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Saturdays after 10 hours shall be paid double the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 68 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

01/02/23
W62.82
B39.03
T101.85

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	40%	0% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%									
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jrynm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1.4

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 69 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Grinder or Assistant	W58.67 B39.00 T97.67
Mechanic	W60.28 B39.01 T99.29
Terrazzo Resinous Worker	W50.32 B31.63 T81.95

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
750 Hours	50%	1% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95% 100%										

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 7-1-17:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

1500 Hours 35% 45% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

The regular workday consists of 7 hours, between 8:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 7 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Monday after Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 70 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Truck Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23	05/01/24
	00/01/20	00/01/27
Bucket, Utility,	W44.25	W46.25
Pick-up, Fuel	B41.03	B42.38
Delivery trucks	T85.28	T88.63
Dump Truck,	W44.25	W46.25
Asphalt Distributor,	B41.03	B42.38
Tack Spreader	T85.28	T88.63
Euclid-type vehicles	W44.40	W46.40
(large, off-road	B41.03	B42.38
equipment)	T85.43	T88.78
Helper on	W44.25	W46.25
Asphalt Distributor	B41.03	B42.38
	T85.28	T88.63
Low Boy Driver	W45.90	W47.90
	B41.03	B42.38
	T86.93	T90.28
Slurry Seal,	W44.25	W46.25
Vacuum or Vac-All	B41.03	B42.38
trucks	T85.28	T88.63
Straight 3-axle truck	W44.30	W46.30
	B41.03	B42.38
	T85.33	T88.68
Tractor Trailer	W44.40	W46.40
(all types)	B41.03	B42.38
	T85.43	T88.78
Winch Trailer	W44.50	W46.50
	B41.03	B42.38
	T85.53	T88.88

Craft: Truck Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate" which shall be 80% of the above-listed wage rates, plus the full benefit rate. This rate shall be used when the driver "round robins" for a minimum of 6 hours during the work day.

HAZARDOUS WASTE REMOVAL:

- On hazardous waste removal work on a State designated hazardous waste site where the driver is in direct contact with hazardous materials and when personal protective equipment is required for respiratory, skin, and eye protection, the driver shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour (with or without protective gear).
- A hazardous waste related certified worker at a designated hazardous waste site who is not working in a zone requiring level A, B or C personal protection shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

TRUCK FOREMAN: \$.75 cents per hour above regular rate. Overtime shall be increased accordingly.

6/1/2023 Page 71 of 74

County - BERGEN

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shifts starting at 4:00 PM (2nd Shift): + \$3.00 per hour.
- Shifts starting at 12:00 AM (midnight/3rd Shift): time and one-half the hourly rate.
- Shifts starting at a time other than from 6:00 AM to 8:00 AM, when such hours are mandated by the project owner: + \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Employees may work four 10-hour days at straight time, Monday through Thursday, with Friday used as a make-up day for a lost day. If Friday is not a make-up day, then all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.
- Benefits on overtime shall be \$39.43.
- As of 5-1-23, benefits on overtime shall be \$40.78.
- As of 5-1-24, benefits on overtime shall be \$42.13.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 72 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23 05/01/2			
Driver	W36.60	W38.60		
	B41.03	B42.38		
	T77.63	T80.98		

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate". See the "Truck Driver" craft for the blended rates.

The regular workday is 8 hours, starting between 5:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

For shifts beginning between 4:00 PM and 10:00 PM, drivers shall receive an additional \$0.50 per hour.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before of after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 73 of 74

County - BERGEN

Craft:	Welder	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	Welder	
Craft:	Welder	COMMENTS/NOTES

Welders rate is the same as the craft to which the welding is incidental.

6/1/2023 Page 74 of 74



STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Department of Labor and Workforce Development
Division of Wage and Hour Compliance - Public Contracts Section
PO Box 389
Trenton, NJ 08625-0389

PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

The New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq.) requires that the Department of Labor and Workforce Development establish and enforce a prevailing wage level for workers engaged in public works in order to safeguard their efficiency and general well being and to protect them as well as their employers from the effects of serious and unfair competition.

Prevailing wage rates are wage and fringe benefit rates based on the collective bargaining agreements established for a particular craft or trade in the locality in which the public work is performed. In New Jersey, these rates vary by county and by the type of work performed.

Applicable prevailing wage rates are those wages and fringe benefits in effect on the date the contract is awarded. All pre-determined rate increases listed at the time the contract is awarded must also be paid, beginning on the dates specified. Rates that have expired will remain in effect until new rates are posted.

Prevailing Wage Rate

The prevailing wage rate for each craft will list the effective date of the rate and the following information:

W =Wage Rate per Hour

B = Fringe Benefit Rate per Hour*

T = Total Rate per Hour

* Fringe benefits are an integral part of the prevailing wage rate. Employers not providing such benefits must pay the fringe benefit amount directly to the employee each payday. Employers providing benefits worth less than the fringe benefit amount must pay the balance directly to the employee each payday.

Unless otherwise stated in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination, the fringe benefit rate for overtime hours remains at the straight time rate.

When the Overtime Notes in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination state that the overtime rates are "inclusive of benefits," the benefit rate is increased by the same factor as the wage rate (i.e. multiplied by 1.5 for time and one-half, multiplied by 2 for double time, etc.).

Apprentice Rate Schedule

An "apprentice" is an individual who is registered with the United States Department of Labor - Office of Apprenticeship and enrolled in a certified apprenticeship program during the period in which they are working on the public works project.

The apprentice <u>wage</u> rate is a percentage of the journeyman wage rate, unless otherwise indicated. The apprentice <u>benefit</u> rate is the full journeyman benefit rate, unless otherwise indicated.

If there is no apprentice rate schedule listed, the individual must be paid at least the journeyman rate even if that individual is in a certified apprentice program for that trade.

If there is no ratio of apprentices to journeymen listed for a particular craft, then the ratio shall be one (1) apprentice to every four (4) journeymen.

6/1/2023 Page 1 of 73

Comments/Notes

For each craft listed there will be comments/notes that cover the definition of the regular workday, shift differentials, overtime, recognized holidays, and any other relevant information.

Public Works Contractor Registration

The Public Works Contractor Registration Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48, et seq.) requires that **all** contractors, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors who are working on or who bid on public works projects register with the Department of Labor and Workforce Development. Applications are available at www.nj.gov/labor (click on Wage & Hour and then go to Registration & Permits).

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.51:

No contractor shall bid on any contract for public work as defined in section 2 of P.L.1963, c. 150 (C.34:11-56.26) unless the contractor is registered pursuant to this act. No contractor shall list a subcontractor in a bid proposal for the contract unless the subcontractor is registered pursuant to P.L.1999, c.238 (C.34:11-56.48 et seq.) at the time the bid is made. No contractor or subcontractor, including a subcontractor not listed in the bid proposal, shall engage in the performance of any public work subject to the contract, unless the contractor or subcontractor is registered pursuant to that act.

Snow Plowing

Snow plowing contracts are <u>not</u> subject to the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act or the Public Works Contractor Registration Act.

6/1/2023 Page 2 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/01/23
Journeyman (Mechanic)	W44.23
	B28.63
	T72.86

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
As Shown	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year	Wage = %	of Jnymn	Wage			
Wage and Bene	40%	50%	60%	70%	80%	Bene = %	of Jnymn	Bene			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

COMMENTS/NOTES

THESE RATES MAY BE USED FOR THE FOLLOWING:

- Service/Repair/Maintenance Work to EXISTING facilities.
- Replacement or Installation of air conditioning and refrigeration equipment when the combined tonnage does not exceed 15 tons for refrigeration, or 25 tons for air conditioning.
- Replacement or Installation of "packaged" or "unitary" rooftop-type units when the combined tonnage of the units does not exceed 75 tons.

NOTE: These rates may NOT be used for any work in new construction (including work on new additions).

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 10:00 AM, Monday through Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second and third shifts shall be paid an additional 15% of the hourly rate.
- All shifts must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive days.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 3 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Boilermaker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W53.50
	B46.66
	T100.16
General Foreman	W55.50
	B47.71
	T103.21
Journeyman	W48.50
	B44.92
	T93.42

Craft: Boilermaker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%	95%				
Benefit =	38.07	39.03	40.03	41.00	41.99	42.97	43.93				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* 1 apprentice will be allowed for the first 5 journeymen, 1 apprentice for the next 10 journeymen and 1 apprentice for each succeeding 20 journeymen up to a maximum of 5 apprentices per contractor on any one job.

Craft: Boilermaker COMMENTS/NOTES

HIGH WORK: All apprentices working on the erection, repair, or dismantling of smoke stacks, standpipes, or water towers shall be paid the Journeyman rate.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall work 7½ hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 10%.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 20%.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Two, four day, 10 hour shifts may be worked at straight time Monday through Thursday. The day shift shall work four days, at 10 hours, for 10 hours pay. The second shift shall work four days, at nine and a half hours, for 10 hours pay, plus 10% the hourly rate for new work and .25 cents on repair work. Friday may be used as a make-up day at straight time, due to weather conditions, hoilday or any other circumstances beyond the employer's control.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.
- If any other craft employed by the same contractor, or a subcontractor thereof, receives double time in lieu of time and one-half, then the Boilermaker shall receive double time in lieu of time and one-half.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Four 10 hour days may be worked Monday through Thursday at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, holiday or other conditions beyond the control of the employer. Overtime shall be paid for any hours that exceed 10 hours per day or 40 hours per week.

6/1/2023 Page 4 of 73

County - ESSEX

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 5 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W35.45 B17.78 T53.23
General Foreman	W35.95 B17.78 T53.73
Mechanic	W33.95 B17.78 T51.73

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to MINOR REPAIR WORK ONLY (repair work in the field for which the contract amount does not exceed \$125,000.00), for boilers that do not produce electric or are not used in the heating of petroleum products.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 6 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Deputy Foreman	W51.00
	B36.28
	T87.28
Foreman	W55.75
	B36.28
	T92.03
Journeyman	W48.00
	B36.28
	T84.28

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%		
Benefits	4.00	5.00	5.50	6.00	24.29	26.00	27.73	29.43		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. The first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to inclement weather.
- When Bricklayers/Stone Masons work on Saturday with Laborers, and no other crafts are working on the project for the day, benefits may be paid at straight time. If other crafts are present, the applicable overtime rate for benefits shall be paid.

6/1/2023 Page 7 of 73

County - ESSEX

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 8 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Carpenter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.56 T100.28
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.73 T87.27

Craft: Carpenter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%						
Benefit	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.56				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

For Solar installation- all work on solar projects that fall under the jurisdiction of the carpenters, and does not require an electrician, the ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen shall be 1:1.

Craft: Carpenter COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.56

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

6/1/2023 Page 9 of 73

County - ESSEX

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 10 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.47 T100.19
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.64 T87.18

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%						
Benefit	59%	of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.47			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.47

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there are 4 or more Carpenters of Resilient Flooring, 1 must be designated a Foreman.

FOR SYNTHETIC TURF INSTALLATION ONLY:

- The rate shall be 90% of the wage and benefit rate.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular wage rate plus 10%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular wage rate, the second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day or 40 per week, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day, at straight time, up to 8 hours, for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer, up to a total of 40 hours per week; hours in excess of 8 on Saturday shall

6/1/2023 Page 11 of 73

^{* 1} apprentice shall be allowed to every 2 journeymen or major fraction thereof. No more than 3 apprentices on any one job or project.

County - ESSEX

then be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the wage rate.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 12 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	10/20/22
Foreman	W50.97 B11.58 T62.55
Journeyman	W44.32 B10.78 T55.10

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%							
Benefit	12% of	Appren	tice	wage rate	for all	intervals	+ \$5.46				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION:

All residential construction (excluding commercial buildings and institutional housing), no more than four (4) floors in height above grade consisting of those projects involving the construction, alteration, or repair of town houses or row houses, single family homes, mobile homes, multi-family homes, mixed-use buildings that include commercial space on the first floor or below grade, and apartment buildings.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a

6/1/2023 Page 13 of 73

County - ESSEX

day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 14 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft:	Cement Mason	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Bricklayer, Stone Masor	n" Rates
Craft:	Cement Mason	COMMENTS/NOTES
***See	"Bricklayer, Stone Mason" Rates	***

6/1/2023 Page 15 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Commercial Painter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

05/02/23
W48.02
B29.51
T77.53
W52.38
B29.51
T81.89
W43.65
B29.51
T73.16

Craft: Commercial Painter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 months	40%	45%	55%	65%	70%	75%	80%	80%			
Benefits	8.85	8.85	11.25	11.25	12.30	12.30	15.10	15.10			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Commercial Painter COMMENTS/NOTES

* Commercial Painters perform work on all commercial structures such as offices, schools, hotels, shopping malls, restaurants, condominiums, etc.

Spraying, sandblasting, lead abatement work on commercial buildings, work performed above 3 stories or 30 feet in height, or using swing scaffolds requires an additional 10% of the wage rate.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day,

6/1/2023 Page 16 of 73

County - ESSEX

Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 17 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Diver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Diver	W63.24 B51.72 T114.96
Tender	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22

Craft: Diver COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: All dive crews must consist of a Tender, a Diver, and a standby Diver (standby Diver is the same rate as a Diver).

DEPTH & PENETRATION RATES: Divers shall be paid the following depth and penetration rates, in addition to the regular hourly rate, when applicable:

AIR DIVES: MIXED GAS DIVES:

0-59 feet: No additional wage 60-74 feet: + \$0.25 per foot 75-125 feet: + \$1.00 per foot 75-125 feet: + \$2.00 per foot

PENETRATION DIVES:

126-200 feet: + \$1.50 per foot 201-275 feet: + \$1.75 per foot 276-350 feet: + \$2.00 per foot 351-425 feet: + \$2.50 per foot

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 18 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Foreman	W59.23 B51.72 T110.95
Foreman (Concrete Form Work)	W58.13 B38.36 T96.49
Journeyman	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22
Journeyman (Concrete Form Work)	W50.55 B38.36 T88.91

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	20.60	25.75	33.48	41.20								
Benefits	33.96	for all	intervals									

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONCRETE FORM WORK ONLY:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
Yearly 20.22 25.28 32.86 40.44

Benefits 26.14 for all intervals

CREOSOTE HANDLING:

When handling creosote products on land piledriving, floating marine construction, and construction of wharves, the worker shall receive an additional \$0.25 per hour.

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK:

- Hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where Level A, B, or C personal protection is required: an additional 20% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- Hazardous waste removal work in Level D, or where personal protection is not required: an additional \$1.00 per hour.

CERTIFIED WELDER: When required on the job by the project owner, a Certified Welder shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

The first Dockbuilder/Pile Driver on the job shall be designated a Foreman.

6/1/2023 Page 19 of 73

^{*} When there are 4 or fewer Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers on a job, no more than 1 may be an apprentice. When there are 5 or more Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers, there may be 1 apprentice for every 5 Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers.

County - ESSEX

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 20 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Drywall Finisher PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W47.17
	B29.54
	T76.71
General Foreman	W49.31
	B29.54
	T78.85
Journeyman	W42.88
	B29.54
	T72.42

Craft: Drywall Finisher APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	0% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%									
Benefits	Intervals	1 to 2 =	11.45	Intervals	3 to 4 =	14.33	Intervals	5 to 6 =	18.04		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Drywall Finisher COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 21 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Electrician PREVAILING WAGE RATE

		·
	06/01/23	06/01/24
Assistant General	W74.93	W76.74
Foreman	B46.83	B47.96
	T121.76	T124.70
Foreman	W71.86	W73.59
	B44.91	B45.99
	T116.77	T119.58
General Foreman (150 +	W82.92	W84.92
Journeyman workers on	B51.83	B53.08
job site)	T134.75	T138.00
General Foreman (23-149	W77.39	W79.25
Journeyman workers on	B48.37	B49.53
job site)	T125.76	T128.78
Journeyman as a Crane	W71.86	W73.59
Operator, as a Welder, as	B44.91	B45.99
a Cable Splicer	T116.77	T119.58
Journeyman on Radio	W74.93	W76.74
Tower Work	B46.83	B47.96
	T121.76	T124.70
Journeyman Wireman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.39	B39.31
	T99.81	T102.21
Layout Man	W66.95	W68.56
	B41.84	B42.85
	T108.79	T111.41

Craft: Electrician APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	17.95	23.39	29.91	35.89	41.87						
Benefit =	11.22	14.62	18.69	22.43	26.17						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-1-23:

Interval Period and Rates

Yearly 18.43 24.57 30.71 36.85 42.99 Benefits 11.52 15.36 19.19 23.03 26.87

6/1/2023 Page 22 of 73

County - ESSEX

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-1-24:

Interval Period and Rates

Yearly 18.87 25.16 31.45 37.74 44.03 Benefits 11.79 15.73 19.66 23.59 27.52

THESE RATES ALSO APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING TYPES OF WORK:

- All fire and burglar alarm work.
- All fiber optic work.
- Teledata work in new construction or involving 16 instruments or more.
- All residential construction (single family homes and apartments) of 5 units or more. Note: fire walls alone are not a determining criteria.

HIGH WORK:

- 40 feet above ground/floor: +22% of the Total Rate
- Transmission towers, and Smokestacks: +22% of the Total Rate

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there is only 1 Journeyman electrician, who lays out his or her own job from plans, that electrician shall receive the Foreman rate.
- On any job where there are 2 or more electricians, 1 shall be a Foreman.
- On all jobs, every 10 electricians shall have 1 designated a Foreman.
- On any job where there are 23 or more electricians, 1 shall be a General Foreman.
- On any job where there are 50 or more electricians, 1 shall be an Assistant General Foreman, and 1 shall be a General Foreman.

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 1st Shift (between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM)
- 2nd Shift (between 4:30 PM and 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, plus an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift: (between 12:30 AM and 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work, plus an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, between 7:00 AM and 6:30 PM, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 23 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/06/22	12/04/23	12/02/24
Journeyman Technician	W46.29	W0.00	W0.00
(1-2 workers on job)	B26.62	B0.00	B0.00
	T72.91	T74.86	T76.66
Master Tech./Gen.	W60.18	W0.00	W0.00
Foreman	B34.60	B0.00	B0.00
(over 25 workers on job)	T94.78	T96.09	T97.89
Senior Tech./Asst. Gen.	W55.09	W0.00	W0.00
Foreman	B31.67	B0.00	B0.00
(16-25 workers on job)	T86.76	T88.30	T90.10
Technician A/Foreman	W52.77	W0.00	W0.00
(9-15 workers on job)	B30.35	B0.00	B0.00
	T83.12	T84.77	T86.57
Technician B/Foreman	W50.46	W0.00	W0.00
(4-8 workers on job)	B29.01	B0.00	B0.00
	T79.47	T81.23	T83.03
Technician C/Foreman	W48.15	W0.00	W0.00
(2-3 workers on job)	B27.68	B0.00	B0.00
	T75.83	T77.69	T79.49

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
6 Months	35%	35%	40%	43%	48%	54%	61%	67%	74%	81%		
Benefit			57.5% of	Journeym an	Tech.	wage	rate					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTES:

- 1) These rates are for service, maintenance, moves and/or changes affecting 15 instruments or less. These rates may NOT be used for any new construction or any fiber optic work.
- 2) The number of workers on the jobsite is the determining factor for which Foreman category applies.

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 1st Shift (between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM)
- 2nd Shift (between 4:30 PM and 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, plus an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift: (between 12:30 AM and 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work, plus an additional 15% of the

6/1/2023 Page 24 of 73

County - ESSEX

regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or outside the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 on Saturday and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked between Monday and Friday, between the hours of 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM. A make-up day may be used for the day not being worked during the four 10-hour day schedule if a holiday occurs during the week or for any other conditions that prevent an employee from working during the four 10-hour day schedule.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Saturday holidays will be observed the preceding Friday.

6/1/2023 Page 25 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Electrician" Rates	
Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	COMMENTS/NOTES
See	ELECTRICIAN Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 26 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
Assistant General	W74.93	W76.74
Foreman	B47.39	B48.54
	T122.32	T125.28
Equipment Repairman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Equipment Serviceman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Foreman	W71.86	W73.59
	B45.45	B46.55
	T117.31	T120.14
General Foreman (150 +	W82.92	W84.92
Journeyman workers on	B52.45	B53.71
job site)	T135.37	T138.63
General Foreman (23-149	W77.39	W79.25
Journeyman workers on	B48.95	B50.13
job site)	T126.34	T129.38
Groundsman (performs	W41.15	W42.14
empty conduit installations	B26.03	B26.65
on roadways)	T67.18	T68.79
Journeyman as a Crane	W71.86	W73.59
Operator, as a Welder, as	B45.45	B46.55
a Cable Splicer	T117.31	T120.14
Journeyman as a	W61.42	W62.90
Lineman, as a Wireman	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Journeyman- Layout Man	W66.95	W68.56
	B42.35	B43.36
	T109.30	T111.92
X-Ray Journeyman	W61.42	W62.90
Technician	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68

6/1/2023 Page 27 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	34.88	37.78	40.69	43.60	46.50	49.41	52.32					
Benefits	63.25%	of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate						

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-30-22:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 35.89 38.88 41.87 44.87 47.86 50.85 53.84

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-29-23:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 36.85 39.92 42.99 46.07 49.14 52.21 55.28

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-3-24:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 37.74 40.89 44.03 47.18 50.32 53.47 56.61

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

* FOR UTILITY WORK PLEASE SEE STATEWIDE RATES

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

HIGH WORK:

40 FEET ABOVE GROUND/FLOOR: +21% OF THE Total Rate.

Radio towers, Transmission towers and Smokestacks: +21% of the Total Rate.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

On any job where there is only 1 Journeyman electrician, who lays out his or her own job from plans, that electrician shall receive the Foreman rate.

On any job where there are 2 or more electricians, 1 shall be a Foreman.

On all jobs, every 11 electricians shall have 1 designated a Foreman.

On any job where there are 23 or more electricians, 1 shall be a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7.5 hrs. work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits

3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7 hrs. work + an additional 15% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and Holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

6/1/2023 Page 28 of 73

County - ESSEX

New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 29 of 73

County - ESSEX

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
* 6 Months	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%					
Benefits	69% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals					

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (North) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 30 of 73

^{*} The apprentice wage rate is paid at the percentage of the Journeyman Lineman wage rate located in the "Statewide" rate package.

County - ESSEX

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South) PREVAILING WAGE RATE

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
6 Months	31.65	34.29	36.93	39.56	42.20	44.84	47.78					
Benefits	28.02	29.62	31.20	32.80	34.40	36.00	37.58					

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (South) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 31 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Elevator Constructor PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W77.49 B45.23 T122.72

Craft: Elevator Constructor APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	34.60	42.62	50.37	58.12						
Benefits	35.56	36.49	38.02	39.55						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Constructor COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of either 7 or 8 hours to be established at the beginning of the project, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

For all hours worked before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday, shall be paid at double the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus double the hourly rate for all hours worked.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 32 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W60.89
	B44.07
	T104.96

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	34.60	33.49	39.58	45.67						
Benefits	35.50	36.07	37.52	38.97						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

COMMENTS/NOTES

MODERNIZATION (addition, replacement, refurbishing, relocation, or changes in design or appearance, of elevator equipment in existing buildings):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus time and one-half the hourly rate for all hours worked.

SERVICE (repair or replacement of parts for the purpose of maintaining elevator equipment in good operating condition):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS (Modernization and Service): New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 33 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Glazier PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/18/22
* Leadman	W51.48
	B29.13
	T80.61
Foreman	W53.48
	B29.37
	T82.85
General Foreman	W55.48
	B29.61
	T85.09
Journeyman	W49.48
	B28.89
	T78.37

Craft: Glazier APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	0% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 90%								
Benefits	9.75	9.75	12.36	12.36	15.60	15.60	17.02	17.02		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Glazier COMMENTS/NOTES

Hazard/Height Pay: +\$1.00 per hour

* When there are three (3) men working on a jobsite for three (3) days or longer, 1 Journeyman may be designated as a Leadman for the duration of the job, provided he has his OSHA certification.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM, Monday to Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular

6/1/2023 Page 34 of 73

County - ESSEX

rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 35 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Foreman	W60.72
	B36.22
	T96.94
General Foreman	W63.06
	B37.33
	T100.39
Journeyman	W58.44
	B35.66
	T94.10

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	27.38	.38 32.49 39.13 45.71								
Benefits	20.86	24.73	27.41	30.01						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to the installing of insulation on hot and cold mechanical systems.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- Second Shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- Third Shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 36 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Asbestos Helper	W36.89
Abatement	B24.92
	T61.81

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
	SEE	OP									
				OK .							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply only to the removal of insulation materials/asbestos from mechanical systems, including containment erection and demolition, and placing material in appropriate containers.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- The second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME: The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 37 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26	
Foreman	W63.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T98.20	T100.20	T102.20	T104.20	
General Foreman	W65.78	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T100.70	T102.70	T104.70	T106.70	
Journeyman	W58.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T93.20	T95.20	T97.20	T99.20	

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	% 70% 90%								
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges

COMMENTS/NOTES

These rates apply to: All bridges that span waterways, roadways, railways and canyons. All tunnels, overpasses, viaducts and all appurtenances.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 38 of 73

^{*} Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as bridges.

County - ESSEX

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 39 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26			
Foreman	W52.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00			
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00			
	T84.59	T86.59	T88.59	T90.59			
General Foreman	W54.52	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00			
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00			
	T87.09	T89.09	T91.09	T93.09			
Journeyman	W47.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00			
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00			
	T79.59	T81.59	T83.59	T85.59			

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
	SEE	INDUST	RIAL	PAINTER	BRIDGES					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All work in power plants (any aspect). On steeples, on dams, on hangers, transformers, substations, on all open steel, in refineries, tank farms, water/sewerage treatment facilities and on pipelines.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except for Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During the regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 40 of 73

County - ESSEX

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 41 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
Foreman	W53.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T85.29	T87.29	T89.29	T91.29
General Foreman	W55.57	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T87.79	T89.79	T91.79	T93.79
Journeyman	W48.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T80.29	T82.29	T84.29	T86.29

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All new and repaint water tanks (interior and exterior).

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 42 of 73

County - ESSEX

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 43 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Ironworker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	07/01/22
Rod/Fence Foreman	W48.39
	B48.92
	T97.31
Rod/Fence Journeyman	W45.39
	B48.92
	T94.31
Structural Foreman	W50.69
	B48.92
	T99.61
Structural Journeyman	W47.69
	B48.92
	T96.61

Craft: Ironworker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	60%		Yearly	70%	80%	90%				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Ironworker COMMENTS/NOTES

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK: On hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where the Ironworker is required to wear Level A,B, or C personal protection: +\$3.00 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

When there are 2 or more Ironworkers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis.
- When an irregular shift is established for the Ironworker (Structural) classification, the rate shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. When an irregular shift is established for the Rod/Fence classification, the shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive the regular rate, plus 20%.

OVERTIME:

6/1/2023 Page 44 of 73

County - ESSEX

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. Saturday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 45 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	08/09/22
Foreman	W41.38 B24.21 T65.59
Journeyman (Handler)	W36.78 B24.21 T60.99

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	22.07	25.75	29.42	33.10								
Benefits	22.06	for	all	intervals								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to work in connection with Asbestos, Radiation, Hazardous Waste, Lead, Chemical, Biological, Mold Remediation and Abatement.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. (Holidays start at 12:00 am).

6/1/2023 Page 46 of 73

^{*} Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

County - ESSEX

Craft: Laborer - Building PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Class A Journeyman	W38.00
	B32.17
	T70.17
Class B Journeyman	W37.00
	B32.17
	T69.17
Class C Journeyman	W31.45
	B32.17
	T63.62
Foreman	W42.75
	B32.17
	T74.92
General Foreman	W47.50
	B32.17
	T79.67

Craft: Laborer - Building APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
6 Months	60%	70%	80%	90%	of Class B	wage rate						
Benefit	28.92	28.92	28.92	28.92								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

Craft: Laborer - Building

COMMENTS/NOTES

CLASS A: Specialist laborer including mason tender or concrete pour crew; scaffold builder (scaffolds up to 14 feet in height); operator of forklifts, Bobcats (or equivalent machinery), jack hammers, tampers, motorized tampers and compactors, vibrators, street cleaning machines, hydro demolition equipment, riding motor buggies, conveyors, burners; and nozzlemen on gunite work.

CLASS B: Basic laborer - includes all laborer work not listed in Class A or Class C.

CLASS C: Janitorial-type light clean-up work associated with the TURNOVER of a project, or part of a project, to the owner. All other clean-up work is Class B.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When a 2-shift schedule is worked, including a day shift, both shifts shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.
- When a 3-shift schedule is worked, the day shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked, the second shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours worked, and the third shift shall be established

6/1/2023 Page 47 of 73

County - ESSEX

on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7 hours worked. The day shift shall receive the regular rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.

- When a second or third shift is worked with no day shift, the second or third shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established this shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day (paid at straight time) for a day lost to inclement weather, or for a holiday that is observed during the work week, Monday through Friday. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday to Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at time and one-half.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 48 of 73

County - ESSEX

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	60%	0% 70% 80% 90%									
Benefit	23.98	for	all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

COMMENTS/NOTES

Heavy & General Laborer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 49 of 73

^{*} No more than 1 apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than 1 apprentice for each additional 3 journeymen.

County - ESSEX

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/23
* Skilled Tradesman (only applies to Modular Construction)	W27.90 B5.45 T33.35
Foreman (person directing crew, regardless of his skill classification)	W31.90 B5.45 T37.35
Laborer (for single family and stand-alone duplex owned by single owner)	W17.85 B2.95 T20.80
Residential and Modular Construction Laborer	W23.90 B5.45 T29.35

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
As shown	800 hours	0 hours 600 hours 600 hours										
wage & benefits	70%	80%	90%									

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen-

One (1) apprentice shall be allowed for the first journeyman on site and no more than one (1) additional apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen on site.

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

* SKILLED TRADESMAN-

any worker doing work not typically done by a Building Laborer. Some examples are installing interior doors, sheet rock, hooking up appliances, installing light fixtures, installing railing systems, etc. Please note where local building codes require that certain work be performed under the supervision of a licensed tradesman (i.e. Plumber, Electrician, etc.) Laborers shall work under such supervision.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- All residential construction (not commercial), single-family, stand-alone duplex houses, townhouses and multi-family buildings of not more than four (4) floors. Each housing unit must be fully and independently functional; each housing unit must have its own kitchen and bathroom. The definition includes all incidental items such as site work, parking areas, utilities, streets and sidewalks. Please note the construction must be Residential in nature. A First Floor at or below grade may contain commercial space not to exceed 50% square footage of the floor; at least 50% of the First Floor must contain living accommodations or related nonresidential uses (e.g. laundry space, recreation/hobby rooms, and/or corridor space). Basement stories below grade used for storage, parking, mechanical systems/equipment, etc., are considered basement stories which are not used in determining the building's height even if used for storage purposes. In addition, barracks and dormitories are not considered residential projects.

MODULAR RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- all aspects of modular residential construction (not commercial) at the site of installation of structures of no more than four (4) stories, including all excavation and site preparation, footings and

6/1/2023 Page 50 of 73

County - ESSEX

foundation systems whether poured on-site or prefabricated, all underground waterproofing, underground utilities, concrete slabs, sidewalks, driveways, paving, hardscape and landscaping. Please note the construction must be Residential as defined above. All work performed by the Set Crew (the crew of workers who set the modular boxes on the foundation), including the rigging, setting, attaching and assembly of all modules and structural members, preparation of the foundation to accept modules, such as sill plates, connection of all in-module and under-module connections including, but not limited to, plumbing, electrical, HVAC, fire suppression, CATS, telephone, television/internet, and fiber optic, the building or installation of any porches or decks regardless of material or method of construction, the on-site installation of, or completion of any roof system, doors, windows and fenestrations, including flashing, gutter and soffit systems, waterproofing, insulation and interior and exterior trim work, and painting. Please note that modular construction does not include on-site stick built construction, tip up construction or panel built construction.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day/40 per week, Monday through Saturday, and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOILDAYS:

New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 51 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Millwright PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W64.35 B38.57 T102.92
Journeyman	W55.96 B33.62 T89.58

Craft: Millwright APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
6 Months	40%	0% 55% 65% 80% 90%										
Benefits	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.61				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Millwright COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Millwrights on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 52 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Operating Engineer PREV	VAILING WAGE RATE
--------------------------------	-------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	60%	6 70% 80% 90%										

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 53 of 73

^{* 1} apprentice for each piece of heavy equipment. At least 10 pieces of heavy equipment or a minimum of 5 Operating Engineers must be on site.

County - ESSEX

Craft:	Operating Engineer - Field Engineer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--------	-------------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	70%	75%	of Rod/	Chainman	Wage					
Yearly			80%	90%	Transit/	Instrument	man	Wage		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer - Field Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 54 of 73

^{*} No more than 1 Field Engineer Apprentice per Survey Crew.

County - ESSEX

Craft: Painter - Line Striping PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/07/22
Apprentice (1st year)	W29.15
	B14.75
	T43.90
Apprentice (2nd year)	W33.25
	B25.70
	T58.95
Foreman (Charge Person)	W42.05
	B26.48
	T68.53
Journeyman 1 (at least 1	W37.28
year of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T63.76
Journeyman 2 (at least 2	W41.05
years of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T67.53

Craft: Painter - Line Striping COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 55 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Paperhanger PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W52.82 B29.51 T82.33
Journeyman	W48.02 B29.51 T77.53

Craft: Paperhanger APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
	SEE	COMME	CIAL	PAINTER							
		K									

Craft: Paperhanger COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Paperhangers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day

6/1/2023 Page 56 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Pipefitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W58.68 B49.97 T108.65
Journeyman	W54.43 B46.36 T100.79

Craft: Pipefitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	35%	45%	55%	65%	75%						
Benefit	26.80	29.79	32.79	35.78	38.78						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Pipefitter COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Journeyman Pipefitters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- There shall be a Foreman for every 8 Journeyman Pipefitters on a job.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM-11:30 PM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 10% per hour on the total rate.
- 3rd Shift (11:30 PM-7:00 AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 15% per hour on the total rate.

OVERTIME:

- All hours worked in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.
- By mutual agreement, employees may work four 10-hour days, Monday to Thursday, at straight time rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, and may be paid at straight time. If Friday is not a make-up day, the first 8 hours shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits; hours in excess of 8 shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL (Maintenance Work Only):

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM-11:30 PM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 10% per hour on the total rate.
- 3rd Shift (11:30 PM-7:00 AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 15% per hour on the total rate.

OVERTIME (Maintenance Work Only):

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All

6/1/2023 Page 57 of 73

County - ESSEX

hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.

NOTE: Maintenance work is work to repair, restore, or improve the efficiency of existing facilities. This does NOT apply to ANY new construction.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays are observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 58 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Plasterer PREVAILING WAGE RAT	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--------------------------------------	----------------------

See Bricklayer, Stone Mason Rates

Craft: Plasterer COMMENTS/NOTES

See BRICKLAYER, STONE MASON Rates

6/1/2023 Page 59 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Plumber PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W64.25
	B41.62
	T105.87
General Foreman	W68.41
	B41.62
	T110.03
Journeyman	W59.49
	B41.62
	T101.11
I .	I

Craft: Plumber APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	30%	45%	55%	65%	75%						
Benefits	17.09	23.48	25.72	27.96	30.19						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Plumber COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job having 2 or more Plumbers, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- On any job having 9 or more Plumbers, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must continue for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When two shifts are worked, the second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a third shift is worked, the third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a lost day. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 60 of 73

^{*} Employers may employ 1 apprentice on any job where 1 or 2 journeymen are employed. Thereafter, 1 apprentice may be employed for every 4 journeymen.

County - ESSEX

Craft: Roofer PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/22
Foreman	W45.52 B29.81 T75.33
Journeyman	W42.52 B29.81 T72.33

Craft: Roofer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	17.00	21.26	25.51	27.64	29.76	31.89	34.01	38.27			
Benefits	2.16	2.16	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

- * [A] For roofing jobs that are of the 1 or single ply nature: 1:2 or fraction thereof
- [B] For roofing jobs on new built up roofs: 1:3 or fraction thereof
- [C] For roofing jobs that are of a tear-off nature: 1:2 or fraction thereof
- [D] For re-roofing jobs {not requiring complete removal of existing systems; installation done over existing roof}: 1:3 or fraction thereof

Craft: Roofer COMMENTS/NOTES

Pitch: +.50 per hour

Mop Man: +.30 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 61 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/22
Foreman	W41.29 B38.97 T80.26
Journeyman	W39.29 B38.97 T78.26

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
1000 hours	35%	35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80°							80%			
Benefits	13.19	15.02	16.88	18.74	21.06	22.94	24.83	26.73	28.62	30.50		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENT:

When there are 6 or more Sheet Metal Sign Installers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday though Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Four (4) 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, for projects lasting at least one week in duration. The fifth day may be used as a make-up day at straight time for a day lost due to inclement weather. However, if the fifth day is not a make-up day, all hours worked will be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the preceding Friday, Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 62 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/06/22
Foreman	W56.98
	B48.69
	T105.67
General Foreman	W57.98
	B48.69
	T106.67
Journeyman	W53.48
	B48.69
	T102.17

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	35%	% 45% 55% 65% of Journey man Wage Rate									
Benefit	35%	45%	55%	65%	of	Journey	man	Benefit	Rate		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 17 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.
- When there is only 1 Sheet Metal Worker (1 Journeyman) on a project, he/she shall receive \$1.00 more than the regular Journeyman's rate.

The regular workday is 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM 12:00 AM): +17% of regular hourly rate
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 per day on Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, with hours in excess of 10 per day, and hours in excess of 40 per week paid at the overtime rates listed above.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 63 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

01/01/23
W69.82
B35.80
T105.62
W73.15
B35.80
T108.95
W65.32
B35.80
T101.12

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES										
1000 hours	80% 85%								85%		
Benefits						Intervals	9 to 10	Jourymn	Ben.		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter COMMENTS/NOTES

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-13:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 25% 30% 40% 45% 55% 60% 70% 75% 85% 90% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 1ntervals 7-10 Journy. Ben.

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-22:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 70% 85% 95% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 Intervals 7-10 Journy. Ben

The regular workday consists of 8 consecutive hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Sprinkler Fitter on the job must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 12 or more Sprinkler Fitters, one must be designated a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 2 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd and 3rd shift shall receive an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour.
- Any "off hours" shift starting at 8:00 PM or later shall receive an additional 25% of the regular rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be

6/1/2023 Page 64 of 73

County - ESSEX

paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Hours worked in excess of 10 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, Sunday and holidays, shall be paid double the regular rate.

Four 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight-time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 65 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
Finisher	W49.32
	B36.62
	T85.94

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	40%	0% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%									
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 66 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/05/22
Finisher	W48.04
	B32.26
	T80.30
Setter	W62.62
	B35.39
	T98.01

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
750 hours	35%	5% 40% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 90%										

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Saturdays after 10 hours shall be paid double the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 67 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
T1 0 "	14400.00
Tile Setter	W62.82
	B39.03
	T101.85

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	40%	0% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%									
Benefits	Interval	1 thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7=	full jyrnm	benefit	rate	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 68 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo PREVAILING WAGE RATE

01/01/23
W58.67
B39.00
T97.67
W60.28
B39.01
T99.29
W50.32
B31.63
T81.95

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	85%	95%	100%		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 7-1-17:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

1500 Hours 35% 45% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

The regular workday consists of 7 hours, between 8:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 7 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Monday after Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 69 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Truck Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23	05/01/24
Bucket, Utility,	W43.56	W45.41
Pick-up, Fuel	B41.78	B43.28
Delivery trucks	T85.34	T88.69
Dump truck, Asphalt	W43.56	W45.41
Distributor, Tack	B41.78	B43.28
Spreader	T85.34	T88.69
Euclid-type vehicles	W43.66	W45.51
(large, off-road	B41.78	B43.28
equipment)	T85.44	T88.79
Helper on Asphalt	W43.56	W45.41
Distributor truck	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Low Boy Driver	W45.16	W47.01
	B41.78	B43.28
	T86.94	T90.29
Slurry Seal,	W43.56	W45.41
Seeding/Fertilizing/	B41.78	B43.28
Mulching truck	T85.34	T88.69
Straight 3-axle truck	W43.56	W45.41
	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Tractor Trailer	W43.66	W45.51
(all types)	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.44	T88.79
Vacuum or Vac-All	W43.56	W45.41
truck (entire unit)	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Winch Trailer	W43.76	W45.61
	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.54	T88.89

Craft: Truck Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate" which shall be 80% of the above-listed wage rates, plus the full benefit rate. This rate shall be used when the driver "round robins" for a minimum of 6 hours during the work day.

HAZARDOUS WASTE REMOVAL:

- On hazardous waste removal work on a State designated hazardous waste site where the driver is in direct contact with hazardous materials and when personal protective equipment is required for respiratory, skin, and eye protection, the driver shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour (with or without protective gear).
- A hazardous waste related certified worker at a designated hazardous waste site who is not working in a zone requiring level A, B or C personal protection shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

Page 70 of 73

County - ESSEX

TRUCK FOREMAN: \$.75 cents per hour above regular rate. Overtime shall be increased accordingly.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shifts starting at 4:00 PM (2nd Shift): + \$3.00 per hour.
- Shifts starting at 12:00 AM (midnight/3rd Shift): time and one-half the hourly rate.
- Shifts starting at a time other than from 6:00 AM to 8:00 AM, when such hours are mandated by the project owner: + \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Employees may work four 10-hour days at straight time, Monday through Thursday, with Friday used as a make-up day for a lost day. If Friday is not a make-up day, then all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.
- -Benefits on overtime shall be \$40.03.
- As of 5-1-23, benefits on overtime shall be \$41.53.
- As of 5-1-24, benefits on overtime shall be \$43.03.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 71 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23	05/01/24
Driver	W35.87	W37.62
	B41.78	B43.28
	T77.65	T80.90

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate". See the "Truck Driver" craft for the blended rates.

Truck Foreman/Shop Steward: +\$0.25 per hour

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- 2nd Shift shall receive an additional \$0.50 per hour
- 3rd Shift shall receive time and one-half the hourly rate.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 72 of 73

County - ESSEX

Craft:	Welder	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	Welder	
Craft:	Welder	COMMENTS/NOTES

Welders rate is the same as the craft to which the welding is incidental .

6/1/2023 Page 73 of 73



STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Department of Labor and Workforce Development
Division of Wage and Hour Compliance - Public Contracts Section
PO Box 389
Trenton, NJ 08625-0389

PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

The New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq.) requires that the Department of Labor and Workforce Development establish and enforce a prevailing wage level for workers engaged in public works in order to safeguard their efficiency and general well being and to protect them as well as their employers from the effects of serious and unfair competition.

Prevailing wage rates are wage and fringe benefit rates based on the collective bargaining agreements established for a particular craft or trade in the locality in which the public work is performed. In New Jersey, these rates vary by county and by the type of work performed.

Applicable prevailing wage rates are those wages and fringe benefits in effect on the date the contract is awarded. All pre-determined rate increases listed at the time the contract is awarded must also be paid, beginning on the dates specified. Rates that have expired will remain in effect until new rates are posted.

Prevailing Wage Rate

The prevailing wage rate for each craft will list the effective date of the rate and the following information:

W =Wage Rate per Hour

B = Fringe Benefit Rate per Hour*

T = Total Rate per Hour

* Fringe benefits are an integral part of the prevailing wage rate. Employers not providing such benefits must pay the fringe benefit amount directly to the employee each payday. Employers providing benefits worth less than the fringe benefit amount must pay the balance directly to the employee each payday.

Unless otherwise stated in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination, the fringe benefit rate for overtime hours remains at the straight time rate.

When the Overtime Notes in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination state that the overtime rates are "inclusive of benefits," the benefit rate is increased by the same factor as the wage rate (i.e. multiplied by 1.5 for time and one-half, multiplied by 2 for double time, etc.).

Apprentice Rate Schedule

An "apprentice" is an individual who is registered with the United States Department of Labor - Office of Apprenticeship and enrolled in a certified apprenticeship program during the period in which they are working on the public works project.

The apprentice <u>wage</u> rate is a percentage of the journeyman wage rate, unless otherwise indicated. The apprentice <u>benefit</u> rate is the full journeyman benefit rate, unless otherwise indicated.

If there is no apprentice rate schedule listed, the individual must be paid at least the journeyman rate even if that individual is in a certified apprentice program for that trade.

If there is no ratio of apprentices to journeymen listed for a particular craft, then the ratio shall be one (1) apprentice to every four (4) journeymen.

6/1/2023 Page 1 of 73

Comments/Notes

For each craft listed there will be comments/notes that cover the definition of the regular workday, shift differentials, overtime, recognized holidays, and any other relevant information.

Public Works Contractor Registration

The Public Works Contractor Registration Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48, et seq.) requires that **all** contractors, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors who are working on or who bid on public works projects register with the Department of Labor and Workforce Development. Applications are available at www.nj.gov/labor (click on Wage & Hour and then go to Registration & Permits).

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.51:

No contractor shall bid on any contract for public work as defined in section 2 of P.L.1963, c. 150 (C.34:11-56.26) unless the contractor is registered pursuant to this act. No contractor shall list a subcontractor in a bid proposal for the contract unless the subcontractor is registered pursuant to P.L.1999, c.238 (C.34:11-56.48 et seq.) at the time the bid is made. No contractor or subcontractor, including a subcontractor not listed in the bid proposal, shall engage in the performance of any public work subject to the contract, unless the contractor or subcontractor is registered pursuant to that act.

Snow Plowing

Snow plowing contracts are <u>not</u> subject to the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act or the Public Works Contractor Registration Act.

6/1/2023 Page 2 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/01/23
Journeyman (Mechanic)	W44.23
	B28.63
	T72.86

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
As Shown	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year	Wage = %	of Jnymn	Wage		
Wage and Bene	40%	50%	60%	70%	80%	Bene = %	of Jnymn	Bene		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

COMMENTS/NOTES

THESE RATES MAY BE USED FOR THE FOLLOWING:

- Service/Repair/Maintenance Work to EXISTING facilities.
- Replacement or Installation of air conditioning and refrigeration equipment when the combined tonnage does not exceed 15 tons for refrigeration, or 25 tons for air conditioning.
- Replacement or Installation of "packaged" or "unitary" rooftop-type units when the combined tonnage of the units does not exceed 75 tons.

NOTE: These rates may NOT be used for any work in new construction (including work on new additions).

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 10:00 AM, Monday through Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second and third shifts shall be paid an additional 15% of the hourly rate.
- All shifts must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive days.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 3 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Boilermaker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W53.50
	B46.66
	T100.16
General Foreman	W55.50
	B47.71
	T103.21
Journeyman	W48.50
	B44.92
	T93.42
I .	1

Craft: Boilermaker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%	95%				
Benefit =	38.07	39.03	40.03	41.00	41.99	42.97	43.93				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* 1 apprentice will be allowed for the first 5 journeymen, 1 apprentice for the next 10 journeymen and 1 apprentice for each succeeding 20 journeymen up to a maximum of 5 apprentices per contractor on any one job.

Craft: Boilermaker COMMENTS/NOTES

HIGH WORK: All apprentices working on the erection, repair, or dismantling of smoke stacks, standpipes, or water towers shall be paid the Journeyman rate.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall work 7½ hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 10%.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 20%.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Two, four day, 10 hour shifts may be worked at straight time Monday through Thursday. The day shift shall work four days, at 10 hours, for 10 hours pay. The second shift shall work four days, at nine and a half hours, for 10 hours pay, plus 10% the hourly rate for new work and .25 cents on repair work. Friday may be used as a make-up day at straight time, due to weather conditions, hoilday or any other circumstances beyond the employer's control.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.
- If any other craft employed by the same contractor, or a subcontractor thereof, receives double time in lieu of time and one-half, then the Boilermaker shall receive double time in lieu of time and one-half.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Four 10 hour days may be worked Monday through Thursday at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, holiday or other conditions beyond the control of the employer. Overtime shall be paid for any hours that exceed 10 hours per day or 40 hours per week.

6/1/2023 Page 4 of 73

County - HUDSON

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 5 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W35.45
	B17.78
	T53.23
General Foreman	W35.95
	B17.78
	T53.73
Mechanic	W33.95
	B17.78
	T51.73
I .	I

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to MINOR REPAIR WORK ONLY (repair work in the field for which the contract amount does not exceed \$125,000.00), for boilers that do not produce electric or are not used in the heating of petroleum products.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 6 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Deputy Foreman	W51.00
	B36.28
	T87.28
Foreman	W55.75
	B36.28
	T92.03
Journeyman	W48.00
	B36.28
	T84.28

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%			
Benefits	4.00	5.00	5.50	6.00	24.29	26.00	27.73	29.43			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. The first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to inclement weather.
- When Bricklayers/Stone Masons work on Saturday with Laborers, and no other crafts are working on the project for the day, benefits may be paid at straight time. If other crafts are present, the applicable overtime rate for benefits shall be paid.

6/1/2023 Page 7 of 73

County - HUDSON

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 8 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Carpenter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.56 T100.28
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.73 T87.27

Craft: Carpenter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%					
Benefit	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.56			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

For Solar installation- all work on solar projects that fall under the jurisdiction of the carpenters, and does not require an electrician, the ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen shall be 1:1.

Craft: Carpenter COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.56

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

6/1/2023 Page 9 of 73

County - HUDSON

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 10 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.47 T100.19
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.64 T87.18

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%					
Benefit	59%	of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.47		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.47

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there are 4 or more Carpenters of Resilient Flooring, 1 must be designated a Foreman.

FOR SYNTHETIC TURF INSTALLATION ONLY:

- The rate shall be 90% of the wage and benefit rate.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular wage rate plus 10%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular wage rate, the second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day or 40 per week, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day, at straight time, up to 8 hours, for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer, up to a total of 40 hours per week; hours in excess of 8 on Saturday shall

6/1/2023 Page 11 of 73

^{* 1} apprentice shall be allowed to every 2 journeymen or major fraction thereof. No more than 3 apprentices on any one job or project.

County - HUDSON

then be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the wage rate.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 12 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	10/20/22
Foreman	W50.97 B11.58 T62.55
Journeyman	W44.32 B10.78 T55.10

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%					
Benefit	12% of	Appren	tice	wage rate	for all	intervals	+ \$5.46		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION:

All residential construction (excluding commercial buildings and institutional housing), no more than four (4) floors in height above grade consisting of those projects involving the construction, alteration, or repair of town houses or row houses, single family homes, mobile homes, multi-family homes, mixed-use buildings that include commercial space on the first floor or below grade, and apartment buildings.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of banefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a

6/1/2023 Page 13 of 73

County - HUDSON

day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 14 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Cement Mason PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W56.04
	B30.29
	T86.33
General Foreman	W58.04
	B30.29
	T88.33
Journeyman	W53.04
	B30.29
	T83.33

Craft: Cement Mason APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	50%	60%	70%	80%	90%				
Benefits	7.30	7.40	18.26	21.26	24.25	27.25				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Cement Mason COMMENTS/NOTES

These rates also apply to PLASTERERS.

NOTE: Cement Masons working on a suspended staging, not supported from the ground, and over twenty (20) feet above the ground, shall receive an additional \$.50 per hour.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

If there are 2 or more Cement Masons/Plasterers on the job, one must be designated a Foreman.

If there are 11 or more Cement Masons/Plasterers on the job, one must be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate for the first two hours, inclusive of benefits, and thereafter, at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. The first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits, and thereafter, at double the regular rate inclusive of benefits. Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, Sunday holidays shall be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 15 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Commercial Painter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W48.02
	B29.51
	T77.53
General Foreman	W52.38
	B29.51
	T81.89
Journeyman	W43.65
	B29.51
	T73.16
I .	I

Craft: Commercial Painter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	45%	55%	65%	70%	75%	80%	80%		
Benefits	8.85	8.85	11.25	11.25	12.30	12.30	15.10	15.10		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Commercial Painter COMMENTS/NOTES

* Commercial Painters perform work on all commercial structures such as offices, schools, hotels, shopping malls, restaurants, condominiums, etc.

Spraying, sandblasting, lead abatement work on commercial buildings, work performed above 3 stories or 30 feet in height, or using swing scaffolds requires an additional 10% of the wage rate.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day,

6/1/2023 Page 16 of 73

County - HUDSON

Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 17 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Diver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Diver	W63.24 B51.72 T114.96
Tender	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22

Craft: Diver COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: All dive crews must consist of a Tender, a Diver, and a standby Diver (standby Diver is the same rate as a Diver).

DEPTH & PENETRATION RATES: Divers shall be paid the following depth and penetration rates, in addition to the regular hourly rate, when applicable:

AIR DIVES: MIXED GAS DIVES:

0-59 feet: No additional wage 60-74 feet: + \$0.25 per foot 75-125 feet: + \$1.00 per foot 75-125 feet: + \$2.00 per foot

PENETRATION DIVES:

126-200 feet: + \$1.50 per foot 201-275 feet: + \$1.75 per foot 276-350 feet: + \$2.00 per foot 351-425 feet: + \$2.50 per foot

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 18 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Foreman	W59.23
	B51.72
	T110.95
Foreman (Concrete Form	W58.13
Work)	B38.36
	T96.49
Journeyman	W51.50
	B51.72
	T103.22
Journeyman (Concrete	W50.55
Form Work)	B38.36
	T88.91
	I

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	20.60	25.75	33.48	41.20						
Benefits	33.96	for all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* When there are 4 or fewer Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers on a job, no more than 1 may be an apprentice. When there are 5 or more Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers, there may be 1 apprentice for every 5 Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers.

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONCRETE FORM WORK ONLY:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
Yearly 20.22 25.28 32.86 40.44

Benefits 26.14 for all intervals

CREOSOTE HANDLING:

When handling creosote products on land piledriving, floating marine construction, and construction of wharves, the worker shall receive an additional \$0.25 per hour.

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK:

- Hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where Level A, B, or C personal protection is required: an additional 20% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- Hazardous waste removal work in Level D, or where personal protection is not required: an additional \$1.00 per hour.

CERTIFIED WELDER: When required on the job by the project owner, a Certified Welder shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

The first Dockbuilder/Pile Driver on the job shall be designated a Foreman.

6/1/2023 Page 19 of 73

County - HUDSON

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 20 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Drywall Finisher PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W47.17
	B29.54
	T76.71
General Foreman	W49.31
	B29.54
	T78.85
Journeyman	W42.88
	B29.54
	T72.42

Craft: Drywall Finisher APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	50%		60%	70%		80%	90%		
Benefits	Intervals	1 to 2 =	11.45	Intervals	3 to 4 =	14.33	Intervals	5 to 6 =	18.04	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Drywall Finisher COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 21 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Electrician PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23	06/01/24
Assistant General	W74.93	W76.74
Foreman	B46.83	B47.96
	T121.76	T124.70
Foreman	W71.86	W73.59
	B44.91	B45.99
	T116.77	T119.58
General Foreman (150 +	W82.92	W84.92
Journeyman workers on	B51.83	B53.08
job site)	T134.75	T138.00
General Foreman (23-149	W77.39	W79.25
Journeyman workers on	B48.37	B49.53
job site)	T125.76	T128.78
Journeyman as Crane	W71.86	W73.59
Operator, as Welder, as	B44.91	B45.99
Cable Splicer	T116.77	T119.58
Journeyman on Radio	W74.93	W76.74
Tower Work	B46.83	B47.96
	T121.76	T124.70
Journeyman Wireman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.39	B39.31
	T99.81	T102.21
Layout Man	W66.95	W68.56
	B41.84	B42.85
	T108.79	T111.41
I	I	I

Craft: Electrician APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	17.95	23.39	29.91	35.89	41.87					
Benefits =	11.22	14.62	18.69	22.43	26.17					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-1-23:

Interval Period and Rates

Yearly 18.43 24.57 30.71 36.85 42.99 Benefits 11.52 15.36 19.19 23.03 26.87

6/1/2023 Page 22 of 73

County - HUDSON

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-1-24:

Interval Period and Rates

Yearly 18.87 25.16 31.45 37.74 44.03 Benefits 11.79 15.73 19.66 23.59 27.52

THESE RATES ALSO APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING TYPES OF WORK:

- All fire and burglar alarm work.
- All fiber optic work.
- Teledata work in new construction or involving 16 instruments or more.
- All residential construction (single family homes and apartments) of 5 units or more. Note: fire walls alone are not a determining criteria.

HIGH WORK:

- 40 feet above ground/floor: +22% of the Total Rate
- Transmission towers, and Smokestacks: +22% of the Total Rate

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there is only 1 Journeyman electrician, who lays out his or her own job from plans, that electrician shall receive the Foreman rate.
- On any job where there are 2 or more electricians, 1 shall be a Foreman.
- On all jobs, every 10 electricians shall have 1 designated a Foreman.
- On any job where there are 23 or more electricians, 1 shall be a General Foreman.
- On any job where there are 50 or more electricians, 1 shall be an Assistant General Foreman, and 1 shall be a General Foreman.

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 1st Shift (between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM)
- 2nd Shift (between 4:30 PM and 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, plus an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift: (between 12:30 AM and 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work, plus an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, between 7:00 AM and 6:30 PM, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 23 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

12/06/22	12/04/23	12/02/24
W46.29	W0.00	W0.00
B26.62	B0.00	B0.00
T72.91	T74.86	T76.66
W60.18	W0.00	W0.00
B34.60	B0.00	B0.00
T94.78	T96.09	T97.89
W55.09	W0.00	W0.00
B31.67	B0.00	B0.00
T86.76	T88.30	T90.10
W52.77	W0.00	W0.00
B30.35	B0.00	B0.00
T83.12	T84.77	T86.57
W50.46	W0.00	W0.00
B29.01	B0.00	B0.00
T79.47	T81.23	T83.03
W48.15	W0.00	W0.00
B27.68	B0.00	B0.00
T75.83	T77.69	T79.49
	W46.29 B26.62 T72.91 W60.18 B34.60 T94.78 W55.09 B31.67 T86.76 W52.77 B30.35 T83.12 W50.46 B29.01 T79.47 W48.15 B27.68	W46.29 W0.00 B26.62 B0.00 T72.91 T74.86 W60.18 W0.00 B34.60 B0.00 T94.78 T96.09 W55.09 W0.00 B31.67 B0.00 T86.76 T88.30 W52.77 W0.00 B30.35 B0.00 T83.12 T84.77 W50.46 W0.00 B29.01 B0.00 T79.47 T81.23 W48.15 W0.00 B27.68 B0.00

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	35%	35%	40%	43%	48%	54%	61%	67%	74%	81%
Benefit			57.5% of	Journeym an	Tech.	wage	rate			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Instruments and Less)

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTES:

- 1) These rates are for service, maintenance, moves and/or changes affecting 15 instruments or less. These rates may NOT be used for any new construction or any fiber optic work.
- 2) The number of workers on the jobsite is the determining factor for which Foreman category applies.

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 1st Shift (between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM)
- 2nd Shift (between 4:30 PM and 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, plus an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift: (between 12:30 AM and 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work, plus an additional 15% of the

6/1/2023 Page 24 of 73

County - HUDSON

regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or outside the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 on Saturday and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked between Monday and Friday, between the hours of 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM. A make-up day may be used for the day not being worked during the four 10-hour day schedule if a holiday occurs during the week or for any other conditions that prevent an employee from working during the four 10-hour day schedule.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Saturday holidays will be observed the preceding Friday.

6/1/2023 Page 25 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Electrician" Rates	
Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	COMMENTS/NOTES
See	ELECTRICIAN Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 26 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
Assistant General	W74.93	W76.74
Foreman	B47.39	B48.54
	T122.32	T125.28
Equipment Repairman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Equipment Serviceman	W61.42	W62.90
	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Foreman	W71.86	W73.59
	B45.45	B46.55
	T117.31	T120.14
General Foreman (150 +	W82.92	W84.92
Journeyman workers on	B52.45	B53.71
job site)	T135.37	T138.63
General Foreman (23-149	W77.39	W79.25
Journeyman workers on	B48.95	B50.13
job site)	T126.34	T129.38
Groundsman (performs	W41.15	W42.14
empty conduit installations	B26.03	B26.65
on roadways)	T67.18	T68.79
Journeyman as a Crane	W71.86	W73.59
Operator, as a Welder, as	B45.45	B46.55
a Cable Splicer	T117.31	T120.14
Journeyman as a	W61.42	W62.90
Lineman, as a Wireman	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68
Journeyman- Layout Man	W66.95	W68.56
	B42.35	B43.36
	T109.30	T111.92
X-Ray Journeyman	W61.42	W62.90
Technician	B38.85	B39.78
	T100.27	T102.68

6/1/2023 Page 27 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	34.88	37.78	40.69	43.60	46.50	49.41	52.32			
Benefits	63.25%	of	Appen	tice	Wage	Rate				

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-30-22:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 35.89 38.88 41.87 44.87 47.86 50.85 53.84

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-29-23:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 36.85 39.92 42.99 46.07 49.14 52.21 55.28

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-3-24:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 37.74 40.89 44.03 47.18 50.32 53.47 56.61

Benefits 63.25% of Apprentice Wage Rate

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

HIGH WORK:

40 FEET ABOVE GROUND/FLOOR: +21% OF THE Total Rate.

Radio towers, Transmission towers and Smokestacks: +21% of the Total Rate.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

On any job where there is only 1 Journeyman electrician, who lays out his or her own job from plans, that electrician shall receive the Foreman rate.

On any job where there are 2 or more electricians, 1 shall be a Foreman.

On all jobs, every 11 electricians shall have 1 designated a Foreman.

On any job where there are 23 or more electricians, 1 shall be a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7.5 hrs. work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7 hrs. work + an additional 15% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and Holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day,

6/1/2023 Page 28 of 73

^{*} FOR UTILITY WORK PLEASE SEE STATEWIDE RATES

County - HUDSON

Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 29 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) PREVAILING W.	<i>N</i> AGE KATE
---	-------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
* 6 Months	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%			
Benefits	69% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals			

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (North) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 30 of 73

^{*} The apprentice wage rate is paid at the percentage of the Journeyman Lineman wage rate located in the "Statewide" rate package.

County - HUDSON

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South) PREVAILING WAGE RATE

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	31.65	1.65 34.29 36.93 39.56 42.20 44.84 47.78									
Benefits	28.02	29.62	31.20	32.80	34.40	36.00	37.58				

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (South) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 31 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Elevator Constructor PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W77.49
	B45.23
	T122.72

Craft: Elevator Constructor APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	34.60	42.62	50.37	58.12							
Benefits	35.56	36.49	38.02	39.55							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Constructor COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of either 7 or 8 hours to be established at the beginning of the project, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

For all hours worked before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and for all hours on Saturday and Sunday, shall be paid at double the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus double the hourly rate for all hours worked.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 32 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W60.89
	B44.07
	T104.96

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
Yearly	34.60	4.60 33.49 39.58 45.67										
Benefits	35.50	36.07	37.52	38.97								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

COMMENTS/NOTES

MODERNIZATION (addition, replacement, refurbishing, relocation, or changes in design or appearance, of elevator equipment in existing buildings):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus time and one-half the hourly rate for all hours worked.

SERVICE (repair or replacement of parts for the purpose of maintaining elevator equipment in good operating condition):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS (Modernization and Service): New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 33 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Glazier PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/18/22
* Leadman	W51.48
	B29.13 T80.61
	160.01
Foreman	W53.48
	B29.37
	T82.85
General Foreman	W55.48
	B29.61
	T85.09
Journeyman	W49.48
	B28.89
	T78.37

Craft: Glazier APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	0% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 90%									
Benefits	9.75	9.75	12.36	12.36	15.60	15.60	17.02	17.02			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Glazier COMMENTS/NOTES

Hazard/Height Pay: +\$1.00 per hour

* When there are three (3) men working on a jobsite for three (3) days or longer, 1 Journeyman may be designated as a Leadman for the duration of the job, provided he has his OSHA certification.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM, Monday to Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular

6/1/2023 Page 34 of 73

County - HUDSON

rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 35 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Foreman	W60.72
	B36.22
	T96.94
General Foreman	W63.06
	B37.33
	T100.39
Journeyman	W58.44
	B35.66
	T94.10

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	27.38	7.38 32.49 39.13 45.71									
Benefits	20.86	24.73	27.41	30.01							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to the installing of insulation on hot and cold mechanical systems.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- Second Shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- Third Shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 36 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Asbestos Helper	W36.89
Abatement	B24.92
	T61.81

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
	SEE	EE HEAT & FROST INSULAT										
				OK .								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply only to the removal of insulation materials/asbestos from mechanical systems, including containment erection and demolition, and placing material in appropriate containers.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- The second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME: The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 37 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges PREVAILING WAGE RATE

02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
W63.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
T98.20	T100.20	T102.20	T104.20
W65.78	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
T100.70	T102.70	T104.70	T106.70
W58.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
T93.20	T95.20	T97.20	T99.20
	W63.28 B34.92 T98.20 W65.78 B34.92 T100.70 W58.28 B34.92	W63.28 W0.00 B34.92 B0.00 T98.20 T100.20 W65.78 W0.00 B34.92 B0.00 T100.70 T102.70 W58.28 W0.00 B34.92 B0.00	W63.28 W0.00 W0.00 B34.92 B0.00 B0.00 T98.20 T100.20 T102.20 W65.78 W0.00 W0.00 B34.92 B0.00 B0.00 T100.70 T102.70 T104.70 W58.28 W0.00 W0.00 B34.92 B0.00 B0.00

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges

COMMENTS/NOTES

These rates apply to: All bridges that span waterways, roadways, railways and canyons. All tunnels, overpasses, viaducts and all appurtenances.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 38 of 73

^{*} Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as bridges.

County - HUDSON

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 39 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
Foreman	W52.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T84.59	T86.59	T88.59	T90.59
General Foreman	W54.52	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T87.09	T89.09	T91.09	T93.09
Journeyman	W47.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T79.59	T81.59	T83.59	T85.59

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
	SEE	INDUST	RIAL	PAINTER	BRIDGES					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All work in power plants (any aspect). On steeples, on dams, on hangers, transformers, substations, on all open steel, in refineries, tank farms, water/sewerage treatment facilities and on pipelines.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except for Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During the regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 40 of 73

County - HUDSON

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 41 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Industrial Painter-Water Tanks PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26	
Foreman	W53.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T85.29	T87.29	T89.29	T91.29	
General Foreman	W55.57	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T87.79	T89.79	T91.79	T93.79	
Journeyman	W48.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T80.29	T82.29	T84.29	T86.29	

Craft: Industrial Painter-Water Tanks APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All new and repaint water tanks (interior and exterior).

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 42 of 73

County - HUDSON

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 43 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Ironworker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	07/01/22
Rod/Fence Foreman	W48.39
	B48.92
	T97.31
Rod/Fence Journeyman	W45.39
	B48.92
	T94.31
Structural Foreman	W50.69
	B48.92
	T99.61
Structural Journeyman	W47.69
	B48.92
	T96.61
	1

Craft: Ironworker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	0% 60% Yearly 70% 80% 90%									

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Ironworker COMMENTS/NOTES

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK: On hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where the Ironworker is required to wear Level A,B, or C personal protection: +\$3.00 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

When there are 2 or more Ironworkers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis.
- When an irregular shift is established for the Ironworker (Structural) classification, the rate shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. When an irregular shift is established for the Rod/Fence classification, the shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive the regular rate, plus 20%.

OVERTIME:

6/1/2023 Page 44 of 73

County - HUDSON

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. Saturday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 45 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	08/09/22
Foreman	W41.38 B24.21 T65.59
Journeyman (Handler)	W36.78 B24.21 T60.99

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	22.07	2.07 25.75 29.42 33.10									
Benefits	22.06	for	all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to work in connection with Asbestos, Radiation, Hazardous Waste, Lead, Chemical, Biological, Mold Remediation and Abatement.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. (Holidays start at 12:00 am).

6/1/2023 Page 46 of 73

^{*} Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for eache additional three (3) journeymen.

County - HUDSON

Craft: Laborer - Building PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Class A Journeyman	W38.00 B32.17 T70.17
Class B Journeyman	W37.00 B32.17 T69.17
Class C Journeyman	W31.45 B32.17 T63.62
Foreman	W42.75 B32.17 T74.92
General Foreman	W47.50 B32.17 T79.67

Craft: Laborer - Building APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	60%	70% 70% 80% 90% of Class B wage rate									
Benefit	28.92	28.92	28.92	28.92							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

Craft: Laborer - Building

COMMENTS/NOTES

CLASS A: Specialist laborer including mason tender or concrete pour crew; scaffold builder (scaffolds up to 14 feet in height); operator of forklifts, Bobcats (or equivalent machinery), jack hammers, tampers, motorized tampers and compactors, vibrators, street cleaning machines, hydro demolition equipment, riding motor buggies, conveyors, burners; and nozzlemen on gunite work.

CLASS B: Basic laborer - includes all laborer work not listed in Class A or Class C.

CLASS C: Janitorial-type light clean-up work associated with the TURNOVER of a project, or part of a project, to the owner. All other clean-up work is Class B.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When a 2-shift schedule is worked, including a day shift, both shifts shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.
- When a 3-shift schedule is worked, the day shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked, the second shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours worked, and the third shift shall be established

6/1/2023 Page 47 of 73

County - HUDSON

on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7 hours worked. The day shift shall receive the regular rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.

- When a second or third shift is worked with no day shift, the second or third shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established this shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day (paid at straight time) for a day lost to inclement weather, or for a holiday that is observed during the work week, Monday through Friday. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday to Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at time and one-half.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 48 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft:	Laborer - Heavy & General	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--------	---------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	60%	0% 70% 80% 90%									
Benefit	23.98	for	all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

COMMENTS/NOTES

Heavy & General Laborer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 49 of 73

^{*} No more than 1 apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than 1 apprentice for each additional 3 journeymen.

County - HUDSON

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/23
* Skilled Tradesman (only applies to Modular Construction)	W27.90 B5.45 T33.35
Foreman (person directing crew, regardless of his skill classification)	W31.90 B5.45 T37.35
Laborer (for single family and stand-alone duplex owned by single owner)	W17.85 B2.95 T20.80
Residential and Modular Construction Laborer	W23.90 B5.45 T29.35

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
As shown	800 hours	00 hours 600 hours 600 hours								
wage & benefits	70%	80%	90%							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen-

One (1) apprentice shall be allowed for the first journeyman on site and no more than one (1) additional apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen on site.

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

* SKILLED TRADESMAN-

any worker doing work not typically done by a Building Laborer. Some examples are installing interior doors, sheet rock, hooking up appliances, installing light fixtures, installing railing systems, etc. Please note where local building codes require that certain work be performed under the supervision of a licensed tradesman (i.e. Plumber, Electrician, etc.) Laborers shall work under such supervision.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- All residential construction (not commercial), single-family, stand-alone duplex houses, townhouses and multi-family buildings of not more than four (4) floors. Each housing unit must be fully and independently functional; each housing unit must have its own kitchen and bathroom. The definition includes all incidental items such as site work, parking areas, utilities, streets and sidewalks. Please note the construction must be Residential in nature. A First Floor at or below grade may contain commercial space not to exceed 50% square footage of the floor; at least 50% of the First Floor must contain living accommodations or related nonresidential uses (e.g. laundry space, recreation/hobby rooms, and/or corridor space). Basement stories below grade used for storage, parking, mechanical systems/equipment, etc., are considered basement stories which are not used in determining the building's height even if used for storage purposes. In addition, barracks and dormitories are not considered residential projects.

MODULAR RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- all aspects of modular residential construction (not commercial) at the site of installation of structures of no more than four (4) stories, including all excavation and site preparation, footings and

6/1/2023 Page 50 of 73

County - HUDSON

foundation systems whether poured on-site or prefabricated, all underground waterproofing, underground utilities, concrete slabs, sidewalks, driveways, paving, hardscape and landscaping. Please note the construction must be Residential as defined above. All work performed by the Set Crew (the crew of workers who set the modular boxes on the foundation), including the rigging, setting, attaching and assembly of all modules and structural members, preparation of the foundation to accept modules, such as sill plates, connection of all in-module and under-module connections including, but not limited to, plumbing, electrical, HVAC, fire suppression, CATS, telephone, television/internet, and fiber optic, the building or installation of any porches or decks regardless of material or method of construction, the on-site installation of, or completion of any roof system, doors, windows and fenestrations, including flashing, gutter and soffit systems, waterproofing, insulation and interior and exterior trim work, and painting. Please note that modular construction does not include on-site stick built construction, tip up construction or panel built construction.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day/40 per week, Monday through Saturday, and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOILDAYS:

New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 51 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Millwright PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W64.35 B38.57 T102.92
Journeyman	W55.96 B33.62 T89.58

Craft: Millwright APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	0% 55% 65% 80% 90%									
Benefits	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.61			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Millwright COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Millwrights on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 52 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Operating Engineer PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	60%	70%	80%	90%							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 53 of 73

^{* 1} apprentice for each piece of heavy equipment. At least 10 pieces of heavy equipment or a minimum of 5 Operating Engineers must be on site.

County - HUDSON

Craft:	Operating Engineer - Field Engineer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--------	-------------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	70%	75%	of Rod/	Chainman	Wage						
Yearly			80%	90%	Transit/	Instrument	man	Wage			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer - Field Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 54 of 73

^{*} No more than 1 Field Engineer Apprentice per Survey Crew.

County - HUDSON

Craft: Painter - Line Striping PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/07/22
Apprentice (1st year)	W29.15
	B14.75
	T43.90
Apprentice (2nd year)	W33.25
	B25.70
	T58.95
Foreman (Charge Person)	W42.05
	B26.48
	T68.53
Journeyman 1 (at least 1	W37.28
year of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T63.76
Journeyman 2 (at least 2	W41.05
years of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T67.53

Craft: Painter - Line Striping COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 55 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Paperhanger PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W52.82 B29.51 T82.33
Journeyman	W48.02 B29.51 T77.53

Craft: Paperhanger APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
	SEE	COMME	CIAL	PAINTER							
		K									

Craft: Paperhanger COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Paperhangers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day

6/1/2023 Page 56 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Pipefitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/03/23
Foreman	W63.60 B41.54 T105.14
Journeymen	W59.57 B41.54 T101.11

Craft: Pipefitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	20.85	26.81	32.76	38.72	44.68						
Benefit	27.74	29.86	31.99	34.11	36.23						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Pipefitter COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Pipefitter on a job must be a Foreman.
- There must be a Foreman for every 6 Pipefitters on a job, not counting apprentices.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (between 4:00PM and 12:00AM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 25% per hour.
- 3rd Shift (between 12:00AM and 8:00AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked at straight time, Monday through Thursday, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, the first 10 hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All remaining overtime shall be paid as stated above.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS - SERVICE & MAINTENANCE WORK:

- The 2nd shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 10% per hour.
- The 3rd shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 15% per hour.

OVERTIME - SERVICE & MAINTENANCE WORK:

- All hours outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of

6/1/2023 Page 57 of 73

County - HUDSON

benefits.

NOTE: Service and Maintenance work is work to repair, restore, or improve the efficiency of existing facilities. This does NOT apply to ANY new construction.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 58 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft:	Plasterer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Cement Mason" Ra	ates
C 0	N	
Craft:	Plasterer	COMMENTS/NOTES
See	CEMENT MASON Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 59 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Plumber PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W64.25
	B41.62
	T105.87
General Foreman	W68.41
	B41.62
	T110.03
Journeyman	W59.49
	B41.62
	T101.11

Craft: Plumber APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	30%	45%	55%	65%	75%						
Benefit	17.09	23.48	25.72	27.96	30.19						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Plumber COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job having 2 or more Plumbers, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- On any job having 9 or more Plumbers, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must continue for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When two shifts are worked, the second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a third shift is worked, the third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays, shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a lost day. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 60 of 73

^{*} Employers may employ 1 apprentice on any job where 1 or 2 journeymen are employed. Thereafter, 1 apprentice may be employed for every 4 journeymen.

County - HUDSON

Craft: Roofer PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/10/23
Foreman	W48.00 B38.63 T86.63
Journeyman	W46.50 B38.63 T85.13

Craft: Roofer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	35%	50%	60%	75%	of Journey	man	Wage			
Benefits	4.03	19.61	23.41	29.13						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:2

Craft: Roofer COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR APPRENTICES INDENTURED AFTER 1-1-23:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 38% 45% 50% 60% 75% of Journeyman Wage

Benefits 7.61 17.71 19.61 23.41 29.13

The regular workday is 8 hours, starting between 5:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- On shift work, the First Shift shall be 8 hours between 5:00 AM and 4:00 PM.
- Second Shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- Third Shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- Hours in excess of 8 per shift, shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays are observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 61 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/22
Foreman	W41.29 B38.97 T80.26
Journeyman	W39.29 B38.97 T78.26

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 hours	35%	35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80%							80%		
Benefits	13.19	15.02	16.88	18.74	21.06	22.94	24.83	26.73	28.62	30.50	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENT:

When there are 6 or more Sheet Metal Sign Installers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday though Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Four(4) 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, for projects lasting at least one week in duration. The fifth day may be used as a make-up day at straight time for a day lost to inclement weather. However, if the fifth day is not a make-up day, all hours worked will be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the preceding Friday, Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 62 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/06/22
Foreman	W56.98
	B48.69
	T105.67
General Foreman	W57.98
	B48.69
	T106.67
Journeyman	W53.48
	B48.69
	T102.17

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	35%	45%	55%	65%	of	Journey	man	Wage	Rate		
Benefit	35%	45%	55%	65%	of	Journey	man	Benefit	Rate		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 17 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.
- When there is only 1 Sheet Metal Worker (1 Journeyman) on a project, he/she shall receive \$1.00 more than the regular Journeyman's rate.

The regular workday is 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM 12:00 AM): +17% of regular hourly rate
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 per day on Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, with hours in excess of 10 per day, and hours in excess of 40 per week paid at the overtime rates listed above.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 63 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W69.82
	B35.80
	T105.62
General Foreman	W73.15
	B35.80
	T108.95
Journeyman	W65.32
	B35.80
	T101.12

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 hours	80% 85%							85%		
Benefits						Intervals	9 to 10	Jourymn	Ben.	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter COMMENTS/NOTES

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-13:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 25% 30% 40% 45% 55% 60% 70% 75% 85% 90% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 1ntervals 7-10 Journy. Ben.

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-22:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 70% 85% 95% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 Intervals 7-10 Journy. Ben

The regular workday consists of 8 consecutive hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Sprinkler Fitter on the job must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 12 or more Sprinkler Fitters, one must be designated a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 2 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd and 3rd shift shall receive an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour.
- Any "off hours" shift starting at 8:00 PM or later shall receive an additional 25% of the regular rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be

6/1/2023 Page 64 of 73

County - HUDSON

paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Hours worked in excess of 10 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, Sunday and holidays, shall be paid double the regular rate.

Four 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight-time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 65 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
Finisher	W49.32
	B36.62
	T85.94

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
750 Hours	40%	0% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%								
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 66 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/05/22
Finisher	W48.04 B32.26 T80.30
Setter	W62.62 B35.39 T98.01

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	35%	55% 40% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 90%								90%	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Saturdays after 10 hours shall be paid double the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 67 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
Tile Setter	W62.82
	B39.03
	T101.85

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	40%	60%	65%	70%	75%	85%	95%			
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 68 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Grinder or Assistant	W58.67 B39.00 T97.67
Mechanic	W60.28 B39.01 T99.29
Terrazzo Resinous Worker	W50.32 B31.63 T81.95

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	85%	95%	100%	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 7-1-17:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

1500 Hours 35% 45% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

The regular workday consists of 7 hours, between 8:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 7 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Monday after Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 69 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Truck Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

		1
	05/01/23	05/01/24
Bucket, Utility,	W44.25	W46.25
Pick-up, Fuel	B41.03	B42.38
Delivery trucks	T85.28	T88.63
Dump Truck,	W44.25	W46.25
Asphalt Distributor,	B41.03	B42.38
Tack Spreader	T85.28	T88.63
Euclid-type vehicles	W44.40	W46.40
(large, off-road	B41.03	B42.38
equipment)	T85.43	T88.78
Helper on	W44.25	W46.25
Asphalt Distributor	B41.03	B42.38
	T85.28	T88.63
Low Boy Driver	W45.90	W47.90
	B41.03	B42.38
	T86.93	T90.28
Slurry Seal,	W44.25	W46.25
Vacuum or Vac-All	B41.03	B42.38
trucks	T85.28	T88.63
Straight 3-axle truck	W44.30	W46.30
	B41.03	B42.38
	T85.33	T88.68
Tractor Trailer	W44.40	W46.40
(all types)	B41.03	B42.38
	T85.43	T88.78
Winch Trailer	W44.50	W46.50
	B41.03	B42.38
	T85.53	T88.88

Craft: Truck Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate" which shall be 80% of the above-listed wage rates, plus the full benefit rate. This rate shall be used when the driver "round robins" for a minimum of 6 hours during the work day.

HAZARDOUS WASTE REMOVAL:

- On hazardous waste removal work on a State designated hazardous waste site where the driver is in direct contact with hazardous materials and when personal protective equipment is required for respiratory, skin, and eye protection, the driver shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour (with or without protective gear).
- A hazardous waste related certified worker at a designated hazardous waste site who is not working in a zone requiring level A, B or C personal protection shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

TRUCK FOREMAN: \$.75 cents per hour above regular rate. Overtime shall be increased accordingly.

6/1/2023 Page 70 of 73

County - HUDSON

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shifts starting at 4:00 PM (2nd Shift): + \$3.00 per hour.
- Shifts starting at 12:00 AM (midnight/3rd Shift)): time and one-half the hourly rate.
- Shifts starting at a time other than from 6:00 AM to 8:00 AM, when such hours are mandated by the project owner: + \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Employees may work four 10-hour days at straight time, Monday through Thursday, with Friday used as a make-up day for a lost day. If Friday is not a make-up day, then all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.
- Benefits on overtime shall be \$39.43.
- As of 5-1-23, benefits on overtime shall be \$40.78.
- As of 5-1-24, benefits on overtime shall be \$42.13.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 71 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23	05/01/24
Driver	W36.60	W38.60
	B41.03	B42.38
	T77.63	T80.98

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate". See the "Truck Driver" craft for the blended rates.

The regular workday is 8 hours, starting between 5:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

For shifts beginning between 4:00 PM and 10:00 PM, drivers shall receive an additional \$0.50 per hour.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before of after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 72 of 73

County - HUDSON

Craft:	Welder	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	Welder	
Craft:	Welder	COMMENTS/NOTES
Welder	rs rate is the same as the	e craft to which the welding is incidental.

6/1/2023 Page 73 of 73



STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Department of Labor and Workforce Development
Division of Wage and Hour Compliance - Public Contracts Section
PO Box 389
Trenton, NJ 08625-0389

PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

The New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq.) requires that the Department of Labor and Workforce Development establish and enforce a prevailing wage level for workers engaged in public works in order to safeguard their efficiency and general well being and to protect them as well as their employers from the effects of serious and unfair competition.

Prevailing wage rates are wage and fringe benefit rates based on the collective bargaining agreements established for a particular craft or trade in the locality in which the public work is performed. In New Jersey, these rates vary by county and by the type of work performed.

Applicable prevailing wage rates are those wages and fringe benefits in effect on the date the contract is awarded. All pre-determined rate increases listed at the time the contract is awarded must also be paid, beginning on the dates specified. Rates that have expired will remain in effect until new rates are posted.

Prevailing Wage Rate

The prevailing wage rate for each craft will list the effective date of the rate and the following information:

W =Wage Rate per Hour

B = Fringe Benefit Rate per Hour*

T = Total Rate per Hour

* Fringe benefits are an integral part of the prevailing wage rate. Employers not providing such benefits must pay the fringe benefit amount directly to the employee each payday. Employers providing benefits worth less than the fringe benefit amount must pay the balance directly to the employee each payday.

Unless otherwise stated in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination, the fringe benefit rate for overtime hours remains at the straight time rate.

When the Overtime Notes in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination state that the overtime rates are "inclusive of benefits," the benefit rate is increased by the same factor as the wage rate (i.e. multiplied by 1.5 for time and one-half, multiplied by 2 for double time, etc.).

Apprentice Rate Schedule

An "apprentice" is an individual who is registered with the United States Department of Labor - Office of Apprenticeship and enrolled in a certified apprenticeship program during the period in which they are working on the public works project.

The apprentice <u>wage</u> rate is a percentage of the journeyman wage rate, unless otherwise indicated. The apprentice <u>benefit</u> rate is the full journeyman benefit rate, unless otherwise indicated.

If there is no apprentice rate schedule listed, the individual must be paid at least the journeyman rate even if that individual is in a certified apprentice program for that trade.

If there is no ratio of apprentices to journeymen listed for a particular craft, then the ratio shall be one (1) apprentice to every four (4) journeymen.

6/1/2023 Page 1 of 73

Comments/Notes

For each craft listed there will be comments/notes that cover the definition of the regular workday, shift differentials, overtime, recognized holidays, and any other relevant information.

Public Works Contractor Registration

The Public Works Contractor Registration Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48, et seq.) requires that **all** contractors, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors who are working on or who bid on public works projects register with the Department of Labor and Workforce Development. Applications are available at www.nj.gov/labor (click on Wage & Hour and then go to Registration & Permits).

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.51:

No contractor shall bid on any contract for public work as defined in section 2 of P.L.1963, c. 150 (C.34:11-56.26) unless the contractor is registered pursuant to this act. No contractor shall list a subcontractor in a bid proposal for the contract unless the subcontractor is registered pursuant to P.L.1999, c.238 (C.34:11-56.48 et seq.) at the time the bid is made. No contractor or subcontractor, including a subcontractor not listed in the bid proposal, shall engage in the performance of any public work subject to the contract, unless the contractor or subcontractor is registered pursuant to that act.

Snow Plowing

Snow plowing contracts are <u>not</u> subject to the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act or the Public Works Contractor Registration Act.

6/1/2023 Page 2 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/01/23
Journeyman (Mechanic)	W44.23
	B28.63
	T72.86

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
As Shown	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year	Wage = %	of Jnymn	Wage		
Wage and Bene	40%	50%	60%	70%	80%	Bene = %	of Jnymn	Bene		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

COMMENTS/NOTES

THESE RATES MAY BE USED FOR THE FOLLOWING:

- Service/Repair/Maintenance Work to EXISTING facilities.
- Replacement or Installation of air conditioning and refrigeration equipment when the combined tonnage does not exceed 15 tons for refrigeration, or 25 tons for air conditioning.
- Replacement or Installation of "packaged" or "unitary" rooftop-type units when the combined tonnage of the units does not exceed 75 tons.

NOTE: These rates may NOT be used for any work in new construction (including work on new additions).

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 10:00 AM, Monday through Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second and third shifts shall be paid an additional 15% of the hourly rate.
- All shifts must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive days.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 3 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Boilermaker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W53.50
	B46.66
	T100.16
General Foreman	W55.50
	B47.71
	T103.21
Journeyman	W48.50
	B44.92
	T93.42
I .	1

Craft: Boilermaker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%	95%			
Benefit =	38.07	39.03	40.03	41.00	41.99	42.97	43.93			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* 1 apprentice will be allowed for the first 5 journeymen, 1 apprentice for the next 10 journeymen and 1 apprentice for each succeeding 20 journeymen up to a maximum of 5 apprentices per contractor on any one job.

Craft: Boilermaker COMMENTS/NOTES

HIGH WORK: All apprentices working on the erection, repair, or dismantling of smoke stacks, standpipes, or water towers shall be paid the Journeyman rate.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall work 7½ hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 10%.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 20%.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Two, four day, 10 hour shifts may be worked at straight time Monday through Thursday. The day shift shall work four days, at 10 hours, for 10 hours pay. The second shift shall work four days, at nine and a half hours, for 10 hours pay, plus 10% the hourly rate for new work and .25 cents on repair work. Friday may be used as a make-up day at straight time, due to weather conditions, hoilday or any other circumstances beyond the employer's control.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.
- If any other craft employed by the same contractor, or a subcontractor thereof, receives double time in lieu of time and one-half, then the Boilermaker shall receive double time in lieu of time and one-half.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Four 10 hour days may be worked Monday through Thursday at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, holiday or other conditions beyond the control of the employer. Overtime shall be paid for any hours that exceed 10 hours per day or 40 hours per week.

6/1/2023 Page 4 of 73

County - MORRIS

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 5 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W35.45 B17.78 T53.23
General Foreman	W35.95 B17.78 T53.73
Mechanic	W33.95 B17.78 T51.73

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to MINOR REPAIR WORK ONLY (repair work in the field for which the contract amount does not exceed \$125,000.00), for boilers that do not produce electric or are not used in the heating of petroleum products.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 6 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Deputy Foreman	W51.00
	B36.28
	T87.28
Foreman	W55.75
	B36.28
	T92.03
Journeyman	W48.00
	B36.28
	T84.28

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%		
Benefits	4.00	5.00	5.50	6.00	24.29	26.00	27.73	29.43		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. The first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to inclement weather.
- When Bricklayers/Stone Masons work on Saturday with Laborers, and no other crafts are working on the project for the day, benefits may be paid at straight time. If other crafts are present, the applicable overtime rate for benefits shall be paid.

6/1/2023 Page 7 of 73

County - MORRIS

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 8 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Carpenter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.56 T100.28
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.73 T87.27

Craft: Carpenter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES					
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%				
Benefit	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.56		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

For Solar installation- all work on solar projects that fall under the jurisdiction of the carpenters, and does not require an electrician, the ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen shall be 1:1.

Craft: Carpenter COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.56

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

6/1/2023 Page 9 of 73

County - MORRIS

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 10 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.47 T100.19
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.64 T87.18

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES					
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%				
Benefit	59%	of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.47	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.47

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there are 4 or more Carpenters of Resilient Flooring, 1 must be designated a Foreman.

FOR SYNTHETIC TURF INSTALLATION ONLY:

- The rate shall be 90% of the wage and benefit rate.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular wage rate plus 10%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular wage rate, the second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day or 40 per week, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day, at straight time, up to 8 hours, for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer, up to a total of 40 hours per week; hours in excess of 8 on Saturday shall

6/1/2023 Page 11 of 73

^{* 1} apprentice shall be allowed to every 2 journeymen or major fraction thereof. No more than 3 apprentices on any one job or project.

County - MORRIS

then be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the wage rate.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 12 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	10/20/22
Foreman	W50.97 B11.58 T62.55
Journeyman	W44.32 B10.78 T55.10

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	40% 55% 65% 80%								
Benefit	12% of	Appren	tice	wage rate	for all	intervals	+ \$5.46			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION:

All residential construction (excluding commercial buildings and institutional housing), no more than four (4) floors in height above grade consisting of those projects involving the construction, alteration, or repair of town houses or row houses, single family homes, mobile homes, multi-family homes, mixed-use buildings that include commercial space on the first floor or below grade, and apartment buildings.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a

6/1/2023 Page 13 of 73

County - MORRIS

day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 14 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Cement Ma	ason PREVAILING WAGE RATE									
See "B	ricklayer, Sto	ne Mason" F	Rates							
Craft: Cement M	ason	AI	PPRENTICE	RATE SCH	EDULE					
INTERVAL		PERIO	D AND RAT	ES						
Ratio of Apprentic	es to Journeyr	nen - 1:4			•		•			
Craft: Cement Mason COMMENTS/NOTES										
See "Bricklayer	, Stone Masc	on" Rates								

6/1/2023 Page 15 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Commercial Painter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W48.02
	B29.51
	T77.53
General Foreman	W52.38
	B29.51
	T81.89
Journeyman	W43.65
	B29.51
	T73.16
I .	I

Craft: Commercial Painter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	45%	55%	65%	70%	75%	80%	80%		
Benefits	8.85	8.85	11.25	11.25	12.30	12.30	15.10	15.10		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Commercial Painter COMMENTS/NOTES

* Commercial Painters perform work on all commercial structures such as offices, schools, hotels, shopping malls, restaurants, condominiums, etc.

Spraying, sandblasting, lead abatement work on commercial buildings, work performed above 3 stories or 30 feet in height, or using swing scaffolds requires an additional 10% of the wage rate.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day,

6/1/2023 Page 16 of 73

County - MORRIS

Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 17 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Diver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Diver	W63.24 B51.72 T114.96
Tender	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22

Craft: Diver COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: All dive crews must consist of a Tender, a Diver, and a standby Diver (standby Diver is the same rate as a Diver).

DEPTH & PENETRATION RATES: Divers shall be paid the following depth and penetration rates, in addition to the regular hourly rate, when applicable:

AIR DIVES: MIXED GAS DIVES:

PENETRATION DIVES:

126-200 feet: + \$1.50 per foot 201-275 feet: + \$1.75 per foot 276-350 feet: + \$2.00 per foot 351-425 feet: + \$2.50 per foot

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 18 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Foreman	W59.23 B51.72 T110.95
Foreman (Concrete Form Work)	W58.13 B38.36 T96.49
Journeyman	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22
Journeyman (Concrete Form Work)	W50.55 B38.36 T88.91

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES							
Yearly	20.60	25.75	33.48	41.20					
Benefits	33.96	for all	intervals						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONCRETE FORM WORK ONLY:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
Yearly 20.22 25.28 32.86 40.44

Benefits 26.14 for all intervals

CREOSOTE HANDLING:

When handling creosote products on land piledriving, floating marine construction, and construction of wharves, the worker shall receive an additional \$0.25 per hour.

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK:

- Hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where Level A, B, or C personal protection is required: an additional 20% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- Hazardous waste removal work in Level D, or where personal protection is not required: an additional \$1.00 per hour.

CERTIFIED WELDER: When required on the job by the project owner, a Certified Welder shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

The first Dockbuilder/Pile Driver on the job shall be designated a Foreman.

6/1/2023 Page 19 of 73

^{*} When there are 4 or fewer Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers on a job, no more than 1 may be an apprentice. When there are 5 or more Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers, there may be 1 apprentice for every 5 Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers.

County - MORRIS

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 20 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Drywall Finisher PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W47.17
	B29.54
	T76.71
General Foreman	W49.31
	B29.54
	T78.85
Journeyman	W42.88
	B29.54
	T72.42

Craft: Drywall Finisher APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	50%		60%	70%		80%	90%		
Benefits	Intervals	1 to 2 =	11.45	Intervals	3 to 4 =	14.33	Intervals	5 to 6 =	18.04	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Drywall Finisher COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 21 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Electrician PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
Cable Splicer	W68.06	W69.72
·	B43.20	B44.96
	T111.26	T114.68
Foreman (11-20	W72.39	W74.15
Journeymen)	B45.95	B47.84
	T118.34	T121.99
Foreman (1-3	W68.06	W69.72
Journeymen)	B43.20	B44.96
	T111.26	T114.68
Foreman (4-10	W71.15	W72.89
Journeymen)	B45.17	B47.02
	T116.32	T119.91
General Foreman (21-30	W74.24	W76.06
Journeymen)	B47.14	B49.06
	T121.38	T125.12
General Foreman (31-60	W80.43	W82.39
Journeymen)	B51.07	B53.15
	T131.50	T135.54
General Foreman (61+	W81.67	W83.66
Journeymen)	B51.85	B53.97
	T133.52	T137.63
Journeyman	W61.87	W63.38
	B39.30	B40.89
	T101.17	T104.27
Sub-Foreman	W70.52	W72.25
	B44.79	B46.61
	T115.31	T118.86

Craft: Electrician APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	40%	49%	58%	68%	80%		of Jour	neyman	Wage	Rate
Benefit	40%	49%	58%	68%	80%		of Jour	neyman	Benefit	Rate

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician COMMENTS/NOTES

6/1/2023 Page 22 of 73

County - MORRIS

THESE RATES ALSO APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING:

- -All burglar and fire alarm work.
- -All fiber optic work.
- -Teledata work in new construction.
- -Teledata work involving 16 Voice/Data Lines or more.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- 1 to 3 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/1-3 Journeymen rate).
- -4 to 10 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/4-10 Journeymen rate).
- -11 to 20 Journeymen- 1 must be Foreman (Foreman/11-20 Journeymen rate) and 1 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -21 to 30 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/21-30 Journeymen rate) and 2 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -31 to 40 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-40 Journeymen rate) and 3 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -41 to 50 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 4 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -51 to 60 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 5 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -61+ Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/61+ Journeymen rate) and 6 must be a Sub-Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours work + an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 23 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	11/28/22	12/04/23	12/02/24
Journeyman Technician	W45.86	W47.08	W48.21
(1-2 Workers on Job)	B27.05	B27.78	B28.45
	T72.91	T74.86	T76.66
Master Tech/General	W59.62	W61.20	W62.67
Foreman	B35.16	B36.12	B36.99
(26 + Workers on Job)	T94.78	T97.32	T99.66
Senior Technician/Lead	W54.57	W56.03	W57.37
Foreman	B32.19	B33.05	B33.86
(16-25 Workers on Job)	T86.76	T89.08	T91.23
Technician A/Foreman	W52.28	W53.67	W54.96
(9-15 Workers on Job)	B30.84	B31.67	B32.43
	T83.12	T85.34	T87.39
Technician B/Working	W49.99	W51.32	W52.55
Foreman	B29.48	B30.28	B31.01
(4-8 Workers on Job)	T79.47	T81.60	T83.56
Technician C/Foreman	W47.69	W48.96	W50.14
(3 Workers on Job)	B28.14	B28.89	B29.59
	T75.83	T77.85	T79.73

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	35%	35%	40%	43%	48%	54%	61%	67%	74%	81%
Benefits	7.45	7.45	8.51	9.15	10.22	11.49	12.98	14.26	15.76	17.24

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 11-28-22:

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81% Benefits 7.67 7.67 8.76 9.43 10.52 11.84 13.38 14.69 16.22 17.76

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 12-4-23:

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81% Benefits 7.88 7.88 9.00 9.68 10.80 12.15 13.73 15.09 16.66 18.23

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 12-2-24:

6/1/2023 Page 24 of 73

County - MORRIS

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81%
Benefits 8.07 8.07 9.22 9.91 11.07 12.45 14.06 15.44 17.06 18.68

NOTES:

- These rates are for service, maintenance, moves, and/or changes affecting
- 15 Voice/Data (teledata) lines or less. These rates may NOT be used for any teledata work in new construction (including additions) or any fiber optic work.
- The number of Teledata workers on the jobsite is the determining factor for which Foreman category applies .

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours work + an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 on Saturday and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday through Friday, between the hours of 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM. A make-up day may be used for the day not being worked during the four 10-hour day schedule if a holiday occurs during the week or for any other conditions that prevent an employee from working the four 10-hour day schedule.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Saturday holidays will be observed the preceding Friday.

6/1/2023 Page 25 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Electrician" Rates	
Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	COMMENTS/NOTES
See	ELECTRICIAN Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 26 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
Cable Splicer	W68.37	W70.04
	B42.89	B44.66
	T111.26	T114.70
Certified Welder	W65.26	W66.86
	B40.95	B42.62
	T106.21	T109.48
Equipment Operator	W62.15	W63.67
	B39.00	B40.60
	T101.15	T104.27
Foreman (11-20	W72.72	W74.50
Journeymen workers on	B45.62	B47.50
job)	T118.34	T122.00
Foreman (1-3	W68.37	W70.04
Journeymen workers on	B42.89	B44.66
job)	T111.26	T114.70
Foreman (4-10	W71.47	W73.23
Journeymen workers on	B44.86	B46.70
job)	T116.33	T119.93
General Foreman (21-30	W74.58	W76.41
Journeymen workers on	B46.81	B48.71
job)	T121.39	T125.12
General Foreman (31-60	W80.80	W82.78
Journeymen workers on	B50.70	B52.76
job)	T131.50	T135.54
General Foreman (61+	W82.04	W84.05
Journeymen workers on	B51.48	B53.58
job)	T133.52	T137.63
Groundman	W37.29	W38.21
	B23.41	B24.35
	T60.70	T62.56
Journeyman	W62.15	W63.67
Lineman/Technician	B39.00	B40.60
	T101.15	T104.27
Sub-Foreman	W70.85	W72.59
	B44.46	B46.27
	T115.31	T118.86

6/1/2023 Page 27 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES							
1000 Hours	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%		
Benefits	61.75% of	Journey	man	wage	+ \$.01				

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-29-23:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hours 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

Benefits 62.75% of the Journeyman wage + \$.01

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-3-24:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hours 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

Benefits 63.75% of the Journeyman wage + \$.01

* FOR UTILITY WORK PLEASE SEE STATEWIDE RATES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- 1 to 3 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/1-3 Journeymen rate).
- -4 to 10 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/4-10 Journeymen rate).
- -11 to 20 Journeymen- 1 must be Foreman (Foreman/11-20 Journeymen rate) and 1 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -21 to 30 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/21-30 Journeymen rate) and 2 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -31 to 40 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-40 Journeymen rate) and 3 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -41 to 50 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 4 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -51 to 60 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 5 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -61+ Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/61+ Journeymen rate) and 6 must be a Sub-Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7.5 hrs. work + an additional 10% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive of benefits.

3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7 hrs. work + an additional 15% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and Holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

6/1/2023 Page 28 of 73

County - MORRIS

New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 29 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft:	Electrician-Utility Work (North)	PREVAILING WAGE RATE

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
* 6 Months	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%			
Benefits	69% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals			

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (North) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 30 of 73

^{*} The apprentice wage rate is paid at the percentage of the Journeyman Lineman wage rate located in the "Statewide" rate package.

County - MORRIS

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South) FRE VAILING WAGE NAT	Craft:	Electrician-Utility Work (South)	PREVAILING WAGE RAT
--	--------	----------------------------------	---------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	31.65	34.29	36.93	39.56	42.20	44.84	47.78			
Benefits	28.02	29.62	31.20	32.80	34.40	36.00	37.58			

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (South) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 31 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Elevator Constructor PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W77.49 B45.23 T122.72

Craft: Elevator Constructor APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES			
Yearly	34.60	42.62	50.37	58.12			
Benefits	35.56	36.49	38.02	39.55			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Constructor COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of either 7 or 8 hours to be established at the beginning of the project, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

For all hours worked before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday, shall be paid at double the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus double the hourly rate for all hours worked.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 32 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W60.89
	B44.07
	T104.96

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	34.60	33.49	39.58	45.67						
Benefits	35.50	36.07	37.52	38.97						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

COMMENTS/NOTES

MODERNIZATION (addition, replacement, refurbishing, relocation, or changes in design or appearance, of elevator equipment in existing buildings):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus time and one-half the hourly rate for all hours worked.

SERVICE (repair or replacement of parts for the purpose of maintaining elevator equipment in good operating condition):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS (Modernization and Service): New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 33 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Glazier PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/18/22
* Leadman	W51.48
	B29.13
	T80.61
Foreman	W53.48
	B29.37
	T82.85
General Foreman	W55.48
	B29.61
	T85.09
Journeyman	W49.48
	B28.89
	T78.37

Craft: Glazier APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	90%		
Benefits	9.75	9.75	12.36	12.36	15.60	15.60	17.02	17.02		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Glazier COMMENTS/NOTES

Hazard/Height Pay: +\$1.00 per hour

* When there are three (3) men working on a jobsite for three (3) days or longer, 1 Journeyman may be designated as a Leadman for the duration of the job, provided he has his OSHA certification.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM, Monday to Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular

6/1/2023 Page 34 of 73

County - MORRIS

rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 35 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Foreman	W60.72
	B36.22
	T96.94
General Foreman	W63.06
	B37.33
	T100.39
Journeyman	W58.44
	B35.66
	T94.10

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	27.38	32.49	39.13	45.71						
Benefits	20.86	24.73	27.41	30.01						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to the installing of insulation on hot and cold mechanical systems.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- Second Shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- Third Shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 36 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Asbestos Helper	W36.89
Abatement	B24.92
	T61.81

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
	SEE	НЕАТ &	FROST	INSULAT						
				OK .						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply only to the removal of insulation materials/asbestos from mechanical systems, including containment erection and demolition, and placing material in appropriate containers.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- The second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME: The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 37 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26		
Foreman	W63.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00		
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00		
	T98.20	T100.20	T102.20	T104.20		
General Foreman	W65.78	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00		
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00		
	T100.70	T102.70	T104.70	T106.70		
Journeyman	W58.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00		
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00		
	T93.20	T95.20	T97.20	T99.20		

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges

COMMENTS/NOTES

These rates apply to: All bridges that span waterways, roadways, railways and canyons. All tunnels, overpasses, viaducts and all appurtenances.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 38 of 73

^{*} Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as bridges.

County - MORRIS

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 39 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26		
Foreman	W52.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00		
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00		
	T84.59	T86.59	T88.59	T90.59		
General Foreman	W54.52	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00		
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00		
	T87.09	T89.09	T91.09	T93.09		
Journeyman	W47.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00		
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00		
	T79.59	T81.59	T83.59	T85.59		

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
	SEE	INDUST	RIAL	PAINTER	BRIDGES					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All work in power plants (any aspect). On steeples, on dams, on hangers, transformers, substations, on all open steel, in refineries, tank farms, water/sewerage treatment facilities and on pipelines.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except for Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During the regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 40 of 73

County - MORRIS

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 41 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Industrial Painter-Water Tanks PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
Foreman	W53.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T85.29	T87.29	T89.29	T91.29
General Foreman	W55.57	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T87.79	T89.79	T91.79	T93.79
Journeyman	W48.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T80.29	T82.29	T84.29	T86.29

Craft: Industrial Painter-Water Tanks APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All new and repaint water tanks (interior and exterior).

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 42 of 73

County - MORRIS

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 43 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Ironworker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	07/01/22
Rod /Fence Foreman	W48.39
	B48.92
	T97.31
Rod/Fence Journeyman	W45.39
	B48.92
	T94.31
Structural Foreman	W50.69
	B48.92
	T99.61
Structural Journeyman	W47.69
	B48.92
	T96.61
	1

Craft: Ironworker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	0% 60% Yearly 70% 80% 90%								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Ironworker COMMENTS/NOTES

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK: On hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where the Ironworker is required to wear Level A,B, or C personal protection: + \$3.00 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

When there are 2 or more Ironworkers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis.
- When an irregular shift is established for the Ironworker (Structural) classification, the rate shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. When an irregular shift is established for the Rod/Fence classification, the shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive the regular rate, plus 20%.

OVERTIME:

6/1/2023 Page 44 of 73

County - MORRIS

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. Saturday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 45 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	08/09/22
Foreman	W41.38 B24.21 T65.59
Journeyman (Handler)	W36.78 B24.21 T60.99

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	22.07	2.07 25.75 29.42 33.10									
Benefit	22.06	for	all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to work in connection with Asbestos, Radiation, Hazardous Waste, Lead, Chemical, Biological, Mold Remediation and Abatement.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. (Holidays start at 12:00 am).

6/1/2023 Page 46 of 73

^{*} Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

County - MORRIS

Craft: Laborer - Building PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Class A Journeyman	W38.00 B32.17 T70.17
Class B Journeyman	W37.00 B32.17 T69.17
Class C Journeyman	W31.45 B32.17 T63.62
Foreman	W42.75 B32.17 T74.92
General Foreman	W47.50 B32.17 T79.67

Craft: Laborer - Building APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	60%	60% 70% 80% 90% of Class B wage rate									
Benefit	28.92	28.92	28.92	28.92							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

Craft: Laborer - Building

COMMENTS/NOTES

CLASS A: Specialist laborer including mason tender or concrete pour crew; scaffold builder (scaffolds up to 14 feet in height); operator of forklifts, Bobcats (or equivalent machinery), jack hammers, tampers, motorized tampers and compactors, vibrators, street cleaning machines, hydro demolition equipment, riding motor buggies, conveyors, burners; and nozzlemen on gunite work.

CLASS B: Basic laborer - includes all laborer work not listed in Class A or Class C.

CLASS C: Janitorial-type light clean-up work associated with the TURNOVER of a project, or part of a project, to the owner. All other clean-up work is Class B.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When a 2-shift schedule is worked, including a day shift, both shifts shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.
- When a 3-shift schedule is worked, the day shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked, the second shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours worked, and the third shift shall be established

6/1/2023 Page 47 of 73

County - MORRIS

on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7 hours worked. The day shift shall receive the regular rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.

- When a second or third shift is worked with no day shift, the second or third shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established this shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day (paid at straight time) for a day lost to inclement weather, or for a holiday that is observed during the work week, Monday through Friday. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday to Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at time and one-half.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 48 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
----------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
1000 Hours	60%	0% 70% 80% 90%								
Benefit	23.98	for	all	intervals						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

COMMENTS/NOTES

Heavy & General Laborer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 49 of 73

^{*} No more than 1 apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than 1 apprentice for each additional 3 journeymen.

County - MORRIS

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/23
* Skilled Tradesman (only	W27.90
applies to Modular	B5.45
Construction)	T33.35
Foreman (person directing	W31.90
crew, regardless of his	B5.45
skill classification)	T37.35
Laborer (for single family	W17.85
and stand-alone duplex	B2.95
owned by single owner)	T20.80
Residential and Modular	W23.90
Construction Laborer	B5.45
	T29.35

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
As shown	800 hours	00 hours 600 hours 600 hours								
wage & benefits	70%	80%	90%							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen-

One (1) apprentice shall be allowed for the first journeyman on site and no more than one (1) additional apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen on site.

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

* SKILLED TRADESMAN-

any worker doing work not typically done by a Building Laborer. Some examples are installing interior doors, sheet rock, hooking up appliances, installing light fixtures, installing railing systems, etc. Please note where local building codes require that certain work be performed under the supervision of a licensed tradesman (i.e. Plumber, Electrician, etc.) Laborers shall work under such supervision.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- All residential construction (not commercial), single-family, stand-alone duplex houses, townhouses and multi-family buildings of not more than four (4) floors. Each housing unit must be fully and independently functional; each housing unit must have its own kitchen and bathroom. The definition includes all incidental items such as site work, parking areas, utilities, streets and sidewalks. Please note the construction must be Residential in nature. A First Floor at or below grade may contain commercial space not to exceed 50% square footage of the floor; at least 50% of the First Floor must contain living accommodations or related nonresidential uses (e.g. laundry space, recreation/hobby rooms, and/or corridor space). Basement stories below grade used for storage, parking, mechanical systems/equipment, etc., are considered basement stories which are not used in determining the building's height even if used for storage purposes. In addition, barracks and dormitories are not considered residential projects.

MODULAR RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- all aspects of modular residential construction (not commercial) at the site of installation of structures of no more than four (4) stories, including all excavation and site preparation, footings and

6/1/2023 Page 50 of 73

County - MORRIS

foundation systems whether poured on-site or prefabricated, all underground waterproofing, underground utilities, concrete slabs, sidewalks, driveways, paving, hardscape and landscaping. Please note the construction must be Residential as defined above. All work performed by the Set Crew (the crew of workers who set the modular boxes on the foundation), including the rigging, setting, attaching and assembly of all modules and structural members, preparation of the foundation to accept modules, such as sill plates, connection of all in-module and under-module connections including, but not limited to, plumbing, electrical, HVAC, fire suppression, CATS, telephone, television/internet, and fiber optic, the building or installation of any porches or decks regardless of material or method of construction, the on-site installation of, or completion of any roof system, doors, windows and fenestrations, including flashing, gutter and soffit systems, waterproofing, insulation and interior and exterior trim work, and painting. Please note that modular construction does not include on-site stick built construction, tip up construction or panel built construction.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day/40 per week, Monday through Saturday, and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOILDAYS:

New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 51 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Millwright PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W64.35 B38.57 T102.92
Journeyman	W55.96 B33.62 T89.58

Craft: Millwright APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	0% 55% 65% 80% 90%									
Benefits	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.61			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Millwright COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Millwrights on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 52 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Operating Engineer I	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
-----------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	60%	70%	80%	90%						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 53 of 73

^{* 1} apprentice for each piece of heavy equipment. At least 10 pieces of heavy equipment or a minimum of 5 Operating Engineers must be on site.

County - MORRIS

Craft:	Operating Engineer - Field Engineer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--------	-------------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	70%	75%	of Rod/	Chainman	Wage					
Yearly			80%	90%	Transit/	Instrument	man	Wage		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer - Field Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 54 of 73

^{*} No more than 1 Field Engineer Apprentice per Survey Crew.

County - MORRIS

Craft: Painter - Line Striping PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/07/22
Apprentice (1st year)	W29.15
	B14.75
	T43.90
Apprentice (2nd year)	W33.25
	B25.70
	T58.95
Foreman (Charge Person)	W42.05
	B26.48
	T68.53
Journeyman 1 (at least 1	W37.28
year of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T63.76
Journeyman 2 (at least 2	W41.05
years of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T67.53

Craft: Painter - Line Striping COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 55 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Paperhanger PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W52.82 B29.51 T82.33
Journeyman	W48.02 B29.51 T77.53

Craft: Paperhanger APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
	SEE	COMME	CIAL	PAINTER						
		K								

Craft: Paperhanger COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Paperhangers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day

6/1/2023 Page 56 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Pipefitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/03/23
Foreman	W63.60
	B41.54
	T105.14
Journeymen	W59.57
	B41.54
	T101.11

Craft: Pipefitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	20.85	26.81	32.76	38.72	44.68						
Benefit	27.74	29.86	31.99	34.11	36.23						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

.

Craft: Pipefitter COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Pipefitter on a job must be a Foreman.
- There must be a Foreman for every 6 Pipefitters on a job, not counting apprentices.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (between 4:00PM and 12:00AM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 25% per hour.
- 3rd Shift (between 12:00AM and 8:00AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked at straight time, Monday through Thursday, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, the first 10 hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All remaining overtime shall be paid as stated above.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS - SERVICE & MAINTENANCE WORK:

- The 2nd shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 10% per hour.
- The 3rd shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the hourly rate, plus 15% per hour.

OVERTIME - SERVICE & MAINTENANCE WORK:

- All hours outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of

6/1/2023 Page 57 of 73

County - MORRIS

benefits.

NOTE: Service and Maintenance work is work to repair, restore, or improve the efficiency of existing facilities. This does NOT apply to ANY new construction.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 58 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft:	Plasterer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE

See Bricklayer, Stone Mason Rates

Craft: Plasterer COMMENTS/NOTES

See BRICKLAYER, STONE MASON Rates

6/1/2023 Page 59 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Plumber PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W64.25
	B41.62
	T105.87
General Foreman	W68.41
	B41.62
	T110.03
Journeyman	W59.49
	B41.62
	T101.11
I .	1

Craft: Plumber APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	30%	45%	55%	65%	75%						
Benefit	17.09	23.48	25.72	27.96	30.19						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Plumber COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job having 2 or more Plumbers, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 9 or more Plumbers, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must continue for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When two shifts are worked, the second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the hourly rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a third shift is worked, the third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the hourly rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before of after the regular workday, that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays, shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 60 of 73

^{*} Employers may employ 1 apprentice on any job where 1 or 2 journeymen are employed. Thereafter, 1 apprentice may be employed for every 4 journeymen.

County - MORRIS

Craft: Roofer PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/22
Foreman	W45.52 B29.81 T75.33
Journeyman	W42.52 B29.81 T72.33

Craft: Roofer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	17.00	7.00 21.26 25.51 27.64 29.76 31.89 34.01 38.27									
Benefits	2.16	2.16	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

- * A) For roofing jobs that are of the 1 or single ply nature: 1:2 or fraction thereof
- B) For roofing jobs on new built up roofs: 1:3 or fraction thereof
- C) For roofing jobs that are of a tear-off nature: 1:2 or fraction thereof
- D) For roofing jobs (not requiring complete removal of existing systems, installation done over existing roof): 1:3 or

fraction thereof

Craft: Roofer COMMENTS/NOTES

Pitch: +.50 per hour

Mop Man: +.30 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 61 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/22
Foreman	W41.29 B38.97 T80.26
Journeyman	W39.29 B38.97 T78.26

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 hours	35%	5% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80%								80%	
Benefits	13.19	15.02	16.88	18.74	21.06	22.94	24.83	26.73	28.62	30.50	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENT:

When there are 6 or more Sheet Metal Sign Installers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday though Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Four(4) 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, for projects lasting at least one week in duration. The fifth day may be used as a make-up day at straight time for a day lost due to inclement weather. However, if the fifth day is not a make-up day, all hours worked will be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the preceding Friday, Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 62 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/06/22
Foreman	W56.98
	B48.69
	T105.67
General Foreman	W57.98
	B48.69
	T106.67
Journeyman	W53.48
	B48.69
	T102.17

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	35%	% 45% 55% 65% of Journey man Wage Rate									
Benefit	35%	45%	55%	65%	of	Journey	man	Benefit	Rate		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 17 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.
- When there is only 1 Sheet Metal Worker (1 Journeyman) on a project, he/she shall receive \$1.00 more than the regular Journeyman's rate.

The regular workday is 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM 12:00 AM): +17% of regular hourly rate
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 per day on Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, with hours in excess of 10 per day, and hours in excess of 40 per week paid at the overtime rates listed above.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 63 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W69.82
	B35.80
	T105.62
General Foreman	W73.15
	B35.80
	T108.95
Journeyman	W65.32
-	B35.80
	T101.12

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 hours	80% 85%								85%	
Benefits						Intervals	9 to 10	Jourymn	Ben.	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter COMMENTS/NOTES

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-13:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 25% 30% 40% 45% 55% 60% 70% 75% 85% 90% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 1ntervals 7-10 Journy. Ben.

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-22:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 70% 85% 95% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 Intervals 7-10 Journy. Ben

The regular workday consists of 8 consecutive hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Sprinkler Fitter on the job must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 12 or more Sprinkler Fitters, one must be designated a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 2 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd and 3rd shift shall receive an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour.
- Any "off hours" shift starting at 8:00 PM or later shall receive an additional 25% of the regular rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be

6/1/2023 Page 64 of 73

County - MORRIS

paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Hours worked in excess of 10 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, Sunday and holidays, shall be paid double the regular rate.

Four 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight-time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 65 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
	01/02/23
Finisher	W49.32
	B36.62
	T85.94

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	40%	0% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%									
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 66 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/05/22
Finisher	W48.04 B32.26 T80.30
Setter	W62.62 B35.39 T98.01

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	35%	5% 40% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 90%								90%	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Saturdays after 10 hours shall be paid double the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 67 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
Tile Setter	W62.82
	B39.03
	T101.85

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
750 Hours	40%	60%	65%	70%	75%	85%	95%			
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 68 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Grinder or Assistant	W58.67 B39.00 T97.67
Mechanic	W60.28 B39.01 T99.29
Terrazzo Resinous Worker	W50.32 B31.63 T81.95

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
750 Hours	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	85%	95%	100%	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 7-1-17:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

1500 Hours 35% 45% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

The regular workday consists of 7 hours, between 8:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 7 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Monday after Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 69 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Truck Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23	05/01/24
Bucket, Utility,	W43.56	W45.41
Pick-up, Fuel	B41.78	B43.28
Delivery trucks	T85.34	T88.69
Dump truck, Asphalt	W43.56	W45.41
Distributor, Tack	B41.78	B43.28
Spreader	T85.34	T88.69
Euclid-type vehicles	W43.66	W45.51
(large, off-road	B41.78	B43.28
equipment)	T85.44	T88.79
Helper on Asphalt	W43.56	W45.41
Distributor truck	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Low Boy Driver	W45.16	W47.01
-	B41.78	B43.28
	T86.94	T90.29
Slurry Seal,	W43.56	W45.41
Seeding/Fertilizing/	B41.78	B43.28
Mulching truck	T85.34	T88.69
Straight 3-axle truck	W43.56	W45.41
	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Tractor Trailer	W43.66	W45.51
(all types)	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.44	T88.79
Vacuum or Vac-All	W43.56	W45.41
truck (entire unit)	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Winch Trailer	W43.76	W45.61
	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.54	T88.89

Craft: Truck Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate" which shall be 80% of the above-listed wage rates, plus the full benefit rate. This rate shall be used when the driver "round robins" for a minimum of 6 hours during the work day.

HAZARDOUS WASTE REMOVAL:

- On hazardous waste removal work on a State designated hazardous waste site where the driver is in direct contact with hazardous materials and when personal protective equipment is required for respiratory, skin, and eye protection, the driver shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour (with or without protective gear).
- A hazardous waste related certified worker at a designated hazardous waste site who is not working in a zone requiring level A, B or C personal protection shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

Page 70 of 73

County - MORRIS

TRUCK FOREMAN: \$.75 cents per hour above regular rate. Overtime shall be increased accordingly.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shifts starting at 4:00 PM (2nd Shift): + \$3.00 per hour.
- Shifts starting at 12:00 AM (midnight/3rd Shift): time and one-half the hourly rate.
- Shifts starting at a time other than from 6:00 AM to 8:00 AM, when such hours are mandated by the project owner: + \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Employees may work four 10-hour days at straight time, Monday through Thursday, with Friday used as a make-up day for a lost day. If Friday is not a make-up day, then all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.
- -Benefits on overtime shall be \$40.03.
- As of 5-1-23, benefits on overtime shall be \$41.53.
- As of 5-1-24, benefits on overtime shall be \$43.03.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 71 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23	05/01/24
Driver	W35.87	W37.62
	B41.78	B43.28
	T77.65	T80.90

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate". See the "Truck Driver" craft for the blended rates.

Truck Foreman/Shop Steward: +\$0.25 per hour

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- 2nd Shift shall receive an additional \$0.50 per hour
- 3rd Shift shall receive time and one-half the hourly rate.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 72 of 73

County - MORRIS

Craft:	Welder	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	Welder	
Craft:	Welder	COMMENTS/NOTES

Welders rate is the same as the craft to which the welding is incidental .

6/1/2023 Page 73 of 73



STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Department of Labor and Workforce Development
Division of Wage and Hour Compliance - Public Contracts Section
PO Box 389
Trenton, NJ 08625-0389

PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

The New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq.) requires that the Department of Labor and Workforce Development establish and enforce a prevailing wage level for workers engaged in public works in order to safeguard their efficiency and general well being and to protect them as well as their employers from the effects of serious and unfair competition.

Prevailing wage rates are wage and fringe benefit rates based on the collective bargaining agreements established for a particular craft or trade in the locality in which the public work is performed. In New Jersey, these rates vary by county and by the type of work performed.

Applicable prevailing wage rates are those wages and fringe benefits in effect on the date the contract is awarded. All pre-determined rate increases listed at the time the contract is awarded must also be paid, beginning on the dates specified. Rates that have expired will remain in effect until new rates are posted.

Prevailing Wage Rate

The prevailing wage rate for each craft will list the effective date of the rate and the following information:

W =Wage Rate per Hour

B = Fringe Benefit Rate per Hour*

T = Total Rate per Hour

* Fringe benefits are an integral part of the prevailing wage rate. Employers not providing such benefits must pay the fringe benefit amount directly to the employee each payday. Employers providing benefits worth less than the fringe benefit amount must pay the balance directly to the employee each payday.

Unless otherwise stated in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination, the fringe benefit rate for overtime hours remains at the straight time rate.

When the Overtime Notes in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination state that the overtime rates are "inclusive of benefits," the benefit rate is increased by the same factor as the wage rate (i.e. multiplied by 1.5 for time and one-half, multiplied by 2 for double time, etc.).

Apprentice Rate Schedule

An "apprentice" is an individual who is registered with the United States Department of Labor - Office of Apprenticeship and enrolled in a certified apprenticeship program during the period in which they are working on the public works project.

The apprentice <u>wage</u> rate is a percentage of the journeyman wage rate, unless otherwise indicated. The apprentice <u>benefit</u> rate is the full journeyman benefit rate, unless otherwise indicated.

If there is no apprentice rate schedule listed, the individual must be paid at least the journeyman rate even if that individual is in a certified apprentice program for that trade.

If there is no ratio of apprentices to journeymen listed for a particular craft, then the ratio shall be one (1) apprentice to every four (4) journeymen.

6/1/2023 Page 1 of 74

Comments/Notes

For each craft listed there will be comments/notes that cover the definition of the regular workday, shift differentials, overtime, recognized holidays, and any other relevant information.

Public Works Contractor Registration

The Public Works Contractor Registration Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48, et seq.) requires that **all** contractors, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors who are working on or who bid on public works projects register with the Department of Labor and Workforce Development. Applications are available at www.nj.gov/labor (click on Wage & Hour and then go to Registration & Permits).

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.51:

No contractor shall bid on any contract for public work as defined in section 2 of P.L.1963, c. 150 (C.34:11-56.26) unless the contractor is registered pursuant to this act. No contractor shall list a subcontractor in a bid proposal for the contract unless the subcontractor is registered pursuant to P.L.1999, c.238 (C.34:11-56.48 et seq.) at the time the bid is made. No contractor or subcontractor, including a subcontractor not listed in the bid proposal, shall engage in the performance of any public work subject to the contract, unless the contractor or subcontractor is registered pursuant to that act.

Snow Plowing

Snow plowing contracts are <u>not</u> subject to the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act or the Public Works Contractor Registration Act.

6/1/2023 Page 2 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/01/23
Journeyman (Mechanic)	W44.23
	B28.63
	T72.86

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
As Shown	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year	Wage = %	of Jnymn	Wage		
Wage and Bene	40%	50%	60%	70%	80%	Bene = %	of Jnymn	Bene		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

COMMENTS/NOTES

THESE RATES MAY BE USED FOR THE FOLLOWING:

- Service/Repair/Maintenance Work to EXISTING facilities.
- Replacement or Installation of air conditioning and refrigeration equipment when the combined tonnage does not exceed 15 tons for refrigeration, or 25 tons for air conditioning.
- Replacement or Installation of "packaged" or "unitary" rooftop-type units when the combined tonnage of the units does not exceed 75 tons.

NOTE: These rates may NOT be used for any work in new construction (including work on new additions).

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 10:00 AM, Monday through Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second and third shifts shall be paid an additional 15% of the hourly rate.
- All shifts must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive days.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 3 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Boilermaker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

01/01/23
W53.50
B46.66
T100.16
W55.50
B47.71
T103.21
W48.50
B44.92
T93.42

Craft: Boilermaker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
1000 Hours	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%	95%			
Benefit =	38.07	39.03	40.03	41.00	41.99	42.97	43.93			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* 1 apprentice will be allowed for the first 5 journeymen, 1 apprentice for the next 10 journeymen and 1 apprentice for each succeeding 20 journeymen up to a maximum of 5 apprentices per contractor on any one job.

Craft: Boilermaker COMMENTS/NOTES

HIGH WORK: All apprentices working on the erection, repair, or dismantling of smoke stacks, standpipes, or water towers shall be paid the Journeyman rate.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall work 7½ hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 10%.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 20%.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Two, four day, 10 hour shifts may be worked at straight time Monday through Thursday. The day shift shall work four days, at 10 hours, for 10 hours pay. The second shift shall work four days, at nine and a half hours, for 10 hours pay, plus 10% the hourly rate for new work and .25 cents on repair work. Friday may be used as a make-up day at straight time, due to weather conditions, hoilday or any other circumstances beyond the employer's control.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.
- If any other craft employed by the same contractor, or a subcontractor thereof, receives double time in lieu of time and one-half, then the Boilermaker shall receive double time in lieu of time and one-half.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Four 10 hour days may be worked Monday through Thursday at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, holiday or other conditions beyond the control of the employer. Overtime shall be paid for any hours that exceed 10 hours per day or 40 hours per week.

6/1/2023 Page 4 of 74

County - SOMERSET

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 5 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W35.45
	B17.78
	T53.23
General Foreman	W35.95
	B17.78
	T53.73
Mechanic	W33.95
	B17.78
	T51.73
I .	I

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to MINOR REPAIR WORK ONLY (repair work in the field for which the contract amount does not exceed \$125,000.00), for boilers that do not produce electric or are not used in the heating of petroleum products.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 6 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Deputy Foreman	W51.00
	B36.28
	T87.28
Foreman	W55.75
	B36.28
	T92.03
Journeyman	W48.00
	B36.28
	T84.28

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%		
Benefits	4.00	5.00	5.50	6.00	24.29	26.00	27.73	29.43		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. The first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to inclement weather.
- When Bricklayers/Stone Masons work on Saturday with Laborers, and no other crafts are working on the project for the day, benefits may be paid at straight time. If other crafts are present, the applicable overtime rate for benefits shall be paid.

6/1/2023 Page 7 of 74

County - SOMERSET

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 8 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Carpenter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.56 T100.28
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.73 T87.27

Craft: Carpenter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%						
Benefits	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.56				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

For Solar installation- all work on solar projects that fall under the jurisdiction of the carpenters, and does not require an electrician, the ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen shall be 1:1.

Craft: Carpenter COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.56

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

6/1/2023 Page 9 of 74

County - SOMERSET

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 10 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.47 T100.19
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.64 T87.18

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%						
Benefit	59%	of	Appren	tice	Wage	for all	intervals	+ \$0.47			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.47

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there are 4 or more Carpenters of Resilient Flooring, 1 must be designated a Foreman.

FOR SYNTHETIC TURF INSTALLATION ONLY:

- The rate shall be 90% of the wage and benefit rate.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular wage rate plus 10%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular wage rate, the second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day or 40 per week, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day, at straight time, up to 8 hours, for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer, up to a total of 40 hours per week; hours in excess of 8 on Saturday shall

6/1/2023 Page 11 of 74

^{* 1} apprentice shall be allowed to every 2 journeymen or major fraction thereof. No more than 3 apprentices on any one job or project.

County - SOMERSET

then be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the wage rate.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 12 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	10/20/22
Foreman	W50.97 B11.58 T62.55
Journeyman	W44.32 B10.78 T55.10

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%							
Benefit	12% of	Appren	tice	wage rate	for all	intervals	+ \$5.46				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION:

All residential construction (excluding commercial buildings and institutional housing), no more than four (4) floors in height above grade consisting of those projects involving the construction, alteration, or repair of town houses or row houses, single family homes, mobile homes, multi-family homes, mixed-use buildings that include commercial space on the first floor or below grade, and apartment buildings.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a

6/1/2023 Page 13 of 74

County - SOMERSET

day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 14 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft:	Cement Mason	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See " Bricklayer, Stone Maso	n" Rates
Craft:	Cement Mason	COMMENTS/NOTES
***See	Bricklayer, Stone Mason" Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 15 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Commercial Painter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W48.02 B29.51
	T77.53
General Foreman	W52.38
	B29.51
	T81.89
Journeyman	W43.65
	B29.51
	T73.16

Craft: Commercial Painter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	45%	55%	65%	70%	75%	80%	80%		
Benefits	8.85	8.85	11.25	11.25	12.30	12.30	15.10	15.10		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Commercial Painter COMMENTS/NOTES

* Commercial Painters perform work on all commercial structures such as offices, schools, hotels, shopping malls, restaurants, condominiums, etc.

Spraying, sandblasting, lead abatement work on commercial buildings, work performed above 3 stories or 30 feet in height, or using swing scaffolds requires an additional 10% of the wage rate.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day,

6/1/2023 Page 16 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 17 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Diver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Diver	W63.24 B51.72 T114.96
Tender	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22

Craft: Diver COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: All dive crews must consist of a Tender, a Diver, and a standby Diver (standby Diver is the same rate as a Diver).

DEPTH & PENETRATION RATES: Divers shall be paid the following depth and penetration rates, in addition to the regular hourly rate, when applicable:

AIR DIVES: MIXED GAS DIVES:

0-59 feet: No additional wage 60-74 feet: + \$0.25 per foot 75-125 feet: + \$1.00 per foot 126-200 feet: + \$2.00 per foot

PENETRATION DIVES:

126-200 feet: + \$1.50 per foot 201-275 feet: + \$1.75 per foot 276-350 feet: + \$2.00 per foot 351-425 feet: + \$2.50 per foot

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 18 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Foreman	W59.23 B51.72 T110.95
Foreman (Concrete Form Work)	W58.13 B38.36 T96.49
Journeyman	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22
Journeyman (Concrete Form Work)	W50.55 B38.36 T88.91

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	20.60	25.75	33.48	41.20							
Benefits	33.96	for all	intervals								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONCRETE FORM WORK ONLY:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
Yearly 20.22 25.28 32.86 40.44

Benefits 26.14 for all intervals

CREOSOTE HANDLING:

When handling creosote products on land piledriving, floating marine construction, and construction of wharves, the worker shall receive an additional \$0.25 per hour.

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK:

- Hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where Level A, B, or C personal protection is required: an additional 20% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- Hazardous waste removal work in Level D, or where personal protection is not required: an additional \$1.00 per hour.

CERTIFIED WELDER: When required on the job by the project owner, a Certified Welder shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

The first Dockbuilder/Pile Driver on the job shall be designated a Foreman.

6/1/2023 Page 19 of 74

^{*} When there are 4 or fewer Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers on a job, no more than 1 may be an apprentice. When there are 5 or more Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers, there may be 1 apprentice for every 5 Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers.

County - SOMERSET

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 20 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Drywall Finisher PREVAILING WAGE RATE

05/02/23
W47.17
B29.54
T76.71
W49.31
B29.54
T78.85
W42.88
B29.54
T72.42

Craft: Drywall Finisher APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	50%		60%	70%		80%	90%			
Benefits	Intervals	1 to 2 =	11.45	Intervals	3 to 4 =	14.33	Intervals	5 to 6 =	18.04		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Drywall Finisher COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 21 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Electrician PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
Cable Splicer	W68.06	W69.72
	B43.20	B44.96
	T111.26	T114.68
Foreman (11-20	W72.39	W74.15
Journeymen)	B45.95	B47.84
	T118.34	T121.99
Foreman (1-3	W68.06	W69.72
Journeymen)	B43.20	B44.96
	T111.26	T114.68
Foreman (4-10	W71.15	W72.89
Journeymen)	B45.17	B47.02
	T116.32	T119.91
General Foreman (21-30	W74.24	W76.06
Journeymen)	B47.14	B49.06
	T121.38	T125.12
General Foreman (31-60	W80.43	W82.39
Journeymen)	B51.07	B53.15
	T131.50	T135.54
General Foreman (61+	W81.67	W83.66
Journeymen)	B51.85	B53.97
	T133.52	T137.63
Journeyman	W61.87	W63.38
	B39.30	B40.89
	T101.17	T104.27
Sub-Foreman	W70.52	W72.25
	B44.79	B46.61
	T115.31	T118.86

Craft: Electrician APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	49%	58%	68%	80%		of Jour	neyman	Wage	Rate	
Benefit	40%	49%	58%	68%	80%		of Jour	neyman	Benefit	Rate	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician COMMENTS/NOTES

6/1/2023 Page 22 of 74

County - SOMERSET

THESE RATES ALSO APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING:

- -All burglar and fire alarm work.
- -All fiber optic work.
- -Teledata work in new construction.
- -Teledata work involving 16 Voice/Data Lines or more.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- 1 to 3 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/1-3 Journeymen rate).
- -4 to 10 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/4-10 Journeymen rate).
- -11 to 20 Journeymen- 1 must be Foreman (Foreman/11-20 Journeymen rate) and 1 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -21 to 30 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/21-30 Journeymen rate) and 2 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -31 to 40 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-40 Journeymen rate) and 3 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -41 to 50 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 4 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -51 to 60 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 5 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -61+ Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/61+ Journeymen rate) and 6 must be a Sub-Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours work + an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 23 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	11/28/22	12/04/23	12/02/24
Journeyman Technician	W45.86	W47.08	W48.21
(1-2 Workers on Job)	B27.05	B27.78	B28.45
	T72.91	T74.86	T76.66
Master Tech/General	W59.62	W61.20	W62.67
Foreman	B35.16	B36.12	B36.99
(26 + Workers on Job)	T94.78	T97.32	T99.66
Senior Technician/Lead	W54.57	W56.03	W57.37
Foreman	B32.19	B33.05	B33.86
(16-25 Workers on Job)	T86.76	T89.08	T91.23
Technician A/Foreman	W52.28	W53.67	W54.96
(9-15 Workers on Job)	B30.84	B31.67	B32.43
	T83.12	T85.34	T87.39
Technician B/Working	W49.99	W51.32	W52.55
Foreman	B29.48	B30.28	B31.01
(4-8 Workers on Job)	T79.47	T81.60	T83.56
Technician C/Foreman	W47.69	W48.96	W50.14
(3 Workers on Job)	B28.14	B28.89	B29.59
	T75.83	T77.85	T79.73

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 months	35%	35%	40%	43%	48%	54%	61%	67%	74%	81%	
Benefits	7.45	7.45	8.51	9.15	10.22	11.49	12.98	14.26	15.76	17.24	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 11-28-22:

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81% Benefits 7.67 7.67 8.76 9.43 10.52 11.84 13.38 14.69 16.22 17.76

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 12-4-23:

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81% Benefits 7.88 7.88 9.00 9.68 10.80 12.15 13.73 15.09 16.66 18.23

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 12-2-24:

6/1/2023 Page 24 of 74

County - SOMERSET

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81%
Benefits 8.07 8.07 9.22 9.91 11.07 12.45 14.06 15.44 17.06 18.68

NOTES:

- These rates are for service, maintenance, moves, and/or changes affecting
- 15 Voice/Data (teledata) lines or less. These rates may NOT be used for any teledata work in new construction (including additions) or any fiber optic work.
- The number of Teledata workers on the jobsite is the determining factor for which Foreman category applies .

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours work + an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 on Saturday and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday through Friday, between the hours of 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM. A make-up day may be used for a day not being worked during the four 10-hour day schedule if a holiday occurs during the week or for any other conditions that prevent an employee from working the four 10-hour day schedule.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Saturday holidays will be observed the preceding Friday.

6/1/2023 Page 25 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Electrician" Rates	
Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	COMMENTS/NOTES
See	ELECTRICIAN Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 26 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
Cable Splicer	W68.37	W70.04
	B42.89	B44.66
	T111.26	T114.70
Certified Welder	W65.26	W66.86
	B40.95	B42.62
	T106.21	T109.48
Equipment Operator	W62.15	W63.67
	B39.00	B40.60
	T101.15	T104.27
Foreman (11-20	W72.72	W74.50
Journeymen workers on	B45.62	B47.50
job)	T118.34	T122.00
Foreman (1-3	W68.37	W70.04
Journeymen workers on	B42.89	B44.66
job)	T111.26	T114.70
Foreman (4-10	W71.47	W73.23
Journeymen workers on	B44.86	B46.70
job)	T116.33	T119.93
General Foreman (21-30	W74.58	W76.41
Journeymen workers on	B46.81	B48.71
job)	T121.39	T125.12
General Foreman (31-60	W80.80	W82.78
Journeymen workers on	B50.70	B52.76
job)	T131.50	T135.54
General Foreman (61+	W82.04	W84.05
Journeymen workers on	B51.48	B53.58
job)	T133.52	T137.63
Groundman	W37.29	W38.21
	B23.41	B24.35
	T60.70	T62.56
Journeyman	W62.15	W63.67
Lineman/Technician	B39.00	B40.60
	T101.15	T104.27
Sub-Foreman	W70.85	W72.59
	B44.46	B46.27
	T115.31	T118.86

6/1/2023 Page 27 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%				
Benefits	61.75% of	Journey	man	wage	+ \$.01						

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-29-23:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hours 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

Benefits 62.75% of the Journeyman wage + \$.01

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-3-24:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hours 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

Benefits 63.75% of the Journeyman wage + \$.01

* FOR UTILITY WORK PLEASE SEE STATEWIDE RATES

The regular worday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- 1 to 3 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/1-3 Journeymen rate).
- -4 to 10 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/4-10 Journeymen rate).
- -11 to 20 Journeymen- 1 must be Foreman (Foreman/11-20 Journeymen rate) and 1 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -21 to 30 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/21-30 Journeymen rate) and 2 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -31 to 40 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-40 Journeymen rate) and 3 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -41 to 50 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 4 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -51 to 60 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 5 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -61+ Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/61+ Journeymen rate) and 6 must be a Sub-Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7.5 hrs. work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7 hrs. work + an additional 15% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day,

6/1/2023 Page 28 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 29 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) PREVAILING W.	<i>N</i> AGE KATE
---	-------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
* 6 Months	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%			
Benefits	69% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals			

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (North) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 30 of 74

^{*} The apprentice wage rate is paid at the percentage of the Journeyman Lineman wage rate located in the "Statewide" rate package.

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South) PREVAILING WAGE RATE

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES							
6 Months	31.65	34.29	36.93	39.56	42.20	44.84	47.78		
Benefits	28.02	29.62	31.20	32.80	34.40	36.00	37.58		

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (South) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 31 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Elevator Constructor PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W77.49
	B45.23
	T122.72

Craft: Elevator Constructor APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	34.60	42.62	50.37	58.12						
Benefits	35.56	36.49	38.02	39.55						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Constructor COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of either 7 or 8 hours to be established at the beginning of the project, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

For all hours worked before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday, shall be paid at double the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus double the hourly rate for all hours worked.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 32 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W60.89
	B44.07
	T104.96

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	34.60	33.49	39.58	45.67						
Benefits	35.50	36.07	37.52	38.97						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

COMMENTS/NOTES

MODERNIZATION (addition, replacement, refurbishing, relocation, or changes in design or appearance, of elevator equipment in existing buildings):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus time and one-half the hourly rate for all hours worked.

SERVICE (repair or replacement of parts for the purpose of maintaining elevator equipment in good operating condition):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS (Modernization and Service): New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 33 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Glazier PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/18/22
* Leadman	W51.48
	B29.13
	T80.61
Foreman	W53.48
	B29.37
	T82.85
General Foreman	W55.48
	B29.61
	T85.09
Journeyman	W49.48
	B28.89
	T78.37
I	I

Craft: Glazier APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	90%		
Benefits	9.75	9.75	12.36	12.36	15.60	15.60	17.02	17.02		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Glazier COMMENTS/NOTES

Hazard/Height Pay: +\$1.00 per hour

* When there are three (3) men working on a jobsite for three (3) days or longer, 1 Journeyman may be designated as a Leadman for the duration of the job, provided he has his OSHA certification.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM, Monday to Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular

6/1/2023 Page 34 of 74

County - SOMERSET

rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 35 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	07/01/22	07/01/23	07/01/24	07/01/25
Foreman	W53.40	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B36.85	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T90.25	T92.75	T95.50	T98.25
Journeyman	W51.90	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B36.85	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T88.75	T91.25	T94.00	T96.75

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	45%	55%	65%	75%	80%					
Benefit	33.60	for	all	intervals						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator

COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- If there is only 1 Insulator on the job, he must be designated a Foreman.
- If there are 2 to 10 Insulators on the job, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- If there are 11 or more Insulators on the job, 1 must be designated a General Foreman and receive the following additional pay (% above Journeyman wage rate):
 - 11 20 Insulators on site: 10%; 21 30 Insulators on site: 15%;
 - 31 40 Insulators on site: 20%; 41 50 Insulators on site: 25%

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of two (2) consecutive days and a minimum of two (2) shifts per day must be worked. Additionally, no less than two (2) employees may work on any one (1) shift. If these requirements are not met then shift work would not apply and the applicable overtime rate shall be paid.
- 1st Shift- Monday through Friday (7:00 AM- 3:00 PM).
- 2nd Shift- Monday through Friday (3:00 PM 11:00 PM): additional 15% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift- Monday through Friday (11:00 PM 7:00 AM): additional 20% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- When a single night shift is established by the project owner for work not accessible during the day (due to the building being occupied), Monday through Friday, work performed during a second shift (3:00 PM-11:00 PM) shall be paid an additional 20% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits, and work performed during a third shift (11:00 PM-7:00 AM) shall be paid an additional 25% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

6/1/2023 Page 36 of 74

^{*} Ratio = 1:4 on a "company-wide" basis (i.e. the total number of apprentices and journeymen employed by the company). There is no limit to the number of apprentices allowed on any one job, provided there is at least 1 journeyman on the job.

County - SOMERSET

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the preceding Friday, Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 37 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	07/01/22	07/01/23	07/01/24	07/01/25
Foreman	W53.40	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B36.85	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T90.25	T92.75	T95.50	T98.25
Journeyman	W51.90	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B36.85	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T88.75	T91.25	T94.00	T96.75

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
	SEE	Heat &	Frost	Insulator						

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply only to the REMOVAL of insulation materials/asbestos from mechanical systems, including containment erection and demolition, and placing material in appropriate containers.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- If there is only 1 Asbestos Worker on the job, he must be designated an Abatement Foreman.
- If there are 2 to 10 Asbestos Workers on the job, 1 must be designated an Abatement Foreman.
- If there are 11 or more Asbestos Workers on the job, 1 must be designated a General Foreman and receive the following additional pay (% above Abatement Mechanic wage rate):
 - 11 20 Insulators on site: 10%; 21 30 Insulators on site: 15%;
 - 31 40 Insulators on site: 20%; 41 50 Insulators on site: 25%

MECHANIC-TO-APPRENTICE RATIO:

- Maximum of 5 Apprentices for each Abatement Mechanic on the job.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the preceding Friday, Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 38 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26	
Foreman	W63.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T98.20	T100.20	T102.20	T104.20	
General Foreman	W65.78	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T100.70	T102.70	T104.70	T106.70	
Journeyman	W58.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
	T93.20	T95.20	T97.20	T99.20	

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges

COMMENTS/NOTES

These rates apply to: All bridges that span waterways, roadways, railways and canyons. All tunnels, overpasses, viaducts and all appurtenances.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 39 of 74

^{*} Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as bridges.

County - SOMERSET

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 40 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
Foreman	W52.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T84.59	T86.59	T88.59	T90.59
General Foreman	W54.52	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T87.09	T89.09	T91.09	T93.09
Journeyman	W47.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T79.59	T81.59	T83.59	T85.59

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
	SEE	INDUST	RIAL	PAINTER	BRIDGES					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All work in power plants (any aspect). On steeples, on dams, on hangers, transformers, substations, on all open steel, in refineries, tank farms, water/sewerage treatment facilities and on pipelines.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except for Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During the regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 41 of 74

County - SOMERSET

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 42 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks PREVAILING WAGE RATE

02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26	
W53.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
T85.29	T87.29	T89.29	T91.29	
W55.57	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
T87.79	T89.79	T91.79	T93.79	
W48.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00	
B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00	
T80.29	T82.29	T84.29	T86.29	
	W53.07 B32.22 T85.29 W55.57 B32.22 T87.79 W48.07 B32.22	W53.07 W0.00 B32.22 B0.00 T85.29 T87.29 W55.57 W0.00 B32.22 B0.00 T87.79 T89.79 W48.07 W0.00 B32.22 B0.00	W53.07 W0.00 W0.00 B32.22 B0.00 B0.00 T85.29 T87.29 T89.29 W55.57 W0.00 W0.00 B32.22 B0.00 B0.00 T87.79 T89.79 T91.79 W48.07 W0.00 W0.00 B32.22 B0.00 B0.00	

Craft: Industrial Painter-Water Tanks APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	0% 70% 90%									
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All new and repaint water tanks (interior and exterior).

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 43 of 74

County - SOMERSET

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 44 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Ironworker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	07/01/22
Rod /Fence Foreman	W48.39
	B48.92
	T97.31
Rod/Fence Journeyman	W45.39
	B48.92
	T94.31
Structural Foreman	W50.69
	B48.92
	T99.61
Structural Journeyman	W47.69
	B48.92
	T96.61

Craft: Ironworker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	0% 60% Yearly 70% 80% 90%									

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Ironworker COMMENTS/NOTES

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK: On hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where the Ironworker is required to wear Level A,B, or C personal protection: + \$3.00 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

When there are 2 or more Ironworkers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis.
- When an irregular shift is established for the Ironworker (Structural) classification, the rate shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. When an irregular shift is established for the Rod/Fence classification, the shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive the regular rate, plus 20%.

OVERTIME:

6/1/2023 Page 45 of 74

County - SOMERSET

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. Saturday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 46 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	08/09/22
Foreman	W41.38 B24.21 T65.59
Journeyman (Handler)	W36.78 B24.21 T60.99

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	22.07	2.07 25.75 29.42 33.10									
Benefits	22.06	for	all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to work in connection with Asbestos, Radiation, Hazardous Waste, Lead, Chemical, Biological, Mold Remediation and Abatement.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. (Holidays start at 12:00 am).

6/1/2023 Page 47 of 74

^{*} Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Laborer - Building PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Class A Journeyman	W38.00
	B32.17
	T70.17
Class B Journeyman	W37.00
	B32.17
	T69.17
Class C Journeyman	W31.45
	B32.17
	T63.62
Foreman	W42.75
	B32.17
	T74.92
General Foreman	W47.50
	B32.17
	T79.67

Craft: Laborer - Building APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	60%	50% 70% 80% 90% of Class B wage rate									
Benefit	28.92	28.92	28.92	28.92							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Building

COMMENTS/NOTES

CLASS A: Specialist laborer including mason tender or concrete pour crew; scaffold builder (scaffolds up to 14 feet in height); operator of forklifts, Bobcats (or equivalent machinery), jack hammers, tampers, motorized tampers and compactors, vibrators, street cleaning machines, hydro demolition equipment, riding motor buggies, conveyors, burners; and nozzlemen on gunite work.

CLASS B: Basic laborer - includes all laborer work not listed in Class A or Class C.

CLASS C: Janitorial-type light clean-up work associated with the TURNOVER of a project, or part of a project, to the owner. All other clean-up work is Class B.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When a 2-shift schedule is worked, including a day shift, both shifts shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.
- When a 3-shift schedule is worked, the day shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked, the second shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours worked, and the third shift shall be established

6/1/2023 Page 48 of 74

^{*} Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than one (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

County - SOMERSET

on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7 hours worked. The day shift shall receive the regular rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.

- When a second or third shift is worked with no day shift, the second or third shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established this shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day (paid at straight time) for a day lost to inclement weather, or for a holiday that is observed during the work week, Monday through Friday. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday to Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at time and one-half.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 49 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
----------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	60%	0% 70% 80% 90%									
Benefit	23.98	for	all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

COMMENTS/NOTES

Heavy & General Laborer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 50 of 74

^{*} No more than 1 apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than 1 apprentice for each additional 3 journeymen.

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/23
* Skilled Tradesman (only applies to Modular Construction)	W27.90 B5.45 T33.35
Foreman (person directing crew, regardless of his skill classification)	W31.90 B5.45 T37.35
Laborer (for single family and stand-alone duplex owned by single owner)	W17.85 B2.95 T20.80
Residential and Modular Construction Laborer	W23.90 B5.45 T29.35

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
As shown	800 hours	00 hours 600 hours 600 hours									
wage & benefits	70%	80%	90%								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen-

One (1) apprentice shall be allowed for the first journeyman on site and no more than one (1) additional apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen on site.

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

* SKILLED TRADESMAN-

any worker doing work not typically done by a Building Laborer. Some examples are installing interior doors, sheet rock, hooking up appliances, installing light fixtures, installing railing systems, etc. Please note where local building codes require that certain work be performed under the supervision of a licensed tradesman (i.e. Plumber, Electrician, etc.) Laborers shall work under such supervision.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- All residential construction (not commercial), single-family, stand-alone duplex houses, townhouses and multi-family buildings of not more than four (4) floors. Each housing unit must be fully and independently functional; each housing unit must have its own kitchen and bathroom. The definition includes all incidental items such as site work, parking areas, utilities, streets and sidewalks. Please note the construction must be Residential in nature. A First Floor at or below grade may contain commercial space not to exceed 50% square footage of the floor; at least 50% of the First Floor must contain living accommodations or related nonresidential uses (e.g. laundry space, recreation/hobby rooms, and/or corridor space). Basement stories below grade used for storage, parking, mechanical systems/equipment, etc., are considered basement stories which are not used in determining the building's height even if used for storage purposes. In addition, barracks and dormitories are not considered residential projects.

MODULAR RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- all aspects of modular residential construction (not commercial) at the site of installation of structures of no more than four (4) stories, including all excavation and site preparation, footings and

6/1/2023 Page 51 of 74

County - SOMERSET

foundation systems whether poured on-site or prefabricated, all underground waterproofing, underground utilities, concrete slabs, sidewalks, driveways, paving, hardscape and landscaping. Please note the construction must be Residential as defined above. All work performed by the Set Crew (the crew of workers who set the modular boxes on the foundation), including the rigging, setting, attaching and assembly of all modules and structural members, preparation of the foundation to accept modules, such as sill plates, connection of all in-module and under-module connections including, but not limited to, plumbing, electrical, HVAC, fire suppression, CATS, telephone, television/internet, and fiber optic, the building or installation of any porches or decks regardless of material or method of construction, the on-site installation of, or completion of any roof system, doors, windows and fenestrations, including flashing, gutter and soffit systems, waterproofing, insulation and interior and exterior trim work, and painting. Please note that modular construction does not include on-site stick built construction, tip up construction or panel built construction.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day/40 per week, Monday through Saturday, and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOILDAYS:

New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 52 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Millwright PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W64.35 B38.57 T102.92
Journeyman	W55.96 B33.62 T89.58

Craft: Millwright APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%					
Benefits	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.61		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Millwright COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Millwrights on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 53 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Clait. Operating Engineer TREVAILING WAGE KATE	Craft:	Operating Engineer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--	--------	--------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES			
Yearly	60%	70%	80%	90%			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 54 of 74

^{* 1} apprentice for each piece of heavy equipment. At least 10 pieces of heavy equipment or a minimum of 5 Operating Engineers must be on site.

County - SOMERSET

Craft:	Operating Engineer - Field Engineer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--------	-------------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	70%	75%	of Rod/	Chainman	Wage					
Yearly			80%	90%	Transit/	Instrument	man	Wage		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer - Field Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 55 of 74

^{*} No more than 1 Field Engineer Apprentice per Survey Crew.

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Painter - Line Striping PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/07/22
Apprentice (1st year)	W29.15
	B14.75
	T43.90
Apprentice (2nd year)	W33.25
	B25.70
	T58.95
Foreman (Charge Person)	W42.05
	B26.48
	T68.53
Journeyman 1 (at least 1	W37.28
year of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T63.76
Journeyman 2 (at least 2	W41.05
years of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T67.53

Craft: Painter - Line Striping COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 56 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Paperhanger PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W52.82 B29.51 T82.33
Journeyman	W48.02 B29.51 T77.53

Craft: Paperhanger APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES			
	SEE	COMME	CIAL	PAINTER			
		K					

Craft: Paperhanger COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Paperhangers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day

6/1/2023 Page 57 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Pipefitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W58.68
	B49.97
	T108.65
Journeyman	W54.43
	B46.36
	T100.79

Craft: Pipefitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	35%	45%	55%	65%	75%				
Benefit	26.80	29.79	32.79	35.78	38.78				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Pipefitter COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Journeyman Pipefitters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- There shall be a Foreman for every 8 Journeyman Pipefitters on a job.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM-11:30 PM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 10% per hour on the total rate.
- 3rd Shift (11:30 PM-7:00 AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 15% per hour on the total rate.

OVERTIME:

- All hours worked in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.
- By mutual agreement, employees may work four 10-hour days, Monday to Thursday, at straight time rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, and may be paid at straight time. If Friday is not a make-up day, the first 8 hours shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits; hours in excess of 8 shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL (Maintenance Work Only):

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM-11:30 PM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 10% per hour on the total rate.
- 3rd Shift (11:30 PM-7:00 AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 15% per hour on the total rate.

OVERTIME (Maintenance Work Only):

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All

6/1/2023 Page 58 of 74

County - SOMERSET

hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.

NOTE: Maintenance work is work to repair, restore, or improve the efficiency of existing facilities. This does NOT apply to ANY new construction.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays are observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 59 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft:	Plasterer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Cement Mason" Ra	ites
Craft:	Plasterer	COMMENTS/NOTES
See	CEMENT MASON Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 60 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Plumber PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W64.25
	B41.62
	T105.87
General Foreman	W68.41
	B41.62
	T110.03
Journeyman	W59.49
	B41.62
	T101.11

Craft: Plumber APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	30%	30% 45% 55% 65% 75%								
Benefits	17.09	23.48	25.72	27.96	30.19					

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Plumber COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job having 2 or more Plumbers, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 9 or more Plumbers, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must continue for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When two shifts are worked, the second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the hourly rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a third shift is worked, the third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the hourly rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before of after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays, shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 61 of 74

^{*} Employers may employ 1 apprentice on any job where 1 or 2 journeymen are employed. Thereafter, 1 apprentice may be employed for every 4 journeymen.

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Roofer PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/22
Foreman	W45.52 B29.81 T75.33
Journeyman	W42.52 B29.81 T72.33

Craft: Roofer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	17.00	17.00 21.26 25.51 27.64 29.76 31.89 34.01 38.27								
Benefits	2.16	2.16	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

- * [A] For roofing jobs that are of the 1 or single ply nature: 1:2 or fraction thereof
 - [B] For roofing jobs on new built up roofs: 1:3 or fraction thereof
 - [C] For roofing jobs that are of a tear-off nature: 1:2 or fraction thereof
 - [D] For re-roofing jobs {not requiring complete removal of existing systems; installation done over existing roof}: 1:3 or

fraction thereof

Craft: Roofer COMMENTS/NOTES

Pitch: +.50 per hour

Mop Man: +.30 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 62 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/22
Foreman	W41.29 B38.97 T80.26
Journeyman	W39.29 B38.97 T78.26

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 hours	35%	35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80							80%		
Benefits	13.19	15.02	16.88	18.74	21.06	22.94	24.83	26.73	28.62	30.50	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENT:

When there are 6 or more Sheet Metal Sign Installers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday though Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Four(4) 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, for projects lasting at least one week in duration. The fifth day may be used as a make-up day at straight time for a day lost due to inclement weather. However, if the fifth day is not a make-up day, all hours worked will be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the preceding Friday, Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 63 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/06/22
Foreman	W56.98
	B48.69
	T105.67
General Foreman	W57.98
	B48.69
	T106.67
Journeyman	W53.48
	B48.69
	T102.17

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	35%	15% 45% 55% 65% of Journey man Wage Rate									
Benefit	35%	45%	55%	65%	of	Journey	man	Benefit	Rate		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 17 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.
- When there is only 1 Sheet Metal Worker (1 Journeyman) on a project, he/she shall receive \$1.00 more than the regular Journeyman's rate.

The regular workday is 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM 12:00 AM): +17% of regular hourly rate
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 per day on Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, with hours in excess of 10 per day, and hours in excess of 40 per week paid at the overtime rates listed above.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 64 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W69.82
	B35.80
	T105.62
General Foreman	W73.15
	B35.80
	T108.95
Journeyman	W65.32
	B35.80
	T101.12

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 hours	80% 85%								85%	
Benefits						Intervals	9 to 10	Jourymn	Ben.	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter COMMENTS/NOTES

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-13:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 25% 30% 40% 45% 55% 60% 70% 75% 85% 90% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 Intervals 7-10 Journy. Ben.

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-22:

Interval Period and Rates

The regular workday consists of 8 consecutive hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Sprinkler Fitter on the job must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 12 or more Sprinkler Fitters, one must be designated a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 2 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd and 3rd shift shall receive an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour.
- Any "off hours" shift starting at 8:00 PM or later shall receive an additional 25% of the regular rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be

6/1/2023 Page 65 of 74

County - SOMERSET

paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Hours worked in excess of 10 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, Sunday and holidays, shall be paid double the regular rate.

Four 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight-time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 66 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
Finisher	W49.32
	B36.62
	T85.94

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	40%	0% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%									
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 67 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/05/22
Finisher	W48.04 B32.26 T80.30
Setter	W62.62 B35.39 T98.01

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	35%	40%	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	90%	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Saturdays after 10 hours shall be paid double the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 68 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
Tile Setter	W62.82
	B39.03
	T101.85

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	40%	60%	65%	70%	75%	85%	95%				
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 69 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Grinder or Assistant	W58.67 B39.00 T97.67
Mechanic	W60.28 B39.01 T99.29
Terrazzo Resinous Worker	W50.32 B31.63 T81.95

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
750 Hours	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	85%	95%	100%		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 7-1-17:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

1500 Hours 35% 45% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

The regular workday consists of 7 hours, between 8:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 7 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Monday after Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 70 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Truck Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23	05/01/24
	00/02/20	00/01/24
Bucket, Utility, Pick-up,	W46.06	W0.00
Fuel Delivery trucks	B38.88	B0.00
	T84.94	T88.43
Dump truck (single axle),	W46.06	W0.00
Asphalt Distributor, Tack	B38.88	B0.00
Spreader	T84.94	T88.43
Euclid-type vehicles (large	W46.21	W0.00
off-road equipment)	B38.88	B0.00
	T85.09	T88.58
Helper on Asphalt	W46.06	W0.00
Distributor truck	B38.88	B0.00
	T84.94	T88.43
Low Boy Driver	W47.71	W0.00
	B38.88	B0.00
	T86.59	T90.08
Slurry Seal,	W46.06	W0.00
Seeding/Fertilizing/Mulchi	B38.88	B0.00
ng truck	T84.94	T88.43
Straight 3-axle trucks,	W46.11	W0.00
Dump Truck (3-axle),	B38.88	B0.00
Dump Truck (tandem)	T84.99	T88.48
Tractor-Trailer truck (all	W46.21	W0.00
types)	B38.88	B0.00
	T85.09	T88.58
Vacuum or Vac-All truck	W46.06	W0.00
(entire unit)	B38.88	B0.00
	T84.94	T88.43
Winch Trailer Driver	W46.31	W0.00
	B38.88	B0.00
	T85.19	T88.68
	1	1

Craft: Truck Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

Foreman: + \$.75 cents per hour. Overtime rate shall be increased accordingly.

HAZARDOUS WASTE REMOVAL WORK:

- On a hazardous waste site requiring Level A, B, or C personal protection for any worker: + \$3.00 per hour.
- On a hazardous waste site not designated Level A, B, or C: + \$1.00 per hour.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours starting between 6:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

6/1/2023 Page 71 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Any shift starting at a time other than 6:00 AM or 8:00 AM shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour.

BLENDED RATE:

- When a truck driver is performing work on site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate" which shall be 80% of the above-listed wage rates, plus the full benefit rate. This rate shall be used when the driver "round robins" for a minimum of 6 hours during the work day.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Benefits on overtime shall be \$46.41.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veteran's Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 72 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23	05/01/24
Driver	W36.85	W0.00
	B38.88	B0.00
	T75.73	T81.14
New Hires: 1st Year	W36.85	W0.00
	B38.88	B0.00
	T75.73	T0.00
	1	I

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates may only be used for the delivery of *materials TO the job site (*building materials that will become a permanent part of the job site, such as sand, stone, aggregates, asphalt, sheetrock, 2x4's, etc.). In addition, only the following types of truck may be used for such deliveries (Dump Truck or Flat-bed truck). Please note that this rate does not apply to material suppliers or their employees (who do not perform services at the job site), and for the delivery of equipment and/or items that will not become a permanent part of the job site.

OVERTIME: Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate. Benefits on overtime shall be \$46.41.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veteran's Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 73 of 74

County - SOMERSET

Craft:	Welder	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	Welder	
G 8:		
Craft:	Welder	COMMENTS/NOTES
Welder	rs rate is the same as the	e craft to which the welding is incidental.

6/1/2023 Page 74 of 74



STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Department of Labor and Workforce Development
Division of Wage and Hour Compliance - Public Contracts Section
PO Box 389
Trenton, NJ 08625-0389

PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

The New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq.) requires that the Department of Labor and Workforce Development establish and enforce a prevailing wage level for workers engaged in public works in order to safeguard their efficiency and general well being and to protect them as well as their employers from the effects of serious and unfair competition.

Prevailing wage rates are wage and fringe benefit rates based on the collective bargaining agreements established for a particular craft or trade in the locality in which the public work is performed. In New Jersey, these rates vary by county and by the type of work performed.

Applicable prevailing wage rates are those wages and fringe benefits in effect on the date the contract is awarded. All pre-determined rate increases listed at the time the contract is awarded must also be paid, beginning on the dates specified. Rates that have expired will remain in effect until new rates are posted.

Prevailing Wage Rate

The prevailing wage rate for each craft will list the effective date of the rate and the following information:

W =Wage Rate per Hour

B = Fringe Benefit Rate per Hour*

T = Total Rate per Hour

* Fringe benefits are an integral part of the prevailing wage rate. Employers not providing such benefits must pay the fringe benefit amount directly to the employee each payday. Employers providing benefits worth less than the fringe benefit amount must pay the balance directly to the employee each payday.

Unless otherwise stated in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination, the fringe benefit rate for overtime hours remains at the straight time rate.

When the Overtime Notes in the Prevailing Wage Rate Determination state that the overtime rates are "inclusive of benefits," the benefit rate is increased by the same factor as the wage rate (i.e. multiplied by 1.5 for time and one-half, multiplied by 2 for double time, etc.).

Apprentice Rate Schedule

An "apprentice" is an individual who is registered with the United States Department of Labor - Office of Apprenticeship and enrolled in a certified apprenticeship program during the period in which they are working on the public works project.

The apprentice <u>wage</u> rate is a percentage of the journeyman wage rate, unless otherwise indicated. The apprentice <u>benefit</u> rate is the full journeyman benefit rate, unless otherwise indicated.

If there is no apprentice rate schedule listed, the individual must be paid at least the journeyman rate even if that individual is in a certified apprentice program for that trade.

If there is no ratio of apprentices to journeymen listed for a particular craft, then the ratio shall be one (1) apprentice to every four (4) journeymen.

6/1/2023 Page 1 of 73

Comments/Notes

For each craft listed there will be comments/notes that cover the definition of the regular workday, shift differentials, overtime, recognized holidays, and any other relevant information.

Public Works Contractor Registration

The Public Works Contractor Registration Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48, et seq.) requires that **all** contractors, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors who are working on or who bid on public works projects register with the Department of Labor and Workforce Development. Applications are available at www.nj.gov/labor (click on Wage & Hour and then go to Registration & Permits).

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.51:

No contractor shall bid on any contract for public work as defined in section 2 of P.L.1963, c. 150 (C.34:11-56.26) unless the contractor is registered pursuant to this act. No contractor shall list a subcontractor in a bid proposal for the contract unless the subcontractor is registered pursuant to P.L.1999, c.238 (C.34:11-56.48 et seq.) at the time the bid is made. No contractor or subcontractor, including a subcontractor not listed in the bid proposal, shall engage in the performance of any public work subject to the contract, unless the contractor or subcontractor is registered pursuant to that act.

Snow Plowing

Snow plowing contracts are <u>not</u> subject to the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act or the Public Works Contractor Registration Act.

6/1/2023 Page 2 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/01/23
Journeyman (Mechanic)	W44.23
	B28.63
	T72.86

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
As Shown	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year	Wage = %	of Jnymn	Wage			
Wage and Bene	40%	50%	60%	70%	80%	Bene = %	of Jnymn	Bene			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Air Conditioning & Refrigeration - Service and Repair

COMMENTS/NOTES

THESE RATES MAY BE USED FOR THE FOLLOWING:

- Service/Repair/Maintenance Work to EXISTING facilities.
- Replacement or Installation of air conditioning and refrigeration equipment when the combined tonnage does not exceed 15 tons for refrigeration, or 25 tons for air conditioning.
- Replacement or Installation of "packaged" or "unitary" rooftop-type units when the combined tonnage of the units does not exceed 75 tons.

NOTE: These rates may NOT be used for any work in new construction (including work on new additions).

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 10:00 AM, Monday through Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second and third shifts shall be paid an additional 15% of the hourly rate.
- All shifts must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive days.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 3 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Boilermaker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W53.50
	B46.66
	T100.16
General Foreman	W55.50
	B47.71
	T103.21
Journeyman	W48.50
	B44.92
	T93.42
I .	1

Craft: Boilermaker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
1000 Hours	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%	95%			
Benefit =	38.07	39.03	40.03	41.00	41.99	42.97	43.93			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

* 1 apprentice will be allowed for the first 5 journeymen, 1 apprentice for the next 10 journeymen and 1 apprentice for each succeeding 20 journeymen up to a maximum of 5 apprentices per contractor on any one job.

Craft: Boilermaker COMMENTS/NOTES

HIGH WORK: All apprentices working on the erection, repair, or dismantling of smoke stacks, standpipes, or water towers shall be paid the Journeyman rate.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall work 7½ hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 10%.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the regular hourly rate plus 20%.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Two, four day, 10 hour shifts may be worked at straight time Monday through Thursday. The day shift shall work four days, at 10 hours, for 10 hours pay. The second shift shall work four days, at nine and a half hours, for 10 hours pay, plus 10% the hourly rate for new work and .25 cents on repair work. Friday may be used as a make-up day at straight time, due to weather conditions, hoilday or any other circumstances beyond the employer's control.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.
- If any other craft employed by the same contractor, or a subcontractor thereof, receives double time in lieu of time and one-half, then the Boilermaker shall receive double time in lieu of time and one-half.
- For "Municipal Water Works" projects only, the following shall apply: Four 10 hour days may be worked Monday through Thursday at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, holiday or other conditions beyond the control of the employer. Overtime shall be paid for any hours that exceed 10 hours per day or 40 hours per week.

6/1/2023 Page 4 of 73

County - UNION

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 5 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W35.45
	B17.78
	T53.23
General Foreman	W35.95
	B17.78
	T53.73
Mechanic	W33.95
	B17.78
	T51.73
I .	I

Craft: Boilermaker - Minor Repairs

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to MINOR REPAIR WORK ONLY (repair work in the field for which the contract amount does not exceed \$125,000.00), for boilers that do not produce electric or are not used in the heating of petroleum products.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the hourly rate. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at four times the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 6 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Deputy Foreman	W51.00
	B36.28
	T87.28
Foreman	W55.75
	B36.28
	T92.03
Journeyman	W48.00
	B36.28
	T84.28

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%			
Benefits	4.00	5.00	5.50	6.00	24.29	26.00	27.73	29.43			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Bricklayer, Stone Mason COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. The first 10 hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Any additional overtime shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to inclement weather.
- When Bricklayers/Stone Masons work on Saturday with Laborers, and no other crafts are working on the project for the day, benefits may be paid at straight time. If other crafts are present, the applicable overtime rate for benefits shall be paid.

6/1/2023 Page 7 of 73

County - UNION

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 8 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Carpenter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.56 T100.28
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.73 T87.27

Craft: Carpenter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%						
Benefit	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.56				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

For Solar installation- all work on solar projects that fall under the jurisdiction of the carpenters, and does not require an electrician, the ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen shall be 1:1.

Craft: Carpenter COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.56

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

6/1/2023 Page 9 of 73

County - UNION

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 10 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W62.72 B37.47 T100.19
Journeyman	W54.54 B32.64 T87.18

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%						
Benefit	59%	of	Appren	tice	Wage Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.47			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Carpenter - Resilient Flooring

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES REGISTERED AS OF 5-1-19:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES Yearly 40% 55% 65% 80%

Benefits 59% of apprentice wage rate for all intervals + \$0.47

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job where there are 4 or more Carpenters of Resilient Flooring, 1 must be designated a Foreman.

FOR SYNTHETIC TURF INSTALLATION ONLY:

- The rate shall be 90% of the wage and benefit rate.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular wage rate plus 10%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular wage rate, the second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular wage rate plus 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day or 40 per week, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day, at straight time, up to 8 hours, for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer, up to a total of 40 hours per week; hours in excess of 8 on Saturday shall

6/1/2023 Page 11 of 73

^{* 1} apprentice shall be allowed to every 2 journeymen or major fraction therof. No more than 3 apprentices on any one job or project.

County - UNION

then be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the wage rate.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for hours lost to reasons beyond the control of the employer. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the wage rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 12 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	10/20/22
Foreman	W50.97 B11.58 T62.55
Journeyman	W44.32 B10.78 T55.10

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	55% 65% 80%									
Benefit	12% of	Appren	tice	wage rate	for all	intervals	+ \$5.46				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Carpenter-Residential Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Carpenters on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.
- When there are 21 or more Carpenters on a job, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION:

All residential construction (excluding commercial buildings and institutional housing), no more than four (4) floors in height above grade consisting of those projects involving the construction, alteration, or repair of town houses or row houses, single family homes, mobile homes, multi-family homes, mixed-use buildings that include commercial space on the first floor or below grade, and apartment buildings.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 10% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of banefits
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a

6/1/2023 Page 13 of 73

County - UNION

day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 14 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Cement Ma	ason P	REVAILING WAGE RAT	E					
See "B	ricklayer, Stone Mason"	Rates						
Craft: Cement Ma	ason A	PPRENTICE RATE SCH	EDULE					
INTERVAL	PERIO	OD AND RATES						
Ratio of Apprentic	es to Journeymen - 1:4	•	+					
Craft: Cement M	ason C	COMMENTS/NOTES						
See "Bricklayer	***See "Bricklayer, Stone Mason" Rates							

6/1/2023 Page 15 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Commercial Painter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W48.02
	B29.51
	T77.53
General Foreman	W52.38
	B29.51
	T81.89
Journeyman	W43.65
	B29.51
	T73.16

Craft: Commercial Painter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	40%	45%	55%	65%	70%	75%	80%	80%		
Benefits	8.85	8.85	11.25	11.25	12.30	12.30	15.10	15.10		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Commercial Painter COMMENTS/NOTES

* Commercial Painters perform work on all commercial structures such as offices, schools, hotels, shopping malls, restaurants, condominiums, etc.

Spraying, sandblasting, lead abatement work on commercial buildings, work performed above 3 stories or 30 feet in height, or using swing scaffolds requires an additional 10% of the wage rate.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day,

6/1/2023 Page 16 of 73

County - UNION

Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 17 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Diver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Diver	W63.24 B51.72 T114.96
Tender	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22

Craft: Diver COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: All dive crews must consist of a Tender, a Diver, and a standby Diver (standby Diver is the same rate as a Diver).

DEPTH & PENETRATION RATES: Divers shall be paid the following depth and penetration rates, in addition to the regular hourly rate, when applicable:

AIR DIVES: MIXED GAS DIVES:

PENETRATION DIVES:

126-200 feet: + \$1.50 per foot 201-275 feet: + \$1.75 per foot 276-350 feet: + \$2.00 per foot 351-425 feet: + \$2.50 per foot

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 18 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Foreman	W59.23 B51.72 T110.95
Foreman (Concrete Form Work)	W58.13 B38.36 T96.49
Journeyman	W51.50 B51.72 T103.22
Journeyman (Concrete Form Work)	W50.55 B38.36 T88.91

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	20.60	25.75	33.48	41.20						
Benefits	33.96	for all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Dockbuilder/Pile Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONCRETE FORM WORK ONLY:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
Yearly 20.22 25.28 32.86 40.44

Benefits 26.14 for all intervals

CREOSOTE HANDLING:

When handling creosote products on land piledriving, floating marine construction, and construction of wharves, the worker shall receive an additional \$0.25 per hour.

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK:

- Hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where Level A, B, or C personal protection is required: an additional 20% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- Hazardous waste removal work in Level D, or where personal protection is not required: an additional \$1.00 per hour.

CERTIFIED WELDER: When required on the job by the project owner, a Certified Welder shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

The first Dockbuilder/Pile Driver on the job shall be designated a Foreman.

6/1/2023 Page 19 of 73

^{*} When there are 4 or fewer Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers on a job, no more than 1 may be an apprentice. When there are 5 or more Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers, there may be 1 apprentice for every 5 Dockbuilders/Pile Drivers.

County - UNION

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- When a three shift schedule is established, all three shifts shall be established on an 8 hour basis, but the second and third shifts shall receive an additional 113% of the wage rate.
- Benefits on shift work shall be paid at the straight-time rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Veterans' Day may be switched with the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 20 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Drywall Finisher PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W47.17 B29.54
General Foreman	T76.71 W49.31
	B29.54 T78.85
Journeyman	W42.88 B29.54 T72.42

Craft: Drywall Finisher APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	50%		60%	70%		80%	90%		
Benefits	Intervals	1 to 2 =	11.45	Intervals	3 to 4 =	14.33	Intervals	5 to 6 =	18.04	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Drywall Finisher COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 21 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Electrician PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
Cable Splicer	W68.06	W69.72
	B43.20	B44.96
	T111.26	T114.68
Foreman (11-20	W72.39	W74.15
Journeymen)	B45.95	B47.84
	T118.34	T121.99
Foreman (1-3	W68.06	W69.72
Journeymen)	B43.20	B44.96
	T111.26	T114.68
Foreman (4-10	W71.15	W72.89
Journeymen)	B45.17	B47.02
	T116.32	T119.91
General Foreman (21-30	W74.24	W76.06
Journeymen)	B47.14	B49.06
	T121.38	T125.12
General Foreman (31-60	W80.43	W82.39
Journeymen)	B51.07	B53.15
	T131.50	T135.54
General Foreman (61+	W81.67	W83.66
Journeymen)	B51.85	B53.97
	T133.52	T137.63
Journeyman	W61.87	W63.38
	B39.30	B40.89
	T101.17	T104.27
Sub-Foreman	W70.52	W72.25
	B44.79	B46.61
	T115.31	T118.86

Craft: Electrician APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	40%	49%	58%	68%	80%		of Jour	neyman	Wage	Rate
Benefit	40%	49%	58%	68%	80%		of Jour	neyman	Benefit	Rate

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician COMMENTS/NOTES

6/1/2023 Page 22 of 73

County - UNION

THESE RATES ALSO APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING:

- -All burglar and fire alarm work.
- -All fiber optic work.
- -Teledata work in new construction.
- -Teledata work involving 16 Voice/Data Lines or more.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- 1 to 3 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/1-3 Journeymen rate).
- -4 to 10 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/4-10 Journeymen rate).
- -11 to 20 Journeymen- 1 must be Foreman (Foreman/11-20 Journeymen rate) and 1 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -21 to 30 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/21-30 Journeymen rate) and 2 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -31 to 40 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-40 Journeymen rate) and 3 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -41 to 50 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 4 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -51 to 60 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 5 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -61+ Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/61+ Journeymen rate) and 6 must be a Sub-Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours work + an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 23 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	11/28/22	12/04/23	12/02/24
Journeyman Technician	W45.86	W47.08	W48.21
(1-2 Workers on Job)	B27.05	B27.78	B28.45
	T72.91	T74.86	T76.66
Master Tech/General	W59.62	W61.20	W62.67
Foreman	B35.16	B36.12	B36.99
(26 + Workers on Job)	T94.78	T97.32	T99.66
Senior Technician/Lead	W54.57	W56.03	W57.37
Foreman	B32.19	B33.05	B33.86
(16-25 Workers on Job)	T86.76	T89.08	T91.23
Technician A/Foreman	W52.28	W53.67	W54.96
(9-15 Workers on Job)	B30.84	B31.67	B32.43
	T83.12	T85.34	T87.39
Technician B/Working	W49.99	W51.32	W52.55
Foreman	B29.48	B30.28	B31.01
(4-8 Workers on Job)	T79.47	T81.60	T83.56
Technician C/Foreman	W47.69	W48.96	W50.14
(3 Workers on Job)	B28.14	B28.89	B29.59
	T75.83	T77.85	T79.73

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	35%	35%	40%	43%	48%	54%	61%	67%	74%	81%
Benefits	7.45	7.45	8.51	9.15	10.22	11.49	12.98	14.26	15.76	17.24

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 2:3

Craft: Electrician - Teledata (15 Voice/Data Lines & Less)

COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 11-28-22:

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81% Benefits 7.67 7.67 8.76 9.43 10.52 11.84 13.38 14.69 16.22 17.76

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 12-4-23:

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81% Benefits 7.88 7.88 9.00 9.68 10.80 12.15 13.73 15.09 16.66 18.23

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 12-2-24:

6/1/2023 Page 24 of 73

County - UNION

NTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES
6 Months 35% 35% 40% 43% 48% 54% 61% 67% 74% 81%
Benefits 8.07 8.07 9.22 9.91 11.07 12.45 14.06 15.44 17.06 18.68

NOTES:

- These rates are for service, maintenance, moves, and/or changes affecting
- 15 Voice/Data (teledata) lines or less. These rates may NOT be used for any teledata work in new construction (including additions) or any fiber optic work.
- The number of Teledata workers on the jobsite is the determining factor for which Foreman category applies .

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.
- 3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM) shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours work + an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 on Saturday and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday through Friday, between the hours of 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM. A make-up day may be used for a day not being worked during the four 10-hour day schedule if a holiday occurs during the week or for any other conditions that prevent an employee from working the four 10-hour day schedule.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Saturday holidays will be observed the preceding Friday.

6/1/2023 Page 25 of 73

County - UNION

Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	See "Electrician" Rates	
Craft:	Electrician - Teledata (16 Instruments & More)	COMMENTS/NOTES
See	ELECTRICIAN Rates	

6/1/2023 Page 26 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/29/23	06/03/24
Cable Splicer	W68.37	W70.04
	B42.89	B44.66
	T111.26	T114.70
Certified Welder	W65.26	W66.86
	B40.95	B42.62
	T106.21	T109.48
Equipment Operator	W62.15	W63.67
	B39.00	B40.60
	T101.15	T104.27
Foreman (11-20	W72.72	W74.50
Journeymen workers on	B45.62	B47.50
job)	T118.34	T122.00
Foreman (1-3	W68.37	W70.04
Journeymen workers on	B42.89	B44.66
job)	T111.26	T114.70
Foreman (4-10	W71.47	W73.23
Journeymen workers on	B44.86	B46.70
job)	T116.33	T119.93
General Foreman (21-30	W74.58	W76.41
Journeymen workers on	B46.81	B48.71
job)	T121.39	T125.12
General Foreman (31-60	W80.80	W82.78
Journeymen workers on	B50.70	B52.76
job)	T131.50	T135.54
General Foreman (61+	W82.04	W84.05
Journeymen workers on	B51.48	B53.58
job)	T133.52	T137.63
Groundman	W37.29	W38.21
	B23.41	B24.35
	T60.70	T62.56
Journeyman	W62.15	W63.67
Lineman/Technician	B39.00	B40.60
	T101.15	T104.27
Sub-Foreman	W70.85	W72.59
	B44.46	B46.27
	T115.31	T118.86

6/1/2023 Page 27 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	<u>ES</u>					
1000 Hours	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%		
Benefits	61.75% of	Journey	man	wage	+ \$.01				

Craft: Electrician- Outside Commercial COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 5-29-23:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hours 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

Benefits 62.75% of the Journeyman wage + \$.01

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE AS OF 6-3-24:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hours 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

Benefits 63.75% of the Journeyman wage + \$.01

* FOR UTILITY WORK PLEASE SEE STATEWIDE RATES

The regular worday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- 1 to 3 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/1-3 Journeymen rate).
- -4 to 10 Journeymen- 1 must be a Foreman (Foreman/4-10 Journeymen rate).
- -11 to 20 Journeymen- 1 must be Foreman (Foreman/11-20 Journeymen rate) and 1 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -21 to 30 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/21-30 Journeymen rate) and 2 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -31 to 40 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-40 Journeymen rate) and 3 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -41 to 50 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 4 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -51 to 60 Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/31-60 Journeymen rate) and 5 must be a Sub-Foreman.
- -61+ Journeymen- 1 must be a General Foreman (General Foreman/61+ Journeymen rate) and 6 must be a Sub-Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

2nd Shift (4:30 PM to 12:30 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7.5 hrs. work + an additional 10% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

3rd Shift (12:30 AM to 8:00 AM): 8 hrs. pay for 7 hrs. work + an additional 15% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day,

6/1/2023 Page 28 of 73

County - UNION

Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 29 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) PREVAILING W.	<i>N</i> AGE KATE
---	-------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES					
* 6 Months	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	85%	90%		
Benefits	69% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals		

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (North) COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (North) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 30 of 73

^{*} The apprentice wage rate is paid at the percentage of the Journeyman Lineman wage rate located in the "Statewide" rate package.

County - UNION

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South) PREVAILING WAGE RATE

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES					
6 Months	31.65	34.29	36.93	39.56	42.20	44.84	47.78		
Benefits	28.02	29.62	31.20	32.80	34.40	36.00	37.58		

Craft: Electrician-Utility Work (South)

COMMENTS/NOTES

Electrician-Utility Work (South) rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 31 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Elevator Constructor PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W77.49 B45.23 T122.72

Craft: Elevator Constructor APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIO	DD AND RAT	ES			
Yearly	34.60	42.62	50.37	58.12			
Benefits	35.56	36.49	38.02	39.55			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Constructor COMMENTS/NOTES

The regular workday shall consist of either 7 or 8 hours to be established at the beginning of the project, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

For all hours worked before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday, shall be paid at double the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus double the hourly rate for all hours worked.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 32 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	03/29/23
Journeyman	W60.89
	B44.07
	T104.96

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	ES			
Yearly	34.60	33.49	39.58	45.67			
Benefits	35.50	36.07	37.52	38.97			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:1

Craft: Elevator Modernization & Service

COMMENTS/NOTES

MODERNIZATION (addition, replacement, refurbishing, relocation, or changes in design or appearance, of elevator equipment in existing buildings):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday and Sunday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. Holiday pay is one days wages (8 hours) plus time and one-half the hourly rate for all hours worked.

SERVICE (repair or replacement of parts for the purpose of maintaining elevator equipment in good operating condition):

- The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

- Overtime:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS (Modernization and Service): New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays shall be observed on the previous Friday and Sunday holidays shall be observed on the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 33 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Glazier PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/18/22
* Leadman	W51.48
	B29.13 T80.61
	160.01
Foreman	W53.48
	B29.37
	T82.85
General Foreman	W55.48
	B29.61
	T85.09
Journeyman	W49.48
	B28.89
	T78.37

Craft: Glazier APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		<u>PERIC</u>	D AND RAT	<u>ES</u>					
6 Months	50%	55%	60%	65%	70%	75%	80%	90%	
Benefits	9.75	9.75	12.36	12.36	15.60	15.60	17.02	17.02	

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Glazier COMMENTS/NOTES

Hazard/Height Pay: +\$1.00 per hour

* When there are three (3) men working on a jobsite for three (3) days or longer, 1 Journeyman may be designated as a Leadman for the duration of the job, provided he has his OSHA certification.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Glaziers on a job, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM, Monday to Friday.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.
- When 3 shifts are worked, the second shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours of work, and the third shift shall receive 8 hours pay for 7 hours of work.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular

6/1/2023 Page 34 of 73

County - UNION

rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 35 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Foreman	W60.72
	B36.22
	T96.94
General Foreman	W63.06
	B37.33
	T100.39
Journeyman	W58.44
	B35.66
	T94.10
	I

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	27.38	32.49	39.13	45.71						
Benefits	20.86	24.73	27.41	30.01						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to the installing of insulation on hot and cold mechanical systems.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- Second Shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- Third Shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 36 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	09/20/22
Asbestos Helper	W36.89
Abatement	B24.92
	T61.81

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
	SEE	НЕАТ &	FROST	INSULAT						
				Oit						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Heat & Frost Insulator - Asbestos Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply only to the removal of insulation materials/asbestos from mechanical systems, including containment erection and demolition, and placing material in appropriate containers.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM. In addition, the regular workday may also be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 2:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- The second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 25% per hour.
- The third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 30% per hour.

OVERTIME: The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, hours outside of the regular workday Monday through Friday that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours in excess of 10 per day, and all hours on Sunday and holidays (except Labor Day) shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Labor Day shall be paid at triple the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Presidential Election Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 37 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26			
Foreman	W63.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00			
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00			
	T98.20	T100.20	T102.20	T104.20			
General Foreman	W65.78	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00			
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00			
	T100.70	T102.70	T104.70	T106.70			
Journeyman	W58.28	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00			
	B34.92	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00			
	T93.20	T95.20	T97.20	T99.20			

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Bridges

COMMENTS/NOTES

These rates apply to: All bridges that span waterways, roadways, railways and canyons. All tunnels, overpasses, viaducts and all appurtenances.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 38 of 73

^{*} Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as bridges.

County - UNION

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 39 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	02/01/23	02/01/24	02/01/25	02/01/26
Foreman	W52.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T84.59	T86.59	T88.59	T90.59
General Foreman	W54.52	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T87.09	T89.09	T91.09	T93.09
Journeyman	W47.02	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.57	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T79.59	T81.59	T83.59	T85.59

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
	SEE	E INDUST RIAL PAINTER BRIDGES										

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Structural Steel

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All work in power plants (any aspect). On steeples, on dams, on hangers, transformers, substations, on all open steel, in refineries, tank farms, water/sewerage treatment facilities and on pipelines.

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except for Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During the regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

6/1/2023 Page 40 of 73

County - UNION

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 41 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks PREVAILING WAGE RATE

02/01/23

02/01/24 02/01/25 02/01/26

Foreman	W53.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T85.29	T87.29	T89.29	T91.29
General Foreman	W55.57	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T87.79	T89.79	T91.79	T93.79
Journeyman	W48.07	W0.00	W0.00	W0.00
	B32.22	B0.00	B0.00	B0.00
	T80.29	T82.29	T84.29	T86.29

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	50%	70%	90%							
Benefits	13.65	20.81	27.43							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Industrial Painter- Water Tanks

COMMENTS/NOTES

* Industrial Painters perform work on all industrial structures, such as water tanks, waste water facilitites, refineries, any structural steel work, etc.

These rates apply to: All new and repaint water tanks (interior and exterior).

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 15 or more Painters on a job, 1 shall be designated a General Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, except Veterans Day, which shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- During a regular work week schedule, Saturday may be used to make-up a day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at the regular rate, Monday through Thursday. When the four 10-hour day schedule is used, the 11th and 12th hours shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. After the 12th hour, a worker shall be paid at double the regular rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day lost to inclement weather, paid at the regular rate.

Page 42 of 73 6/1/2023

County - UNION

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Saturday holiday observed the preceding Friday. Sunday holiday observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 43 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Ironworker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	07/01/22
Rod /Fence Foreman	W48.39
	B48.92
	T97.31
Rod/Fence Journeyman	W45.39
	B48.92
	T94.31
Structural Foreman	W50.69
	B48.92
	T99.61
Structural Journeyman	W47.69
	B48.92
	T96.61
	1

Craft: Ironworker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	50%	% 60% Yearly 70% 80% 90%									

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Ironworker COMMENTS/NOTES

HAZARDOUS WASTE WORK: On hazardous waste removal work on a state or federally designated hazardous waste site where the Ironworker is required to wear Level A,B, or C personal protection: +\$3.00 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

When there are 2 or more Ironworkers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule is established, the first, or day shift, shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis.
- When an irregular shift is established for the Ironworker (Structural) classification, the rate shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. When an irregular shift is established for the Rod/Fence classification, the shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis and receive the regular rate, plus 20%.

OVERTIME:

6/1/2023 Page 44 of 73

County - UNION

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. Saturday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Saturday is not a make-up day, all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 45 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	08/09/22
Foreman	W41.38 B24.21 T65.59
Journeyman (Handler)	W36.78 B24.21 T60.99

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	22.07	25.75	29.42	33.10							
Benefits	22.06	for	all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Asbestos & Hazardous Waste Removal

COMMENTS/NOTES

NOTE: These rates apply to work in connection with Asbestos, Radiation, Hazardous Waste, Lead, Chemical, Biological, Mold Remediation and Abatement.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at straight time.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. (Holidays start at 12:00 am).

6/1/2023 Page 46 of 73

^{*} Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

County - UNION

Craft: Laborer - Building PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/23
Class A Journeyman	W38.00
	B32.17
	T70.17
Class B Journeyman	W37.00
	B32.17
	T69.17
Class C Journeyman	W31.45
	B32.17
	T63.62
Foreman	W42.75
	B32.17
	T74.92
General Foreman	W47.50
	B32.17
	T79.67

Craft: Laborer - Building APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	60%	70%	80%	90%	of Class B	wage rate					
Benefit	28.92	28.92	28.92	28.92							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Building COMMENTS/NOTES

CLASS A: Specialist laborer including mason tender or concrete pour crew; scaffold builder (scaffolds up to 14 feet in height); operator of forklifts, Bobcats (or equivalent machinery), jack hammers, tampers, motorized tampers and compactors, vibrators, street cleaning machines, hydro demolition equipment, riding motor buggies, conveyors, burners; and nozzlemen on qunite work.

CLASS B: Basic laborer - includes all laborer work not listed in Class A or Class C.

CLASS C: Janitorial-type light clean-up work associated with the TURNOVER of a project, or part of a project, to the owner. All other clean-up work is Class B.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When a 2-shift schedule is worked, including a day shift, both shifts shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.
- When a 3-shift schedule is worked, the day shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked, the second shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7.5 hours worked, and the third shift shall be established

6/1/2023 Page 47 of 73

^{*} Ratio of apprentices to journeymen shall not be more than one apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than (1) apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen.

County - UNION

on the basis of 8 hours pay for 7 hours worked. The day shift shall receive the regular rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.

- When a second or third shift is worked with no day shift, the second or third shift shall be established on the basis of 8 hours pay for 8 hours worked. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%, and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 15%.
- When an irregular shift must be established this shift shall receive the regular rate plus an additional 10%.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Saturday may be used as a make-up day (paid at straight time) for a day lost to inclement weather, or for a holiday that is observed during the work week, Monday through Friday. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked Monday to Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.
- Benefits on ALL overtime hours shall be paid at time and one-half.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 48 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General PR	EVAILING WAGE RATE
-------------------------------------	--------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	60%	70%	80%	90%							
Benefit	23.98	for	all	intervals							

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Laborer - Heavy & General

COMMENTS/NOTES

Heavy & General Laborer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 49 of 73

^{*} No more than 1 apprentice for the first journeyman and no more than 1 apprentice for each additional 3 journeymen.

County - UNION

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/23
* Skilled Tradesman (only applies to Modular Construction)	W27.90 B5.45 T33.35
Foreman (person directing crew, regardless of his skill classification)	W31.90 B5.45 T37.35
Laborer (for single family and stand-alone duplex owned by single owner)	W17.85 B2.95 T20.80
Residential and Modular Construction Laborer	W23.90 B5.45 T29.35

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIC	DD AND RAT	<u>ES</u>			
As shown	800 hours	600 hours	600 hours				
wage & benefits	70%	80%	90%				

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen-

One (1) apprentice shall be allowed for the first journeyman on site and no more than one (1) additional apprentice for each additional three (3) journeymen on site.

Craft: Laborer-Residential and Modular Construction

COMMENTS/NOTES

* SKILLED TRADESMAN-

any worker doing work not typically done by a Building Laborer. Some examples are installing interior doors, sheet rock, hooking up appliances, installing light fixtures, installing railing systems, etc. Please note where local building codes require that certain work be performed under the supervision of a licensed tradesman (i.e. Plumber, Electrician, etc.) Laborers shall work under such supervision.

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- All residential construction (not commercial), single-family, stand-alone duplex houses, townhouses and multi-family buildings of not more than four (4) floors. Each housing unit must be fully and independently functional; each housing unit must have its own kitchen and bathroom. The definition includes all incidental items such as site work, parking areas, utilities, streets and sidewalks. Please note the construction must be Residential in nature. A First Floor at or below grade may contain commercial space not to exceed 50% square footage of the floor; at least 50% of the First Floor must contain living accommodations or related nonresidential uses (e.g. laundry space, recreation/hobby rooms, and/or corridor space). Basement stories below grade used for storage, parking, mechanical systems/equipment, etc., are considered basement stories which are not used in determining the building's height even if used for storage purposes. In addition, barracks and dormitories are not considered residential projects.

MODULAR RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION- all aspects of modular residential construction (not commercial) at the site of installation of structures of no more than four (4) stories, including all excavation and site preparation, footings and

6/1/2023 Page 50 of 73

County - UNION

foundation systems whether poured on-site or prefabricated, all underground waterproofing, underground utilities, concrete slabs, sidewalks, driveways, paving, hardscape and landscaping. Please note the construction must be Residential as defined above. All work performed by the Set Crew (the crew of workers who set the modular boxes on the foundation), including the rigging, setting, attaching and assembly of all modules and structural members, preparation of the foundation to accept modules, such as sill plates, connection of all in-module and under-module connections including, but not limited to, plumbing, electrical, HVAC, fire suppression, CATS, telephone, television/internet, and fiber optic, the building or installation of any porches or decks regardless of material or method of construction, the on-site installation of, or completion of any roof system, doors, windows and fenestrations, including flashing, gutter and soffit systems, waterproofing, insulation and interior and exterior trim work, and painting. Please note that modular construction does not include on-site stick built construction, tip up construction or panel built construction.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours worked in excess of 8 per day/40 per week, Monday through Saturday, and all hours worked on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOILDAYS:

New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 51 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Millwright PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/04/23
Foreman	W64.35
	B38.57
	T102.92
Journeyman	W55.96
	B33.62
	T89.58

Craft: Millwright APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
6 Months	40%	55%	65%	80%	90%					
Benefits	59% of	Appren	tice	Wage	Rate	for all	intervals	+ \$0.61		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Millwright COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Millwrights on a job, 1 shall be designated as a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 9:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- When a 2 shift schedule (including a day shift) is established, the day shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, and receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a three shift schedule is established, the first shift shall be established on an 8 hour basis, the second shift on a 7.5 hour basis, and the third shift on a 7 hour basis. The first shift shall receive the regular hourly rate, the second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When there is no day shift, and a second or third shift is established, it shall be established on an 8 hour basis. The second shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15% and the third shift shall receive the regular rate plus 20%, inclusive of benefits.
- When an irregular shift must be established, this shift shall receive the regular rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after an established shift that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. Veterans' Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 52 of 73

County - UNION

Craft:	Onerating Engineer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	60%	70%	80%	90%						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 53 of 73

^{* 1} apprentice for each piece of heavy equipment. At least 10 pieces of heavy equipment or a minimum of 5 Operating Engineers must be on site.

County - UNION

Craft:	Operating Engineer - Field Engineer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
--------	-------------------------------------	----------------------

Rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
Yearly	70%	75%	of Rod/	Chainman	Wage					
Yearly			80%	90%	Transit/	Instrument	man	Wage		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Operating Engineer - Field Engineer

COMMENTS/NOTES

Operating Engineer - Field Engineer rates are located in the "Statewide" rate package.

6/1/2023 Page 54 of 73

^{*} No more than 1 Field Engineer Apprentice per Survey Crew.

County - UNION

Craft: Painter - Line Striping PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/07/22
Apprentice (1st year)	W29.15
	B14.75
	T43.90
Apprentice (2nd year)	W33.25
	B25.70
	T58.95
Foreman (Charge Person)	W42.05
	B26.48
	T68.53
Journeyman 1 (at least 1	W37.28
year of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T63.76
Journeyman 2 (at least 2	W41.05
years of working exp. as a	B26.48
journeyman)	T67.53

Craft: Painter - Line Striping COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving.

6/1/2023 Page 55 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Paperhanger PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W52.82 B29.51 T82.33
Journeyman	W48.02 B29.51 T77.53

Craft: Paperhanger APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
	SEE	COMME	CIAL	PAINTER						
		K								

Craft: Paperhanger COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMEN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 4 or more Paperhangers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- The second shift shall receive an additional 10% of the hourly rate, per hour, and the third shift shall receive an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.
- Saturday or Sunday may be used to make up a day lost to inclement weather, at straight time.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, Monday through Friday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, General Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day

6/1/2023 Page 56 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Pipefitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W58.68 B49.97 T108.65
Journeyman	W54.43 B46.36 T100.79

Craft: Pipefitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	35%	% 45% 55% 65% 75%									
Benefit	26.80	29.79	32.79	35.78	38.78						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Pipefitter COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Journeyman Pipefitters on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.
- There shall be a Foreman for every 8 Journeyman Pipefitters on a job.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM-11:30 PM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 10% per hour on the total rate.
- 3rd Shift (11:30 PM-7:00 AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 15% per hour on the total rate.

OVERTIME:

- All hours worked in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.
- By mutual agreement, employees may work four 10-hour days, Monday to Thursday, at straight time rate. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather, and may be paid at straight time. If Friday is not a make-up day, the first 8 hours shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits; hours in excess of 8 shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL (Maintenance Work Only):

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM-11:30 PM) shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 10% per hour on the total rate.
- 3rd Shift (11:30 PM-7:00 AM) shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay at the regular rate, plus 15% per hour on the total rate.

OVERTIME (Maintenance Work Only):

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits. All

6/1/2023 Page 57 of 73

County - UNION

hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double time, inclusive of benefits.

NOTE: Maintenance work is work to repair, restore, or improve the efficiency of existing facilities. This does NOT apply to ANY new construction.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays are observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 58 of 73

County - UNION

Craft:	Plasterer	PREVAILING WAGE RATE

See Bricklayer, Stone Mason Rates

Craft: Plasterer COMMENTS/NOTES

See BRICKLAYER, STONE MASON Rates

6/1/2023 Page 59 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Plumber PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/02/23
Foreman	W64.25
	B41.62
	T105.87
General Foreman	W68.41
	B41.62
	T110.03
Journeyman	W59.49
	B41.62
	T101.11
I .	1

Craft: Plumber APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	30%	% 45% 55% 65% 75%									
Benefits	17.09	23.48	25.72	27.96	30.19						

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

Craft: Plumber COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- On any job having 2 or more Plumbers, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 9 or more Plumbers, 2 shall be designated as Foremen.

The regular workday shall consist of 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must continue for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.
- When two shifts are worked, the second shift shall work 7.5 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the hourly rate plus 10%, inclusive of benefits.
- When a third shift is worked, the third shift shall work 7 hours and receive 8 hours pay, at a rate equal to the hourly rate plus 15%, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

- All hours in excess of 8 per day, or before of after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays, shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday to Thursday, at straight time. Friday may be used as a make-up day for a day lost due to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 60 of 73

^{*} Employers may employ 1 apprentice on any job where 1 or 2 journeymen are employed. Thereafter, 1 apprentice may be employed for every 4 journeymen.

County - UNION

Craft: Roofer PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/01/22
Foreman	W45.52 B29.81 T75.33
Journeyman	W42.52 B29.81 T72.33

Craft: Roofer APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
6 Months	17.00	00 21.26 25.51 27.64 29.76 31.89 34.01 38.27									
Benefits	2.16	2.16	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56	26.56			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - *

- * A) For roofing jobs that are of the 1 or single ply nature: 1:2 or fraction thereof
- B) For roofing jobs on new built up roofs: 1:3 or fraction thereof
- C) For roofing jobs that are of a tear-off nature: 1:2 or fraction thereof
- D) For roofing jobs {not requiring complete removal of existing systems, installation done over existing roof}: 1:3 or

fraction thereof

Craft: Roofer COMMENTS/NOTES

Pitch: +.50 per hour

Mop Man: +.30 per hour

The regular workday consists of 8 hours between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 61 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	04/01/22
Foreman	W41.29 B38.97 T80.26
Journeyman	W39.29 B38.97 T78.26

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES										
1000 hours	35%	% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80%								80%		
Benefits	13.19	15.02	16.88	18.74	21.06	22.94	24.83	26.73	28.62	30.50		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:3

Craft: Sheet Metal Sign Installation COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENT:

When there are 6 or more Sheet Metal Sign Installers on a job, 1 shall be designated a Foreman.

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours before or after the regular workday, Monday though Friday, and all hours worked on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Four(4) 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, for projects lasting at least one week in duration. The fifth day may be used as a make-up day at straight time for a day lost due to inclement weather. However, if the fifth day is not a make-up day, all hours worked will be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Saturday holidays observed the preceding Friday, Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 62 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	06/06/22
Foreman	W56.98
	B48.69
	T105.67
General Foreman	W57.98
	B48.69
	T106.67
Journeyman	W53.48
	B48.69
	T102.17

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES									
Yearly	35%	45% 55% 65% of Journey man Wage Rate									
Benefit	35%	45%	55%	65%	of	Journey	man	Benefit	Rate		

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Sheet Metal Worker COMMENTS/NOTES

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- When there are 2 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a Foreman.
- When there are 17 or more Sheet Metal Workers on a project, 1 must be designated a General Foreman.
- When there is only 1 Sheet Metal Worker (1 Journeyman) on a project, he/she shall receive \$1.00 more than the regular Journeyman's rate.

The regular workday is 8 hours between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- 2nd Shift (3:30 PM 12:00 AM): +17% of regular hourly rate
- Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, that are not shift work, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 10 per day on Saturday, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight time, with hours in excess of 10 per day, and hours in excess of 40 per week paid at the overtime rates listed above.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 63 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Foreman	W69.82
	B35.80
	T105.62
General Foreman	W73.15
	B35.80
	T108.95
Journeyman	W65.32
	B35.80
	T101.12

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL	PERIOD AND RATES									
1000 Hours	80% 85%								85%	
Benefits						Intervals	9 to 10	Jourymn	Ben.	

Craft: Sprinkler Fitter COMMENTS/NOTES

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-13:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 25% 30% 40% 45% 55% 60% 70% 75% 85% 90% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 1ntervals 7-10 Journy. Ben.

Apprentice rate schedule for those apprentices registered as of 7-1-22:

Interval Period and Rates

1000 Hrs. 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 70% 85% 95% Ben. 13.60 13.60 28.30 28.30 28.30 1ntervals 7-10 Journy. Ben

The regular workday consists of 8 consecutive hours between 6:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOREMAN REQUIREMENTS:

- The first Sprinkler Fitter on the job must be designated a Foreman.
- On any job having 12 or more Sprinkler Fitters, one must be designated a General Foreman.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must run for a minimum of 2 consecutive workdays.
- 2nd and 3rd shift shall receive an additional 15% of the regular rate, per hour.
- Any "off hours" shift starting at 8:00 PM or later shall receive an additional 25% of the regular rate, per hour.

OVERTIME:

The first 2 hours in excess of 8 per day, after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. Hours worked in excess of 10 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, Sunday and holidays, shall be paid double the regular rate.

Four 10 hour days may be worked, Monday through Friday, at straight-time.

6/1/2023 Page 64 of 73

County - UNION

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 65 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
	01/02/23
Finisher	W49.32
	B36.62
	T85.94

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
750 Hours	40%	0% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%								
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Finisher-Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 66 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	12/05/22
Finisher	W48.04 B32.26 T80.30
Setter	W62.62 B35.39 T98.01

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
750 Hours	35%	5% 40% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 90%					90%			

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Ceramic COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, and the first 10 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Saturdays after 10 hours shall be paid double the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

6/1/2023 Page 67 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/02/23
Tile Setter	W62.82
	B39.03
	T101.85

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
750 Hours	40%	9% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95%								
Benefits	Interval 1	thru 5 =	75% of	jyrnm. ben	rate	Interval 6	thru 7 =	full jyrnm	benefit	rate

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:4

Craft: Tile Setter - Marble COMMENTS/NOTES

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 7 per day, Monday through Friday, and the first 7 hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. Hours in excess of 7 on Saturdays, and all hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 68 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	01/01/23
Grinder or Assistant	W58.67
	B39.00
	T97.67
Mechanic	W60.28
	B39.01
	T99.29
Terrazzo Resinous	W50.32
Worker	B31.63
	T81.95

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE

INTERVAL		PERIOD AND RATES								
750 Hours	50%	% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 85% 95% 100%								

Ratio of Apprentices to Journeymen - 1:5

Craft: Tile Setter - Mosaic & Terrazzo COMMENTS/NOTES

APPRENTICE RATE SCHEDULE FOR THOSE APPRENTICES ENTERING PROGRAM AFTER 7-1-17:

INTERVAL PERIOD AND RATES

1500 Hours 35% 45% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

The regular workday consists of 7 hours, between 8:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 7 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Monday after Easter, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

6/1/2023 Page 69 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Truck Driver PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23	05/01/24
Bucket, Utility,	W43.56	W45.41
Pick-up, Fuel	B41.78	B43.28
Delivery trucks	T85.34	T88.69
Dump truck, Asphalt	W43.56	W45.41
Distributor, Tack	B41.78	B43.28
Spreader	T85.34	T88.69
Euclid-type vehicles	W43.66	W45.51
(large, off-road	B41.78	B43.28
equipment)	T85.44	T88.79
Helper on Asphalt	W43.56	W45.41
Distributor truck	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Low Boy Driver	W45.16	W47.01
-	B41.78	B43.28
	T86.94	T90.29
Slurry Seal,	W43.56	W45.41
Seeding/Fertilizing/	B41.78	B43.28
Mulching truck	T85.34	T88.69
Straight 3-axle truck	W43.56	W45.41
	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Tractor Trailer	W43.66	W45.51
(all types)	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.44	T88.79
Vacuum or Vac-All	W43.56	W45.41
truck (entire unit)	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.34	T88.69
Winch Trailer	W43.76	W45.61
	B41.78	B43.28
	T85.54	T88.89

Craft: Truck Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate" which shall be 80% of the above-listed wage rates, plus the full benefit rate. This rate shall be used when the driver "round robins" for a minimum of 6 hours during the work day.

HAZARDOUS WASTE REMOVAL:

- On hazardous waste removal work on a State designated hazardous waste site where the driver is in direct contact with hazardous materials and when personal protective equipment is required for respiratory, skin, and eye protection, the driver shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour (with or without protective gear).
- A hazardous waste related certified worker at a designated hazardous waste site who is not working in a zone requiring level A, B or C personal protection shall receive an additional \$1.00 per hour.

Page 70 of 73

County - UNION

TRUCK FOREMAN: \$.75 cents per hour above regular rate. Overtime shall be increased accordingly.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, starting between 6:00 AM and 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

- Shifts starting at 4:00 PM (2nd Shift): + \$3.00 per hour.
- Shifts starting at 12:00 AM (midnight/3rd Shift): time and one-half the hourly rate.
- Shifts starting at a time other than from 6:00 AM to 8:00 AM, when such hours are mandated by the project owner: + \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Employees may work four 10-hour days at straight time, Monday through Thursday, with Friday used as a make-up day for a lost day. If Friday is not a make-up day, then all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.
- -Benefits on overtime shall be \$40.03.
- As of 5-1-23, benefits on overtime shall be \$41.53.
- As of 5-1-24, benefits on overtime shall be \$43.03.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veteran's Day.

6/1/2023 Page 71 of 73

County - UNION

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver

PREVAILING WAGE RATE

	05/01/23 05/01/	
Driver	W35.87	W37.62
	B41.78	B43.28
	T77.65	T80.90

Craft: Truck Driver-Material Delivery Driver COMMENTS/NOTES

BLENDED RATE:

When a truck driver is performing work on the site and also serving as a material delivery driver, the driver shall be paid a "blended rate". See the "Truck Driver" craft for the blended rates.

Truck Foreman/Shop Steward: +\$0.25 per hour

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- 2nd Shift shall receive an additional \$0.50 per hour
- 3rd Shift shall receive time and one-half the hourly rate.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular workday that are not shift work, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day (Decoration Day), July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays will be observed the following Monday. The day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

6/1/2023 Page 72 of 73

County - UNION

Craft:	Welder	PREVAILING WAGE RATE
	Welder	
Craft:	Welder	COMMENTS/NOTES
Welder	rs rate is the same as the	e craft to which the welding is incidental.

6/1/2023 Page 73 of 73

TERRITORY ENTIRE STATE

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date:

{For apprentice rates refer to "Operating Engineers" apprentice rates in any county rate package}

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, Monday to Friday, between 6:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must be established for 5 consecutive workdays.
- Any work started outside of the allowed start time, 6:00 AM to 9:00 AM, except for * tidal work, shall be considered an irregular shift and paid at straight time, plus 15% for the first eight hours, inclusive of benefits.
- * FOR TIDAL WORK- a contractor can start their job according to tide schedules (tide schedules are the various high and low tides related to this work), providing the eight hour shift is completed between the hours of 5:00 AM and 6:30 PM.
- All time worked in excess of an established shift (an established shift is a shift that is determined at the time of the bid) shall be paid at the applicable overtime rate. When a portion of an established shift works into Saturday, Sunday or a holiday, that time worked shall be paid at the established shift rate.
- When working with other trades who receive a higher irregular shift differential, these employees shall also receive the higher differential rate.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with all hours on Friday paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. When all trades on a particular job site agree, the day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

For projects bid after April 1, 2020, on hazardous waste removal work of any kind, including a state or federally designated site, where the operating engineer is required to wear level A, B, or C personal protection, the operating engineer shall receive an hourly wage rate of his regular hourly wage plus \$5.00 per hour.

- An operating engineer working at a hazardous waste removal project or site at a task requiring hazardous waste related certification, but who is not working in a zone requiring level A, B, or C personal protection, shall receive an hourly wage rate of his regular rate plus \$1.00 per hour.

TERRITORY

Hydro-Blaster

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

0

PERATING ENGI	NEERS Rates Expiration Date :
Effective Dates:	
07	7/01/2022
Rate Fri	
	.65 92.28
CLASSIFICATION	IS:
A-Frame	
Backhoe (combinat	tion)
Boom Attachment	on loaders (Except pipehook)
Boring & Drilling	Machine
Brush Chopper, Br	ush Shredder, Tree Shredder, Tree Shearer
Bulldozer, finish gr	rade
Cableway	
Carryall	
Concrete Pump	
Concrete Pumping	System (Pumpcrete & similar types)
Conveyor, 125 feet	or longer
Drill Doctor (Dutie	s include dust collector and maintenance)
Front End Loader (2 cu. yds. but less than 5 cu. yds.)
Grader, finish	
Groove Cutting Ma	achine (ride-on type)
Heater Planer	
hydraulic, single a snorkle roof, and	erial Tower Hoist (all types including steam, gas, diesel, electric, air and double drum, concrete, brick shaft caisson, other similar types, Except Chicago-boom type) * receives an additional \$1.00 per hour on 100 ft. up to 199 ft. to tional \$2.00 per hour on 200 ft. and over total height.
Hydraulic Crane (1	0 tons & under)
Hydraulic Dredge	
Hydro-Axe	

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

Rates Expiration Date:

Effective Dates:

OPERATING ENGINEERS

	122

Rate Fringe Total 55.63 36.65 92.28

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Jack (screw, air hydraulic, power-operated unit, or console type, Except hand jack or pile load test type)

Log Skidder

Pan

Paver, concrete

Plate & Frame Filter Press

Pumpcrete (unit type)

Pumperete, Squeezecrete, or Concrete Pumping machine (regardless of size)

Scraper

Side Boom

Straddle Carrier (Ross and similar types)

Whiphammer

Winch Truck (hoisting)

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

OPERATING ENGINEERS

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 53.72 36.65 90.37

CI	ΔS	SI	F	ICA	rin	NS.
ᆫ	AJ	O.		IVA.	ıv	IVO

Asphalt Curbing Machine

Asphalt Plant Engineer

Asphalt Spreader

Autograde Curb Trimmer & Sidewalk Shoulder Slipform (CMI & similar types)

Rates Expiration Date:

Autograde Curecrete Machine (CMI & similar types)

Autograde Tube Finisher & Texturing Machine (CMI & similar types)

Bar Bending Machines (Power)

Batcher, Batching Plant, & Crusher [On Site]

Belt Conveyor System

Boom-Type Skimmer Machine

Bridge Deck Finisher

Bulldozer (all sizes)

Captain (Power Boats)

Car Dumper (railroad)

Compressor & Blower unit for loading/unloading of concrete, cement, fly ash, or similar type materials (used independently or truck-mounted)

Compressor (2 or 3 battery)

Concrete Breaking Machine

Concrete Cleaning/Decontamination Machine

Concrete Finishing Machine

Concrete Saw or Cutter (ride-on type)

Concrete Spreader (Hetzel, Rexomatic & similar types)

Concrete Vibrator

Hopper Doors (power operated)

Ladder (motorized)

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE PREVAILING WA

OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date: Effective Dates: 07/01/2022 Rate Fringe Total 53.72 36.65 90.37 **CLASSIFICATIONS:** Conveyors - under 125 feet Crane Signalman Crushing Machine Directional Boring Machine Ditching Machine - Small (Ditchwitch, Vermeer or similar types) Dope Pot - Mechanical (with or without pump) Dumpster Elevator Fireman Fork Lift (Economobile, Lull & similar types) Front End Loader (1 cu. yd. and over but less than 2 cu. yds.) Generator (2 or 3 battery) Giraffe Grinder Goldhofer/Hydraulic Jacking Trailer Grader & Motor Patrols Grout Pump Gunnite Machine (Excluding nozzle) Hammer - Vibratory (in conjunction with generator) Heavy Equipment Robotics - Operator/Technician Hoist (roof, tugger, aerial platform hoist, house car) Hopper

03/02/2023

Page 5 of 52

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE **OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date: Effective Dates:** 07/01/2022 Total Rate Fringe 53.72 36.65 90.37 **CLASSIFICATIONS:** Laddervator Locomotive (Dinky-type) Maintenance Utility Man Master Environmental Maintenance Technician Mechanic Mixer (Except paving mixers) Pavement Breaker (truck-mounted or small self-propelled ride-on type) Pavement Breaker - maintenance of compressor or hydraulic unit Pipe Bending Machine (power) Pitch Pump Plaster Pump (regardless of size) Post Hole Digger (post pounder, auger) Rod Bending Machines Roller (black top) Scale (power) Seamen Pulverizing Mixer Shoulder Widener Silo

Skimmmer Machine (boom type)

Steel Cutting Machine (service & maintenance)

Tamrock Drill

Tractor

Transfer Machines

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date:

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 53.72 36.65 90.37

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Tug Captains

Tug Master (Power Boats)

Ultra High Pressure Waterjet Cutting Tool System - Operator/Maintenance Technician

Vacuum Blasting Machine - Operator/Maintenance Technician

Vibrating Plant (used with unloading)

Welder & Repair Mechanic

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 50.38 36.65 87.03

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Assistant Engineer/Oiler

Driller's Helper

Field Engineer - Transit man or Instrument man

Maintenance Apprentice (Deckhand)

Maintenance Apprentice (Oiler)

Mechanic's Helper

Off Road Back Dump

Tire Repair & Maintenance

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 47.80 36.65 84.45

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Field Engineer - Rodman or Chainman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 57.96 36.65 94.61

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Lead Engineer, Foreman Engineer, Safety Engineer (minimum)

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date :

\mathbf{R}^{\prime}	ffaa	tive	Da	tos
14.1	Tec	TIVE	112	LGC.

Locomotive (large)

Mucking Machine

OPERATING ENGINEERS Kates Expiration Date:	
Effective Dates:	
07/01/2022	
Rate Fringe Total	
57.22 36.65 93.87	
CLASSIFICATIONS:	
Autograde Pavement Profiler (CMI & similar types)	
Autograde Pavement Profiler - Recycle Type (CMI & similar types)	
Autograde Placer/Trimmer/Spreader Combination (CMI & similar types)	
Autograde Slipform Paver (CMI & similar types)	
Backhoe (Excavator)	
Central Power Plant	
Concrete Paving Machine	
Cranes, Derricks, Pile Drivers (all types), under 100 tons with a boom (including jib and/or leads) under 100 ft.	
Draglines	
Drill, Bauer, AMI and similar types	
Drillmaster, Quarrymaster	
Drillmaster/Quarrymaster (down-the-hole drill), rotary drill, self-propelled hydraulic drill, self-powered drill	
Elevator Grader	
Field Engineer-Chief of Party	
Front End Loader (5 cu. yards or larger)	
Gradall	
Grader, Rago	
Helicoptor Co-Pilot	
Helicoptor Communications Engineer	
Juntann Pile Driver	

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE **Rates Expiration Date:**

Effective Dates:

OPERATING ENGINEERS

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 57.22 36.65 93.87

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Pavement of	&	Concrete	Brea	ker i	(Sun	erhammer	&	Hoe	Ra	m)
1 avenuent	œ	Concrete	Dica	KCI I	Oup	Cilialillici	œ	1100	114	111/

Pile Driver

Prentice Truck

Roadway Surface Grinder

Scooper (loader & shovel)

Shovel (Excavator)

Trackhoe (Excavator)

Tree Chopper with boom

Trenching Machine (cable plow)

Tunnel Boring Machine

Vacuum Truck

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date:

Tr4	ffect	tivo	Da	400
14.1	rreci	rive	บล	Tes:

10.1	12	122
 / 6 6 6	//	.,,

Rate Fringe Total 52.09 36.65 88.74

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Chipper

Compressor (single)

Concrete Spreader (small type)

Conveyor Loader (Except elevator graders)

Engines, Large Diesel (1620 HP) & Staging Pump

Farm Tractor

Fertilizing Equipment (operation & maintenance)

Fine Grade Machine (small type)

Form Line Grader (small type)

Front End Loader (under 1 cubic yard)

Generator (single)

Grease, Gas, Fuel, & Oil Supply Trucks

Heaters (Nelson or other type)

Lights - portable generating light plant

Mixer, Concrete (small)

Mulching Equipment (operation & maintenance)

Power Broom or Sweeper

Pump (diesel engine & hydraulic - regardless of power)

Pump (larger than 2 inch suction, including submersible pumps)

Road Finishing Machine (small type)

Roller - grade, fill, or stone base

Seeding Equipment (operation & maintenance)

Sprinkler & Water Pump Trucks

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date:

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 52.09 36.65 88.74

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Steam Generator or Boiler

Stone Spreader

Tamping Machine (vibrating ride-on type)

Temporary Heating Plant (Nelson or other type, including proprane, natural gas, and flow-type units)

Water or Sprinkler Truck

Welding Machine (gas, diesel, or electric convertor, of any type)

Welding System - Multiple (rectifier transformer type)

Wellpoint Systems (including installation by bull gang and maintenance)

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 59.04 36.65 95.69

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Helicoptor Pilot/Engineer

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 63.72 36.65 100.37

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes, Derricks, Pile Driver (all types), 100 tons and over and TOWER CRANE with boom (including jib and/or leads) 140 ft. and over

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 62.72 36.65 99.37

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes, Derricks, Pile Driver (all types), 100 tons and over and TOWER CRANE with boom (including jib and/or leads) from 100 ft. to 139 ft.

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

OPERATING ENGINEERS Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 59.22 36.65 95.87

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes, Derricks, Pile Driver (all types), under 100 tons with a boom (including jib and/or leads) 140 ft. and over

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total		
61.72	36.65	98.37		

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes, Derricks, Pile Driver (all types), 100 tons and over and TOWER CRANE with a boom (including jib and/or leads) under 100 ft.

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Tota	
58.22	36.65	94.87	

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes, Derricks, Pile Driver (all types), under 100 tons with a boom (including jib and/or leads) from 100 ft. to 139 ft.

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

STRUCTURAL STEEL ERECTION Rates Expiration Date:

{For apprentice rates refer to "Operating Engineers" apprentice rates in any county rate package}

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, Monday to Friday, between 6:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must be established for 5 consecutive workdays.
- Any work started outside of the allowed start time, 6:00 AM to 9:00 AM, except for * tidal work, shall be considered an irregular shift and paid at straight time, plus 15% for the first eight hours, inclusive of benefits.
- * FOR TIDAL WORK- a contractor can start their job according to tide schedules (tide schedules are the various high and low tides related to this work), providing the eight hour shift is completed between the hours of 5:00 AM and 6:30 PM.
- All time worked in excess of an established shift (an established shift is a shift that is determined at the time of the bid) shall be paid at the applicable overtime rate. When a portion of an established shift works into Saturday, Sunday or a holiday, that time worked shall be paid at the established shift rate.
- When working with other trades who receive a higher irregular shift differential, these employees shall also receive the higher differential rate.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with all hours on Friday paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. When all trades on a particular job site agree, the day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

For projects bid after April 1, 2020, on hazardous waste removal work of any kind, including a state or federally designated site, where the operating engineer is required to wear level A, B, or C personal protection, the operating engineer shall receive an hourly wage rate of his regular hourly wage plus \$5.00 per hour.

- An operating engineer working at a hazardous waste removal project or site at a task requiring hazardous waste related certification, but who is not working in a zone requiring level A, B, or C personal protection, shall receive an hourly wage rate of his regular rate plus \$1.00 per hour.

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Tota		
60.85	36.65	97.50		

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Helicopter Co-Pilot & Communications Engineer

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

STRUCTURAL STEEL ERECTION Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 56.79 36.65 93.44

CLASSIFICATIONS:

A-Frame

Cherry Picker -10 tons or less (Over 10 tons use crane rate)

Hoist (all types Except Chicago-boom)

Jack (screw, air hydraulic, power-operated unit or console type, Except hand jack or pile load test type)

Side Boom

Straddle Carrier

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

STRUCTURAL STEEL ERECTION Rates Expiration Date:

To ee	4.	ъ	4
R.TTE	ctive	· IJЯ	Tec:

Effective Dates	S:	
	07/01/2022	
Rate	Fringe	Total
54.13	36.65	90.78
CLASSIFICA	TIONS:	
Aerial Platfor	m Used On Ho	ists
Apprentice Er	ngineer/Oiler w	ith Compressor or Welding Machine
Captain (Pow	er Boats)	
Compressor (2	2 or 3 in battery	<i>y</i>)
Concrete Clea	aning/Decontan	nination Machine Operator
Conveyor or T	Tugger Hoist	
Directional Bo	oring Machine	
Elevator or Ho	ouse Car	
Fireman		
Forklift		
Generator (2 o	or 3)	
Heavy Equipr	ment Robotics,	Operator/Technician
Maintenance 1	Utility Man	
Master Enviro	onmental Maint	renance Technician
Tug Master (F	Power Boats)	
Ultra High Pro	essure Waterjet	Cutting Tool System Operator/Maintenance Technician
Vacuum Blast	ting Machine O	perator/Maintenance Technician

Welding Machines, Gas or Electric Converters on any type-2 or 3 in battery including diesels

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

STRUCTURAL STEEL ERECTION Rates Expiration Date:

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 52.60 36.65 89.25

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Compressor (Single)

Generators

Welding Machines, Gas, Diesel, Or Electric Converters of any type-single

Welding System, Multiple (Rectifier Transformer Type)

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 50.84 36.65 87.49

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Assistant Engineer/Oiler

Drillers Helper

Field Engineer - Transit/Instrument Man

Maintenance Apprentice (Deckhand)

Maintenance Apprentice (Oiler)

Off Road Back Dump

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 58.41 36.65 95.06

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Lead Engineer, Foreman Engineer, Safety Engineer (Minimum)

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 47.80 36.65 84.45

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Field Engineer - Rodman or Chainman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

STRUCTURAL STEEL ERECTION Rates Expiration Date:

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 57.55 36.65 94.20

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Field Engineer-Chief of Party

Vacuum Truck

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
65.74	36.65	102.39

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes (all cranes, land or floating with booms, including jib, 140 ft. and over, above ground). Derricks (all derricks, land, floating or Chicago Boom type with booms including jib, 140 ft. and over, above ground), and Pile Drivers (all types) 100 tons and over and Tower Cranes.

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
64.08	36.65	100.73

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes (all cranes, land or floating with booms including jib, less than 140 ft. above ground), Derricks (all derricks. land, floating or Chicago Boom type with booms including jib, less than 140 ft. above ground), Pile Drivers (all types), 100 tons and over and Tower Crane.

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
61 24	36.65	97.89

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes (all cranes, land or floating with booms including jib, 140 ft. and over, above ground), Derricks (all derricks, land, floating or Chicago Boom type with booms including jib, 140 ft. and over, above ground), Pile Drivers (all types), under 100 tons.

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
59.58	36.65	96.23

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cranes (all cranes, land or floating with booms including jib, less than 140 ft. above ground), Derricks (all derricks, land, floating or Chicago Boom type with booms including jib, less than 140 ft. above ground), Pile Drivers (all types), under 100 tons.

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

STRUCTURAL STEEL ERECTION Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 61.24 36.65 97.89

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Helicopter Pilot & Engineer

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

TEST BORING PRELIMINARY TO CONSTRUCTION-SOUTH/WEST Rates Expiration Date:

THESE RATES APPLY IN THE FOLLOWING COUNTIES ONLY:

Atlantic, Burlington, Camden, Cape May, Cumberland, Gloucester, Hunterdon, Mercer, Monmouth, Ocean, Salem, Sussex, Warren

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, Monday to Friday, between 6:00 AM and 5:30 PM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shift work must be established for 5 consecutive workdays.
- Any work started outside of the allowed start time, 6:00 AM to 9:00 AM, except for * tidal work, shall be considered an irregular shift and paid at straight time, plus 15% for the first eight hours, inclusive of benefits.
- * FOR TIDAL WORK- a contractor can start their job according to tide schedules (tide schedules are the various high and low tides related to this work), providing the eight hour shift is completed between the hours of 5:00 AM and 6:30 PM.
- All time worked in excess of an established shift (an established shift is a shift that is determined at the time of the bid) shall be paid at the applicable overtime rate. When a portion of an established shift works into Saturday, Sunday or a holiday, that time worked shall be paid at the established shift rate.
- When working with other trades who receive a higher irregular shift differential, these employees shall also receive the higher differential rate.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, or outside of the regular workday, Monday through Friday, that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sunday and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with all hours on Friday paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. When all trades on a particular job site agree, the day after Thanksgiving may be substituted for Veterans Day.

For projects bid after April 1, 2020, on hazardous waste removal work of any kind, including a state or federally designated site, where the operating engineer is required to wear level A, B, or C personal protection, the operating engineer shall receive an hourly wage rate of his regular hourly wage plus \$5.00 per hour.

- An operating engineer working at a hazardous waste removal project or site at a task requiring hazardous waste related certification, but who is not working in a zone requiring level A, B, or C personal protection, shall receive an hourly wage rate of his regular rate plus \$1.00 per hour.

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
57.22	36.65	93.87

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Driller

Effective Dates:

0	7	/	0	1,	/2	0	2	2

Rate	Fringe	Total
50.38	36.65	87.03

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Driller's Helper

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

FREE AIR TUNNEL JOBS Rates Expiration Date:

{For apprentice rates refer to "Heavy & General" apprentice rates in any county rate package}

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting at 7:00 AM or 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shifts must start at 3:00 PM, 4:00 PM, 12:00 AM, or 1:00 AM, to be considered shift work, except when the project owner mandates special hours of work in the job specifications, in which case those hours may be considered shift work.
- When such hours are mandated by the project owner, a shift that begins before midnight on Friday and ends on Saturday morning, or that begins at or after 8:00 PM on Sunday and ends on Monday morning may be paid at the shift differential rate.
- Shifts shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, or outside of the regular workday that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving. However, in the trading of Veterans Day for the day after Thanksgiving, if overtime is worked on Veterans Day, it shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Hazardous Waste Work:

- -where Level A, B, or C protection is required: + \$3.00/hr
- -other Hazardous Waste site: + \$1.00/hr

Effective Dates:

	03	/01	/2	023
--	----	-----	----	-----

Rate	Fringe	Total
50.30	35.73	86.03

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Walking Boss & Superintendent

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
50.00	35.73	85.73

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Heading Foreman, Shaft Foreman, Rod Foreman, Electrician Foreman, Rigging Foreman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

FREE AIR TUNNEL JOBS Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
49.50	35.73	85.23

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Iron Foreman, Caulking Foreman, Form Foreman, Cement Finishing Foreman, Concrete Foreman, Track Foreman, Cleanup Foreman, Grout Foreman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
52.00	35.73	87.73

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Blaster

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.95	35.73	84.68

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Top Labor Foreman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total	
48 60	35 73	84 33	

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Skilled Men (including Caulker, Powder Carrier, all other skilled men)

Skilled Men (including Miner, Drill Runner, Iron Man, Conveyor Man, Manitenance Man, Safety Miner, Rigger, Block Layer, Cement Finisher, Tod Man)

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.45	35.73	84.18

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Semi-Skilled Men (including Bell or Signal Man Top or Bottom, Form Worker & Mover, Concrete Worker, Shaft Man, Tunnel Laborer, Caulker's Helper, all other semi-skilled)

Semi-Skilled Men (including Miner's Helper, Chuck Tender, Track Man, Nipper, Brake Man, Derail Man, Cable Man, Hose Man, Gravel Man, Form Man)

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

FREE AIR TUNNEL JOBS Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate Fringe Total 48.05 35.73 83.78

CLASSIFICATIONS:

All Others (including Powder Watchman, Change House Attendant, Top Laborer)

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

DRILL FOR GROUND WATER SUPPLY Rates Expiration Date:

The well driller and/or helper may perform all work relative to the construction, finishing, and servicing of wells, pumps and borings for ground water supply. The present methods of well drilling entailing as they do, many diverse job operations calling for drilling, pump discharge, piping, and the operation of various types of related power equipment, shall all be within the job duties and functions of the well driller and/or helper. In the event that an extension of work should occur beyond water well drilling functions, into the field of general construction work, such extension of work would come under the appropriate rates listed elsewhere in this wage determination.

- For Work Hours, Shift Differentials, Overtime Rates, and Recognized Holidays see the "Operating Engineers" section of this wage determination.

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
55.97	36.65	92.62

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Driller

Effective Dates:

07/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total	
49.13	36.65	85.78	

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Driller's Helper

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

OPERATING ENGINEERS MARINE-DREDGING Rates Expiration Date:

NOTE: These wage rates only apply to dredging and other marine construction activities occurring in navigable waters and their tributaries.

Boat crews carrying explosive material (dynamite, pourfex, and other similar materials) shall be paid at 120% of the hourly wage rate for hours engaged in handling of said materials. Employees required to possess a Hazardous Material Certification as a condition of employment shall be compensated at 120% of the hourly wage rate.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 40 per week, and all hours on Saturdays and Sundays, shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

Effective Dates:

10/01/2022			10/01/2023
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total
43.94	14.54	58.48	60.48

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Lead Dredgerman, Operator, Leverman

Licensed Tug Operator (over 1000 HP)

Effective Dates:

10/01/2022			10/01/2023
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total
38.00	14.18	52.18	53.93

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Derrick Operator, Spider/Spill Barge Operator

Engineer, Electrician, Chief Welder, Chief Mate

Fill Placer, Operator II

Licensed Boat Operator

Maintenance Engineer

Effective Dates:

10/01/2022			10/01/2023
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total
35.77	14.05	49.82	51.47

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Certified Welder

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

OPERATING ENGINEERS MARINE-DREDGING Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

10/01/2022			10/01/2023
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total
34.79	13.74	48.53	50.14

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Mate, Drag Barge Operator, Steward, Assistant Fill Placer

Welder

Effective Dates:

10/01/2022			10/01/2023
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total
33.67	13.67	47.34	48.91

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Boat Operator

Effective Dates:

10/01/2022			10/01/2023
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total
27.97	13.33	41.30	42.63

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Shoreman, Deckhand, Rodman, Scowman

Effective Dates:

10/01/2022			10/01/2023
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total
39.16	14.25	53.41	55.20

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Crane Operator

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

MICROSURFACING/SLURRY SEAL Rates Expiration Date :

THESE RATES APPLY IN THE FOLLOWING COUNTIES ONLY:

Atlantic, Burlington, Camden, Cape May, Cumberland, Gloucester, Mercer, Ocean, Salem

IN ALL OTHER COUNTIES use the Heavy and General Laborers - North "Slurry Seal Laborer" rates.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

Any shift starting at 3:30 PM or later shall receive an additional \$0.35/hr

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day or 40 per week shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.

Effective Dates:

Λ2	/A 1	124	117	
11.7	/ ()	/ Z I	,,,	

Rate	Fringe	Total
36.50	21.27	57.77

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Foreman

Effective Dates:

ഹ	/01	13	A1	7
ıı٦	/	11		- 1

Rate	Fringe	Total
33.80	21.27	55.07

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Box man

Effective Dates:

03/01	1/2017
-------	--------

Rate	Fringe	Total
31.75	21.27	53.02

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Microsurface/Slurry Preparation

Effective Dates:

03/01/2017

Rate	Fringe	Total
31.75	21.27	53.02

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Squeegee man

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

MICROSURFACING/SLURRY SEAL Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2017

Rate Fringe Total 30.30 21.27 51.57

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cleaner, Taper

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

ASPHALT LABORERS - SOUTH Rates Expiration Date :

 $"THESE\ RATES\ APPLY\ IN\ THE\ FOLLOWING\ COUNTIES\ ONLY:\ Atlantic,\ Burlington,\ Camden,\ Cape\ May,\ Cumberland,\ Cape\ May,\ Cape\ May,\$

Gloucester, Mercer, Ocean, Salem

{For apprentice rates refer to "Laborer - Heavy & General" apprentice rates in any county rate package}

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting at 7:00 AM or 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shifts must start at 3:00 PM, 4:00 PM, 12:00 AM, or 1:00 AM, to be considered shift work, except when the project owner mandates special hours of work in the job specifications, in which case those hours may be considered shift work.
- When such hours are mandated by the project owner, a shift that begins before midnight on Friday and ends on Saturday morning, or that begins at or after 8:00 PM on Sunday and ends on Monday morning may be paid at the shift differential rate.
- Shifts shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, or outside of the regular workday that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving. However, in the trading of Veterans Day for the day after Thanksgiving, if overtime is worked on Veterans Day, it shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Hazardous Waste Work:

- -where Level A, B, or C protection is required: + \$5.00/hr
- -other Hazardous Waste site: + \$1.00/hr

FOR TIDE WORK (pertains to tidal water): A contractor can start their job according to tide schedules (tide schedules are the various high and low tides related to this work) providing the eight (8) hour shift is completed between the hours of 5:00 AM and 6:30 PM.

Effective Dates:

03	/01	/20	123

Rate	Fringe	Total
51.80	35.73	87.53

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Paving Foreman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.35	35.73	84.08

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Head Raker

Effective Dates:

03	/01	/2.0)23
v	/ U 1	/41	,,,

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.50	35.73	84.23

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Screedman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

ASPHALT LABORERS - SOUTH Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate Fringe Total 47.95 35.73 83.68

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Tampers, Smoothers, Kettlemen, Painters, Shovelers, Roller Boys

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate Fringe Total 48.05 35.73 83.78

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Milling Controller

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate Fringe Total 48.25 35.73 83.98

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Traffic Control Coordinator

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate Fringe Total 48.20 35.73 83.93

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Raker, Luteman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

TEST BORING PRELIMINARY TO CONSTRUCTION-NORTH Rates Expiration Date:

THESE RATES APPLY IN THE FOLLOWING COUNTIES ONLY:

Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Middlesex, Morris, Passaic, Somerset, Union

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL:

Employees on a shift other than between the hours of 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM shall receive an additional \$2.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

Hazardous Waste Pay (for Levels A, B, and C): an additional 15% of the hourly rate, per hour.

A newly hired Helper with no experience in the industry shall be paid as follows:

1st year on the job - 70% of Helper wage rate

2nd year on the job - 80% of Helper wage rate

3rd year on the job - 90% of Helper wage rate

All helpers receive full fringe benefit rate.

Effective Dates:

10/18/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
0.00	0.00	65.92

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Helper (4th year helper)

Effective Dates:

10/18/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
0.00	0.00	75.24

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Driller

Effective Dates:

10/18/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
0.00	0.00	81.28

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Foreman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

HEAVY & GENERAL LABORERS - NORTH Rates Expiration Date :

THESE RATES APPLY IN THE FOLLOWING COUNTIES ONLY:

Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Hunterdon, Middlesex, Monmouth, Morris, Passaic, Somerset, Sussex, Union, Warren

{For apprentice rates refer to "Laborer - Heavy & General" apprentice rates in any county rate package}

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting at 7:00 AM or 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shifts must start at 3:00 PM, 4:00 PM, 12:00 AM, or 1:00 AM, to be considered shift work, except when the project owner mandates special hours of work in the job specifications, in which case those hours may be considered shift work.
- When such hours are mandated by the project owner, a shift that begins before midnight on Friday and ends on Saturday morning, or that begins at or after 8:00 PM on Sunday and ends on Monday morning may be paid at the shift differential rate.
- Shifts shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour.

FOR TIDE WORK (pertains to tidal water): A contractor can start their job according to tide schedules (tide schedules are the various high and low tides related to this work) providing the eight (8) hour shift is completed between the hours of 5:00 AM and 6:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, or outside of the regular workday that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving. However, in the trading of Veterans Day for the day after Thanksgiving, if overtime is worked on Veterans Day, it shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Hazardous Waste Work:

- -where Level A, B, or C protection is required: + \$5.00/hr
- -other Hazardous Waste site: + \$1.00/hr

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
47.55	35.73	83.28

CLASSIFICATIONS:

"D" Rate:

basic, landscape, asphalt, slurry seal, or railroad track laborer; utility meter installer; flagman; salamander tender; pitman; dumpman; rakers or tampers on cold patch work; wrappers or coaters of pipe; waterproofer; timberman; wagon drill or drill master helper; powder carrier; magazine tender; signal man; power buggy operator; tree cutter; operator of basic power tools

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.25	35.73	83.98

CLASSIFICATIONS:

"C" Rate:

pipe layer; laser man; conduit or duct line layer; operator of jack hammer, chipping hammer, pavement breaker, concrete cutter, asphalt cutter, sheet hammer, or walk-behind saw cutter; sandblaster; acetylene cutting or burning; wagon drill, directional drill, or hydraulic drill operator; drill master; core driller; traffic control coordinator; asphalt raker or lute man

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

HEAVY & GENERAL LABORERS - NORTH Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.50	35.73	84.23

CLASSIFICATIONS:

"B" Rate:

concrete finisher; setter of brick or stone pavers; stone cutter; form setter; manhole, catch basin, or inlet builder; asphalt screedman; rammer; hardscaping; gunite nozzle man

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
52.05	35.73	87.78

CLASSIFICATIONS:

"A" Rate:

blaster

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
51.80	35.73	87.53

CLASSIFICATIONS:

"FOREMAN" Rate:

labor foreman, asphalt foreman, drill foreman, pipe foreman, grade foreman, finisher foreman, concrete foreman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
52.80	35.73	88.53

CLASSIFICATIONS:

"GENERAL FOREMAN" Rate

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

HEAVY & GENERAL LABORERS - SOUTH Rates Expiration Date :

THESE RATES APPLY IN THE FOLLOWING COUNTIES ONLY:

Atlantic, Burlington, Camden, Cape May, Cumberland, Gloucester, Mercer, Ocean, Salem

{For apprentice rates refer to "Laborer - Heavy & General" apprentice rates in any county rate package}

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting at 7:00 AM or 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shifts must start at 3:00 PM, 4:00 PM, 12:00 AM, or 1:00 AM, to be considered shift work, except when the project owner mandates special hours of work in the job specifications, in which case those hours may be considered shift work.
- When such hours are mandated by the project owner, a shift that begins before midnight on Friday and ends on Saturday morning, or that begins at or after 8:00 PM on Sunday and ends on Monday morning may be paid at the shift differential rate.
- Shifts shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour.

FOR TIDE WORK (pertains to tidal water): A contractor can start their job according to tide schedules (tide schedules are the various high and low tides related to this work) providing the eight (8) hour shift is completed between the hours of 5:00 AM and 6:30 PM. OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, or outside of the regular workday that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving. However, in the trading of Veterans Day for the day after Thanksgiving, if overtime is worked on Veterans Day, it shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Hazardous Waste Work:

- -where Level A, B, or C protection is required: + \$5.00/hr
- -other Hazardous Waste site: + \$1.00/hr

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total	
47 55	35.73	83.28	

CLASSIFICATIONS:

basic, landscape, or railroad track laborer; utility meter installer; flagman; salamander tender; pitman; dumpman; rakers or tampers on cold patch work; wrappers or coaters of pipe; waterproofers; tree cutter, timberman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
47.55	35.73	83.28

CLASSIFICATIONS:

wagon drill or drill master helper; powder carrier; magazine tender; signal man

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

HEAVY & GENERAL LABORERS - SOUTH Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.25	35.73	83.98

CLASSIFICATIONS:

pipe layer; laser man; conduit or duct line layer; operator of jack hammer, chipping hammer, pavement breaker, concrete cutter, asphalt cutter, sheet hammer, or walk-behind saw cutter; sandblaster; acetylene cutting or burning

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.25	35.73	83.98

CLASSIFICATIONS:

wagon or directional drill operator; drill master

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
52.05	35.73	87.78

CLASSIFICATIONS:

blaster

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
51.80	35.73	87.53

CLASSIFICATIONS:

labor foreman, drill foreman, pipe foreman, grade foreman, finisher foreman, concrete foreman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
52.80	35.73	88.53

CLASSIFICATIONS:

general foreman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

HEAVY & GENERAL LABORERS - SOUTH Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate Fringe Total 48.50 35.73 84.23

CLASSIFICATIONS:

concrete finisher; setter of brick or stone pavers; stone cutter; form setter; manhole, catch basin, or inlet builder; rammer; gunite nozzle man

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

PIPELINE - MAINLINE TRANSMISSION Rates Expiration Date :

These rates apply to the following: welding on Transportation Mainline pipe lines (cross-country pipe lines, or any segments thereof, transporting coal, gas, oil, water or other transportable materials, vapors or liquids, including portions of such pipe lines within private property boundaries up to the final metering station or connection - the point where a valve, consumer connection, or town border station divides mainline transmission lines or higher pressure lateral and branch lines from lower pressure distribution systems).

PER DIEM PAYMENT:

In addition to the total wage rate paid for each craft, the following per diem (per day) amounts must also be paid - Pipeline Journeyman: \$80.50; Pipeline Journeyman Welder: \$140.50; and Pipeline Helper: \$64.50. Note: in order to receive the per diem payment an employee must work a minimum of 8 hours in a 24 hour period.

NOTES:

- Journeymen employed as "stringer bead" welders and journeymen who are regularly employed as "hot-pass" welders shall receive \$1.00 per hour more than other journeymen.
- Welders running "stringer bead" or "hot-pass" on "cutouts" or "tie-ins" on a production basis shall be paid \$1.00 per hour above the journeymen rate.
- Whenever a welder helper is employed using a power buffer or power grinder immediately behind the stringer bead and/or hot-pass welders, and the pipe gang is set on a production basis, the helper shall be paid \$2.00 per hour above the helper rate.
- If back welding is performed inside a pipe under either or both of the following conditions, the welder engaged in the welding will receive \$3.00 per hour above the regular rate for the job only for the days on which such back welding is performed:
 - The employer elects, as a regular procedure, to back weld each line-up. This condition is not intended to apply to occasional back welding performed by the pipe gang to repair a bead, to rectify a "high-lo" condition or wall thickness, etc.
 - A welder is required to back weld a completed weld behind the firing line.
- If the welder helper is required to go inside the pipe for the purpose of brushing, buffing and grinding the weld, they shall receive a wage rate \$1.00 per hour above the regular

helper rate for the days involved.

- Welders working on "hot work" shall be paid \$2.00 per hour above the regular rate for each day engaged in such work. "Hot work' is defined as work on lines in service where there is the danger of fire or explosion.

The regular workday shall be 8 hours, between 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, and all hours on Sundays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

Effective Dates:

06/01/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
55.34	34.65	89.99

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Pipeline Journeyman Welder

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

PIPELINE - MAINLINE TRANSMISSION Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

06/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 55.34 34.65 89.99

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Pipeline Journeyman

Effective Dates:

06/01/2022

Rate Fringe Total 33.84 24.27 58.11

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Pipeline Helper

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

PIPELINE - GAS DISTRIBUTION Rates Expiration Date :

These rates apply to the following: welding on gas line distribution systems (that portion of the gas distribution system placed in streets, roads, subways, tunnels, viaducts, highways and easements which serves the users of gas).

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

An "irregular" shift may start any time from 5:00 PM to 12:00 AM, Monday through Friday, and shall receive an additional 15% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of forty per week, and all hours on Saturdays shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday.

Effective Dates:

11	/02	121	022
11	/U4	14	U 4 4

Rate	Fringe	Total
63.90	29.83	93.73

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Pipeline Journeyman Welder

Effective Dates:

Rate	Fringe	Total
63.90	29.83	93.73

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Pipeline Journeyman

Effective Dates:

11/02/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
40.53	22.15	62.68

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Pipeline Helper

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

ASPHALT LABORERS- NORTH Rates Expiration Date:

THESE RATES APPLY IN THE FOLLOWING COUNTIES ONLY:

Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Hunterdon, Middlesex, Monmouth, Morris, Passaic, Somerset, Sussex, Union, Warren {For apprentice rates refer to "Laborer - Heavy & General" apprentice rates in any county rate package}

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting at 7:00 AM or 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shifts must start at 3:00 PM, 4:00 PM, 12:00 AM, or 1:00 AM, to be considered shift work, except when the project owner mandates special hours of work in the job specifications, in which case those hours may be considered shift work.
- When such hours are mandated by the project owner, a shift that begins before midnight on Friday and ends on Saturday morning, or that begins at or after 8:00 PM on Sunday and ends on Monday morning may be paid at the shift differential rate.
- Shifts shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, or outside of the regular workday that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving. However, in the trading of Veterans Day for the day after Thanksgiving, if overtime is worked on Veterans Day, it shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Hazardous Waste Work:

- -where Level A, B, or C protection is required: + \$5.00/hr
- -other Hazardous Waste site: + \$1.00/hr

FOR TIDE WORK (pertains to tidal water): A contractor can start their job according to tide schedules (tide schedules are the various high and low tides related to this work) providing the eight (8) hour shift is completed between the hours of 5:00 AM and 6:30 PM.

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
51.80	35.73	87.53

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Asphalt Foreman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
48.50	35.73	84.23

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Asphalt Screedman

Effective Dates:

N2	/01	126	172

Rate	Fringe	Total	
48 25	35 73	83 98	

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Asphalt Raker or Lute Man

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

ASPHALT LABORERS- NORTH Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate Fringe Total 47.55 35.73 83.28

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Asphalt Laborer

TERRITORY ENTIRE STATE

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ELECTRICIAN- UTILITY WORK (NORTH) Rates Expiration Date:

Electrician-Utility Work (North)

(For apprentice rates refer to Electrician-Utility Work (North) in any county rate package).

These rates apply to work contracted for by the following utility companies:

Public Service Electric & Gas Co. of NJ, GPU Energy, Borough of Madison Electric Department, Sussex Rural

Electric Cooperative, Rockland Utilities, and Butler Municipal Electric Co.

These rates do not apply to work on substations or switching stations.

For Utility work contracted for by a utility company other than those listed above or those listed under "Electrician-

Utility Work (South), see the "Outside Commercial Rates" for the county in which the jobsite is located.

* FOR OUTSIDE COMMERCIAL RATES PLEASE SEE COUNTY RATES

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM.

FOR EMERGENCY WORK ONLY: (emergency work is defined as work caused by storm, catastrophe, act of god, and circumstances beyond the control of the employer)-all hours of work shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

2nd shift (between the hours of 4:30 PM and 1:00 AM): 8 hours of work + 17.3% of the regular rate, inclusive of benefits.

3rd shift (between the hours of 12:30 AM and 9:00 AM): 8 hours of work + 31.4% of the regular rate per hour, inclusive of benefits.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular wokday Monday through Friday, that is not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate, inclusive of benefits. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate, inclusive of benefits.

Four 10-hour days may worked, at straight time, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM, Monday through Thursday.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, or day on which they are legally observed.

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022			12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
61.07	42.13	103.20	106.36	109.56

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Chief Lineman

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022			12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
57.61	39.75	97.36	100.35	103.36

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Journeyman Lineman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ELECTRICIAN- UTILITY WORK (NORTH) Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022			12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
57.61	39.75	97.36	100.35	103.36

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Special License Operator

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022		12/03/2023	12/01/2024	
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
57.03	39.35	96.38	99.35	102.32

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Transit Man

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022			12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
55.31	38.16	93.47	96.33	99.21

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Line Equipment Operator

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022		12/03/2023	12/01/2024	
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
48.39	33.38	81.77	84.29	86.81

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Dynamite Man

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022			12/03/2023	12/01/2024	
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total	
72.01	49.68	121.69	125.44	129.20	

CLASSIFICATIONS:

General Foreman

Effective Dates:

	12/04/202	22	12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
66.25	45.71	111.96	115.41	118.85

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Assistant General Foreman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ELECTRICIAN- UTILITY WORK (NORTH) Rates Expiration Date:

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022		12/03/2023	12/01/2024	
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
64.52	44.51	109.03	112.40	115.76

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Line Foreman

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022		12/03/2023	12/01/2024	
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
46.66	32.19	78.85	81.28	83.72

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Street Light Mechanical Leader

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022		12/03/2023	12/01/2024	
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
44.36	30.60	74.96	77.26	79.58

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Groundman Winch Operator

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022		12/03/2023	12/01/2024	
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
44.36	30.60	74.96	77.26	79.58

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Groundman Truck Operator

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022			12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
43.78	30.20	73.98	76.26	78.55

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Street Light Mechanic

Effective Dates:

	12/04/202	2	12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
43.78	30.20	73.98	76.26	78.55

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Line Equipment Mechanic

TERRITORY ENTIRE STATE

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ELECTRICIAN- UTILITY WORK (NORTH) Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022		12/03/2023	12/01/2024	
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
37.45	25.84	63.29	65.23	67.17

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Groundman 2nd Year

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022			12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
34.57	23.85	58.42	60.21	62.02

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Groundman 1st Year

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022			12/03/2023	12/01/2024
Rate	Fringe	Total	Total	Total
57.03	39.35	96.38	99.35	102.32

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Line Equipment Foreman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

ELECTRICIAN- UTILITY WORK (SOUTH) Rates Expiration Date:

Electrician-Utility Work (South)

(For apprentice rates refer to Electrician-Utility Work (South) in any county rate package).

These rates apply to work contracted for by the following utility company:

Atlantic City Electric.

These rates do not apply to work on substations or switching stations.

For utility work contracted for by a utility company other than the one listed above or those listed under "Electrician-

Utility Work (North), see the "Outside Commercial Rates" for the county in which the jobsite is located.

* FOR OUTSIDE COMMERCIAL RATES PLEASE SEE COUNTY RATES

The regular workday is 8 hours, between 7:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

FOR EMERGENCY WORK ONLY: (emergency work is defined as work caused by storm, catastrophe, act of god, and circumstances beyond the control of the employer)- all hours of work shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

Shift work must run for a minimum of 5 consecutive workdays.

When two (2) or three (3) shifts are worked the following shall apply:

1st shift (between the hours of 8:00 AM and 4:30 PM)

2nd shift (between the hours of 4:30 PM and 12:30 AM): 8 hours of work + 10% of the regular rate of pay for 7.5 hours worked.

3rd shift (between the hours of 12:30 AM and 8:00 AM): 8 hours of work + 15% of the regular rate of pay for 7 hours worked.

OVERTIME:

Hours in excess of 8 per day, or before or after the regular wokday Monday through Friday, that is not shift work, and all hours on Saturday shall be paid at time and one-half the regular rate. All hours on Sundays and Holidays shall be paid double the hourly rate.

Four 10-hour days may be worked, at straight time, between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM, Monday through Thursday with Friday used as a make-up day.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS:

New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day or on days celebrated.

WORKING RULES:

There shall be a Foreman in charge of each work crew. No crews are to exceed twelve (12) men, including Foremen.

There shall be a General Foreman designated for transmission work when three (3) or more crews are on the same job and for distribution work where there are are more than twenty (20) employees on site.

A small job crew shall consist of five (5) or less employees, one (1) of the Journeyman Linemen in the crew shall be designated as a Small Job Foreman.

Work performed from ladders and/or mechanical lift equipment shall be the work of Linemen and/or Apprentices.

On new construction, fitting and framing poles, towers or structures may be done by Journeymen and/or Apprentices. Groundmen may assist, but may not perform any work which would be performed by Linemen if assembled in the air.

There shall be a Journeyman Lineman in each pole setting, erection, grounding, wire and cable-pulling crew of more than three (3) men.

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate	Fringe	Total
67.52	55.11	122.63

CLASSIFICATIONS:

General Foreman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

ELECTRICIAN- UTILITY WORK (SOUTH) Rates Expiration Date:

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 60.14 50.62 110.76

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Foreman

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 56.97 48.72 105.69

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Small Job Foreman

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 52.75 46.18 98.93

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Heavy Equipment Operator

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 52.75 46.18 98.93

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Cable Splicer

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 52.75 46.18 98.93

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Journeyman Lineman

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 52.75 46.18 98.93

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Journeyman Welder

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

ELECTRICIAN- UTILITY WORK (SOUTH) Rates Expiration Date:

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 52.75 46.18 98.93

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Journeyman Painter

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 42.20 39.80 82.00

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Light Equipment Operator

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 36.93 36.60 73.53

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Groundman Truck Driver

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 34.29 35.02 69.31

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Groundman 3rd Year

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 31.65 33.42 65.07

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Groundman 2nd Year

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 29.01 31.83 60.84

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Groundman 1st Year

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

ELECTRICIAN- UTILITY WORK (SOUTH) Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

12/04/2022

Rate Fringe Total 23.21 28.31 51.52

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Flagman

TERRITORY ENTIRE STATE

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

HEAVY & GENERAL LABORERS- NEW TRANS HUDSON TUNNELS Rates Expiration Date :

THESE RATES APPLY TO CONSTRUCTION ON NEW TRANS HUDSON TUNNELS ONLY

{For apprentice rates refer to "Laborer - Heavy & General" apprentice rates in any county rate package}

The regular workday consists of 8 hours, starting at 7:00 AM or 8:00 AM.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:

- Shifts must start at 3:00 PM, 4:00 PM, 12:00 AM, or 1:00 AM, to be considered shift work, except when the project owner mandates special hours of work in the job specifications, in which case those hours may be considered shift work.
- When such hours are mandated by the project owner, a shift that begins before midnight on Friday and ends on Saturday morning, or that begins at or after 8:00 PM on Sunday and ends on Monday morning may be paid at the shift differential rate.
- Shifts shall receive an additional \$3.00 per hour.

OVERTIME:

- Hours in excess of 8 per day, Monday through Friday, or outside of the regular workday that are not shift work, and all hours on Saturdays, shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate. All hours on Sundays and holidays shall be paid at double the hourly rate.
- Four 10-hour days may be worked, Monday through Thursday, at straight time, with Friday used as a make-up day for a day lost to inclement weather. If Friday is not a make-up day, all hours on Friday shall be paid at time and one-half the hourly rate.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Presidential Election Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Sunday holidays observed the following Monday. Veterans Day may be substituted for the day after Thanksgiving. However, in the trading of Veterans Day for the day after Thanksgiving, if overtime is worked on Veterans Day, it shall be paid at double the hourly rate.

Hazardous Waste Work:

- -where Level A, B, or C protection is required: + \$3.00/hr
- -other Hazardous Waste site: + \$1.00/hr

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
75.46	35.73	111.19

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Walking Boss & Superintendent

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
75.01	35.73	110.74

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Heading Foreman, Shaft Foreman, Rod Foreman, Electrical Foreman, Rigging Foreman

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

ENTIRE STATE

HEAVY & GENERAL LABORERS- NEW TRANS HUDSON TUNNELS Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
74.26	35.73	109.99

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Iron Foreman, Caulking Foreman, Form Foreman, Cement Finishing Foreman, Concrete Foreman, Track Foreman, Clean-up Foreman, Grout Foreman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
78.01	35.73	113.74

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Blaster

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total	
73.43	35.73	109.16	

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Top Labor Foreman

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
72.91	35.73	108.64

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Skilled Men (including Caulker, Powder Carrier, all other skilled men)

Skilled Men (including Miner, Drill Runner, Iron Man, Conveyor Man, Maintenance Man, Safety Miner, Rigger, Block Layer, Cement Finisher, Rod Man)

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate	Fringe	Total
72.68	35.73	108.41

CLASSIFICATIONS:

Semi-Skilled Men (including Bell or Signal Man top or bottom, Form Worker & Mover, Concrete Worker, Shaft Man, Tunnel Laborer, Caulker's Helper, all other semi-skilled)

Semi-Skilled Men (including Miner's Helper, Chuck Tender, Track Man, Nipper, Brake Man, Derail Man, Cable Man, Hose Man, Gravel Man, Form Man)

TERRITORY
ENTIRE STATE

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION

HEAVY & GENERAL LABORERS- NEW TRANS HUDSON TUNNELS Rates Expiration Date :

Effective Dates:

03/01/2023

Rate Fringe Total 72.08 35.73 107.81

CLASSIFICATIONS:

All others (including Powder Watchman, Change House Attendant, Top Laborer, Job Steward)



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION P.O. Box 600 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0600

PHILIP D. MURPHY
Governor

SHEILA Y. OLIVER
Lt. Governor

DIANE GUTIERREZ-SCACCETTI

Commissioner

Code of Ethics for Vendors

(viewable online at http://www.state.nj.us/transportation/business/procurement/ethics.shtm & http://njdotintranet.dot.state.nj.us/policy/ethics/pdf/vendcode.pdf)

The New Jersey Department of Transportation (NJDOT) considers the maintenance of public trust and confidence essential to its proper functioning. Vendors must be notified of their responsibilities concerning their relationship with Special State Officers or employees and State officers or employees. Executive Order 189 (Kean 1988). Accordingly, NJDOT has adopted this Code of Ethics for Vendors.

"Vendor" means any general contractor, subcontractor, consultant, supplier, lessor, person, firm, corporation, association or organization providing goods and/or services or seeking to do business with the NJDOT. Vendors who supply goods or services, or are seeking to provide goods and services, to NJDOT, must adhere to the standards set forth in this Code of Ethics to avoid conflicts of interest.

This Code of Ethics, originally adopted on December 16, 1987, is based upon the principles established in Executive Order 189 (Kean 1988), the Conflict of Interest Law, and the Uniform Ethics Code and has been established pursuant to the authority of N.J.S.A. 27:1A, et seq. The Conflict of Interest Law, N.J.S.A. 52:13D-12 et seq., and Uniform Ethics Code which, while not strictly applicable to contractors, prohibit certain actions by State officers or employees and Special State officers or employees when interacting with vendors.

This Code of Ethics is included in each Request for Proposal (RFP) promulgated by the NJDOT and incorporated by reference in every contract and agreement to which the NJDOT is a party. It shall be distributed to all parties who presently do business with NJDOT and posted on the NJDOT's website.

- 1. No vendor shall employ any NJDOT officer or employee who performs purchasing functions for NJDOT. N.J.A.C. 16:44-11.1(b)(3); Executive Order 189 (Kean 1988).
- 2. No vendor shall sell or provide any interest in the business of the vendor to any NJDOT officer or employee who performs purchasing functions for NJDOT. N.J.A.C. 16:44-11.1(b)(3); Executive Order 189 (Kean 1988).

"IMPROVING LIVES BY IMPROVING TRANSPORTATION"

New Jersey Is An Equal Opportunity Employer • Printed on Recycled and Recyclable Paper

- 3. No vendor shall cause or influence, or attempt to cause or influence, any NJDOT officer or employee in his or her official capacity in any manner which might tend to impair the objectivity or independence of judgment of that NJDOT officer or employee. N.J.A.C. 16:44-11.1(b)(5); Executive Order 189 (Kean 1988).
- 4. No vendor shall cause or influence, or attempt to cause or influence, any NJDOT officer or employee to use or attempt to use his or her official position to secure any unwarranted privileges or advantages for that vendor or for any other person. N.J.A.C. 16:44-11.1(b)(6); Executive Order 189 (Kean 1988).
- 5. No vendor shall offer any NJDOT officer or employee, his/her spouse, immediate family member, partner or associate any gift, favor, service or other thing of value related in any way to the State official's public duties. N.J.S.A. 52:13D-24; N.J.A.C. 16:44-11.1(b)(1); Uniform Ethics Code, Section III, page 6; Executive Order 189 (Kean 1988). This includes, but is not limited to, meals, discounts on goods and services, tickets to events, and clothing.

There exist certain narrow exceptions to the State of New Jersey's zero tolerance policy on the acceptance of gifts. A NJDOT officer or employee may accept the following items of minimal or nominal value.

- a. Snacks of minimal monetary value, such as coffee or donuts, provided during the course of a meeting, conference or other occasion where the officer or employee is properly in attendance.
- b. Unsolicited small items of nominal value such as pens, pencils, or other trivial logo items that are offered to the general public.
- c. A trophy, plaque or certificate.
- 6. Vendors who violate this code may be subject to debarment procedures set forth at N.J.A.C. 16:44-11.1 et seq.

This Code of Ethics shall supplement, not replace, Executive Order 189 (Kean 1988), N.J.S.A. 52:13D-12, et seq., N.J.A.C. 19:61-1.1, et seq.; and Uniform Ethics Code (February 2011).

Please also see the New Jersey Department of the Treasury's "Business Ethics Guide" (http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/purchase/ethics_guide.shtml) which provides a guide to ethical conduct for persons and/or entities doing business with the State. To the extent that there is any conflict between the NJDOT Code of Ethics for Vendors and Treasury's Business Ethics Guide, the latter shall govern.

Any questions regarding what is or is not acceptable or what constitutes proper conduct for a NJDOT officer or employee should be referred to the NJDOT's Ethics Liaison Officer at 1035 Parkway Ave. Trenton, NJ 08625, (609) 963-1958 or DOT. Ethics forms@dot.nj.gov.

Amalia McShape Inspector General

Diane Gutierrez-Scaccetti, Commissioner

Letting: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM Contract ID: 23418

Call: 418

New Jersey Department of Transportation

Letting ID: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

Company name: IEW Construction Group, Inc

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3
Page 1 Amendment Count: 1

05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

Letting: 23051801 Contract ID: 23418 New Jersey Department of Transportation Call: 418

Line Number	Item Number	Quantity	Unit	Unit Price	Extension Price
Section 0001 ROADWAY					
0001	151006M PERFORMANCE	1.00 BOND AND PAYMENT		\$9,769.54	\$9,769.54
0003	153009P BAR CHART PR	1.00 COGRESS SCHEDULE		\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00
0004	154003P MOBILIZATION	1.00	LS	\$160,000.00	\$160,000.00
0007	158030M INLET FILTER	20.00 TYPE 2, 2' X 4'		. \$44.73	\$894,60
0008	158033M INLET FILTER	10.00 TYPE 2, 4' X 4'		\$89.45	\$894.50
0009	158072M OIL ONLY EME	1.00 RGENCY SPILL KIT		\$1,177.00	\$1,177.00
0010	159003M BREAKAWAY BA	10.00 RRICADE	U.	\$0.01	\$0.10
0011	159006M DRUM	100.00	U	\$0.01	\$1.00
0012	159009M TRAFFIC CONE	100.00	U	\$0.01	\$1.00
0013	159012M CONSTRUCTION	250.00 SIGNS	SF	\$0.01	\$2.50
0014	159027M FLASHING ARR	2.00 OW BOARD, 4' X 8		\$0.01	\$0.02
0015	159030M PORTABLE VAR	2.00 IABLE MESSAGE SI		\$2,500.00	\$5,000.00
0016	MMG099M TRAFFIC CONT	1.00 ROL TRUCK WITH M		\$64,264.20 SHION	\$64,264.20
0017	159138M HMA PATCH	200.00	Т	\$80.85	\$16,170.00
0018	159141M TRAFFIC DIRE	100.00 CTOR, FLAGGER	HOUR	\$100.00	\$10,000.00
0019	MMB163M MPT FOR SHOU	8.00 LDER OR LANE CLO		\$7,062.43 ATE HIGHWAY	\$56,499.44
0020	MMB164M MPT FOR SHOU	28.00 LDER OR LANE CLO		\$7,062.43 ERSTATE HIGHWAY	\$197,748.04
0021	160004M FUEL PRICE A	10000.00 DJUSTMENT	DOLL	\$1.00	\$10,000.00
0022	161003P FINAL CLEANU	1.00 P	LS	\$0.01	\$0.01
0023	201003P CLEARING SIT	1.00 E	LS	\$0.01	\$0.01
0.024	202021P REMOVAL OF P.	1143.00 AVEMENT	SY	\$50.93	\$58,212.99
0025	401021M HOT MIX ASPH	200.00 ALT PAVEMENT REP		\$40.43	\$8,086.00
0026	405003P UNDERLAYER P	143.00 REPARATION	SY	\$0.01	\$1.43

Check: 6F0CDAB7E3

Amendment Count: 1

05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

New Jersey Department of Transportation Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

0027 606024P 583.00 SY \$60.28 \$35,143.24 CONCRETE SIDEWALK, REINFORCED, 6" THICK 0028 607018P 1800.00 LF \$16.78 \$30,204.00 9" X 16" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB 0029 607034P 318.00 LF \$16.57 \$5,269.26 9" X 14" CONCRETE VERTICAL CURB 0030 608003P 371.00 SY \$19.88 \$7,375.48 NONVEGETATIVE SURFACE, HOT MIX ASPHALT 0031 609003M 404.00 LF \$88.83 \$35,887.32 BEAM GUIDE RAIL 0032 609006M 40.00 LF \$99.00 \$3,960.00 BEAM GUIDE RAIL, DUAL-FACED 0033 609039M 4.00 U \$2,750.00 \$11,000.00 BEAM GUIDE RAIL ANCHORAGE 0034 609042M 10.00 U \$165.00 \$1,650.00 BEAM GUIDE RAIL POST 0035 609075M 175.00 LF \$1.75 \$0.01 REMOVAL OF BEAM GUIDE RAIL 0036 611303M 2.00 U \$36,000.00 \$72,000.00 CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 2, WIDTH MEDIUM 0037 611312M 4.00 U \$41,000.00 \$164,000.00 CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH NARROW 0038 611315M 3.00 U \$147,000.00 \$49,000.00 CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH MEDIUM 0039 611318M 4.00 U \$57,000.00 \$228,000.00 CRASH CUSHION, COMPRESSIVE BARRIER, TYPE 3, WIDTH WIDE 0040 804000P 425.00 SY \$0.01 \$4.25 TOPSOIL SPREADING "THICK , 4" 0041 804015P 100.00 CY \$82.50 \$8,250.00 BORROW TOPSOIL 0042 805003M 1000.00 LF \$3,24 \$3,240.00 TURF REPAIR STRIP 0043 806003P 425.00 SY \$1.10 \$467.50 FERTILIZING AND SEEDING, TYPE A 0044 809003M 425.00 SY \$1.10 \$467.50 STRAW MULCHING 0045 903006M 500.00 CY \$240.00 \$120,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE Section 0001 Total \$1,473,642.68 Section 0002 CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING 155006M 0005 \$39,268.11 \$39,268.11 FIELD OFFICE TYPE B SET UP 0006 155024M 18.00 MO \$4,684.46 \$84,320.28 FIELD OFFICE TYPE B MAINTENANCE Section 0002 Total \$123,588.39

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 3

Check: 6F0CDAB7E3

Amendment Count: 1

Letting: 23051801 New Jersey Department of Transportation 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

Section 000 NON-PART	03 PICIPATING		,	
0002	152015P POLLUTION LIABI	1.00 DOLL LITY INSURANCE	\$10,183.40	\$10,183.40
Section 000	03 Total			\$10,183.40
Item Total				\$1,607,414.47

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 4

Letting: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

New Jersey Department of Transportation

Contract ID: 23418

Call: 418

EXTENSIONS AND ADDITIONS OF ITEMS IN THIS PROPOSAL HAVE BEEN VERIFIED. ERRORS, IF ANY, HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED AND CORRECTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH DEPARTMENT SPECIFICATIONS.

Bruce Goung

EXAMINER

BUREAU OF CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, NJDOT

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 5

Letting: 23051801 New Jersey Department of Transportation 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

Contract ID: 23418

Call: 418

SURETY CHECKED BY: Bruce Goung

TREASURY CIRCULAR 570:

\$1,772,737,000

LICENSED IN NEW JERSEY:

Yes

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 6

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PROPOSAL FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

TO THE COMMISSIONER OF TRANSPORTATION OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY: STATE OF New Jersey COUNTY OF Mercer I Harry W. Coleman, Jr (NAME) I AM Executive Vice President OF THE (TITLE) FIRM OF IEW Construction Group, Inc, THE BIDDER SUBMITTING THIS PROPOSAL. THE BIDDER HEREBY AGREES TO CONSTRUCT AND COMPLETE THIS PROJECT IN EVERY DETAIL AND AT THE PRICES PER UNIT OF MEASURE DELINEATED IN THE ATTACHED EBSX FILE IN THE FOLDER DESIGNATED "SCHEDULE OF ITEMS": THE BIDDER HEREBY CERTIFIES TO THE BEST OF HIS KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF AND UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES AND THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY. I. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

THAT AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM OF EQUAL OPPORTUNITY, IN SUPPORT OF PL 1945, C 169, THE NEW JERSEY "LAW AGAINST DISCRIMINATION" AS SUPPLEMENTED AND AMENDED, AS WELL AS IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 11246 PROMULGATED BY THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES, SEPTEMBER 24, 1965 AND EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 11625, PROMULGATED BY THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES, OCTOBER 13, 1971, HAS BEEN ADOPTED BY THIS ORGANIZATION TO ENSURE THAT APPLICANTS ARE

Contract ID: 23418
Call: 418

EMPLOYED, EMPLOYEES ARE TREATED WITHOUT REGARD TO THEIR RACE, CREED, COLOR, NATIONAL ORIGIN, SEX OR AGE, AND THAT THE SELECTION AND UTILIZATION OF CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, CONSULTANTS, MATERIALS SUPPLIERS AND EQUIPMENT LESSORS SHALL BE DONE WITHOUT REGARD TO THEIR RACE, CREED, COLOR, NATIONAL ORIGIN, SEX OR AGE. SAID AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM ADDRESSES BOTH THE INTERNAL RECRUITMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND UTILIZATION OF MINORITIES AND THE EXTERNAL RECRUITMENT POLICY REGARDING MINORITY CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, CONSULTANTS, MATERIALS SUPPLIERS AND EQUIPMENT LESSORS.

II.	THE	PERFORMANC	CE OF	PREVI	ous	CONTRACT	rs (OR	SUBCONT	RACTS	SUBJECT	ТО	THE
FOLIZ	AT. OI	PPORTUNITY	CTAIIC	בו אוד	ரைப்பு	ETTTNC	OF	יו כו	OUTDED	DEDOD	1.C		
EQUA	XII O								_		. 5		

THAT IF THE BIDDER HAS PARTICIPATED IN A PREVIOUS CONTRACT OR SUBCONTRACT SUBJECT TO THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE, AS REQUIRED BY EXECUTIVE ORDERS 10925, 11114, OR 11246, ALL REPORTS DUE UNDER THE APPLICABLE FILING REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN FILED WITH THE JOINT REPORTING COMMITTEE, THE DIRECTOR OF THE OFFICE OF FEDERAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE, A FEDERAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTING OR ADMINISTERING AGENCY, OR THE FORMER PRESIDENT'S COMMITTEE ON EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.

NOTE: THIS SECTION (II) IS REQUIRED BY THE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ---REGULATIONS OF THE SECRETARY OF LABOR (41 CFR 60-1.7(B) (1)) FOR FEDERALLY
FUNDED PROJECTS, AND MUST BE CERTIFIED TO BY BIDDERS ONLY IN CONNECTION WITH
CONTRACTS AND SUBCONTRACTS WHICH ARE SUBJECT TO THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE.
CONTRACTS AND SUBCONTRACTS WHICH ARE EXEMPT FROM THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE
ARE SET FORTH IN 41 CFR 60-1.5. (GENERALLY ONLY CONTRACTS OR SUBCONTRACTS OF
\$10,000 OR UNDER ARE EXEMPT). CURRENTLY, STANDARD FORM 100 (EEO-1) IS FOR FHWA
AND FRA FUNDED PROJECTS AND STANDARD FORMS 100 (EEO-1) AND 257 ARE FOR UMTA

III.	NON-COLLUSION	AND	WARRANTY	CONCERNING	SOLICITATION	OF	THE	CONTRACT
					,		<u>-</u> '-	
BY O	THERS							
						•		

THAT THIS PROPOSAL HAS BEEN EXECUTED WITH FULL AUTHORITY TO DO SO; THAT SAID BIDDER HAS NOT, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ENTERED INTO ANY AGREEMENT,

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 8

Call: 418

PARTICIPATED IN ANY COLLUSION, OR OTHERWISE TAKEN ANY ACTION IN RESTRAINT OF FREE, COMPETITIVE BIDDING IN CONNECTION WITH THE ABOVE NAMED PROJECT; AND THAT ALL STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN SAID PROPOSAL AND IN THIS AFFIDAVIT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, AND MADE WITH FULL KNOWLEDGE THAT THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY RELIES UPON THE TRUTH OF THE STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN SAID PROPOSAL AND IN THE STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN THIS AFFIDAVIT IN AWARDING THE CONTRACT FOR THE SAID PROJECT.

THE BIDDER WARRANTS THAT NO PERSON OR SELLING AGENCY HAS BEEN EMPLOYED OR RETAINED TO SOLICIT OR SECURE SUCH CONTRACT UPON AN AGREEMENT OR UNDERSTANDING FOR A COMMISSION, PERCENTAGE, BROKERAGE OR CONTINGENT FEE, EXCEPT BONA FIDE EMPLOYEES OR BONA FIDE ESTABLISHED COMMERCIAL OR SELLING AGENCIES MAINTAINED BY THE BIDDER. (N.J.S.A.52:34-15) FUNDED PROJECTS AS REQUIRED BY EXECUTIVE ORDERS OR THEIR IMPLEMENTING REGULATIONS.

CONTRACTORS WHO HAVE PARTICIPATED IN A PREVIOUS CONTRACT OR SUBCONTRACT SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTIVE ORDERS AND HAVE NOT FILED THE REQUIRED REPORTS SHOULD NOTE THAT 41 CFR 60-1.7(B) (1) PREVENTS THE AWARD OF CONTRACTS UNLESS SUCH CONTRACTOR SUBMITS A REPORT COVERING THE DELINQUENT PERIOD OR SUCH OTHER PERIOD SPECIFIED BY THE PARTICIPATING FEDERAL AGENCY OR BY THE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF FEDERAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR.

IV. CERTIFICATION FOR FEDERAL AID CONTRACTS

THAT NO FEDERAL APPROPRIATED FUNDS HAVE BEEN PAID OR WILL BE PAID, BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE UNDERSIGNED, TO ANY PERSON FOR INFLUENCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INFLUENCE AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF ANY FEDERAL AGENCY, A MEMBER OF CONGRESS, AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF CONGRESS, OR AN EMPLOYEE OF A MEMBER OF CONGRESS IN CONNECTION WITH THE AWARDING OF ANY FEDERAL CONTRACT, THE MAKING OF ANY FEDERAL GRANT, THE MAKING OF ANY FEDERAL LOAN, THE ENTERING INTO OF ANY COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT, AND THE EXTENSION, CONTINUATION, RENEWAL, AMENDMENT, OR MODIFICATION OF ANY FEDERAL CONTRACT, GRANT, LOAN, OR COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT.

THAT IF ANY FUNDS OTHER THAN FEDERAL APPROPRIATED FUNDS HAVE BEEN PAID OR WILL BE PAID TO ANY PERSON FOR INFLUENCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INFLUENCE AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF ANY FEDERAL AGENCY, A MEMBER OF CONGRESS, AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF CONGRESS, OR AN EMPLOYEE OF A MEMBER OF CONGRESS IN CONNECTION WITH THIS FEDERAL CONTRACT, GRANT, LOAN, OR COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT, THE UNDERSIGNED SHALL COMPLETE AND SUBMIT STANDARD FORM-LLL, "DISCLOSURE FORM TO REPORT LOBBYING," IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS INSTRUCTIONS.

THIS CERTIFICATION IS A MATERIAL REPRESENTATION OF FACT UPON WHICH RELIANCE WAS PLACED WHEN THIS TRANSACTION WAS MADE OR ENTERED INTO. SUBMISSION OF THIS CERTIFICATION IS A PREREQUISITE FOR MAKING OR ENTERING INTO THIS TRANSACTION IMPOSED BY SECTION 1352, TITLE 31, U.S. CODE. ANY PERSON WHO FAILS TO FILE THE REQUIRED CERTIFICATION SHALL BE SUBJECT TO A CIVIL PENALTY OF NOT LESS THAN

gen_Federal_njdot

\$10,000 AND NOT MORE THAN \$100,000 FOR EACH SUCH FAILURE.

THE PROSPECTIVE PARTICIPANT ALSO AGREES BY SUBMITTING HIS OR HER BID OR PROPOSAL THAT HE OR SHE SHALL REQUIRE THAT THE LANGUAGE OF THIS CERTIFICATION BE INCLUDED IN ALL LOWER TIER SUBCONTRACTS, WHICH EXCEED \$100,000 AND THAT ALL SUCH SUBRECIPIENTS SHALL CERTIFY AND DISCLOSE ACCORDINGLY.

V. THIS SECTION IS RESERVED.

THAT HE SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION ATTACHMENT IN ORDER TO ENSURE THAT SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, AS DEFINED IN THAT ATTACHMENT, HAVE THE MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY TO COMPETE FOR AND PERFORM SUBCONTRACTS.

VII. DEBARMENT

THAT BIDDER AND ITS PRINCIPALS OR AFFILIATES (AFFILIATES DEFINED IN N.J.S.A. 52:32-44.1(e)).

ARE NOT PRESENTLY DEBARRED, SUSPENDED, PROPOSED FOR DEBARMENT, DECLARED INELIGIBLE, OR VOLUNTARILY EXCLUDED FROM COVERED TRANSACTIONS BY ANY FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY.

HAVE NOT WITHIN A THREE-YEAR PERIOD PRECEDING THIS PROPOSAL BEEN CONVICTED OF OR HAD A CIVIL JUDGEMENT RENDERED AGAINST THEM FOR COMMISSION OF FRAUD OR A CRIMINAL OFFENSE IN CONNECTION WITH OBTAINING, ATTEMPTING TO OBTAIN, OR PERFORMING A PUBLIC (FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL) TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT UNDER A PUBLIC TRANSACTION; VIOLATION OF FEDERAL OR STATE ANTITRUST STATUTES OR COMMISSION OF EMBEZZLEMENT, THEFT, FORGERY, BRIBERY, FALSIFICATION OR DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS, MAKING FALSE STATEMENTS, OF RECEIVING STOLEN PROPERTY;

ARE NOT PRESENTLY INDICTED FOR OR OTHERWISE CRIMINALLY OR CIVILLY CHARGED BY A GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY (FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL) WITH COMMISSION OF ANY OF THE OFFENSES ENUMERATED IN THE ABOVE PARAGRAPH OF THIS CERTIFICATION; AND

HAVE NOT WITHIN A THREE-YEAR PERIOD PRECEDING THIS PROPOSAL HAD ONE OR MORE PUBLIC TRANSACTIONS (FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL) TERMINATED FOR CAUSE OR DEFAULT.

SHALL INSERT THIS CERTIFICATION IN EACH SUBCONTRACT AND SHALL REQUIRE ITS

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 10

Check: 6F0CDAB7E3

Amendment Count: 1

Letting: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM New Jersey Department of Transportation

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

INCLUSION IN ANY LOWER TIER SUBCONTRACT, PURCHASE ORDER, OR TRANSACTION THAT MAY IN TURN BE MADE.

WHERE THE BIDDER IS UNABLE TO CERTIFY TO ANY OF THE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATION, THE BIDDER SHALL EXPLAIN BELOW.

BIDDER'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE FULL AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS PROPOSAL ON BEHALF OF THE BIDDER NAMED ON PAGE ONE OF THIS PROPOSAL. IN EXECUTING THIS PROPOSAL I HEREBY DECLARE THAT THE BIDDER HAS CAREFULLY EXAMINED THE ADVERTISEMENT, SPECIFICATIONS, PLANS, PROPOSAL AND ALL OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT NAMED ABOVE

BY SUBMITTING THIS BID, THE BIDDER CERTIFIES AND REPRESENTS THAT ITS BID, UPDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT(S), CERTIFICATIONS AS TO BUSINESS REGISTRATION/PWCR, AND PROPOSAL BOND HAVE BEEN DIGITALLY SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE BIDDER.

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 11

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 and 49 CFR part 21

▼ I acknowledge the information.

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- (1) No federal appropriate funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, or any employee of a Member of Congress in with this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL (Federal Aid Attachment Form 11) "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not that \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

gen_Federal_njdot Check: 6F0CDAB7E3 Errors: No Amendment Count: 1 Page 18

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-44, Valid Business Registration is REQUIRED prior to contract award. Please visit http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/revenue/busregcert.shtml , if you do not have business registration or visit https://wwwl.state.nj.us/TYTR_BRC/jsp/BRCLoginJsp.jsp to verify the validity of your existing business registration.

The bidder, including all joint venture contractors if applicable, have obtained Valid Business Registration.
Yes

** - Please select "Yes" or "No".

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Check: 6F0CDAB7E3
Page 19 Amendment Count: 1

Letting: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM Contract ID: 23418
Call: 418

Pursuant to the "Public Works Contractor Registration Act", N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48 et seq. (P.L. 2003, c. 91), bidders must be registered with the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Wage and Hour Compliance, at the time of bid. Please visit http://lwd.state.nj.us/labor/wagehour/regperm/pw_cont_reg.html,if you do not have "Public Works Contractor Registration" or visit http://lwd.state.nj.us/lsseapp/LSSERedirect.html?newPage=forms/RegisteredContractors to verify the validity of your existing "Public Works Contractor Registration".

THE BID PROPOSAL OF A FIRM THAT IS NOT REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE PUBLIC WORKS REGISTRATION ACT, N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48 ET SEQ., SHALL BE REJECTED. I have obtained a "Public Works Contractor Registration". Yes

** - Please select "Yes" or "No".

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023

Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties

DP No. 23418 CE No. 2207490

Federal Project Number: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633)

Bid Date: 5/18/2023

<u>ADDENDUM NO. 1</u>

<u>Page No. 1 of 1</u>

The following CHANGES are made to the Proposal:

ITEM NO.	REMARKS	ITEM DESCRIPTION	QUANTITY	UNIT
0021 (160004M)	FIXED PRICE	FUEL PRICE ADJUSTEMENT	10,000	DOLL

This PROPOSAL change is available from NJDOT Bid Express website as Amendment No. 1.

- The following are questions received from plan holders and the responses to those questions:
 - Question Asked By: IEW Construction Group, Inc.

Question No. 2: Fuel Price Adjustment

No value has been included in the proposal for item 21 Fuel Price Adjustment. Can you please include the fixed price amount for the item in the proposal?

Response to Ouestion No. 2: Please see addendum 1.

Contract ID: 23418
Call: 418

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Acknowledgement is hereby made of the receipt of ADDENDA Nos. 1 through 1 inclusive, containing information for the above referenced Project. This acknowledgement is made by the Bidder, if an individual; by a partner, if a partnership; or by an officer of the corporation, if a corporation.

Further, I understand that by selecting yes, that I have applied all amendments, if any, for the above referenced project. Yes

FAILURE TO APPLY THE AMENDEMENTS OR ACKNOWLEDGE THE ADDENDA WILL RESULT IN A MATERIAL DEFECT IN THE BID AND THE BID WILL BE REJECTED.

gen_Federal_njdot

Check: 6F0CDAB7E3
Amendment Count: 1

Errors: No Page 21

Projected Completion Date of Work that any person or firm has willfully and knowingly provided incorrect Under 49 C.F.R. 26.107 dated February 2, 1999 and January 28, 2011, enforcement action under 49 C.F.R. Part 31, Program Fraud and Civil March 2024 Remedies, and/or refer the matter to the Department of Justice for If at any time, the Department or a recipient has reason to believe Information or made false statements, the Department may take Maintenance Guiderall End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North -- 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Countles; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490 criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001, which prohibits false SCHEDULE OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE / EMERGING SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE/ESBE/SBE) PARTICIPATION Projected Start Date of Work August 2023 Amount of Subcontract Work Proposed Dollar \$375,570.00 statements in Federal programs. SBE Type of Work (Electrical, Paving, Etc.)& Contract Items or Parts Thereof to be Revision Number: Item 36 - Supply of Crash Cushion, Compressive tem 37 - Supply of Crash Jushlon, Compressive tem 38 - Supply of Crash tem 39 - Supply of Crash Cushion, Compressive Jushion, Compressive RE Concurrence: Barriers Signature: □ ESBE NAICS Code(s) 237210, 561990 Form CR-273 "Confirmation of DBE/ESBE/SBE Firm", must be completed and signed by each of the DBE/ESBE/SBE firms listed below.
 Form CR-272 "DBE/ESBE/SBE Trucking Verification", must be completed and signed by each DBE/ESBE/SBE Trucker/Hauder listed below.
 Form CR-272 "DBE/ESBE/SBE Regular Dealer/Supplier Verification", must be completed and signed by each DBE/ESBE/SBE Regular Dealer/Supplier must maintain inventory and/or own or operate distribution equipment. Z DBE E-mail Address Check One: May 18, 2023 Regular Dealer / Supplier (60% Credit on Federal Aid Contracts) (100% Credit on Wholly State Funded Contracts) (Ust total proposed dollar amount of subcontract work. Civil Rights will calculate the applicable percentage.) Phone Number Broker / Transaction Expediter (Count the entire amount of fees or Commissions charged.) Date 856-845-8202 66080 di2 State City \$1,607,414,47 Firm Street Address Bld Amount: Regular Dealer / Installer (100% Credit) 1222 Deldes Drive Bidder/Prime Contractor: IEW Construction Group, Inc. Trucker / Hauler (100% Credit) Subcontractor (100% Credit) Manufacturer (100% Credit) **Work Zone Contractors, LLC** Equipment/Lessor Firm Name (Complete as shown on plans) DP Number: 23418 Form CR-266 (08/2018) CLASSIFICATIONS NOTES: Startus (DBE/ ESBE/SBE) DBE Project Name: ¥ **2**0/2 RD/S S 딦 Z 8

23.36%

Projected Completion Date of Work Maintenance Guiderall End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRSSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2202833, CE No: 2207490 Page 2 of 2 Type of Work (Electrical, Proposed Bollar Projected Start Rems or Parts Thereof to be Subcontract Work Derte of Work SE Revision Number: NAICS Code(s) Check One: NDBE E-mail Address May 18, 2023 Date: Phone Number dIZ State S S \$1,607,414.47 Firm Street Address Bid Amount: Bidder/Prime Contractor: IEW Construction Group, Inc Firm Name Project Name: (Camplete as shown on plans) DP Number: 23418 Firm Status (DBE/ ESBE/SBE) Form CR-266 (09/2018) Classification

Letting: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

***ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID. ***

Form CR-266 - Schedule of DBE/ESBE/SBE Participation

CR-266 can be submitted now (with the bid) or within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov.

CR-266 is submitted once and no revisions will be accepted prior to contract awared. Check "No" if you are not submitting CR-266 now.

Have you uploaded this form? Yes (No 6

Does your DBE/ESBE/SBE commitment meet or exceed the contract DBE/ESBE/SBE goal? Yes

If a bidder submits CR-266 now, but fails to meet the contract DBE/ESBE/SBE goal, good faith effort documentation must be included with the bid, or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov

gen_Federal_njdot.

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

Good Faith Effort

ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID.

If your DBE/ESBE/SBE commitment is less than the contract goal, good faith effort documentation must be included with the bid, or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov

Have you uploaded good Faith Effort documentation? Yes C.No F

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 23

Letting: 23051801 05/18/2023 10:00:00 AM

New Jersey Department of Transportation

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID.

A CR-273 must be submitted for each firm listed on the CR-266, and be included with the bid, or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR. Verifications@dot.nj.gov

Have you uploaded the form(s)? Yes C No 6

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 24 Check: 6F0CDAB7E3
Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

***ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID. ***

When DBE/ESBE Regular Dealer/Suppliers are used in the DBE/ESBE goal commitment, the Form CR-272 for each DBE/ESBE Regular Dealer/Supplier must be included with the bid or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR.Verifications@dot.nj.gov

Have you uploaded the form(s)? Yes C No 6

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 25 Check: 6F0CDAB7E3
Amendment Count: 1

Contract ID: 23418 Call: 418

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIRMENTS

***ALL FILES MUST BE ZIPPED PRIOR TO BEING ATTACHED TO THE BID. ***

When DBE/ESBE/SBE truckers/trucking firms are used in the DBE/ESBE/SBE goal commitment, the Form CR-274 must be included with the bid or submitted within 5 days after bid opening via email to DOT-CR.Verifications@dot.nj.gov

Have you uploaded the form? Yes (No 6

gen_Federal_njdot

Errors: No Page 26 Check: 6F0CDAB7E3
Amendment Count: 1



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION P.O. Box 600 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0600

PHILIP D. MURPHY Governor

SHEILA Y. OLIVER Lt. Governor

June 6, 2023

Mr. Harry W. Coleman, Jr., Executive Vice President IEW Construction Group, Inc. 1 AAA Drive, Bldg. 1B Hamilton Township, NJ 08691

DIANE GUTIERREZ-SCACCETTI Commissioner

RECEIVED

JUN 12 2023

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES PROCUREMENT DIVISION

Re: Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

Dear Mr. Coleman:

The Commissioner of Transportation, acting pursuant to N.J.S.A. 27:7-30, has awarded the project designated Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North -2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418 to your firm on June 5, 2023. The Contract amount is (\$1,607,414.47). As stated in the Standard Specifications, this award is not binding upon the State until the contract has been executed by the Commissioner. Furthermore, no work shall be performed on account of the proposed contract until you have been notified that the contract has been executed by the Commissioner.

All payment obligations are subject to appropriations and the availability of funds.

Consistent with the Specifications, this award is being made to your firm since you were the lowest responsible bidder whose proposal conformed in all respects to the requirements set forth in the contract documents. All the contract documents which formed the basis of your bid were in accordance with Department Specifications. In submitting your proposal to the Department of Transportation, you agreed to carry out and complete the project as specified and delineated in these contract documents at the price per unit of measure bid for each scheduled item of work.

The contract (Form DC-81) must be signed and witnessed. PLEASE DO NOT DATE THE CONTRACT. The contract will be dated at the time it is signed by the Commissioner. A properly signed and sealed corporate resolution verifying the authority of the officers to sign the contract for the corporation must be attached with the contract. An acceptable Corporate Resolution template can be found from the website link below for your use. Using this template will avoid delays encountered during contract execution.

http://www.state.nj.us/transportation/business/procurement/ConstrServ/curradvproj.shtm

Performance and payment bonds must be issued by surety companies listed in the current U.S. Treasury Circular 570 ("Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds"), and cannot exceed the amount of authority listed in U. S. Treasury Circular 570. All surety companies must be licensed to transact surety business in the State of New Jersey. In the event the penal sum of the bond exceeds the limitations prescribed in Circular 570, two or more listed surety companies may be accepted, jointly and severally, as co-sureties on the contract, as long as the penal sum of the bond does not exceed the prescribed limitations of their aggregate qualifying power.

The performance and payment bonds must be signed by the authorized officers of the corporation and the corporate seal must be affixed. They must be signed by each surety company, witnessed and accompanied by both a certification as to authorization of the Attorney-in-Fact to bind each surety company and a true and correct statement of the financial condition of each surety company. All names must be typed or printed below the signature on the bonds. The bonds must bear the dates on which they are issued and signed. In addition, the contractor must submit to the Department proof of valid business registration with the Division of Revenue in the New Jersey Department of Treasury in accordance with P.L. 2001, c. 134 (N.J.S.A. 52:32-44), and proof of registration with the New Jersey Department of Labor as a Public Works Contractor in accordance with N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48 and P.L. 2003, c. 91, effective August 16, 2003.

FOR 100% STATE FUNDED PROJECTS ONLY, your firm must be in compliance with Public Law 2005, Chapter 51 Contractor Certification and Disclosure of Political Contributions (formerly Executive Order #134) and Executive Order #117, effective November 15, 2008 prior to the Contract being awarded by the Commissioner. Please note that it is the vendor's responsibility to file new forms with the State should it make any political contribution(s) during the two (2) year timeframe or have any change in its ownership structure (including the appointment of a new officer within a corporation). Instructions for completing these forms are at https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/purchase/forms.shtml

All procurement vendors are encouraged to register and update their vendor information via the online NJSTART procurement application at NJSTART.GOV

Your firm must return the fully executed contract, payment bond, performance bond and proof of valid business registration, etc. to this office <u>WITHIN FOURTEEN DAYS</u> OF THE RECIPT OF THE AWARD. If you intend to escrow bid documents as per Section 103.05 of the Specifications, please phone this office to request the custody agreement form. If you do not intend to escrow bid documents, please indicate this by signing in the space provided and return this letter with the executed contract, corporate resolution, payment and performance bonds and proof of valid business registration.

The attached N.J.D.O.T. Insurance Certificate must be completed by your insurance agent in triplicate and submitted to the Regional Construction Engineer at the preconstruction conference. Proof of any other insurance required by the contract must be provided separately on forms satisfactory to the Department at the preconstruction conference.

For STATE and PARTIALLY STATE FUNDED CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS ONLY, Re: Initial Project Workforce Report - Construction, FORM AA-201

The New Jersey Department of Transportation does not have delegated authority to monitor and enforce EEO Workforce Compliance on State Funded construction projects. The New Jersey Department of the Treasury, Division of Public Contracts EEO Compliance has jurisdiction for EEO monitoring and enforcement. Therefore, in accordance with the regulations governing State Funded Construction Projects (PL 1975, c.127; N.J.S.A 10:5-31 et. seq., N.J.A.C.17:27), please submit your Initial Project Workforce Report-Construction, Form AA-201 directly to the Department of the Treasury, Division of Public Contracts EEO Compliance. The NJDOT's Bureau of Construction Services will supply you with Form AA-201 along with the instructions for completing the form upon issuing the NJDOT contract for your project.

Form AA-201 can also be found on the Department of the Treasury's website at https://www.nj.gov/treasury/contract compliance/

Please complete and submit Form AA-201 as follows:

FIRST (2) Copies to:	(3 rd) Copy – (Marked Public Agency) to:
New Jersey Department of the Treasury	New Jersey Department of Transportation
Division of Public Contracts	Division of Civil Rights/Affirmative Action
Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance	Contract Compliance Unit
P.O. Box 209	P.O. Box 600
Trenton, NJ 08625	Trenton, NJ 08625

If you have any questions, I may be reached at (609) 963-2331.

Very truly yours,

Anthony Genovese, Director Division of Procurement

AG/

cc: V. Tilghman-Ansley, S. Tomlinson, E. Powers, E. Yermack, A. Tunnard, C. Feinthel, P. Oza, A. Genovese, K. Daniels, Q. Viernes, R. Maiorano

I do not intend to escrow bid documents as per Sec. 103.05 of the specifications.

Authorized Signature

Print Name: Harry W. Coleman, Jr

Title: Executive Vice President

CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT Made the day of Sure in the year two thousand twenty-
three, between the Department of Transportation of the State of New Jersey, herein after referred to
as the Department and IEW Construction Group, Inc. with a principal office location 1 AAA
Drive, Bldg, 1B Hamilton Township, N.I 08691 herein after referred to as the Contractor

WITNESSETH, that the said Contractor, for and in consideration of the payments hereinafter specified and agreed to be made by the Department, hereby covenants and agrees to furnish and deliver all the materials, to do and perform all the work and labor required to be furnished and delivered, done and performed in and about the improvement of

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

in strict and entire conformity with the plans on file at the office of the Department in Trenton and with the specifications of the New Jersey Department of Transportation as amended by the Supplementary Specifications applying to this particular work, which were duly approved by the State Commissioner of Transportation under the power and authority vested in the Department under Chapter 301, Laws of 1966, approved December 12, 1966 (27:1A-1, et seq.), and which said plans and specifications are hereby made part of this agreement as fully and with the same effect as if the same had been set forth at length in the body of this agreement.

All payment obligations are subject to appropriations and the availability of funds.

In consideration of the covenants contained herein the Department hereby agrees to pay the Contractor for the said work, when completed in accordance with the said plans and specifications, the sum of <u>one million</u>, six hundred seven thousand, four hundred fourteen dollars and forty seventy cents (\$1,607,414.47).

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be signed, attested to and sealed.

Department of Transportation of the State of New Jersey Eric Yermack, P.E. State Transportation Engineer	By:	Witness, Attest, Affix Seal: Anika James, Secretary New Jersey Department of Transportation
6/20/2023 Date		6/20/2013 Date
		IEW Construction Group, Inc.
Witness or attest:		H. Car
witness of attest.		Authorized Officer
EHM		Executive Vice President
Secretary	•	Title of Officer
Sean Flynn	8.0	Harry W. Coleman, Jr
(Print or Type name)		(Print or Type name)

AFFIX SEAL IF A CORPORATION

PAYMENT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned

IEW Construction Group, Inc.
1 AAA Drive, Bldg. 1B
Hamilton Township, NJ 08691
as PRINCIPAL and Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
with underwriting office at401 Plymouth Road, Suite 450, Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462
to which all communication in regard to this bond should be addressed, a corporation organized and existing under
The laws of the State of and duly authorized to do business in the State of
New Jersey, as SURETY, are hereby held and firmly bound unto the State of New Jersey in the penal sum of
one million, six hundred seven thousand, four hundred fourteen dollars and forty seventy cents (\$1,607,414.47)
for payment of which well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs,
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.
SIGNED and SEALED this 6th day of June, in the year two thousand twenty three.
THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, WHEREAS, the above named Principal
has been awarded a contract identified as:
Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson,
Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418
which said contract, upon execution by the Commissioner of Transportation of the State of New Jersey, and the

Principal, will be a part of this bond the same as though set forth herein.

Now, if the said Principal shall pay all lawful claims of beneficiaries as defined by N.J.S.2A:44-143 for labor performed or materials, provisions, provender or other supplies or teams, fuels, oils, implement or machinery furnished, used or consumed in carrying forward, performing or completing of said contract, we agreeing and assenting that this undertaking shall be for the benefit of any beneficiary as defined in N.J.S.2A:44-143 having a just claim, as well as for the party of the first part mentioned in the contract aforesaid; then this obligation shall be void; otherwise the same shall remain in full force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall in no event exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated.

The said Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no modifications, omissions or additions in or to the terms of the said contract, or in or to the plans or specifications therefor, shall in any way affect the obligations of said Surety on its bond.

	IEW Construction Group, Inc.
	H. C.
Witness or attest:	Signature of Authorized Officer
Silm	HARRY W. COLEMAN JR. EXEC. VICE PRESIDENT
Signature of Secretary	Title of Principal
SEAN FLYNN	
(Print or Type name)	(Print or Type name)
	AFFIX CORPORATE SEAL OF PRINCIPAL
i kanan da kan i da ika maja da ika ka ka maja ka ika ka ka ka maja ka ika ka ka Maja ka	
	Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
Witness or attest: BY:	R. H. Shepher Al
Deurtis	R.H. Shepherd, Jr.
B. Curtin	Attorney-in-Fact
(Print or Type name)	(Print or Type name)
	610-729-1311
	Surety Telephone No.
	AFFIX CORPORATE SEAL OF SURETY
	CERTIFICATION TO THE AUTHORITY OF THE ATTORNEY INFACT TO COMMIT THE SURETY COMPANY MUST ACCOMPANY THIS BOND
FOR DEPT. USE ONLY:	
SURETY CHECKED BY: Anhit Pate	
TREASURY CIRCULAR 570 \$ 1, 772, 737,	000
LICENSED IN NEW JERSEY Yes	

DC-95 7/94 Bond No. 019-088-767

PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned

IEW Construction Group, Inc.
1 AAA Drive, Bldg. 1B
Hamilton Township, NJ 08691
as PRINCIPAL and Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
with underwriting office at401 Plymouth Road, Suite 450, Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462
to which all communication in regard to this bond should be addressed, a corporation organized and existing under
the laws of the State of and duly authorized to do business in the State of
New Jersey, as SURETY, are hereby held and firmly bound unto the State of New Jersey in the penal sum of
one million, six hundred seven thousand, four hundred fourteen dollars and forty seventy cents
<u>(\$1,607,414.47)</u>
for payment of which well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.
SIGNED and SEALED this 6th day of June, in the year two thousand twenty three.
THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, WHEREAS, the above named Principal
has been awarded a contract identified as:
Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson.
Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE
No: 2207490, DP No: 23418
which said contract, upon execution by the Commissioner of Transportation of the State of New Jersey, and the Principal, will be a part of this bond the same as though set forth herein.
Now, if the said Principal shall well and faithfully do and perform each and every, all and singular, the things

agreed by it (or them) to be done and performed according to the terms of said contract, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise the same shall remain in full force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall in no event exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated.

The said Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no modifications, omissions or additions in or to the terms of the said contract, or in or to the plans or specifications therefor, shall in any way affect the obligations of said Surety on its bond.

	IEW Construction Group, Inc.
	H. Cle
Witness or attest:	Signature of Authorized Officer
SAN	HARRY W. COLEMAN JR. EXEC. VICE PRESIDENT
Signature of Secretary	Title of Principal
SEAH FLYNN (Print or Type name)	
(Print or Type name)	(Print or Type name)
	AFFIX CORPORATE SEAL OF PRINCIPAL
	Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
Witness or writest: BY:	R.4. Shepheroff
Os Curtaro	R.H. Shepherd, Jr.
B. Curtin	Attorney-in-Fact
(Print or Type name)	(Print or Type name)
	610-729-1311
	Surety Telephone No.
	AFFIX CORPORATE SEAL OF SURETY
	CERTIFICATION TO THE AUTHORITY OF THE ATTORNEY INFACT TO COMMIT THE SURETY COMPANY MUST ACCOMPANY THIS BOND
FOR DEPT. USE ONLY:	
SURETY CHECKED BY: Anhit Patel	
TREASURY CIRCULAR 570 \$ 1,772, 737,00	
LICENSED IN NEW JERSEY	



This Power of Attorney limits the acts of those named herein, and they have no authority to bind the Company except in the manner and to the extent herein stated.

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company

Certificate No: 8209437-019001

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, that Liberty Mutual Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Massachusetts, and West American Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana (herein collectively called the "Companies"), pursuant to and by authority herein set forth, does hereby name, constitute and appoint,
all of the city of Fort Washington state of PA each individually if there be more than one named, its true and lawful attorney-in-fact to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver, for and on its behalf as surety and as its act and deed, any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations, in pursuance of these presents and shall be as binding upon the Companies as if they have been duly signed by the president and attested by the secretary of the Companies in their own proper persons. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney has been subscribed by an authorized officer or official of the Companies and the corporate seals of the Companies have been affixed
State of PENNSYLVANIA County of MONTGOMERY The day of February , 2023 Liberty Mutual Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West American Insurance Company West American Insurance Company The Ohio Casualty Insuran
On this 14th day of February, 2023 before me personally appeared David M. Carey, who acknowledged himself to be the Assistant Secretary of Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, The Ohio Casualty Company, and West American Insurance Company, and that he, as such, being authorized so to do, execute the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing on behalf of the corporations by himself as a duly authorized officer.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my notarial seal at Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania, on the day and year first above written. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania - Notary Seal Teresa Pastella, Notary Public Montgomery County My commission expires March 28, 2025 Commission number 1126044 Member, Pennsylvania Association of Notaries By: Teresa Pastella, Notary Public
This Power of Attorney is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the following By-laws and Authorizations of The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, and West American Insurance Company which resolutions are now in full force and effect reading as follows: ARTICLE IV – OFFICERS: Section 12. Power of Attorney. Any officer or other official of the Corporation authorized for that purpose in writing by the Chairman or the President, and subject to such limitation as the Chairman or the President may prescribe, shall appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Corporation to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations. Such attorneys-in-fact, subject to the limitations set forth in their respective powers of attorney, shall have full power to bind the Corporation by their signature and execution of any such instruments and to attach thereto the seal of the Corporation. When so executed, such instruments shall be as binding as if signed by the President and attested to by the Secretary. Any power or authority granted to any representative or attorney-in-fact under the provisions of this article may be revoked at any time by the Board, the Chairman, the President or by the officer or officers granting such power or authority. ARTICLE XIII – Execution of Contracts: Section 5. Surety Bonds and Undertakings. Any officer of the Company authorized for that purpose in writing by the chairman or the president, and subject to such limitations as the chairman or the president may prescribe, shall appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Company to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations. Such attorneys-in-fact subject to the limitations set forth in their respective powers of attorney, shall have full power to bind the Company by their signat
Certificate of Designation – The President of the Company, acting pursuant to the Bylaws of the Company, authorizes David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary to appoint such attorneys-infact as may be necessary to act on behalf of the Company to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations. Authorization – By unanimous consent of the Company's Board of Directors, the Company consents that facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature of any assistant secretary of the
Company, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company in connection with surety bonds, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed. I, Renee C. Llewellyn, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary, The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, and West American Insurance Company do hereby certify that the original power of attorney of which the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, is in full force and effect and
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seals of said Companies this 6th day of June , 2023 .
LMS-12873 LMIC OCIC WAIC Multi Co 02/21



SURETY DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION pursuant to N.J.S.A. 2A:44-143

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY, (hereinafter called "Surety"), the Surety on the attached bond, hereby certifies the following:

- 1) The Surety meets the applicable surplus requirements of R.S.17:17-6 or R.S.17:17-7 as of the Surety's most current annual filing with the New Jersey Department of Insurance.
- 2) The surplus of Liberty Mutual Insurance Company as determined in accordance with the applicable laws of this State, totals \$65,530,745,401.00 as of the calendar year ended December 31, 2021, which amount has been certified by Ernst & Young LLP, 200 Clarendon Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 02116, and is included in the Annual Statement on file with the New Jersey Department of Insurance, 20 West State Street CN-325, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0325.
- 3) Liberty Mutual Insurance Company has received from the United States Secretary of the Treasury a certificate of authority pursuant to 31 U.S.C. Section 9305, with an underwriting limitation established therein on July 1, 2022 in the amount of \$1,772,737,000.00.

4)	The amount of the bond to which this statement and certification is attached is	s
----	---	----------

- 5) If, by virtue of one or more contracts of reinsurance, the amount of the bond indicated under Item (4) above exceeds the total underwriting limitation of all sureties on the bond as set forth in Item (3) above, then for each such contract of reinsurance:
- (a) The name and address of each such reinsurer under that contract and the amount of the reinsurer's participation in the contract is as follows:

Reinsurer Address Amount

(Not Applicable) and:

(b) Each surety that is party to any such contract of reinsurance certifies that each reinsurer listed under item (5)(a) satisfies the credit for reinsurance requirement established under P.L. 1993, c.243 (C.17:51B-1 et seq.) and any applicable regulations in effect as of the date on which the bond to which this statement and certification is attached shall have been filed with the appropriate public agency.

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Carey, as Assistant Secretary for Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, a corporation domiciled in Massachusetts, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that, to the best of my knowledge, the foregoing statements made by me on behalf of Liberty Mutual Insurance Company are true, and ACKNOWLEDGE that, if any of those statements made by me on behalf of Liberty Mutual Insurance Company are false, this bond is VOIDABLE.

		LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY
		By: A favial / lany
		David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary
Dated:	June 6, 2023	



CORPORATE RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED that the transaction herein referred to, being herewith approved, that Vaughan S. Grundy, III, President, Darrell D. Harms, Chief Operating Officer, Harry W. Coleman, Jr., Executive Vice President, and Joseph A. Accurso, Vice President of this corporation each individually has the ability to bind the corporation to the contract and are hereby directed, authorized and empowered to execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents, instructions and papers and perform such acts as may be legally, properly and reasonably required or necessary for the purpose of procuring and executing any bid, bid bonds or contracts which may be awarded by the New Jersey Department of Transportation, specifically Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418.

I, Sean Flynn, Secretary of a Corporation of New Jersey, CERTIFY that this is a true copy of a Resolution as it appears in the records of the corporation and as was duly and legally adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the corporation called for that purpose and held on 5/31/23, pursuant to and in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws thereof, that it has not been modified, amended or rescinded, and is in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

DATED: June 7, 2023

Signature, Corporate Secretary

Sean Flynn

Print Name, Corp. Secretary

AFFIX CORPORATE SEAL

INNOVATION

TEAMWORK

INTEGRITY





05/08/2024 05/09/2022

Registration Date: Expiration Date:

State of New Jersey

Department of Labor and Workforce Development Division of Wage and Hour Compliance

Public Works Contractor Registration Act

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48, et seq. of the Public Works Contractor Registration Act, this certificate of registration is issued for purposes of bidding on any contract for public work or for engaging in the performance of any public work to:

IEW Construction Group, Inc.

Harry W. Coleman, Jr., Vice-President Responsible Representative(s):

Darrell Harms, Vice-President

Sean J. Flynn, Secretary

Responsible Representative(s):

Joseph A. Accurso III, Vice-President Robert N. Tampellini, Vice-President Vaughan S. Grundy, III, President

and may be revoked for cause by the Commissioner This certificate may not be transferred or assigned of Labor and Workforce Development.



STATE OF NEW JERSEY BUSINESS REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

Taxpayer Name:

IEW CONSTRUCTION GROUP INC.

Trade Name:

Address:

1 AAA DRIVE, BUILDING 1B

HAMILTON, NJ 08691-1811

Certificate Number:

0061399

Effective Date:

November 30, 1925

Date of Issuance:

February 02, 2022

For Office Use Only:

20220202085046588

Description

Maintenance Guiderail End Treatment and Attenuator Project, North – 2023, Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Morris, Somerset and Union Counties; Federal Project No: CRRSAA-FLEX-D00S(633), PE No: 2622833, CE No: 2207490, DP No: 23418

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

The foregoing contract and bonds has been reviewed and approved as to form.

Matthew J. Platkin Attorney General of New Jersey

 $\mathbf{R}\mathbf{v}$

Name: Jensen E. Vizzard

Deputy Attorney General

Date 6/15/2023